STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, APRIL 7™, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners
for the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey
County Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and
during this meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted
agenda.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for April 7, 2015

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBL EACTION: Approval of minutes for March 3, 2015

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for March 17, 2015

CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and

acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 03/09/15 $50,569.84 and $107,181.78, date
03/13/15 for $426,089.72 and date 03/27/15 for $317,398.81. Accounts payable checks date
03/18/15 for $248.51 and 03/20/15 for $1,052,830.24 and $10,913.55.

For possible action approval of Interlocal Contract between the State of Nevada Public
Employees” Deferred Compensation Committee and Storey County.

For possible action approval of Vincent Malifitano (Delta) General/ Liquor/ Gaming License
Application.

For possible action approval of Robert & Nicole Wilkinson, Gold Hill Hotel General/ Liquor
License application.

For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

STEM, LL.C dba THE CANVAS CAFE - General / 110 North C Street (restaurant) VC
FLEET TEAM, INC. - General / 1425 Valley Belt Road ~ Cleveland, OH (lease equipment)
MERIDIAN SURVEYING & MAPPING, INC. - 405 Marsh Avenue ~ Reno (land surveyor)
NEXT GENERATION DRYWALL - Contractor / 925 Del Sol Street ~ Sparks (contractor)
ROC-TEK CORPORATION - General / 222 East Sydney (engineering research lab) TRI
ASSOCIATED CRANE - Contractor / 235 London Drive (crane service) TRI
SUPERNAP RENO, LLC ~ General / 1705 Peru (data ctr temp office) TRT
FLETCHLINE, INC. - Contractor / 5480 Lakeview Road ~ Springfield, TN (rack installation)
TFROOF SVCS dba AFFORDABLE ROOFING - Contractor / 1250 Ridgeway Ct ~ Reno
DENT B GONE - Home Business / 21760 Clemens Road (mobile service) VCH
DANIEL J. CARAVALLO dba VC BLING - HB / 130 South Q Street (internet sales) VC
SIERRA COAST ROOFING, INC. - Contractor / 6015 South Virginia St., ~ Sparks

~ET SR e a0 o

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment); Committee/ Staff Reports including
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Discussion and direction to staff
regarding legislation or legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted
by the Nevada State Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be
deemed by the Chairman or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County. Specific
bills will include AB 417 and AB 427 which staff has expressed opposition.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of policy regarding refund
of building permit fees.

DISUCSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Selection of David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD as Storey County
auditor for the fiscal year ended Fune 30, 2015.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding section
3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements

2




of permitting fees to participants in a qualified project in Economic Diversification District No. 1
and providing for other properly related matters.

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of TRI Infrastructure voucher in the amount of
$9,893.50 payable per the Developer Agreement.

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FY 2015/16
19. RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FYE 2015/16 for the Water
and Sewer services in Virginia City, Gold Hill and Silver City.

21. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FYE 2015/16
23. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FYE 2015/16 for the NRS
474 Fire Protection District.

25. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FYE 2015/16
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

27. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of ordinance 15-264 an application
No. 2014-020 (Continued from 12/02/ 14) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the
text of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-
Commercial Zone. The intent of the proposed I-C Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use
industrial and commercial uses where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by
the planning commission. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and the
draft zone text may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning@storevcounty.org. (Continue item until May 5, 2015 board meeting.)

28. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-021 (Continued from 12/02/14
meeting) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature
Conservancy, LLC and the Union Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County
Zoning Map. The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land
located in McCarran, Nevada (river District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in
July of 2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by mean of boundary line
adjustment. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.
(Continue item until May 5, 2015 board meeting.)




29. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

AT @ e Ao

a. CCATT, LLC - Contractor / 2000 Corporate Drive ~ Canonsburg, PA (telecommunications)
b. BLUESCOPE CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 1540 Genessee Street ~ Kansas City,
MO (contractor)

SMC CONSTRUCTION CO - Contractor / 290 Gentry Way #1 ~ Reno (contractor)

JAMES S. BRYANT, INC. - Contractor / 12360 Westridge Drive ~ Reno (contractor)

SKY SCENES MULTIMEDIA - HB / 1771 Harte Road ~ VCH (consultant)

JJK ENTERPRISES - HB / 222 Musket Road ~ VCH (consultant)

TMW TECHNOLOGIES, LLC - 200 South Virginia Street ~ Reno (operations management)
S.W.O.R.D. DESIGN - General / 420 USA Parkway (manufacturing molded products) TRI
MDB TRUCKING, LLC.. - Transportation / 905 East Mustang (trucking co.) MCC

IONIX, LLC - General / 222 East Sydney (metal fabrication) TRI

RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

30. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

31. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear,

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability,




CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before March 31, 2015; Virginia
City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands
Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 7, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for March 3, 2015
2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

et

Agenda Item No. 4




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, MARCH 3Rb, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, District Attorney
Anne Langer, Deputy Clerk & Treasurer Wendy Bacus, Melanie Keener, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro,
Stacy Bucchianeri, Shannon Gardner, Administrative Officer/Senior Planner Austin Osborne, Public
Works Director Mike Nevin, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Recorder Jen Chapman, Tourism Director
Deny Dotson and Special Council Bob Morris. County Manager Pat Whitten via telephone

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.,
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:00 AM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for March 3, 2015

Administrative Officer Austin Osborne requested continuance of Items 20 and 21 to April 7,
2015.

Motion: Approve Agenda for March 3, 2015, Action: Approve with changes requested
Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey Seconded by: Vice Chair Gilman Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes =3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for January 20, 2015
Motion: Approve Minutes for January 20, 2015, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair

Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=3)




5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for February 3, 2015

Motion: Approve Minutes for February 3, 2015, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA

6. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 02/13/15 $413,723.01. Accounts payable
checks date 02/20/15 for $865,321.32 and $6,010.56.

7. For possible action approval of Storey County Fire Protection District agreement with Carson
City Fire Department, Central Lyon County Fire Protection District, East Fork Fire Protection
District and Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District for reciprocal ambulance subscription
coverage.

8. For possible action approval of the Safety Manual as prepared by the Storey County Safety
Committee.

9. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -
a. PELLETT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 616 East Glendale ~ Sparks
b. SSW.O.R.D. DESIGN - General / 420 USA Parkway TRI
c. ELECTRIC TECH CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 1910 Mark Court ~ Concord, CA

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Administrative Officer Austin Osborne requested items 7 and 8 be pulled for discussion.

Motion: Approve to pull items 7 and 8 for discussion Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

7. For possible action approval of Storey County Fire Protection District agreement with Carson City
Fire Department, Central Lyon County Fire Protection District, East Fork Fire Protection District and
Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District for reciprocal ambulance subscription coverage.

County Manager Pat Whitten, via telephone:
* Purchase of a Storey County ambulance subscription will be honored in Central Lyon County,
the two Lake Tahoe Districts and Carson City district. This is an added value of the ambulance

subscription coverage.




Motion: Approve Storey County Fire Protection District agreement with Carson City Fire
Department, Central Lyon County Fire Protection District, East Fork Fire Protection District and
Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District for reciprocal ambulance subscription coverage

Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

8. For possible action approval of the Safety Manual as prepared by the Storey County Safety
Committee.

Shannon Gardner reviewed the revision of the Storey County Safety Manual.

County Manager Whitten:
¢ Very proud of this document, it warrants approval. Thank you to Mr. Gardner for his work on
the manual.

Chairman McBride presented Shannon Gardner with a gift on behalf of Storey County for his years of
public service.

Motion: Approval of the Safety Manual as prepared by the Storey County Safety Committee,
Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION (No Action): Presentation and discussion by Nevada Department of
Transportation Officials and Comstock Mining, LLC regarding physical conditions, structural
integrity, and other conditions of State Route 342 adjacent to the Lucerne Pit in southern Gold Hill,
Storey County, Nevada.

Austin Osborne commended the teams from NDOT and CMI in coming up with a common-sense
resolution to the situation on State Route 342. Storey County, NDOT, other applicable regulatory
agencies, and CMI have met to discuss and consider possible alternatives for temporary and permanent
reopening and realignment of State Route 342 in Gold Hill. After consideration, NDOT recommended to
Storey County the most viable options. According to those recommendations, the following will be
performed:

* Portions of State Route 342 near the Lucerne Pit and the failing Silver Hills shaft will be
realigned around the pit and historic shaft. The realignment will occur over two phases, with
Phase 1 taking approximately 10-12 weeks to complete and Phase 2 taking an additional six
months to complete.

» CMI will excavate and remove approximately 40 feet of loose unconsolidated fill now existing
above base bedrock level and immediately beneath the existing road. CMI will then construct
the new bypass road upon the base bedrock and permanently cap the historic Silver Hills
shaft. Removing existing loose fill and constructing the road on the base bedrock is expected to
facilitate permanent long-term road stability.

e TPhase 1 will commence after the March 3 Commission meeting, after NDOT provides
temporary permits, and after AT&T relocates several phone line poles in the subject area.

3




The estimated cost of the road realignment project is $3 million. Project costs and surety
bonding for its guaranteed completion will be provided by CML The surety bond will be
posted with the Storey County Clerk’s Office along with the portion of CMI’s required post-
mining reclamation bond exceeding Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP)
minimum requirements.

The north half of the new road will become part of the permanent realignment; the southern
half (will temporarily connect the permanent northern portion of the new road to existing
State Route 342, Phase 1 completion is expected to take 10-12 weeks, pending weather and
unforeseen circumstances, and is expected to open on or before June 6, 2015. (Note: Sufficient
progress is expected by May to facilitate the Reno-Tahoe Odyssey run through Gold Hill.)

Phase 2 will commence as soon as Phase 1 is complete. CMI will perform some Phase 2 work
concurrently with Phase 1; however, some Phase 1 work is prerequisite to Phase 2. Phase 2 will
commence at the south edge of the Phase 1 road (permanent portion) and will continue
southward past the Lucerne Pit area before it abuts existing State Route 342. When completed,
the temporary bypass connection will be removed. The Phase 2 southern alignment will cross
the Gold Creek in two places. The new road, however, will bridge the creek without affecting
it, thus eliminating any impact to the creek and minimizing permitting requirements. A
jurisdictional determination has been made by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers on Gold
Creek, and the creek will be carefully avoided. According to CMI, an archeological survey
approved by the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) was reviewed for the project and
the work area was found to have no impacts on cultural sites. Storey County will validate this
claim and continue its communication with the SHPO throughout project development.

While north and southbound traffic travels on the Phase 1 permanent alignment and
temporary bypass, CMI will continue working on Phase 2 of the project through most of
December of 2015. This includes design, engineering, permitting, and construction of the road,
as well as developing both creek crossings. Once complete, the Phase 2 road will be connected
to Phase 1 road, thus finalizing the entire permanent State Route 342 realignment.

A second but relatively brief road closure will be necessary on or about the second week of
December in order to finish culvert foundations and connect the new alignment to the
remaining existing road. The length of this closure depends on crossing types employed.
Storey County, CMI, and other regulatory agencies will work together on scheduling this
December road closure around key tourism events, such as “Christmas on the Comstock”.

During and following Phase 2 work, CMI will begin partial reclamation of disturbed land
between the new road and the Lucerne Pit, including portions of the Lucerne Pit's east high-
wall. When completed, there will be a new engineered slope between the new road and the
existing Lucerne Pit. It appears from Storey County’s communication with CMI, but not yet
verified by NDOT, that the slope will be approved by NDOT and assessed by it and the
applicable agencies for its interrelation to the new road. As initially planned, CMI will finish
mining the Lucerne Pit downward 60 more feet until the ore is exhausted.

CMI and NDOT will continue monitoring potential ground movement before and after local
blasting. Starting Wednesday, March 4, 2015, Storey County staff will physically observe pre-
and post-blast data from each area ground vibration monitoring device. Thereafter, Storey




County will be provided results of all blasts (pre and post) so that it may monitor conditions
and require changes as appropriate.

Bill Hoffman, Deputy Director for NDOT, said he is very supportive of this solution

Corrado DeGasperis, President of Comstock Mining gave a slide-show presentation outlining
timelines and the above plan. Mr. DeGasperis said despite the urgency to re-open the road, safety is
the first concern.

Chair McBride:

e The cost is approximately $3 million for the three phases. Asked if the County should get an
estimate to insure the cost would not be higher, causing construction of the road to not be
completed.

e There is concern about the financial status of CMI.

Mr. Osborne said there could be review and validation of construction by a third party.

NDOT representative Thor Dyssen said an NDOT crew will be assigned to monitor construction
progress assuming NDOT continues with the prescriptive agreement.

Mr, DeGasperis:
e CMI has enough liquidity to cover the project. In addition there is a surety bond.
¢ To insure work will be done within the 10 to 12 week timeframe, the County can set a schedule
which will be reviewed at County request.

Vice Chairman Gilman:
» After the completion of Phase 1, could the by-pass be used if the permanent road is not
complete.

Mr. Dyssen replied the temporary by-pass is the permanent by-pass.
Commissioner McGuffey expressed concern about several businesses in Silver City and Virginia City.
County Manager Whitten assured everyone this project is the County’s highest priority.

Gold Hill Resident, Peter Kramer: The temporary fill in the shaft is what most of the Comstock is
built on and has been compacting for years. A temporary by-pass would be completely adequate.
The first phase of the plan is more elaborate than need be and includes remediating the fill which will
bring profit to CMI. No reason to take out a whole section of 342 because 40 feet is unsafe.

Mr. Osborne replied with the shaft existing in the middle of this unconsolidated ground, the loose
ground around it keeps going back into the shaft. NDOT is taking a position that the road be safe,
temporarily and permanently. It is because of the shaft that this situation exists.

Gold Hill Resident, Ben Wessner: Questioned the surety bond - does it cover phase 1?7 We need to
make sure the surety bond will cover in the event CMI pulls out. The cut was irresponsible.
What about future problems or issues? There should be over-sight by someone other than CML.

5




Thor Dyssen, NDOT District Engineer:

* The bond takes into account in phase 1, six inches of asphalt, base material and everything
associated to build the temporary/permanent location. The short section of the temporary
road with 3 inches of asphalt will be taken out in Phase 2 and replaced with 6 inches of
asphalt, or pave 3 inches on top if the existing 3 inches has survived.

Corrado DeGasperis further explained:
e Phase 1 - the full by-pass, including excavation, bedrock and fill material, and permanent six
inches (asphalt) thinning to 3 inches, fully open.
o Phase 2 - Crossing the 3 inch area, building the entirety of the new road that ties in further
south, removing all of the loose fill and bedrock.
¢ The estimate of $3 million covers both phases.
* Both phases are over-bonded. The bond would be increased if the entire project is higher.

Mike Griswold, NDOT Chief Engineer:
» For the future phase, NDOT is looking at both the fill and cut slopes to make sure there is a
permanent, safe solution meeting today’s standards.

Austin Osborne said oversight and collaboration will continue between all parties involved in this
situation. Meetings will continue to present updates on progress and related matters.

Chair McBride called for a recess at 11:53 AM. Meeting reconvened at 12:10 PM.
11. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports including

Mike Nevin, Public Works Director:

¢ New wastewater plant is on-line. The existing facility is being demolished and should be
completed by the end of March.

e Reservoir projects are just about complete. A few items remain at the Divide Reservoir,
including completion of fencing.

¢ Courthouse roof project is on target. Completion date is the end of April, weather permitting.

¢ Tenant improvements continue at the TRI office. The County’s work for Switch has been
completed.

Hugh Gallagher, Comptroller:

* Update on the Park Tax Fund penalty interest. All permits have been documented since
inception, and will continue. All expenditures have also been documented. Expenditures
from the Park Funds not related to any construction items in the parks have been adjusted.
The last phase to be reviewed is penalty interest. The balance of the Funds is now known.
Calculation will be done from inception through December 31, 2014, and interest will be
booked and will continue. There are specific descriptions for the use of funds.

Vice Chair Gilman suggested staff establishes a procedure on how to access the funds and an
explanation of the uses.




 Pursuant to discussion at the previous Board meeting and meeting with Tom Gransbury
regarding the Guaranteed Share, it looks favorable for the County to move out of Guaranteed
Share.

Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer/Senior Planner:

» Work continues on Health Benefits packages. So far it does not look like the County will incur
any additional costs for health care. Open enrollment period will begin at the end of March.

* We are working with the Title Company and other agencies regarding the Lands Bill, which
was approved by Congress and the President. This Bill transfers properties from BLM to
Storey County, and then to be conveyed to Virginia City and Gold Hill residents. Work is
being done to make this a simple process.

» Text of the Master Plan draft update is on the website. There have been multiple workshops
regarding the update. Updates include dividing the County into 8 planning areas. Each of
these areas is delineated on a map and each would have their own mini Master Plan tailored to
the needs of each specific area.

* Everyone is welcome to attend the next Master Plan Workshop in Lockwood at the Rainbow
Bend Clubhouse on March 5t,

Pat Whitten, County Manager: :

e Initially the decision was made to petition to stay on Guaranteed Share. This decision was
made with knowledge up to the Deputy Director’s level confirming that the County could
rescind the decision up to the time of the Tax Commission meeting next Monday.

* The trip to the NACO conference was the best and most successful ever attended.

12. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
Commissioner Jack McGuffey:
* Very impressed with the NACO Conference, especially with Senator John Porter who took us
to the right people.
* At NACO people were receptive to giving TRI its own zip code. This is due to Tesla, who has
put this County on the map.

Chair Marshall McBride:

* At the NACO Conference we did not get to spend as much time participating with the NACO
delegation as in the past. We met with, or talked to, congressman and senators or their staff,
with exception of Harry Reid due to his medical situation. Dean Heller and Mark Amodei
were, as always, very gracious with their time. Dina Titus was also wonderful. They all take
the concerns of Storey County seriously.

* Noted the passing of resident Matthew Antonovich.

¢ Also, the daughter of Vince and Linda DeCarlo passed away.

13. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Discussion and direction to staff
regarding legislation or legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted by
the Nevada State Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be
deemed by the Chairman or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County.

Paul Kvam:




¢ Southwest Gas introduced a bill mandating the Public Utilities Commission to go into rule-
making to create regulations for the expansion of gas service in Nevada to areas not being
currently served or under-served. This has an excellent chance of passing. Intervener status
will need to be filed to participate in rule-making.

Pat Whitten:

* Approximately 400 bills have been introduced. Another 800 bills are expected by March 16th
~ the last day for bill introduction.

* There does not appear to be the gridlock as in previous sessions. Bills are coming out and are
being signed.

» We continue to watch closely for any increases in pass-downs from the State to rural
governments. One would be for Child Protective Services.

* We are currently against SB59, Secretary of State Business Portal, consolidating all licensing
throughout the State into the Secretary of State’s office. This creates a lot of concern with the
Counties. Wording is being crafted to make this optional.

» Home Rule is being worked on and negotiated.

» We are also following AB19 - Tentative Budget Bill, SB170 - Data Center Abatement Bill for
any data centers with capital investment, and SB95 - Property tax bills.

Recess as Storey County Board of Commissioners
Reconvene as Storey County Fire Board

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Storey County Fire Protection District
agreement with the Nevada Division of Forestry for participation for the Wildland Fire Protection
Program (WEPP).

Robert Morris, Special Counsel, presented this item. This is an interlocal agreement between the
Storey County Fire Protection District and the State continuing the existing agreement. This
document needs to be renewed every two years.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

» Under the agreement, $150,000 per year is paid to WEPP for two years. This is an insurance
policy should there be any wildland fire, anywhere in the County, that automatically
provides unlimited services.

 Prior to this agreement, the cost was approximately one-half million per year,

» With this agreement, after paying our seasonal employees and paying the $150,000, the
County is saving approximately $100,000 per year.

Motion: Approval of Storey County Fire Protection District agreement with the Nevada Division of
Forestry for participation in the Wildland Fire Protection Program (WFPP) Action: Approve Moved
by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

Recess Storey County Fire Board
Reconvene as Storey County Board of Commissioners




15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the second reading of Ordinance 14-261, an
ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change the name to Brothels,
amending the procedure for revoking a license, and changing requirements on work cards, and
providing for other properly related matters.

Special Counsel Robert Morris said there is a request to continue this item and asked the Board to
open the item for discussion if considering the continuance. Item 16 would also be continued. Mr.
Morris said it would be appropriate to re-notice this item in the newspaper due to the number of
continuances.

County Manager Pat Whitten indicated that the principal operator in this matter was unable to attend
this meeting. As the principal operator, he is unable to participate in discussion and the matter
should be continued.

No public comment.
Vice Chairman Gilman abstains from voting on items 15 and 16.

Motion: To continue item 15 to March 17, 2015 and request the County Clerk to re-notice in the
newspaper  Action: Approve  Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey  Seconded by: Chair
McBride Vote: Carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2).

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Resolution 15-418 setting the fees for brothel
licensing, license applications, and penalties.

No discussion.

Motion: To continue Item 16 to March 17, 2015 and request the County Clerk to re-notice in the
newspaper Action: Approve Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey =~ Seconded by: Chair
McBride Vote: Carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2).

Recess as Storey County Board of Commissioner
Reconvene as Storey County Water Board

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve Site License Agreement between Storey County
and High Speed Networks for internet access equipment atop the Hillside water tanks.

Mike Nevin, Public Works Director:

e Previously there was verbal agreement to allow High Speed Networks to install an antenna
site atop the water tanks on the south side of town.

* High Speed Networks has a need to install additional equipment on an un-used building
adjacent to the water tanks.

* A “site-license agreement” has been prepared by the District Attorney’s office. Per the
agreement, $150 per month will be charged for equipment and power provided to High Speed
Networks.

¢ This is a non-assignable agreement.




Virginia City Resident, Clay Mitchell: Ts there provision for other operators to install equipment
and are there any benefits provided to the community by High Speed Networks.

Mr. Nevin indicated the High Speed Networks equipment provides service to the Mark Twain estates
area and points beyond.

Motion: Approve Site License Agreement between Storey County and High Speed Networks for
internet access equipment atop the Hillside water tanks Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Carried by unanimous vote

(Summary: Yes=3).

Recess Storey County Water Board
Reconvene as storey County Board of Commissioner

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding section
3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements of
permitting fees to participants in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District and
providing for other properly related matters.

Vice Chair Gilman recuses himself and abstains from discussion and vote on this item.

Special Counsel Robert Morris presented this item:

» The Board previously passed Ordinance 14260 creating the Economic Diversification District.
The Ordinance would not be effective until a Government Services Agreement was made
between Tesla and the County to help defray costs of local government services in the District.

* As required by SB1, a cooperative agreement between the County and the Department of
Taxation must be made allowing them to administer a reimbursement to Tesla of sales and use
tax collected.

e The agreements will be completed soon.

Mr. Morris said Ordinance 15-263 provides for granting partial abatements of permitting fees to the
project if the County believes it would encourage local development. Discussions have been held
with Tesla to determine appropriate reduction to fees.

Two changes to be submitted at the second reading are:
¢ If construction goes beyond 2018, the Ordinance can be re-opened;
» Despite the abatement, Tesla must comply with all County permitting requirements for the
construction of the project.

Mr. Morris would like to have the second reading at the same time as the Government Services and
Reimbursement Agreements.

Storey County Resident, Nicole Barde: Asked if the fees in the Ordinance are those that the County
would be receiving and keeping? Is use of the funds restricted in any way?

Chair McBride:
* Yes, the County would receive and keep the funds, paid directly to the Treasurer.

10




Mr. Morris:
» This is in lieu of having existing permitting fees that are set by ordinance, which we have
agreed to abate to this specific amount. This is what has to be paid for permitting.

County Manager Pat Whitten answered no to any restriction of use of the funds. Most of the monies
will be allocated into the general fund-community development and also into the Fire District. In
addition, there will be a fixed over-head allocation going to the general fund.

Ms. Barde asked what amount other communities will benefit, such as property tax reduction.

Mr. Whitten:
« Cannot say that there will be direct fiscal benefit from the monies in this ordinance. What
will be seen is a number of large companies coming in that do not have this provision. It will
help sustain the permitting processes.

Chair McBride:
e This ordinance applies just to the Economic Diversification District. Companies have to have
the investment of $3.5 billion dollars in order to qualify under the ordinance.

Mr. Whitten:
o Tesla is the lead participant in this Economic Diversification District. There will be other
participants as part of this project and will be covered under this program.

Mr. Morris said there is limiting language in the ordinance regarding other projects. This item is
specific to the factory project. The Government Services Agreement and the Reimbursement
Agreement are both single reading only. These agreements are fairly specific to Tesla.

Chris Thompson, Project Manager for Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, said it is important that people
do not get the impression that the Tesla project is a break-even event financially for the County.
Some of the benefits are:

* Other companies are coming to TRI as a direct result of the Tesla deal, including Mark Segal’s
Development company, Harris Industrial Gas, Ahern Insurance Rentals, and Switch. There
are more in the pipeline. These companies will be paying full property taxes, sales taxes and
other County fees;

*» Payrolls are sizable from the Tesla construction workers, as well as the other companies under
construction, and that money is being spent in this community;

» That the State is taking over USA Parkway, including the build out and maintenance in
perpetuity. Saving the County millions of dollars.

Motion: Approve first reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding section 3.50.200 to the Storey County
Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements of permitting fees to participants in
a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District and providing for other properly related
matters, Action: Approve Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey Seconded by: Chair McBride
Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote {Summary: Yes=2).

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve a cooperative agreement with the State of Nevada
Department of Taxation specifying the dates and procedure for distribution to Storey County of the

11




Economic Diversification District No. 1 revenues pledged pursuant to Ordinance No. 14-260 and a
Reimbursement Agreement with Tesla.

Vice Chairman Gilman recuses himself and abstains from discussion and vote on this item.

Special Counsel Robert Morris presented this item:

+ This is a cooperative agreement required under SB1, between Storey County and the
Department of Taxation to administer and account for sales and use tax used by Tesla in the
Economic Diversification District;

» This agreement allows the Department of Taxation to enforce the provisions of Storey County
Code, Chapter 350. This is the Ordinance that is not yet effective.

» Agreement was drafted by Tesla and approved by Bill Maddox. The Department of Taxation
has reviewed and signed - the Attorney General’s Office has also approved.

» Although this agreement is somewhat perspective, it is with the Department of Taxation and
knowing that the Department of Taxation is already collecting tax funds is appropriate to go
forward at this time.

Mr, Morris stated the wording in the agenda item stating, “and a Reimbursement Agreement with
Tesla”, should be struck.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

+ This agreement allows the Department of Taxation to meet all of its legal obligations by
passing on to the County. The County will have legal obligations at such time as the second
agreement is executed between the County and Tesla.

» This agreement pertains to every eligible partner participating in Economic Diversification
District 1. Tesla is the lead partner.

Mr. Morris:
¢ The Governor’s Office on Economic Development approved a Certificate of Eligibility for Tesla
to pay 2.75% in. At this time, Tesla is the only participant.
» It's appropriate to limit the agreement to Tesla until such time as other participants come
forward and then a similar agreement would have to be done for those participants.

Mr. Whitten: .
* Suggests this Agreement, subject to legal opinion, covers everyone operating within the
Economic Diversification District.

Virginia Highlands Resident, Kay Deane: Where is the copy of the Agreement signed March 2nd
between Tesla and the Storey County Economic Diversification District indicated as Exhibit A.

Mr. Whitten said there are several questions regarding this item and recommends continuing to a
date in the future. Mr. Morris concurs.

Motion: Continue to a date to be determined, approval of cooperative agreement with the State of

Nevada Department of Taxation specifying the dates and procedure for distribution to Storey County
of the Economic Diversification District No. 1 revenues pledged pursuant to Ordinance No. 14-260

12




and a Reimbursement Agreement with Tesla Action: Approve Moved by: Commissioner
McGuifey Seconded by: Chair McBride Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=2).

22. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
a. EAGLE SOLUTIONS ~ Contractor / 1350 Geiger Grade ~ Reno (landscaping)
b. BEAR MOBILE SERVICE & REPAIR, LLC - General / 1525 Sharon Way ~ Reno (mobile equip
repair)

c. WILD HORSE GALLERY - General / 145 South C Street (retail store) VC

d. REEL CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 72 East Freeport ~ Sparks (Contractor)

e. LERO ENTEPRISES, INC. - Contractor / 1043 H Street ~ Sparks (Contractor)

f. SPENCER MEDIA PARTNERS, LLC - Home Business / 2187 Main Street ~ Gold Hill
(Consultant)
DIAMOND CONCRETE CUTTING, LLC - Contractor / 80 Corporate Park Dr ~ Henderson
(Contractor)

ASCENSION POWER ENGINEERING, LLC - Professional / 55 North C Street (elect eng.) VC
MDB TRUCKING, LLC.. - Transportation / 905 East Mustang (trucking co.) MCC

IONIX, LLC - General / 222 East Sydney (metal fabrication) TRI

RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

P m

Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer/Senior Planner, said it is recommended that items a. through
h. be approved and items i., j., and k. be continued.

Motion: Approve items a., b, c, d., e, f, g, and h.  Action: Approve Motion by: Vice Chair
Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey =~ Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=3).

Motion: Continue itemsi,j.,and k., Action: Approve Motion by: Vice Chair Gilman
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote(Summary:
Yes=3).

23. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
Virginia City Resident, Mark Joseph Phillips:
* Asked about the Park Funds and interest. Suggested the Comptroller’s Office get a legal
opinion regarding the funds.
* Still concerned about the VCTC operating meetings without having hired an attorney. They
cannot assume the County District Attorney will represent them. This should be on the
agenda.

Virginia City Highlands Resident, Kay Deane;

* It is suggested that the $10,000 budgeted for the Highlands this year be used for Cartwright
Road repairs which is great need of crack sealing. Estimated cost is $20,000. Conditions
continue to deteriorate and the road is used by school buses, emergency vehicles and
residents. ~ Ms. Deane asked if Commissioner McGuffey would attend meetings at both
associations and report to the County regarding use of the funds.

13




Storey County Resident, Nicole Barde:
* Does not recall a date certain that a final answer will be presented by the Comptroller
regarding the Park Fund.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher stated we are waiting for a way to obtain the interest rate for 1982. Mr.
Gallagher as well as the State Treasurer, does not have that information. The State Treasurer is going
to get the information. In lieu of that, the rates of U. S. Treasury Bonds need to be determined in
order to calculate interest from the beginning. Without this information, a date certain cannot be
given.

Vice Chair Gilman said the amount in the Park Fund has been identified; only the interest has not
been determined. The funds are available to be used and the interest can be added when known.

Ms. Barde asked for the principle figures. Mr. Gallagher said he will provide that information.

Virginia City Resident, Clay Mitchell:
* Pleased with Mr. Gilman's request that staff review to reduce property tax rates.
» Is there a possibility to lower starting business license rates for basic and home businesses, at
the least, based on the windfall coming into the County. There would be benefit in the
perception of business friendliness.

Chair McBride:
e Next Friday, Dr. Sykes - dentist in Reno, will be providing free dentistry from 8AM to 4PM.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 2:15 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

By
Wendy Bacus, Deputy Clerk-Treasurer

14




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 7, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approvai of minutes for March 17, 2015
2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ I —

Agenda Item No. £




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, MARCH 17T, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, District Attorney
Anne Langer, Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Administrative
Officer/Senior Planner Austin Osborne, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Tourism Director Deny Dotson,
Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Community Services Director Cherie Nevin, Special Counsel
Robert Morris

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:00 AM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for March 17, 2015

Virginia City Resident, Mark Joseph Phillips: Requested Consent Agenda Item 7 be pulled for
discussion.

Motion: Approve Agenda for March 17, 2015 with Item 7 pulled for discussion, Action:
Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

7. For possible action approval of February 2015 Treasurer Report.
Mark Joseph Phillips: Asked that the record reflect the Park Fund balance is negative $2,103.96,

Motion: Approveltem?7, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by:
Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

1




- DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for February 17, 2015

Motion: Approve Minutes for February 17, 2015 Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman  Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey ~ Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA

. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 02/11/15 $76,236.69 and $162,495.04 and
date 02/27/15 for $311,686.28. Accounts payable checks date 02/24/15 for $722.84 and 03/06/15
for $865,085.25 and $12,101.89.

. For possible action approval of Reno RE Ventures refund for correction of building size. APN
005-041-24 in the amount of $13,823.45

- For possible action approval of February 2015 Treasurer Report.

. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -

a. CCATT, LLC - Contractor / 2000 Corporate Drive ~ Canonsburg, PA (telecommunications)
b. BLUESCOPE CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 1540 Genessee Street ~ Kansas City,
MO (contractor)

SMC CONSTRUCTION CO - Contractor / 290 Gentry Way #1 ~ Reno (contractor)

JAMES 5. BRYANT, INC. - Contractor / 12360 Westridge Drive ~ Reno (contractor)

SKY SCENES MULTIMEDIA - HB / 1771 Harte Road ~ VCH (consultant)

JJK ENTERPRISES - HB / 222 Musket Road ~ VCH (consultant)

TMW TECHNOLOGIES, LLC - 200 South Virginia Street ~ Reno {(operations management)

@ e oo

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

. DISCUSSION (No Action): Presentation and discussion by Nevada Department of
Transportation Officials and Comstock Mining, LLC regarding physical conditions, structural
integrity, and other conditions of State Route 342 adjacent to the Lucerne Pit in southern Gold
Hill, Storey County, Nevada,

Administrative Officer/Senior Planner Austin Osborne said results of a meeting with the
Attorney General’s office, NDOT and Comstock Mining representatives will be discussed.

Ken Joy, Comstock Mining, Inc. gave a progress report on work to date:
» Site topographic survey has been completed;
¢ Land status has been confirmed;
e Plans provided to NDOT;
¢ Geotechnical investigation is nearly complete;
e AT&T plan has been established and poles have been moved;
* Roadway design is 80% complete;
* Engineering of Gold Canyon creek near completion;
* Temporary NDOT permit has been submitted and received allowing all Phase 1 work to
be performed;
* Ramp out of the Lucerne pit should be complete by end of the day;
2




* Waste rock management plan has been started. This is an NDEP requirement;

* A nation-wide 27 permit has been submitted;

* The north quarter of Phase 1 realignment has been condemned, asphalt has been removed
and dozing has begun;

* $3 million dollar bond has been posted with the County.

Austin Osborne said pursuant to the meeting with all parties, it was determined that the surety bond
posted with Storey County will suffice for NDOT's requirements,

Mr. Joy continued:
* The historic dump removal has started and when complete the capping of the Silver Hills
shaft will begin and backfill of the road with compacted material;
* June 8% is the anticipated completion date of Phase 1 by-pass construction, with opening
to the public thereafter.

Mr. Joy said the following should occur within the next two weeks:
* Roadway design to be submitted to NDOT on March 18t, allowing NDOT 30 days for the
review process;
e Submit to Storey County Building Department on March 18;
e Phase 1 dump starts today.

Mr. Joy stated potential delays could be increased by regulatory agency visits, which take away
resources dedicated to the project. Also, the construct-ability of the roadway and any shaft stability
issues that cannot be anticipated could cause delay.

Virginia City Resident, Mark Joseph Phillips: Asked about delay in filing of the bond and
questioned what he feels are potential issues with the bond, including the name on the bond. He said
apparently Lexon Insurance, the issuer of bond, is in litigation and suggested that the District
Attorney’s Office review the bond.

Mr. Osborne responded that the County is working with the District Attorney’s Office to make sure
the bond is what it needs to be. CMI is aware of the review and has been completely forthcoming
and will do whatever it takes if adjustments are needed. Everything mining related is Comstock
Mining, LLC, not Comstock Mining, Inc. The District Attorney’s Office will be asked to address all
matters, including the name on the bond.

Silver City Resident, Larry Warrenbock: Questioned CMI’s previous approvals of mining on the
east-side, the haul truck crossing and whether those design parameters intersect with this project.
Will mining occur to the east of the new road alignment and how will it affect mining to the west of
the highway. Designs should be available to the public for review.

Scott Jolcover, CMI Director of Business Development: In regards to the bond, the State of Nevada
has approved Lexon as a bonding company. It is anticipated that at the next Commission meeting the
design plan will be presented showing crossings, the creek and everything Mr. Warrenbock is asking
about.

Commissioner McGuffey asked about photos of the ramp and the shaft coverage.
3




Mr. Joy replied that the by-pass cannot be worked on until work on until the shaft is completed.
There is not room to expose the shaft and make repairs.

Austin Osborne stated that the ramp being built by CMI will allow CMI to excavate the shaft to bring
the ground to bed-rock. Ultimately, CMI will use the crossing and the ramp to complete to Phase 2.

Vice-Chair Gilman thanked CMI for the fast response in the completion of so many items. It appears
every effort is being made to expedite the work. NDOT deserves a thank you as well.

Mr. Osborne commented that the meeting March 16%, was attended by the Attorney General’s Office,
and NDOT’s upper management team. Discussed at that meeting:
» NDOT and the Attorney General's Office would like to start phasing out the prescriptive right-
of-way that exists on 342 in that section not owned by NDOT;
¢ Once completed, the Attorney General’s Office would like to create an actual right-of-way
beneath this portion of road. This will create right-of-way for the existing pavement, as well as
shoulders, all land needed for signs, drainage and other elements that currently do not exist;
o CMI will dedicate that land to NDOT, making the road a permanent right-of-way. This will
set precedence in the future for NDOT in similar situations between Virginia City and Gold
Hill. This will not cause any delay in the project; -
¢ NDOT will approve all plans for the road realignment project;
¢ The road will be designed to NDOT's specifications, and NDOT will work with CMI and the
County through the entire process.

10. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports including

Ron Engelbrecht, Mark Twain Community Center:
¢ The new computer center is open. Training classes will be available and residents will be able
to use the computers for personal use.
» A brief update of the by-laws is being prepared. Every third monthly meeting will now be a
social event as well as a business meeting.
¢ Plans are underway to build a Veteran's Memorial at the Center. Thank you to Cherie Nevin
for help and support.

Vice Chair Gilman thanked Mr. Engelbrecht and the Board for the time and energy invested in the
Community Center.

Deny Dotson, Virginia City Tourism Commission:

» Thanks to the residents, merchants, and department heads for the successful Mountain Oyster
Festival/St. Patrick’s Day event. The event was well attended and a great way to start the
year. The Senior Center won first place in the Oyster Festival.

¢ VCTC met last week and approved its tentative budget for 2015-16.

Cherie Nevin, Community Services Director:
A workshop “Protecting Yourself Against Fraudulent Activity” will be held at the
Lockwood Community Center on April 1st, 12:30PM to 2PM. District Attorney Anne
Langer will present the workshop.




* Residential clean-up days will be held in Virginia City at the Transfer Station on May 1st
and 29, 8AM to 4PM and at the Lockwood Landfill on April 9th through 11t, 16t through
18th, and 23rd through 25t

* Courthouse roof project is estimated to be completed in the next few weeks. Chris Hood
will be doing inspections and Jeff Holman from Public Works has taken over the project
lead.

Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer/Senior Planner:

* The next Planning Commission meeting will be held April 16%, Minor updates to Title 17
zoning ordinance will most likely be on the agenda as an action item.

* The Planner position has been re-structured and re-posted.

* A Benefits Fair will be held March 31st and April 27 for all employees and retirees who
receive health benefits. A mandatory question and answer session for employees will be
held at a later date. There will be no insurance benefit increase.

* The Planning Department and the District Attorney’s Office are taking a proactive
approach in addressing property nuisances. They have made it very easy to file a
nuisance and follow through with the County. These issues are being taken seriously.

Gerald Antinoro, Sheriff:
¢ There are two new employees in the Sheriff’s Office.
¢ The new cars will be on the road this week.
 The potential contract with the Bureau of Indian Affairs for housing tribal inmates has
been received. After a few items are worked out, there may finally be a contract.

Anne Langer, District Attorney:
* The fraud seminar in Lockwood on April 1st will address a lot of issues regarding phone
calls going out to seniors requesting money for various reasons. Recorder Jen Chapman
will speak about homesteading properties.

Hugh Gallagher, Comptroller:
e The State Treasurer's office is sending interest calculations back to 1992, With this
information, the calculations of interest for the Park Fund can now be completed.
¢ First round of budget meetings have been completed.
* Mr. Gallagher presented a history of St. Patrick’s Day.

11. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
Commissioner McGuffey:
* Thanked everyone involved in the road project for the progress to date.

Chairman McBride:
* Acknowledged the passing of Dee Schafer, longtime Virginia City and Lake Tahoe
businesswoman. Matriarch of the Virginia City Enterprise and the Mark Twain Saloon.

12. DISCUSSION ONLY {No Action - No Public Comment): Discussion and direction to staff
regarding legislation or legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted
by the Nevada State Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be
deemed by the Chairman or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County.

5




13.

14,

Chairman McBride commented that lobbyists Mary and Steve Walker, Bum Hess, and Maggie
Lowther are at the Legislature every day attending hearings and meetings for the protection of
the County. Staff continues to meet weckly with the lobbyists and other Counties.

Commissioner McGuffey said Highlands residents are concerned about the Sunny Hills project.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Recommendation to award contract to successful bidder
for the construction of the Gold Hill Train Depot.

Deny Dotson said the VCTC had taken the lead on managing special events at the Gold Hill
Depot. There were occupancy and ADA compliance issues along with a few safety issues to be
addressed. Restrooms needed to be added. A design was provided and the project went to bid
last month. The bids received were two to three times higher than the projected budget.

The recommendation is to not award any bid at this time.

Austin Osborne said County Manager Pat Whitten concurs with the recommendation.

Chair McBride said it was understood that funds were going to be returned to the County from
the Northern Nevada Railway Commission for the V & T reconstruction, to be utilized for the
project at Gold Hill Depot. The bids are twice the amount that was anticipated to be received.

Motion: Recommendation to award contract to successful bidder for the construction of the
Gold Hill Train Depot ~ Action: Deny Moved by: Chair McBride Seconded by: Vice Chair
Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the second reading of Ordinance 14-261, an
ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change the name to
Brothels, amending the procedure for revoking a license, and changing requirements on work
cards, and providing for other properly related matters.

Vice Chair Gilman recuses himself from discussion and vote on this item.

Special Counsel Robert Morris presented this item. This is the second reading of Ordinance 14-
261.  Mr. Morris reviewed the most recent changes to the text which are underlined in the
Ordinance.

Changes include:
e The procedure for approving the General Manager for a brothel license;
e Language dealing with the death, disability or insolvency of a licensee;
* The number needed to suspend or limit without hearing changed from one member and
Sheriff to two members of the Board;
* Language is included regarding work card issuance while waiting for medical clearance.

District Attorney Langer is pleased with the Ordinance and the progress that has been made




Virginia City Resident, Mark Joseph Phillips: Asked about the restrictions on signs. Would this
include the signs that are on C Street advertising a brothel.

Austin Osborne said he is not aware of any signs on C Street that advertise a brothel.

Motion: Approve the second reading of Ordinance 14-261, an ordinance amending Storey County
Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change the name to Brothels, amending the procedure for revoking
a license, and changing requirements on work cards, to change the verbage from one member and
Sheriff to two Board members, and providing for other properly related matters, Action: Approve
Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey Seconded by: Chair McBride Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2).

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Resolution 15-418 setting the fees for brothel
licensing, license applications, and penalties.

Vice Chair Gilman recuses himself and abstains from discussion and vote in this matter.

Special Counsel Robert Morris presented this item. Included is language suggested by the Sheriff
to include a $7,500 annual licensing fee for ancillary structures. This is on contiguous property
owned by the licensee. The other change is the addition of a penalty if licensing fees are not paid
timely.

Mr. Morris indicated a definition of premises is included in the Ordinance.

Motion: Approve the Resolution 15-418 setting the fees for brothel licensing, license
applications, and penalties, Action: Approve Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey
Seconded by: Chair McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2).

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve agreement to purchase lot at 320 North G Street
APN #001-162-08.

Chair McBride presented this item.

e This purchase has been negotiated for two years and has been on the infrastructure list of
that time;

¢ The property is in the area of the Community Chest, swimming pool, park, baseball field
and Senior Center. Parking in the area is not adequate;

e Current parking at Community Chest will be gone with the construction of a new
building.

e The amount set on the infrastructure list was $100,000 for the purchase, with $100,000 for
construction of adequate parking.

Chair McBride said the purchase price is higher than originally anticipated and hopes the
amount set for construction of the parking lot comes in lower.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis reviewed the Agreement for Purchase of Real Property,
An appraisal has been completed with an evaluation of the property in the amount of $125,000.




The Purchase Agreement provides that the County will purchase the property for $122,500.
Escrow will be set to close by June 15, 2015.

Shaun Griffin, Community Chest:
¢ Grateful that the County is moving forward with this purchase.
» Fundraising is on-going for Phase 2 of the Community Center.
« This will substantially cut costs for parking construction.
e Parking is greatly needed.

Virginia City Resident, Clay Mitchell: The square footage number on the first page of the
appraisal is different than indicated in other documents. The date of the appraisal is October
2013, is that recent enough?

Chair McBride clarified the actual square footage is 21,764. Regarding the appraisal, values have
risen. The County cannot pay more for property than what is indicated in an appraisal.

Mr. Loomis does not see the appraisal as being a significant issue. There is an offer by the owner,
Mr. Eaton, to sell the property to the County and today is set for a decision whether or not to
proceed.

Motion: Approve agreement to purchase lot at 320 North G Street APN #001-162-08, Action:
Approve  Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman  Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote ~Summary: (Yes=3).

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
17. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
a. PELLETT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 616 East Glendale ~ Sparks (contractor)
b. SW.O.R.D. DESIGN - General / 420 USA Parkway (manufacturing molded products) TRI
c¢. ELECTRIC TECH CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 1910 Mark Court ~ Concord, CA
{contractor)
d. MDB TRUCKING, LLC.. - Transportation / 905 East Mustang (trucking co.) MCC
e. IONIX, LLC ~ General / 222 East Sydney (metal fabrication) TRI
f. RICH DOSS, INC. -~ General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer/Senior Planner, said it is recommended that items a. and c.
be approved, and items b., d., e., and .

Motion: Approve items a. and c., Action: Approve Motion by: Vice Chair Gilman
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=3).

Motion: Continue items b, d., e,, and f., Action: Approve Motion by: Vice Chair Gilman
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey  Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary:
Yes=3).

18. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)




Shaun Griffin, Community Chest: A fundraiser for Community Chest is being held Friday,
April 10% at Pipers Opera House. Country music artist Suzy Boggus will be performing.

Community Chest has been having meetings in order to get the library back to status with the
State Librarians Office to enable Community Chest to apply for grants in the coming year.

Virginia City Resident, Mark Joseph Phillips: In Storey County, having a Planning
Commission is optional . If the County ever sells property owned, statute requires the County to

have a list of qualified appraisers.

Mr. Phillips is still working with “Fair and Rec Board” to retain an attorney and does not see
where the County District Attorney is allowed to be the attorney for the “Fair and Rec Board”.

19. ADJOURNMENT at 11:45am

Respectfully submitted,

By M@jﬁmw
Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 7, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [X]| Regular agenda [] Public hearing required { ]

1. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 03/09/15 $50,569.84 and
$107,181.78, date 03/13/15 for $426,089.72 and date 03/27/15 for $317,398.81.
Accounts payable checks date 03/18/15 for $248.51 and 03/20/15 for $1,052,830.24
and $10,913.55.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please {ind attached the claims

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fisecal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA _ NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

' County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
| Iy —

Agenda Item No. b




UHNOISSTHWHOD - YANOISSINHWOD

NYWEIYHD

—_—_——

PBIAUCTESFWMOD FO paeoy Ajunc) A2103§ sy3z Aq peaocaddy

8695’05 FEX2AYD IQIoNpI] TeI0olL
on* FEdIAE I0F¥ IagEueisl 3B Tea0L
JuNowy @3ied  § pag # da
/# deg  /yoeypn
ST/6C/EQ t93®g oayd Io3onpaq :adAl TToIded
MM@ZHuwwwmm x938Tbay yoeyp STI9TITT ST/90/€¢ :uny

WELEAS TTOYAYd ALRAOD AEHOLS Y0Tsoua :3dsy




{%O-\. ¥gunsvaRy,
. \mw / .

YENOISSIHHOD ’ HINOISSIWWOD NYWEIVHD

FBASUOTESTUNO) Jo paved Ajuno) Aoxosg syl Aq pesaoxddy
BLTBT LOT PE)OBD xogonpag Telc]
1N ‘dLIT Yo JIBISURIL JIBN TEIOL
Junowy asded  # pag # aa
/4 dug  /yoeyd
ST/60/€0 :a38g Yosyup 103oMpag AL TT0xdmg
AGYNINI'TTES 22391639 yoeup LG*VTITT ST/90/€0 ‘runy

[4 abeg WELSAS TIOUAYd XLNOOD AZHOLS Y0150ud :3dey




BHENSYIEL

HHTTOIIANOD

HENOISSTHWHOD

YANOISSITRWOD NYWSIYHD

S1/80/%0

AUYNINT TIHS

S

abeg

" : SIBUGTEETWWOD

TL 680792

S0°TeS‘TE
TL RPER 'S
6Y 960 °EE
THY'ZTO'T
19°S#0°‘ED

YT 60% ‘06

aunoury

PIIBO PUS-POTIAG ST/EL/E0

22381HhayY Yoaun)
WHLSAS TTIOMAYd ALNNOD

30 pieOH AJUNO) A31038 Y3 Ag paaoaddy
B {pesIngsIa
I03onpad 07 ILJsueil Issn
12714 dea xTg uo pisFx spag eafordum
z t3rsodag 3o21ja sakorduy
e300y 2aforduy
T PEXDIY) I030MpPag
'SdLd® X037 IejBuel] Iasqn

aafead # peg

/# dug

8 L 9 § % € g 1 isdnoin TrozARg
137eq YoaUuD xenbay raddy trozded

TR30L

Te30L
T®30L
Te3cL
T®30L
TE70]

Te3I0L

# aa
/Aoeun

90:€8:TT ST/TT/£0 ‘uny
RIUOLS ¥0TI50da :3dsy




HIUNSYIEL

AHATICHLIWOD

HINOISSIHWOD

YIHOISSIRROD NYHWEIYHD

St/ze/e0

AAENINITINI

4

sbeg

{EIAUCTSS TWWOD

T8 86€LT

¥ST€85°0¢€
TL BYE 'S
YT Z¥V'SZ
E¥TTIOT
86°956°S

Z0'E55° LY

Junowy

i83ed pua-potaag ST/LE/€0

3335163y YDaud
HWELISAS TIONAYd ALNNCD

3o preog AUnoD) Asx035 ayl Aq peacaddy

£ tpasIngsTg

1I0ASNPS] 03 I9FEUERIL ILEn

i9TTd dag atg uo piagx speg =@sdordug

z iatsodag 3oeatg @ekorduz
re)oey) aafotdum

1g)0AYUD 103aNpag

'5dLd" I03 I9Jsuell I8N

oaked # peda
/# dug

8 L 9 § v € 2 1 ‘sdnoas [roldeg
ta3eq yoayd TeInbay :adil TTCIARd

T®30L

Te30y
=30l
Te30L
Te30L
Te3or

18301

# aa
/¥o8un

EE0EPT ST/SZ/€0 :uny
AZ¥0OLS ¥0TS50ud :adey



1

itﬂ\m.\\.mu

15°'8%2

15°8¢F2

TELOL
agyo

abeg

YENOISS IWNOD

ALYa NOILWZI¥OHINY aN¥ MEIAZY 0 INZWIDATIMONIIY

B9 61 ZZ¥ SI/8T/E

£E8°8ZZ [44 ] ST/8T/%
LNAOKY #SNVIL qLva

UELSIDEY d¥YD ISYHOHUNSE
ALNOQD AFHOLS

HEOY sIDAND

NOILIJTHDSIA

+ R30I PIEDs

TT/€ MOZYWY
LT/Z NMOD/AYD aQviy

LHNAMAYS  JuUY) TYIDHAWWOD ENG ST1TAM P

# EOIOANI LIdd-aNnd HOANEA JIEWNN

ad
ST/6T/€0 ! 93eg UMY
LS08¥SEd ioN Jzodey



T

00°000°S
g0'28

£97 96

99 0TP

£Z2°085°¢

0orgte

00°'00F

TF 99T

BB SL

00°0PS'T
00°0S8B°'E
0s§°'¢gg
IYLOL
MDEHD

afbeg

00°0p0’S
00'Z8

bt 59
6Z°TE

99 0TV

g0 b
PI IST
09°8
o6 ov
aL gsg
oL ve
BZ 68
TS LTI
65 BT
oo EY
00°'6%
00°66T
Z0'61E
TF PET
00" VT
00's8
8L 0TT
¥8'Zh
9z'09
gL' vE
€065
0% v9
8T°109
SU bE

00°"g1Z

o0ooe
00'002
oB-9¢g
6L°0S
69°G¥
25'01
LL'8
PEET

09°'¥5
8212

po'ows't
00°058°E

05" 2S

LNOOWY

LOEZL
LY CZL

SETTL
gezEL

BLETL

QATETL
0ZEZL
0ZEZL
0ZEZL
0ZETL
0ZECL
0ZEZL
0ZETL
aZETL
0ZETL
0TLTL
0ZEZL
0ZEZL
0ZEZL
0ZEZL
0ZEZL
0ZEZL
0ZEZL
0ZEZL
0ZETL
0zEZL
0ZEZL
0ZEEL
0ZEEZL

SgeZezL

TLEZL
ELEZL
PEEZL
vETTL
PEZTTL
AL
ETETL
ETEZL

TE€EL
TeEEgL

TTEZL
S0EEgL

riECL

#SITAL

sT/a%2/%
sT/0Z/t

ST/02T/E
ST/0Z/¢€

s1/42/¢€

ST/GE/E
§Y/0Z/€
ST/0%/¢€
ST/0EZ/E
ST/0Z/E
ST/oz/e
ST/0E/E
ST/0T/€
ST/0Z/€
§1/0Z/¢
ST/0ZT/¢
ST/0Z/¢€
51/02/¢
ST/0z/€
ST/0Z/€
ST/0EZ/¢
ST/0E/E
st/oe/e
s1/0g/¢€
ST/0Z/%
ST/0Z/€
St/0z/¢t
ST/0Z/¢
sT/0e/€

ST/0E/E

§T/08/¢€
S1/0EZ/€

ST/02/¢%
ST/0Z/¢
ST/0E/€
s1/0¢/¢
ST/02/E
ST/0E/¢

ST/0%/¢
st/oe/t

St/02/€
ST/0T/E

s1/0z/¢€

aiva

ST/0Z/E

O34 'QVEHALT NOISIA/0D0T
WD ¥04 OIW

SEONIH -dJ00d dOHS
LSY #FB-NY¥Ed S0LT

SEDILON INIWSSTSSY

INIYW BL o
SINEWIDYIIEY OYE LNWEQAH
57008 S0T TYIDYIWHOD
OMLl ¥0d 'I¥EW TIAVHL
12N

OML ¥O3 TYAW TIAVAL
TALOE TIAVHL

TALOH TIAYEL

OML ¥OJ TYEW THAYMEL
FOVLSOd

AOYLSOd

ONINIVEL NINAY

SAUIL 2LY

SUIYAEY WOOUHIYE TL IS
DNINYYE IJ0dUIY

ONYL HOTIINZAFYd ¥ENIT asgg
¥ALSTOR/AMALIVE TTED
HONOT SAAIHD 0D AN
M00H DNINIVML

S INVEOAH ¥Od INIVA
SUIYIY WOOUHIVE T IS
SUIYATY WOOUHLYH TL IS
TALOH QTHOM ISNCHIUIA
TL IS ¥O4 SIHSIT

SSENUYH ¥ AVTIN-UTWWOH ¥4

HD
dOHS
dQHS

AAANOYT BL LIS
X¥ANNYT ZL 1S
ZMANOYT TL 1S

§dI114405 SWY
SAIT4dNs SWH

LYoddns
ALITIOVd IWI@DNITIED

LS3L DILVISOUGAE

NOILAIY¥DSAd FADIOANI

HALSIOTY MITHO
ALNAOOD XIUOLE

NYHE1ng
21T EVIaNvydd

SESTUAYILNG ANUEE

ONI OO ATddN5S DA7d "4IodIg

SWALSAS SEANISNE ¥aANAYH

voLzH YOI¥EWY A0 ANVYd

ONI‘JINLOETE ¥ONdL % OINY

AN J0 D0SSY g, HOSS5ASSY

YNI ODSIY

ONI NON SYQYIV

ONI SWALSAS YIY¥a QHONYAQY

0T HJ¥N0S HANLAZEL AWOV
IAMIS MEANITAD % JdId DAY
HOANZA

ST/6T/E0

28918
58918

LA

£8518

ZB9T8

8318

0B9T18

6LOTH

8L978

LLOTR
9LSTE
SL9TE

¥L9T8

YETWON

ADEHD

! a3Bd uny
STETHd toN J3oday



z

00 ov

Sy E8E°S

SZ'1ET

05" %9¢

9Z73%S

007 9LT
av geT
T0'0¥

00°zo0ZT

09'SEE’Z

05" %1

€S LLL

ov'LEr

00°0%2

FO PLE
e ve

TYLOL
A2EHD

abeg

96°S2Z
9652
06° T4

00" 0%

00°45T°T
5% 22Z'%

00°'T8
927081

05" ¥9¢

82712
86°FTT

00" 9LT

S¥'ZET
T0°0F
00°Z02

06'SE6
0L BOP'T

08°'S0€E
-0E' 182

Ly 81
76 8%
6§%°66
86°LZ
sg' ey

. ~L9°9T
86° LT
gLt
0T ' EL
88 S¥
69°'8ST
6% TL
90°21
97799
S9°LY
60" 2%

oF LEY

0091
00" %22

0 BLE
TR X4

LNOONY

00tZL
ZTLEL
T5Z2L

69222

S92TL
S9ZZL

£6ZEL
E6ZZL

§eETL

TLeZl
TLEZL

8522
FhEeL
SLEZL
obZeL

BEZZL
8EzeL

&EZTL
6ETEL

9%ZZL
ovrzeL
9vZZL
9%ZZL
IvzZL
9%ZZL
9veeL
avieL
ovezL
arzeL
9¥eZZL
9¥ZZL
avZIL
9vZIL
ovZeL
ovZzL

AN

¥9ZEZL
¥9ZZL

E9ZZL

LEZZL

#SHWUL

ST/02/%
st/02/¢
ST/0Z/¢

ST/0Z/E

mﬂ\mm\m
§1/0Z/€

ST/0Z/%
ST/0Z/%

ST/0E/E

st/0g/¢
ST/0T/¢

ST/0C/E
ST/0Z/€
St/0z/t
ST/A0Z/E

ST/0Z/E
ST/02/¢

ST/0Z/¢
ST/0Z/%

ST/02/%
ST/0E/%
ST/0Z/%
ST/0Z/E
ST/0Z/E
ST/0Z/E
st/ez/¢e
ST/Q0%/E
§T/02/€
ST/02/%
5T/02/¢
ST/02/%
sT/0Z/¢
ST/0Z/¢
ST/0C/E
ST/0Z/E

s1/02/%

ST/0Z/%
ST/0Z/¢

ST/0Z/E
st/ez/c

JLVa

5t/02/t

YALTIE {ILYM ATHINORW
TYINZEY YETCGD HO
ST0Z 'TIT MYW -92 €324

AQY €34 I4I7T ADOLSHOD
AJY 834 SONILEAW

SYELAYAY dId
ADNAASIO 144Y ' avd FINNA

ONEY TTIH aICH/FDILCN

H5YAE5I0 LNEHHS THHYD
IS¥NESIA LNIWHS INUYD

dTOW NMOYD HD

SNEWETY WYS 005 J0IW
TOLBLLTIVPLE # ANI
LUOLENS IOVHINGD TI¥AY

TIFIIC ® INA HOA
QY INN -Md

AdQgGETLIOYHL- 09 L 505
AJOgETLLOYHL

S¥411Id MOOLS

£Y3LIIZ HOOLS

TEINOD EXVHE-SUEWWAH ¥
TIE-Y1S-L6EBGHL

SHALTII ADOLS

LISCqad FHOD -%5T5TMd
¥ELTII 110 -AD0LS
MEITIL TENL-ADOLS

dnoo £aY-6 WNEL ud
SHALTIA-YTWANH I

XId LIOT4D F1800a

XId 1IOE¥) 87an0d

gnd 9ZEBFOS

. SONLLIJ 'ESOH -dOHS
MELIIL ¥DOLS ~SHAWWAH ¥
MANIII WIV -SUEWWAH dd

SONILLIIRIGOH-INV'Id dMES

ST0Z 'TT ¥W¥YW -9Z €34
\VST/0ESS ~ ST/T/¥
qd WYHLTYM

NOILATIY253d HDIOANI

YHALSIOHEY MDAHD
ALNAOD REYOLS

ONI ¥&l SHOIWa

¥ OIAWIDC ‘YISEUD

+ YIAEW SLAEONOD HALLYAWD

ATddNs ? SLNWYIVES ILENCD

(DA} TIDINCGYHD MDOLSWOD

AN 40 HDIAVES NOLLJATIOD
NYIWOD JHHWOT XIHEN O S9HD
SNOILYDINAWWGD NMALYYHD
JTHSYANIIYd OOTTIED

ONI HTIEEYD

ONI QD 1IO RIETIVA NOSYYD

ONI JU0d TYLIdYD

SILgY¥d OLOY ALID I¥LIAYD

TYIHLSOANT YINNOJITYD

SIMAT LICJS '1Ta¥y¥nsg

ONI WUYTIY CI1auyodang

HUCANTA

ST/6T/€0
STETad

TOLTB

TOLT®

ooLts

66918

66918

LESTE
969718
S6918
vE9T8

£69T8

269718

16918

06918

68918

88918

LE9Te

UIFTHAN
ADEHD

ajeq uny

oN aIoday



£

00" SET
ST'&L9
9t '9€E8
Z¥ 0%3

DS 686°T

05°Z5Z700T
00°sL

ZL'9TE’'E

96' ¥

Z59'vE9 ‘s

68 PIL'T

00" %0%'9
00°'0€
00°'C62

0S5 E¥% '€

SLTO%T

TYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

00°SET
ST'6LO
FE'9ER
¥ 0vs

v 650°T
BO'DEG

05°z5Z700T
00" sS4

0089

SS'ELT
QT ' BET
00°'66

£EQ°PLT
98°6St
0L 8¥T
957208
DE'Z8Y
Q0'0€E
00793

28°ZLE

36" ¥

SF ¥ov°E
00 98T T
LT v88 'vE

9% BZ
8% STIT
B0 0ZZ
cZ 68
¥9°0S5L
80'02Z
Bz gz
0g° 9%
¥6'9TT
16 €01

00" %0% ‘s
00 0€
0o 06g

00°LLE'T
05°590'¢

56°9€

LNOCHY

@BEZL
T5E2L
LTEZL
SEEeL

€S22L
£52ZL

ESEZTL
ZZEEL

TTEEL
TZETL
Teeel
1ZEZTL
TeceLl
T0EEL
99¢£Z4L
I TAAN
152cL
TSEZL
1sZzL
TSZ2L

EVZTL

SvYZeTL
CaZAAN
aTezL

LA T4
¥SZEL
LETAAN
rSezL
veZZL
$52TL
vSZZL
¥5ZZL
LA T4
L 4-TAIN

89¢2L
L¥ZTZTL

0SETL

9PETL
aveeL

[ FAAN

HSNYIL

st/oe/s
ST/0T/E
ST/0Z/¢
sT/0Z/E

STHIZ/E
ST/0T/€

ST/0E/E
St/0z/¢

ST/0E/€
ST/0¢/E
ST/0Z/€
ST/0Z/E
ST/0Z/¢€
ST/0Z/€
ST/0Z/E
ST/0Z/E
ST/02/€
ST/0Z/€
ST/0Z/¢
ST/02/€

sT/6z/¢

ST/0Z/€
ST/0Z/€
ST/0Z/¢

ST/0Z/€
sT/oz/¢
ST/0Z/¢
ST/02/€
ST/0Z/¢
ST/0Z/E
st/02/€
ST/0Z/E
s1/02/¢
ST/0Z/¢

ST/0Z/¢
ST/0E/¢
ST/0Z/¢

ST/02/€
st/oeg/¢€

ST/02/€

JL¥a

SYNOH 0°¢

FSUNASIT INAWHS INYYO
WALSAS WIVIY OTIZIVYOANg
SHIYALIYE 8% qQ¥nds

TASIIQ ¥ DIU-MT
TISIIT ¥ DIU-MT

Z00-5T Od SISSYHOHY
EAYTE 'YETANYHD CudTONITI

ANYdO¥d €L IS

ANYdO¥d ZLT IS

HNYA0¥d TL IS

ANYdO¥d HINIAISTE ZL IS
ANYdoud ®f IS

ENYdO0Wd 143d HaTd
¥ads/05 IS D § s0z/102
INYTd dIM

ANYAOUd HD

Z/T a9 TIOL 00T

z/1T 30 €/T Q¥ TTOL 00T
UIND ¥5 M7

SIT¥TLLYE -dOHS

LOErOHd IDWNIVHA dTIW XIS
DONINIT -S39 ITIW S
5334 ONIHHANIONT

TZATYITINY-PLY ¥
Oda¥IHC-TST5ENd
ID006-TETAT-ELH Ud
VOLYTINDEE YIW-9€6T9Md
SATHALLYE JY¥0d daad IuL
I3006~TE€ TAT-ZLT ¥4
HYETO EXvVYg-3OOLS
085TT-S0T NID-059%L505
B8TTS9-0ZT NAD-0S¥LSOS
9d 5% THA-TTIE9505

SETTOIHAA MAN LIJLOO
HINTY I¥ED ~dEQN
TENYd FEId NO EONYNILNIVI

SDIHAW¥S
SOIHIVHD

¥ITOO0D YELYM DLW

NOILAIYDSId FDIOANI

ST/0Z/¢ WALSIDAY MOIHD

ALNOQD AFUOLS

OTT SLNAWISTANI 41D
HOL “AUAASNTUD
L ZONUN ‘N9
TYOIMOLSIH TTIH dtop

¥ OMIYW RENd

OTT ADYENE SUIXTH
LYYNLS NEQEAVY

AN D0SS5Y NOLLNAATMd JAuT4

dT SYDTTINHES

ANYAWOD TYNALSYA

DNIYEANIONT 15EM ¥uvd

ONI A1ddaS olnyY LIOITTd
ONI 00d5d3
NHOL ‘aNs3dana

TINI SWALSAS AHIQISTIAIQ
o177 ININ Fdn=a
JYOANTA

ST/6t/¢0
§TETad

8ILTI8
LILTE
9TLTE
STLTS

PTLIS

ETLTS
TTILTS

[S¥AN:]

oTLIR

60LTE

80LTE

LOLT8
90LTIR
S0LTE

roLIS

E0LTB

YITWON
A2FHD

33ed uny
ON jxaoday



14

00°s9
04°592
YO 6TI6'F
26° 1Y
00'¥ET
0Z° G921
9g 0Lz
00’022
L0 Zze

08'08%

08°€Z0.'T

v I8V

00" LEQO'T

LE"Z

0s'ze
Sz ot

LEZ'SL9

£§6°19¢€
00°QRBE
0E'Lel
08" 0¥s

TYLCL
ADEHD

abed

£F T
0Z°TITT

[ AT
£C'66
EbCTh
00°59

0L 592
Y0 6T6'%
96 T¥
oo.wmn
0z'521
987 0L
00'0zZZ
LD' 22T
-18° €02
-~EL W¥TE
Y0'696°¢
08 E€EE0'T

[ 234
oz Lve

oo Lzo’Y

L9591
-0ETPT

0s5°ze
SZ'0T
LG LT
L9°'8Z
89212
gEr Tz
BE TV
PT 9%E
66°T9E
00°08C
08’ L6L
08'0%%

LHOOWY

bREZL
BZEZL
EEZTL
STEZL
TLEZL
AR XAA
6SEZL
PSETL
BSEZL
LZTEZL
L9t2L
L3ZZL
oLzZL
99ZZL
LBTZL
L8ZZL
L8224
LOEZL

9LEZL
oreeL

SCEZL

95224
952ZZL

vagzZL
8LEZL
EEx A4
S8ZeL
SSZEL
SSZTL
g52Z2ZL
S92ZL
vZezL
£0ECL
SZEZL
S9EZL

HEIAL

st/oz/e
ST/02/E
sT/02/¢
ST/0Z/¢
§1/02/¢€
sT/0z/¢
ST/02/%
ST/0Z/E
S1/02/¢
ST/02/¢
ST/02/%
StT/02/¢
ST/0Z/¢
sST/02/¢€
ST/0Z/¢
ST/02/¢%
ST/02/%
ST/0Z/¢

S5t/0g/¢€
ST/0EZ/E

S1/0T/¢

ST/02/¢
sT/0Z/%

ST/02/€
5T/02/¢€
S1/02/¢
sT/02/¢
ST/0Z/¢
st/oz/¢
ST/0g/¢E
ST/0Z/€
ST/0E/E
s1/0z/¢
ST/0Z/%
sT1/02/¢
ALYa

st/ee/e

HATTOH d¥YD SSENISNE
5TITddNS FOIALQ
5dI7ddNS HDIJAC

STIDNAEd 'S1I-1504

T 9519868 OM

BRIAAITD WAIYISMAN VISEL
SEHONOT ¥

TIC-dOHS

LOBEGSE

S3ITEdNS SWI
VYIDNATYA STQOOHDST
HUYMTUYH -dOHS

ST0Z "TT ¥YW - 9T €934
SEITAINS NY02d0d
LIQHED ONIONWISINO
JIXY ¥LE

"OLH HTXY-vLE

I4l ¥Cd SSATIUIM X2

STOZ HOBYW L¥T IN
dTOSNOD NIE TIUHS

L5 HOLONIHSYM 0@Z

SHOLIHANNOD-ZLH M
ONIONYILSLOC ONINIVWEY

LENYEINT ZL LS

ALAIDOS ISIH SIIJOD €WIRY
SED0T OHMWOD

STYINALVN II-N¥Ed SO0LT
STYINALYH INWIZ HIMES
STVINALYW IL ¥dd SOLT
SADOT-NOIS ¥¥ WWHLIIYM
TYS04SIA ' LEONYA ‘ ¥NIS-JJIN
SHIT4ANS SWA

THYED NOOTYS SANILNETYA
HOILOWHATYN ¥OLOHNIA daW
ALNAOD aQund AvEd aNod

HOIJLATIH¥OSEA EDIQANI

HILSIDIY ADIHD
ALNOOD ATYOLS

NI SNOILATOS HOIJJ0 CHLHEW
N NHOD ‘SEWOIoW

AL ' AFIINODM

2T ‘SICTHIUIALNT WOXYW

NI SEASIANES ENIT FDVAONYT
ONI HDWNOSavT

1ANOYY  LHOENN

ISAMIIN TTYEWIN

¥ NYILSI¥HD ’uETHDEIN

DNI §AT¥S ANA

217 440

JT7T HEN0S TLI

NI IOW O4NI NIVINOOW NOWI

ONI TYINIWNOWIANA OZH

AYIS TYIMISOANI DITOVHAAH
ONI dNYEaYodd LodS 1OH

AQNIM ‘NIHOWYOH

HOIAMES LIAEHD LOAHEI FWOH
NIZHDS AuMNIH
NYWOd ‘3ZI¥YH

D ENAYM "HIIMTEVH

HOaNdA

ST/61/t0
STETEd

6ELTS
8ELT8
LELTIR
JELTS
SELT8
beL18
EELTS
ZELTR
TELTE

GELT8

6ZLTS

BZLTE

LZLIE

9ZL1IR

STLIB
¥ZLIB

£TLT8

ZTLTSB
TZLTB
0ZLI8

6TLT8

HAFHON

ASEHD

i 93®'g uny
toN 3zoday

-



00" sbe LLEZL ST/0Z/E ONIddVH

S NHOD ‘HSIN¥vd ZILT8
00’985 00985 ELETL ST/0Z/¢€ ST/50/%0 - ST/60/c0
OT1 ¥ICEW INO¥ALNO 19L18E
00 0% 00 0% TLETL ST/0Z/€E SNDIS TIVHSYVH aNYHO
. IS ¥ SOIHAYMD HGIS ZHI NO 09L18
0E'6LT 0E"6LE YoEZL ST/0Z/E ADIJA0 HUITO
DTT ‘LOdAd WIvd ALISIIC 6SLTH
Le" 18 LZ'18 S6ZTL ST/0ET/¢ SYAJATOL SAVH S5aUYoH
ONI Loddd 251440 BSLT®
05°9LE 05 9LE 6ZETL ST/0Z/E TYOISAHd SHIXOIA
ALNTD HITYEH TYNOILYINDDO LSLTE
9% gLt 9 ELT 98ZZL s1/0¢/€ ONIX ¥ WYHLIYM
27T DNILINSNQD NOLYON 9GLT8
B3I 6BL'T B9'6QL'T BOEZL s1/02/¢€ NOISSIWHOD DNINNYIJ
ONI YINHOAITYD J0 TELAAN SSLTO
6L'0TT 6L OTT 0€zZL §1/02/¢ QILIATION SIEI
ONI HOIAYWHS TYDAT VAYAMN ¥SLIB
9L BFT 9L 6¥T 89224 51/02/¢ I110d ¥I¥od dWAL SANOWd
OTT SNHOD YOYARN £SLIE
00°0S 00° 05 Z0ETL ST/0Z/E H2d TYI¥Cd ATHLNOW
: (ONM} QLT HOTE VAYAIN [4YAN:]
PPOLEL'S 00°000's TEETL ST/0Z/¢€ TO-£9BE0-FT-ZFEQHTD INI
¥YLEL TELEL ST/0Z/E TO-ESPEO-ET-Ched#
. Td SNI ADNIOW JITdNd AN TSLIE
00'526°T 00°'SEE'T tezzL ST/08/¢ HWMIEY LNYYO
; ) YaYAEN J0 LS-INIZVOVH AFN 05LT8
00008 00° 05T TIZZL ST/0Z/¢€ IIWYEd LY¥WEYH Tood
00°0§2 Z9ZZL ST/0E/€ LIWYEd LYWZYH INYId ¥ELYM
00'052 Z9ZEL st/0Z/¢ LIWYEd LYWZYH Md
00°0ST Z9EEL ST/0Z/E LINHES LYWZYH-LNYId damds
. TYHSYYW FUId AHEN GFLIR
Sz v9g SZ'¥98 EYEZL ST,/0Z/€ INIYdUIONTA
ALFIVS OITHNA Iddd AN SPLID
L1'8LE’Z LT @LZ'Z EBZETL ST1/02/¢ HOLYW ALNOOD STOZ ANYANYL
SAOUNOSIY NYMOH 14 AAN LYLT8
TZ'Z%4 1Z°2v6 TEEEL s1/o0z/¢ NTWIY IH00D L)IWLSId
YRTTOULAWOD AN 9vLIE
59°TET'S §9°I€T'S S8TZL ST/02/¢ ASYHOUNS ¥EIYM HDUVH
SANNO¥D ¥ 94Td NIWIY AZN SELTE
TE'96 TE 96 T9ZZL ST/0T/€ SHITdANS -dOHS
TYYHAUYH TSNOHANNOW YPLTE
00°0S0 'Y 00" 0S6°T BLETL S1/0Z/¢€
poroot’e ELERL STA0Z/€
L LUFHOY ‘STHIOW EVLTSY
6L 8ET -00°0ST 092ZL §t/oe/€ LIQdd) #0L MM
00°0ST 092Z% ST/02/¢% AINYIVE-ZLTH
6E 8ET 09zzL ST/0E/8 EYIL-066T19Md
OLHIWYHOYS J0 FWIL NYOUOMW TYLIB
00°00T 00°'00T 95EZL ST/DZ/E CLOZIY LTTOCHDET
' YNaE ‘9ETTIRW TPLlf
TT'LES 0% BL §5CEL §T/0T/€ INAWLYYAWOD - S0 9SAOHS
32 0LE 65ZZL ST/02/% ADOT HOIWI-TOLD ud
YL EY 65TZL sT/0Z/¢ AFA-TI5-90¥9540HS
1L EVT 65ZZL sT/0z/¢ ADOT-N-TOLD ¥A
0D Y¥OLOW THOH TAVHIIW ovLig
0L T6Z
TYLOL LNOOWY HSNVHEL Z1va # ofa NOILAIYDSAG TDIOANT HOaNIA JIFWON
AITHD ADEHD

ST/0g/%¢  WHILSIDEY XDEHD ST/6T/£0 *+ 23eq uny
S abeg ALNAOZ AFHOLS ST€TEd *ON 3zoday




]

05" 2e%

YE'TITE

TO0°629'ET9

54°580'¢

00" 0ST

T1 902

00 Log

00°06T
96°86T'1
00008
9g" ¥

0T eET
0Z EIL'Y
00°05%°1

00'00%

S0°1TL
00" ELE

29°'eS59

A A 4
L9'0za’'g
00°5L48

L 8t8’'zeT
£6' LS

00 2TT

00 sbke
TYLOL
ADIHD

abeq

00'ST%
0Ss'L

FETIE

00°99
TO'E€95'ET9

S5L°§80°¢T

0008
0000t

2190z

00" BET
00’89

00°06T
96'86T°1
00008
9E " ¥Z
OT'tEd
0Z ESL'9
00°059°'1

00°'00%
00°00T

S0°TL
00°€LE

00’ 0%¥
ZETEPT

0E‘ oL

zs Ty
L3'0zs'‘e
00°5L8
ZL'gEs’'zat
£6°LS

00'2TT

LNNCHY

SLTZL
sLZEL

ZSEZL

5LTTL

&ZTTL

BRTZL

ZrEZL

Zvezs,
$6ZTL

BEEZL
BEEEZL

Lezzs,

“EBZTL

LIZZL
T¥eZL
YEEEZL
BYETL
EZEZL

8¥LZL
60€EZL

tszzL
182%L
z9€zL
Z9EZL
£9EZL
STECL
S0€ZL
0EEZL
08z7ZL
96224

FLEZZL

#SNTHL

s1/0Z/%
ST/0Z/€

ST/02/%

ST/0g/¢
ST/0T/E

ST/0Z/E

ST/0Z/E
st/bz/¢c

ST/0&/€

ST/ge/e
STMZ/E

ST/0Z/€
gi/o0z/¢g
ST/02/E
ST/02/¢€
ST/CE/E
ST/0E/E
s1/02/¢

s1/0Z/%
ST/0Z/%

ST/0Z/E
st/oz/t
STAGE/E
st/oe/E
ST/0E/E
ST/0Z/¢
§T/02Z/%
ST/0Z/E
st/02/¢
st/oz/t

5t/0e/€

Fiva

s1/0Z/%

ST0Z ‘1T UYW - 92 gd4d

5UOYISIA LNAKHSINGYD

ST0Z 'TT ¥VKH - 9Z 934
AEATEDEY WL ALMIAJOHS

LY0ddns 934

5908 /AQ0MEDOT
5onE/08 /IIYL

SEITddNS dTEM

SHYD SUANOISSIWWOD
YYD HHOWAIVH

HOHdL 1I

STYOINAHS

HOLYW LNYED

WSI¥OCL DA

SHIT4dNS SHE

WELSAS AEX 404 WAS dWOT
IONYHO SISSYHD-HY HWY

IOYLS0d
T-Z¥BEEBSY LODVY HAMASTH

HEWI¥d % INIYd'0N¥ad SOLT
"INIYW NUEd SOLT

LIAFALS D WWOD-HIIAOD
T0-9L9ZND NMIALLOTA 5ID
DEM/XYUEID-L598LFESLL LDOY
ST/€/2 'ST/LZ/T

L ‘¥oIudY

SOAS ONILIWM LNYED

¢ X 93aQY0T HOHXAIYH MOTY

ST0Z ‘1T dYW-Sz €34

NOILATIYOEAT ADIOANT

WELFIDET ADAHD
AINMOD AFHOLS

D ¥DOIA ‘SNITASSCIL

SHASIUAYAING AYEd NNS

od MOTOd0M ¥ NEHAELS

LOTHLSIA TTOOHDS QO IS

ONI SIEJIAMES ALITILN €48

OHI TOULNOD LS3d WHIIIS

ONI D¥Y 'TYLIW SYD WHHFAIS

11 NOTLIALOYd HHIJ WHddrs
SHILSAS TOULNQD WYHEIS
ANYAHOD TYILIWHHD WEHAIS
W NIFITHLWA ‘HITOHS

a7 NI SEDIAMES Y4010 DHS
ONI COddny

ONI SHSI¥dYELINT IJdy

IUVYNLS NENgATYE

LNNOOOY FANASEY
JUYW INIVd ONEY

NI ONIdYOSANYT NIAHED ONId

{¥d) OHI 02 NYDUOW Avd
ONI SHIDALVHELS avyd
LNINEUILAY ATAWE JITdNd
ONI dNQy¥d NYIHOLIVHI
NYTddgnod

IANAT "aN¥NZY~ILLIYIIL
d OTIONY ‘INIULAJ

YCaNzEA

ST/6T/E0
STETEE

LBLTR

98LT8

SBLTIS8

vELIB

EBLIS

z8LT8

T8LT8

08LT8
6LLTB
8LLTH
LLLTB
ILLTE
SLLIB
TLLTB

£ELLTS

ZLLTIB
TLLTS

0LLTE

E9LT8
gILT8
LILTE
99LTH
S8LT8
¥OLTR
E9LTE

HIEWON
ADFHD

ajed uny
oN jaeday



YT 0EB'TSO'T TYLOL SXDEHD

Z6'LE 6 L6 86ZZL  ST/0Z/€ AD0H NIV¥A-SAYod DA
ORI FLTUOROD dAE 10818
00°668 00°'668 63EEZL  ST/0T/€ JENYILNI 0TX0T
. DTT YAYAIN LANISTM 00EB18
SL'¥SE T L9T LEETL  ST/0Z/¢ §4 LS ESOH NOIIDNS AT0d
¥9° LB zT6ZZL  ST/0Z/E INOH-N¥E SOLT
0D ATddNS YOYAZN NYELSIM 66LTR
00°'9zE 000z T6ZZL  SI/0Z/E 41700 TYIOL
00502 T622L  ST/0T/E S 'CULIN'HA "'TYDEd ' ANYWIITO
YT TYINTRNOUIANT NUILSIM BELTH
TE'TEL'T Y9 980T 06ZZL  ST/02/%¢ TYIIHIOATH-(IHEd SOLT
L9 5%g 06224  ST/0Z/¢€ TYITHIOTTA-NEE SOLT
o ONI 0DAEM LELTB
69°9TL T 69°9TL'T T¥ZTL  ST/0Z/E STO0ZHII STIYHW ¥5 QOOMHD0N
I AMES HOINZS ALNACD FOHSYM 95LTH
00" k9 00 ®9 0TETL  ST/0E/% SEIJ0D J4YIS ¥ads
AMOIDHEAIC ¥YY 0D HOHSYM S6LIE
00°999'T 00°999'T ETEZL  ST/0T/E SIOIA¥IS 1STASEOT
SAIYIDOSSY ¥ WHNTIYM Y¥6LT8
0o zoy 00'¥8€ BLZZL  §T/0Z/% STOZ ‘1T ¥YW - 9Z €44
00 BT BLEZL  ST/0Z/%
ONI S¥NQJ ALID YINISDHIA £6LTB
97" 109 §¢€' 12 6LTTL  ST/0E/E SE°T28 LdDAM
oL'zz 6LTZL  ST/0T/E VMENZY XUYION ¥0d d9YLS08
00°00T 6LEZL  ST/0Z/E WYd YIQEW ICON /OZIWHIg
00°0T §LZZL  ST/0Z/E A¥d ¥ILSKO LIWHEd OIT
00°0€ 6LZZL  SI/0ET/C SNFHIYW 3 NOSLod
19'§ 6LZTL  ST/0ET/E LOJEAHS 04 SAFN VaIXT
00002 6LEZZL  ST/0Z/E DIoA OL QISUNAWIAY HANILS
0S8 TTZ BLEZL  §T/0T/€ D10A OL HWIHYW / OZUWWICQ
JLIA TELIB
T0'TLS € T0°TLS '€ TSETL  ST/02/% 66¥ZVE-100Y HSYAT WITAO0D
. ¥NIJd INIWd:N0E JH0OINYd Sn T6LT8
00" €T 00'8T SYEZL ST/0E/¢E TIOAVE
00°S2T 9TELL  ST/0E/% SaAHDLYE
2T YEYASN IO ALIWMOJAING 06LT8
05°L9 08°L9 T¥ZZL  ST/0Z/t WANELICS HEIYH DIIW
SAS WEIYM SMOQVIW ITAONYUL 6BLTB
0B £0Z TE'69 egzzl  ST/0E/E ¥YI- OHId SOLT
6% PET 6BZZL  ST/0E/€E S/M- O¥IdT SOLT
LNANIAOHAWI TYHINID Iul BBLTE
0009t 00 09¢g LLegeLl  §T/%e/c
TYLOL LHOOWY HENTEL FIva # 0/d NOILEIHDSAd H3TOANI HOaNdA WITHON
HOEHD AIAHD
ST/0Z/€ WALSIHAY AIEHD ST/6T/E0 ¢ 83®Qg uny
L abmg ALNOGD AEHUOLS STETEd :ON 3JIoday

”




HENQISSTWWOD

YT UERTS0T

TILOL S¥OEHD

NCOILLYZINOHIOVY ANY MIIAZY 40 JNIWIDCTTMONNIY




T

-

SSTET6'0T

SSTET6'0T

AYLOL
qavo

abeg

00°5¢
S9°0¢tt
00°0L
0008
00" 0oL
T BOOD’'S
00'S6
GO »T
QL' TLT
Q0 0¢E
gz es
0591
0088
06'6%
0E Pz
Ly 00T
00°9
LI FSL'T
00708T
bL'EE
6B B6
29'90T
29° %01
2B'6TE
297901
98°6TE
22901
08'6TL
TL°59
&v-ca
357588
0s*zt
0082
0E"BY9
0062
8g° 99
61" 2S
6061
00 st
E0'LT
00" 92T
00°' 5%
00°'56T

LNDOWY

INEWAYS  JUYD TYIDHIWWOD H4NO STTIIM

NOILYZIHOHLOY ANV MAIAEY 40 INIWISATTMONADY

ZT% ST/0Z/¢ NONNYHS Sd00TYD YHALOH THENYIHOONE L¥LSTL
484 ST1/02/¢ INZWATNOE ALEAYS  IWINWIHDONG 990€~ST
61% ST/02/€ 180 ZDIAJ0 snd OS ET6Y98BET
6TV st/oe/e SSETIWIM HO 184 SEEETOBET
6T¥ ST/0Z/¢€ LINYEINI ¥t LS £93TTOBET
LIY ST/0ZT/E 9E/Z-0%/% TOUVHD WOOH LLOI¥YYM NALLIHM
1247 ST/0Z/€ SWEAW ST MED NYWAYHD L09268BFES" ' '# SNYHL
BTV S1/0T/¢€ DoSHEng aovlsod 1.da¥ vads
ETV s1/02/¢ INIVA IL -N¥Ed SOLT YITIIM NIMUIHS - AHYES
1ee ST/0Z/€ HWEW ST DEH NYWAYHD TT8L-0€68° " "#dI DHY
S1¥ ST/0%/€ TYSYNENITE d¥D LaYWTIYM 00 ANMED DA Pd
ST% ST/0Z/€ U9 JYYWIYM ESNEIXE W¥d HSNOH OHNILSYON OS5 54
St¥ ST/0T/€ SYSYNEWIIY J¥D LuVWTIYM I3 SYWANYED 5d
8T% ST/0Z/€ dAQ0H PO0STAY DDOWEASNYT HOWYIS SYAANIIFIL0Ed
LT® stT/0z/€ LSVIAYANE OOWUN HEd LIOTHIYW ANJOHSO
0zZv ST/02/€ SZAOTAANE ¥ HCIYINDTYD 10dEd S0IIJ0
ETV ST/0Z/E E0%9XE WTIL AWNA dAMES AWA- HNIAZNW
LTV ST/02/€ 9Z/¢~0e/T ODUN LLOTHYYW AXJIINDDW
LTV ST/02/t W/EN¥OESO/NILLIHM SOW¥E ¥UIY NYSINIWY HCINEDW
£1% ST/0E/E @ S4OLS HOOd-(uEAd S0LT LE/2Z SHMOTMNOSYD
ETY ST/02/€ IH ¥ALYM-NOTLYISHNS MT SHMOT - MNOSYL
(4 ST/0T/¢€ HEJ ATUYHA DJAWOLOD
(347 st/0z/¢ HHI ATUYEL DdAKWOLOD
1% sT/0Z/¢ HEA ATHYEX DdXWOLOD
61% ST/0Z/¢ H3d ATEYIZ DdAWOLOD
6T¥ 5T/0Z/€ TId ATEYHA DIAWOLOD
6T% ST/02/¢ TII ATEVIR DLAWOLOD
6T¥ ST/0Z/¢ 3894 FTUVEL DdAWOLOD
LT¥ STI/0Z/¢ SHYYAS 0LTO# dOLSNING SYD/NYWIID
LIV ST/0Z/€ ONEYd LL¥ ALYEAYW SYD/NYWIID
LT® ST/0Z/E AM¥d ¥SN/EIVD NZATOS SYS/NYWIID
LTE ST/0E/¢ FIVId EIWYN SNEHAZELS A SdCOTYD - ¥YHOLOH /NIYA
9TFT ST/02/€ aoCd HLYWNI ANOL‘NESOd
9¥¥1 ST/0E/€ SIIT4dNS HSYM ¥YD ANOL ‘NESCd
9YYT ST/0Z/E TIYL Sd4dNS ONINYAT) ANOL ‘NESQQ
»IY ST/0Z/E ISNIIXT DNILHIW JSNOH ONILSYONM 0§ ad
»T% SI/0C/E HINFAXE ONILEZZW 20d a9y aa
1284 ST/0T/¢€ ISNEAXHE ONIIEEW INVINYISEY FOVTIvd ad
STV ST/0Z/t TYMENAN ZYYION HDIJJ0 AIYIEUDES AIN 8D
91¥ ST/02/% ISNTAXE MOHS HAVEL XHAHA MO
9T% ST/0Z/f AOA EINOYIL LNAWHNILAE 5d00TYD YHOIOH MD
2% sT/02/¢ HWEAR ST JOI¥ NYHAYHD 0PSZTITH ANOD
2% ST/0Z/€ WIW ST LOFHIYI NVAHIVHD TTITTTT# HINY
H#SNVHL JI¥a NOILAIY¥OSAA

JALSIDAY JU¥D FSYHOYNA

ALMQOCD AEYCLS

12301 pPIeD«

# HADIOANI I3d4Q-gHnd

HOANHN

ST/6T/E0
1506%58d

i44

YHENNN
od

ajeq uny

oN azoday



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 7, 2015 Estimate of time required: 2 minutes

Agenda: Consent [X ] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: Approval of Interlocal Contract between the State of Nevada Public Employees’ Deferred
Compensation Committee and Storey County

2. Recommended motion Approve

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone:
4. Staff summary: Renewal of existing agreement for a deferred compensation program pursuant
to NRS 287.250 to 287.370 and NRS 287.381 to 287.480.

5. Supporting materials: Interlocal Contract and NRS

6. Fiscal impact: none
Funds Availablie: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
__completed by K.Loomis__ District Attorney

§. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
| Ny E—

Agenda Item No 7]




INTERLOCAL CONTRACT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES

A Contract Between the State of Nevada
Acting By and Through Its

State of Nevada Public Employees’ Deferred Compensation Committee
(Committee)
100 North Stewart Strest, Suite 210
Carson City, NV 89701

and

Storey County
(Political Subdivision)
26 South B Street
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to contract with
any one or more other pubiic agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or
undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law to
perform;

WHEREAS, NRS 287.250 to 287.370, inclusive, authorize the Committee to create a
program for deferred compensation, and whereas NRS 287.381 to 287.480, inclusive, authorize
the political subdivision to create a program for deferred compensation;

WHEREAS, The Committee has created a deferred compensation program and pursuant
to that program has entered into contracts with contracted Recordkeeper(s) with whom
participants in the program may invest their deferred compensation;

WHEREAS, The investment options and fee and rate structure of the contracted
Recordkeeper(s) in their contract with the Committee are considered by the Political Subdivision
to be generally more favorable than that which would be available to the Political Subdivision if the
Political Subdivision were to independently contract with the Recordkeeper(s);

WHEREAS, the Political Subdivision desires to join the program created by the Committee
in order to obtain the more favorable investment options, fees and rates;

WHEREAS, the Committee desires to have the Political Subdivision participate in the
Committee’s program subject to the same terms and conditions as apply to state employee
participants, except for limitations expressly provided below;

WHEREAS, the Committee has secured the consent of the contracted Recordkeeper to
enroll the Political Subdivision’s employees as participants in the Committee’s program subject to
the same terms and conditions as apply to state employee participants, except for limitations
expressly provided below;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually
agree as follows:

1. REQUIRED APPROVAL. This Contract shall not become effective until and unless
approved by appropriate official action of the goveming body of each party.

2. DEFINITIONS. "State” means the State of Nevada and any state agency identified
herein (the Committee), its officers, employees and immune contractors as defined in

Page [ of 6




NRS 41.0307. Unless the context otherwise requires, “program” is synonymous with “plan” and
“state of Nevada deferred compensation committee plan”.

3. CONTRACT TERM. This Contract shall be effective on January 1, 2015 with no
termination date, unless sooner terminated by either party as set forth in this Contract.

4, TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated without cause by either party prior to
the terms set forth in paragraph {3), provided that a termination shail not be effective until 60 days
after a party has served written notice upon the other party. This Contract may be terminated by
mutuai consent of both parties or unilaterally by either party without consent of the other. The
parties expressiy agree that this Contract shall be terminated immediately if for any reason federai
and/or State Legislature funding ability to satisfy this Contract is withdrawn, limited, or impaired.
Benefits accrued by participating employees of the Political Subdivision upon termination of
participation in the plan shall remain in the plan until such are otherwise eligible for distribution
under the terms of the plan.

5. NOTICE. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this
Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally jn
hand, by telephonic facsimile with simultaneous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid on the date posted, and addressed to the other party at the
address set forth above.

6. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that the services to be performed
shall be specifically described; this Contract incorporates the following attachments in descending
order of constructive precedence:

ATTACHMENT A:  The State of Nevada Deferred Compensation Committee Plan
Document.

7. ASSENT.

a. The parties agree that the terms and conditions listed on incorporated attachments of
this Contract are also specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their
respective order of precedence and any limitations expressly provided.

b. Except as agreed otherwise in paragraphs 3 and 4, the Political Subdivision agrees:
1) To participate in the Committee’s deferred compensation program subject to all

contract terms and conditions as set forth between the State of Nevada
Employees’ Deferred Compensation Committee;

2)  To be bound by all current and any future State of Nevada Employees’ Deferred
Compensation Committee “Plan Documents” and “Investment Policies and
Procedures”;

3)  To cooperate with the contracted Recordkeeper(s) and to provide all necessary
and appropriate administrative services to enable Political Subdivision
employees to participate in the Committee’s deferred compensation program:
and

4)  To provide an appeal process to Political Subdivision employees for denials of
requests by Political Subdivision employees to make unforeseen emergency
withdraws from the program and to abide by any guidelines established by the
Committee for this purpose.

Page 2 of 6




¢. The Political subdivision agrees that it has made its decision to participate in the
program based on its own independent analysis and that neither the State of Nevada
nor the Committee are fiduciaries with regard to its decision to participate in the
program.

d. The Committee agrees to authorize the contracted Recordkeeper(s) to enroll
employees of the Political Subdivision on terms and conditions consistent with this
agreement. Execution of this agreement by the Committee constitutes such
authornization.

8. INSPECTION & AUDIT.

a. Books and Records. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under general
accepted accounting principles full, true and complete records, agreements, books,
and documents as are necessary to fully disclose to the Political Subdivision, the
State or United States Government, or their authorized representatives, upon audits
or reviews, sufficient information to determine compliance with all state and federal
regulations and statutes.

b. Inspection & Audit. Each party agrees that the relevant books, records {written,
electronic, computer related or otherwise), including but not limited to relevant ac-
counting procedures and practices of the party, financial statements and supporting
documentation, and documentation related to the work product shall be subject, at
any reasonable time, to inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any
office or location where such records may be found, with or without notice by the
State Auditor, Employment Security, the Department of Administration, Budget
Division, the Nevada State Attorey General's Office or its Fraud Control Units, the
State Legislative Auditor, and with regard to any federal funding, the relevant federal
agency, the Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the Office of the
Inspector General, or any of their authorized representatives.

c. Period of Retention. All books, records, reports, and statements relevant to this
Contract must be retained a minimum three years and for five years if any federal
funds are used in this Contract. The retention period runs from the date of termination
of this Contract. Retention time shall be extended when an audit is scheduled or in
progress for a period reasonably necessary to complete an audit and/or to complete
any administrative and judicial litigation which may ensue.

9. BREACH; REMEDIES. Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Contract
shall be deemed a breach. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights
and remedies of the parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and
remedies provided by law or equity, including but not limited to actual damages, and to a prevail-
ing party reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. It is specifically agreed that reasonable attorneys'
fees shall include without limitation $125 per hour for State-employed attoreys_and attorneys
employed by the Political Subdivision..

10. LIMITED LIABILITY. The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS chapter
41 liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive
damages. Actual damages for any State_or Political Subdivision breach shall never exceed the
amount of funds which have been appropriated for payment under this Contract, but not yet paid,
for the fiscal year budget in existence at the time of the breach.

Page 3 of 6




11. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is
prevented from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public
transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of
God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the
intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse, and the
excused party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after
the intervening cause ceases.

12. INDEMNIFICATION.

a. To the fullest extent of limited liability as set forth in paragraph (10) of this Contract,
each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not excluding the other's right
to participate, the other from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses,
and expenses, including but not limited to reasonable attoreys' fees and costs,
anising out of any alleged negligent or willfuf acts or omissions of the party, its officers,
employees and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or
otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise
exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph.

b.  The indemnification oblfigation under this paragraph is conditioned upon receipt of
written notice by the indemnifying party within 30 days of the indemnified party's
actual notice of any actual or pending claim or cause of action. The indemnifying
party shall not be liable to hold harmiess any attorneys' fees and costs for the
indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel.

13. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES. The parties are associated with each other only for
the purposes and fo the extent set forth in this Contract, and in respect to performance of services
pursuant to this Contract, each party is and shall be a public agency separate and distinct from
the other party and, subject only to the terms of this Contract, shall have the sole right to super-
vise, manage, operate, control, and direct performance of the details incident to its duties under
this Contract. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed or construed to create a part-
nership or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or principal-agent, or to
otherwise create any liability for one agency whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness,
liabilities, and obligations of the other agency or any other party.

14, WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular
breach of the Contract or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a
waiver by such party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

15, SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceabie by a court
of law or equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the non-
enforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of this
Contract unenforceable.

16.  ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or duties
under this Contract without the prior written consent of the other party.

17. OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Unless otherwise provided by law any
reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs, negatives, blue prints, plans, maps,
data, system designs, computer code {which is intended to be consideration under this Contract), or any

Page 4 of 6




other documents or drawings, prepared or in the course of preparation by either party in performance of
its obligations under this Contract shall be the joint property of both parties.

18. PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to public
inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record is made
confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.

19, CONFIDENTIALITY.  Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form,
produced, prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is confidential
by law or otherwise required by this Contract.

20. PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this
Contract on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the
parties are authorized by law to perform the services set forth in paragraph 6.

21. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION. This Contract and the rights and obligations of the parties
hereto shall be governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada. The parties
consent to the jurisdiction of the Nevada district courts for enforcement of this Contract.

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Contract and its integrated attachment(s)
constitute the entire agreement of the parties and such are intended as a complete and exclusive
statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may
have been made in connection with the subject matter hereof. Unless an integrated attachment to this
Contract specifically displays a mutual intent to amend a particular part of this Contract, general conflicts
in language between any such attachment and this Contract shall be construed consistent with the terms
of this Contract. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of this Contract, no modification or
amendment to this Contract shall be binding upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by
the respective parties hereto, approved by the Office of the Attorney General.

Page 5 of 6




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed and intend to
be iegally bound thereby.

Storey County
(Political Subdivision)

By:

Date
Title
Attomey for {Pelitical Subdivision) (optional) Date

Nevada Public Employees’ Deferred Compensation Program

State of Nevada Employees’ Deferred Compensation Date
Program Coordinator

Chairpersen Date
Nevada Deferred Compensation Program

Approved as to form by:

Deputy Attorney General for Attorney General Date

Amended 10/2014

Page 6 of 6




Nevada

Deferred Compensation

YOUR PLAN...
YOUR FUTURE

Nevada Public Employees

Deferred Compensation Program

Plan Document

(ATTACHMENT A)  ~

Amended and Effective November 17, 2011
Updated July 2013

Reviewed January 2014; April 2014; July 2014; October; 2014; December 2014




Table of Contents
PUIPOSE oottt e e are s s bt bas s e ea s s e b s e et et ren e eeeemree et sans 6

1.1 Plan DefinNIEIOnS ..o v oo e e e eeeeeeeeeseeeeees e asesessesass st esessssssssssssseseseeeeeeeeeseeees e seeeeeeeesesenns T

2.1 ENPOIMENE.....o... ettt s st st st s bas s ee s et e e er s 12
2.2 VOlUNEAry PArtICPALION. «...c.ccv ittt sr s sass s eses e st sssesnes e sseeaes 12
ARTICLE III - AMOUNTS DEFERRED OR CONTRIBUTED.......cooeereereceesecesieecreeeeeermseesessecessameerens 12
3.1 Participant Deferrais and Contribution Authorization. ............c.ccieeevrieesee s 12

3.2 Genera! Deferral and Contribution Limitations and Catch-Up Limitations. ...........cco.......... 13

ARTICLE IV - INVESTMENT OF AMOUNTS DEFERRED OR CONTRIBUTED AND ROLLOVER
CONTRIBUTIONS......oooeuieisaesnsecsisssissesiasecsremasestsessssssasssesessssasssssssss srssssasssasssssseeeosssssssassensssesesseneensens 14

4.1 Remittance of Deferrals and ConttiDULIONS ....v.veeev e eeerereseseeesseeecessesesssssseee e s e seseens 14

4.2 Allacation of Deferrals and ContriBULIONS. e ieeeeseseseeeeessresssessesse s eeeeeeeeeeneens 14

4.3 Continuation of Deferral and Contribution AHOCAtION. ..........oveoveeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 15
4.4 Transfer of Assets among Investment OPLIONS. .....c...coeceevevsceere st vene e 15
4.5 Administrative Actions with Regard to Investment DireCtions................o.vveeeeemesrseesecreesrrnns 15

4.6 Participant Responsibility for Deferrals, Contributions and Investment Allocations............. 15
4.7 Investment Allocation of Alternate Payee ACCOUNES. .....oc..oooeeevce e eeeennn 16
4.8 Investment Allocation of Beneficiary ACCOUNES. ... eeeeoeeeeooesereosssoeseessesesessees s B [

4.9 Initial and Ongoing Investment Allocation with Respect to Rollover Contributions and

SECHION 457 TIANSIEIS. ...ttt e seemrs st ss s bese e s sas b s b et see e et erenestaneeeereen 16
4.10 Fund Mapping or SIMIAE ACHIVIEY.......crorrmeresieteseec e ersrssesessese st esssessessesesrenres 17
4.11 EmMployer CONEHBULIONS. .....c.ovueeecerirreesinesenersesssiecessee s esese s sssssssssssseseseeesssesenesesessesasssassasen 17
ARTICLE V - ROLLOVERS AND TRANSFERS.........ccorncriecnscnsrrrs s sss s s tsnassssssesssessssssteseeenssonns 17

5.1 Transfers from another Governmental 457 Plan, ..........cocoovoeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeer s ssemssesennnns 17
5.2 Acceptance of Assets from an Eligible Retirement Plan. .........oceeceeeeovseeseeeesees s 17

5.3 Rollover of Assets to Purchase Retirement Service Credit. ..o veeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoe e 18

Page 2 of 33




ARTICLE VI - ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS OF THE PLAN. ......couooovmeerersenmseeeeeeeeo oo 18
6.1 Participant ACCOUNLS. ........o.cvemereiereeereesieomsasssessseesssesscossconesssses s esseesss s eee s ses e eeeeeeseeseeesese 18
6.2 BENEfiCiary ACCOUNLS. .......c..cvuereeerecerrersreieneeesstessseseesessesenseesessssseeeeeeeessse e eseees e eeeeeenneeer 19
6.3 ALErNGte PAYEE ACCOUNES. ov..vvvevee e et s 19
6.4 Investment Options and INVestMEnt FUNGS. .............c.oowoeemeeeeee oo 19

ARTICLE VII - WITHDRAWALS FOR UNFORESEEN EMERGENCIES; WITHDRAWALS OF SMALL
AMOUNTS oot ss st se s s assns bt et ee e et e s e s eeens 19

7.1 Distribution for an Unforeseeable EMENGenCy. ... oo seeeseeeeeoesoeooeooeeeeesoen. 19

7.2 Distribution from a Small Inactive Account. i tbeevereeeeertetaenes e st easensereenpassereeanentenersrersesnenessesses 20

Article VIII - DISTRIBUTION FROM THE PLAN AND OTHER ELIGIBLE RETIREMENT PLANS...... 20
8.1 Distribution t0 PArtiCIPANES. ...c....uvuueeveeer e iotecee et eeeeeeeeeeeees s soe s e 20
8.2 Distributions t0 BENEFICIAMIES. ..........vvvuererruienrece e eeeeeecseeeeeeeeeess s ee e sesee oo eseee e 22
8.3 Distributions to ALErnNate PAYEES. ..o vveeiereceeeeeeeeeeeeseoeees e oo seeesee. 22
8.4 Eligible Rollover DIStADULIONS. .........corrimirrieieceeeseeeieeeeseeersesseeeeessseessseeeees s seeeoe oo oo 22
8.6 Withholding........coeovuereerieecerireanne, e e 24
8.7 Required Minimum DIStriDULIONS. ..........ccovieeeceeesiteeeee e, 24

ARTICLE IX - DESIGNATION OF BENEFICIARIES ........oovvvoueveeeeeceereseenersssesrsess s sesoe oo sese 26
9.1 Designation of B.enéﬁciaries. — ............. ...................................................................... 26
9.2 No Beneficiaries Designated. ....................................................................................................... 26

ARTICLE X - QUALIFIED DOMESTIC RELATIONS ORDERS ....covueeeeeeeeeie oo 27
10.1 Qualified DOMESHC REIAtIONS OFUEN. ............ oot seeeeeeeeeeeseeeeesee e 27

ARTICLE XI - ADMINISTRATION.......coouuureemsmirecesssmsessssnresssmsessseseseeesmeeessossesssessesssessesssssessssssneesses oo 27
11.1 Plan AdMINISLIAHON. .......cc.vicvurrrernrecimmmrresasssessecaseseseeeeeessesessseessesssessssses oo eeseeeseeeeeneeeee 27
11.2 Committee POWETS @NA DUHIES. ........uuureeceeeeerer oot eeeese s e senes 27
11.3 Limitation Of LIADHITEY. ......c.ovvu oot eesesen 27

11,8 TRUSEEE. ..ottt sttt sas s sas st es s s oo e e s s ee e s s e e e seseeeeeeene 28

Page 30f 33




11.5 INVESIMENE OPLIONS. ....cou ettt ssse st ssesassteseesessesssreseseseesesssseeeeee o 28

11,6 DEIEGALION........ceccocrer ettt ettt s eeeer st e e s e e st eee e 28
11.7 PlAN EXPENSES. ...vurererrmreeeerirssstrssssameeeescsietss st stossssssessseeseseeeeeseessesssssssemess s s s eeeeeeseeeeen 28
11.8 REVIEW Of ClAIMS...... .. ocereirereeceecie et sreese st b eees e e esesesees s ses e e ene s s s senn 29
11,9 ALVISEIS. ..ottt s ss s et e ns s e et aees oo se e s ees s s ss e 29
11.10 Limitation on COMMITEEE POWET. ..ot seeeee e e s s s 29
11,11 PUDIC MEEEINGS. ....vecveeeeeermeirmmnserretnssss s st eseesnseases s teneemeeeeessasseeessrasses et s s e eeeesene 29
11.12 Defense Of CIAIMS. .......coiiccecrrererinisiseesssnssssssesseceeees s ess e seeesessseeseeee s e essessssesmssesses s 29
ARTICLE XII - ADOPTION BY AND WITHDRAWALS OF PARTICIPATING EMPLOYERS.............. 29
12.1 Adoption by a Participating EMPIOYET. .........c.cceeeruieeeceeeeeeeee e veeeesseseessesseses e eee oo 29
12.2 Withdrawal of Participating EMPIOYET. .......ccec..viieecieeieveers e sesssesseseseeseesse e 30
ARTICLE XIIT - AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION .....co.ovueieueiiniieereeveseoersesseeeseseeesessessesssssssssasssesesns 3
13.1 Power to AMend OF TEMUNGLE. ......ccceiriirrrrrieeeees et i emeeeeseseeeessess s ssesseeee s oo 31
13.2 Termination Of T Plan. ...t et eseeessenee e ssceees e 31
13.3 Notice to Participating Employers. .....ccccovvverennns e et e e e e n et st e bt rene 31
ARTICLE XIV - GENERAL LIMITATIONS AND PROVISIONS. ....ooroeooeooooooeoeoooeooeoooee oo 31
14.1 Plan BiNdING 0N AGOOUNS. w..co..ccuv vt creee s e eseresseeesemsssssssessstesesessss e smssssseeeeeees 31
14.2 No Right to EMpIOYMENt. .........o.oeviinieeeeeeceeeeee e ses s, .................. 31
14.3 No Alienation Of ACCOUNES. .....c. e sieene st eeeseeeeseess s s tesee s 31
14.4 NOHCES t0 PAITICIPANES. ..u.cvuceereercesccmeeia e rmrnrsisssss st ssss st se st eseneesessesssasessse e sans 32
14.5 NotICes t0 the COMMITEEE.........ccccvi vt sseess s rees e ssasssses e e 32
14.6 NOLICES 10 PAMTICIDANES. .......cvrieceririrereresens s ceeeseess bt e e ceseaeeeeesssesensssssssses st ees s s 32
14.7 Trust Sole SOUICE OF ACCOUNES. ......coreuirmersrissie s s ssessesesssesssseeese e s ssasesseranessseese o, 32
14.8 Account Assets and ACCOUNE VESHNG. ........vvimeeoeeeeeeeeseeee e e eesees s es st seeeees e seeens 32
14.9 SEVEIAL LIADIILY. ..uv.vvvvuccrareercerecescassasenieecme st eesstens s ssssssssss st eeseseereseseeessesssssesssesesenseesseseees 33

Page 4 of 33




14,10 INEEIDIELALION. ......voevcvvs oot tseetse e seee s estseesese e e eeeeeee 33

14,11 CONSEUCHON, ....ooooeeeieceereenmessest e sesesseseseseeseeesseese e seeeeee e eeseeeeseeeeee e 33

Page 5 of 33




Purpose

The purpose of this Plan is to provide a supplemental retirement plan with quality, cost-effective
investment options and excellent customer service. A Participant’s account value will depend
upon the investment results achieved by the Investment Options in which the Participant
chooses to invest. Each Participant shall be 100% vested at all times in his or her Plan Account
in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

In accordance with Section 457 of the Code, all amounts of Compensation deferred or
contributed under the Plan, all property and rights purchases with such amounts and all income
attributable to such amounts and all property and rights are held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of Participants and their Beneficiaries and Alternate Payees pursuant to the applicabie
Trust Agreement.

The Plan and Trust Agreements are intended to satisfy the requirements for an eligible deferred
compensation plan under Section 457(e)(1)(B) of the Code, and shall be construed and
administered accordingly. To the extent that any term of the Plan is inconsistent with the
provisions of Section 457 of the Code applicable to governmental employers, the inconsistent
term shall, to the fullest extent possible, be treated for all purposes of the Plan as amended and
reformed to conform to the applicable provisions of Section 457 of the Code.

Except as otherwise provided herein, this amendment and restatement of the Plan is effective
as of the Effective Date.

Page 6 of 33




i

ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS

1.1 Plan Definitions
For purposes of this Plan, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning set forth
below, unless a different meaning is plainly required by the context:

“Account” means each separate account established and maintained for a Participant under
the Plan, induding, as applicable, each Before-Tax Deferral Account, Roth Account, Rollover
Account, Alternate Payee Account and Beneficiary Account.

“Administrator” means the duly authorized designee contracted for that purpose to act as the
employer’s agent, The Committee may elect to contract with one or more Administrator(s).

“Alternate Payee" means the person who is or was the spouse or domestic partner of the
Participant or is the child of the Participant to the extent that such person is entitled to any or
all of a Participant’s Account under a court order that the Committee has determined to be Plan
approved Qualified Domestic Relations Order.

“Alternate Payee Account” means the Account established for an Alternate Payee pursuant
to Qualified Domestic Relations Order.

“Amounts Deferred or Contributed” means the aggregate of Compensation deferred or
contributed by a Participant pursuant to Article I, including Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth
Contributions,

“Before-Tax Deferral Account” means the Account (s) established under the Plan to record a
Participant’s Before-Tax Deferrals, and the income, gains and losses crediting therefo. A
Beneficiary Account or Alternate Payee Account corresponding to the deceased or relevant
Participant’s Before-Tax Deferrals may also be referred to as a Before-Tax Deferral Account.

“Before-Tax Deferrals” means that part of a Participant’s Compensation which is deferred
into the Plan and is not includable in the Participant’s taxable income which, in the absence of a
Participant’s election to defer such Compensation under Article ITI, would have been paid to the
Participant and would have been includable in the Participant’s taxable income.

“Beneficiary” means the beneficiary or beneficiaries designated by a Participant or Surviving
Spouse of a Participant pursuant to Article IX to receive the amount, if any, payable under the
Plan upon the death of such Participant or Surviving Spouse,

“Beneficiary Account” means the Account established for a Beneficiary in accordance with
Article 6.2.

“Business Day" means, subject to 4.4(b), any day (measured in accordance with State time)
on which the New York Stock Exchange is open for the trading of securities,

"Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended and thereafter and any related
regulations.

Page 7 of 33




“"Compensation” means:

a) All compensation for services to the Employer, including salary, wages, fees,
commissions, and overtime pay that is includible in the Employee’s gross income
for each Plan year under the Code.

b) Any differential wage payments defined in Code Section 3401(h)(2) pursuant to
the HEART act;

¢) Any accumulated sick pay, accumulated vacation pay and back pay paid to a
Participant by his or her Employer, provided that such accumulated sick pay,
accumulated vacation pay and back pay is received by the Plan in accordance
with the timing requirements of the Treasury Regulations promulgated under
Section 457 of the Code.

“Committee” means the Deferred Compensation Committee of the State of Nevada as
authorized under Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) 287.250 to 287.370. The Committee is
responsible for the administration of the Pian.

“Designated Roth Employer” means an Employer that permits (in accordance with any
applicable procedures as may be required by the Committee) Participants who are its
Employees to make Roth Contributions pursuant to Article 3.1(c).

“Distributee” means a person receiving funds, induding a Participant. In addition, the
Participant’s spouse, former spouse or domestic partner who is the Alternate Payee under the
Qualified Domestic Relations Order as defined in Code Section 414(p) is a Distributee with
regard to the interest of the spouse, former spouse or domestic partner.

“Domestic Partner” means a domestic partner as defined in NRS 122A.030.

“Eligible Retirement Plan means (i) an individual retirement account described in Section
408(a) of the Code, (ii) an individual retirement annuity described in Section 408(b) of the
Code, (iii) a qualified trust under Section 401(a) or 401(k) of the Code, (iv) an annuity contract
described in Section 403(b) and 403(a) of the Code and (v) an eligible deferred compensation
plan described in Section 457 of the Code that is maintained by a state, political subdivision of a
state, any agency or instrumentality of state or political subdivision of a state; and (f) aRoth
IRA

“Eligible Rollover Distribution” means all or any portion of the balance of the Plan to the
credit of the Distributee, or a Beneficiary of a Participant, except that an Eiigibte Rollover
Distribution shall not include (a) any distribution that is (i) one of a series of substantially equal
periodic payments (not less frequently than annually) made for the life (or life expectancy) of
the Distributee or the joint lives (or joint life expectancies) of the Distributee and the
Distributee’s Beneficiary or (i) for a specified period of ten years or more, (b) any distribution to
the extent such distribution is required under Section 401(a) (9) of the Code, and (c) any
distribution due to a hardship of the Distributee, including, without {imitation, an unforeseen
emergency pursuant to Section 4.8.

“Employee” means any individual who receives Compensation for services from the Employer,
including (a) any elected or appointed officer or employee of the Employer, (b) an officer or
employee of an institution under management and control of Nevada System of Higher
Education (NSHE), and (¢) any employee who is induded in a unit of employees covered by a

Page 8 of 33




negotiated bargaining agreement that specifically provides for participation in the Plan. An
Employee shall not include an independent contractor, a consultant or any other individual
classified by the Employer as not eligible to participate in the Plan,

“Employer” means the State of Nevada and each Participating Employer, or any of them.

“Enrollment Date” means, with respect to an Employee who is eligible to enroll or be enrolled
in the Plan, any payroll date on which such Employee receives Compensation, or such other
date or dates as the Administrator may establish either in lieu of, or in addition to, such dates.

"HEART Act” means the Heroes Earnings Assistance and Relief Tax Act of 2008.

“Includible Compensation” means “includible compensation” as defined in Section 457(e)(5)
of the Code.

“Investment Option” means each of the investment options made available by the
Committee through the Plan in accordance with Article 6.5.

“Minimum Required Distribution Date” means, according to Code Section 401(a)(9)(c),
April 1 of the calendar year foliowing the later of:
a) The calendar year in which the Participant attains age /0 V2, or
b) The calendar year in which the Participant severs employment with the eligible
employer, or
c) As otherwise determined in IRC

"Normal Retirement Age” means, for purposes of Section 2.6 any age designated by the
Participant (i) beginning no earlier that the earliest age at which a Participant has the right to
retire under the Employer’s pension plan, if any, and to receive immediate retirement benefits
without actuarial or similar reduction because of retirement before some later age specified in
such retirement plan or, in the case of a Participant who does not participate in such basic
pension plan, age 65, and (ii) ending no later than age 70 - .

“Participant” means an Employee or former Employee who is not deceased and who has an
Account or Rollover Account under the Plan. ‘

“Participation Agreement” means an agreement in writing or in such other form approved
‘by the Committee pursuant to which the Employee elects to reduce his or her Compensation
paid and to have amounts deferred or contributed into the Plan on his or her behalf in
accordance with the terms of the Plan.

“Participating Employer” means any Eligible Governmental Employer, the governing body of
which has adopted the Plan by appropriate resolution with the consent of the Committee and,
with the written approval of such body or entity.

“Plan” means the Nevada Public Employees’ Deferred Compensation Plan and Other
Participating Jurisdictions, as the same may be amended from time to time.

“Plan Year” means the calendar year.

Page90of 33




“Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO") means a order, judgment or decree,
including approval of a property settlement agreement, that has been determined by the
Administrator to meet the requirements of a qualified domestic relations order within the
meaning of Section 414(q) of the Code.

"Qualified Roth Contribution Program” means a qualified Roth contribution program as
defined in Section 402A of the Code.

"Required Beginning Date” means April 1 of the calendar year following the later of the
calendar year in which the Participant: (a) attains age 70 V,0r (b) Severs from Employment.

“Rollover Account” means the Account or Accounts established and maintained in respect of
a Participant or a Beneficiary who is a Participant’s Surviving Spouse or, if applicable, by a
spousal Alternate Payee, pursuant to Article 5.2(c).

“Rollover Contributions” means a cash amount contributed by a Participant, Beneficiary who
is a Participant’s Surviving Spouse or Alternate Payee to a Rollover Account, or if applicable, an
Alternate Payee Account determined as a Eligible Rollover Distribution and provided that the
distributing Eligible Retirement Plan shall have separately accounted for all amounts included in
the Rollover Contribution.,

“Roth Account” means the Account(s) established under the Plan to record a Participant’s
Roth Contributions, and the income, gains, and losses credited thereto. A Beneficiary Account or
Alternate Payee Account corresponding to the deceased or relevant Participant’s Roth
Contributions may also be referred to as a Roth Account.

"Roth Contributions” means amounts contributed pursuant to Article 3.1 by a Participant who
is an Employee of a Designated Roth Employer, which amounts are: : .
a) Designated irrevocably by the Participant at the time of the contribution election
as Roth Contributions that are being made from Compensation pursuant to
Article 3.1(c); and
b) Treated by the Designated Roth Employer as includible in the Participant’s
income at the time the Participant would have received that amount in
Compensation.

“Roth IRA" has the meaning set forth in Section 408A of the Code.

“Roth Program” means a Qualified Roth Contribution Program within the Plan.

“Section 457 Transfer” means a transfer made into an Account pursuant to Article 8.5.
“Service Provider” means the same as Administrator or Recordkeeper who is the duly
authorized designee contracted for that purpose to act as the employer’s agent. The Committee

may elect to contract with one or more Administrator(s).

“Severance from Employment” means a severance from employment with an Employer
within the meaning of Section 457 of the Code.

Page 10 of 33




“Staff” means employees hired by the Committee who serve as full-time or part-time staff of
the Committee. For the avoidance of doubt, Staff shall not mean any individual who performs
work for or on behalf of the Plan pursuant to an agreement between the Committee and an
Administrator, Trustee, or any other entity that provides services to the Committee.

“State” means State of Nevada.

“Surviving Spouse” means the survivor of a deceased Participant to whom such Participant
was legally married on the date of the Participant’s death.

“Treasury Regulations” means the regulations promulgated by the Treasury Department
under the Code, as now in effect or as hereafter amended. All citations to sections of the
Treasury Regulations are to such sections as they may from time to time be amended or
renumbered.

“"Trust Agreement” means an agreement entered into in respect of the Pian between the
Committee and one or more Trustees pursuant to which all cash and other rights and properties
and all income attributable to such cash and rights and properties are held in trust, as such
agreement may be amended from time to time.

“Trust Fund” means the assets of the Plan, including cash and other rights and properties
arising from Amounts Deferred or Contributed, Section 457 Transfers and Rollover Contributions
which are held and administered by the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement,

“Trustee” means the trustee or trustees acting as such under the Trust Agreement, and any
successors thereto,

“Unforeseeable Emergency Distribution” means a severe finandial hardship of the
Participant, Participant's Beneficiary, Participant's spouse, Participant’s domestic partner, or the
Participant’s dependent, as defined in Section 152(a) of the Code , resuiting from an illness or
accident, loss of property due to casualty, funeral expenses or other similar extraordinary and
unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of events beyond the control of the Participant
or'the Beneficiary. - : ' ’

"Unit” means a unit-measuring the value of a Participant’s proportionate interest in an
Investment Option.

“Valuation Date” means each business day unless otherwise provided in the Plan.

Page 11 of 33




ARTICLE II - PARTICIPATION

2.1 Enroliment

a) Eligibility and Enroliment. Each Employee shall be eligible to participate in the Plan as of
any Enroliment Date following the date he or she becomes an Employee, and shall
commence such participation in the Plan by filing a Participation Agreement and any
enroliment forms or other pertinent information concerning the Employee and his or her
Beneficiary with the Administrator in a manner prescribed by the Committee. In no
event shall any deferral or contribution be accepted until the first Enroliment Date in the
calendar month following the date on which such Participation Agreement is filed.
Deferrals and contributions may be accepted for newly hired Employees for the first
Enrolfment Date of the calendar month in which the individual first becomes an
Employee if the Participation Agreement is filed before the Employee’s first day of
service.

b) Initial Enroliment and Subsequent Changes. Each Employee enrolling in the Plan shall

provide to the Administrator, in a complete and timely manner, at the time of initial
enroliment and thereafter if there are any changes, with such information that the
Administrator determines is necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan or
to comply with applicable law.

2.2 Voluntary Participation.
Participation in the Plan by Employees shall be voluntary.

2.3 Cessation of Participation.
The participation of a Participant shall cease upon payment to the Participant of the entire value
of his or her Account or upon the Participant’s death prior to such payment.

2.4 Corrective Action.
If an individual is erroneously induded or excluded from participation, corrective action will be
taken as soon as administratively practicable to correct such erroneous inclusion or exclusion.

ARTICLE III - AMOUNTS DEFERRED OR CONTRIBUTED

3.1 Participant Deferrals and Contribution Authorization.

a) Initial Authorization. A Participant may elect to defer or contribute Compensation under
the Plan by authorizing, on his or her Participation Agreement, regular payroll
deductions or contributions that do not individually or in the aggregate exceed the
limitations in Article 3.2.

b) Modifications. A Participation may increase or decrease the rate of deferral or
contribution of his or her Compensation, and may make separate elections with respect
to the increase and decrease of the rate of his or her Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth
Contributions, within the limitations set forth in Article 3.2, as of any Enrollment Date by
filing a new or modified Participation Agreement, or such other form authorized by the
Committee, with the Administrator, which shall be effective as soon as administratively
practicable,

Page 12 of 33




¢) Roth Contribution. Effective January 1, 2012 and thereafter, a Participant who is an

d)

Employee of a Designated Rath Employer shail be permitted to make Roth Contributions
from his or her Compensation by designating an amount of his or her initial
authorization or modification authorization described in Articles 3.1(a) and 3.1(b) as
Roth Contributions, which designation shall be effective as soon as administratively
practicable for all future payroll periods until modified or suspended.

Discontinuance or Suspension. A Participant may discontinue or temporarily suspend his
ar her deferrals or contributions, and may make separate elections with respect to
discontinuance or suspension of his or her Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth Contributions,
as any specified Enroliment Date by giving notice thereof to the Administrator, Staff or
payroll centers. The deferral or contribution shall be discontinued or suspended as soon
as administratively practicable thereafter.

3.2 General Deferral and Contribution Limitations and Catch-Up Limitations.

a) In General. The aggregate amount of Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth Contributions that

b)

may be deferred or contributed by a Participant for any Plan Year shall not exceed the
lesser of:

I, An amount as may be permitted pursuant to Section 457(e)(15) of the Code, and

ii.  100% of Participant’s Includible Compensation for the Plan Year

Provided, however, the maximum amount that a Participant may defer or contribute for
any Plan Year may be calculated after accounting for mandatory and permissive payroll
deductions, as reasonably determined by the Employer.

457 Catch-Up. Notwithstanding the limitation in Article 3.2(a), a Participant may file an
election in the manner required by the Administrator to have the catch —up limitation as .
set forth in Article 3.2(b) apply to the determination of the maximum amount that may
be deferred or contributed during one or more of the last three Plan Years ending before
attainment of the Participant’s Normal Retirement Age. If the catch-up limitation is
elected, the maximum aggregate amount of Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth

‘Contributions thaf may be deferred or contributed for each of the Plan Years covered by

the election shall not exceed the lesser of:

Twice the dollar amount set forth in Article 3.2(a).

The sum of the limitation provided for in Section 3.2(a) for each of the Plan Years
the Participant was eligible to participate in the Plan, minus the aggregate amount
actually deferred or contributed for such Plan Years (disregarding any amounts
deferred or contributed pursuant to Article 3.2(c)).

A Participant may not elect to have Article 3.2(b) apply more than once, whether or not
the Participant rejoins the Plan after severance of Employment.

Age 50 Catch-Up. All Participants who have attained age 50 before the close of a Plan
Year and who are not permitted to defer or contribute additional Compensation pursuant
to Article 3.2(b) for such Plan Year, due to the application limitation imposed by the
Code or the Plan, shall be eligible to make additional catch-up contributions in the form
of Before-Tax Deferrals or Roth Contributions or a combination thereof in accordance

Page 13 of 33




with, and subject to, the limitations of Article 3.2(c) of the Plan and Section 414(v) of
the Code. Age 50 catch-up contributions pursuant to Article 3.2(c) shall not exceed the
lesser of:

I.  The excess of the 100% of Participant’s Includible Compensation for the Plan Year,
over the sum of any other Amounts Deferred or Contributed by the Participant for
such Plan Year; and

ii. An amount as may be permitted by Section 414(v) (2) (B) of the Code.

d) Dual Eligibility. Notwithstanding anything in Articles 3.2(b) and (c) to the contrary, if a
Participant who is eligible to make additional catch-up contribution under 3.2(c) for a
Plan Year in which the Participant has elected to make a catch-up contribution under
Artide 3.2(b), such Participant is entitled to the greater of:

i. The 457 catch-up contribution amount under Article 3.2(b); and
ii. The age 50 catch-up contribution under Article 3.2(c).

e) Excess Contributions and Deferrals. In the event that any Amounts Deferred or
Contributed under the Plan for any Plan Year exceed the limitations provided for in
Article 3.2, any such excess deferrals or contributions shall be distributed to the
Participant with aflocable net income, in the following order (unless otherwise directed
by the Participant): first, from Before-Tax Deferrals and second, from Roth
Contributions, as determined in accordance with methods and procedures established by
the Administrator, as soon as practicable after the Administrator, payroll center or Staff
determines that the amount was an excess deferral or contribution. Distributions under
Section Article 3.2(e) will be reportable as taxable income to the extent required by
applicable law.

A ARTICLE IV- - INVESTMENT OF AMOUNTS DEFERRED OR CbNTRIBUTED AND
ROLLOVER CONTRIBUTIONS

4.1 Remittance of Deferrals and Contributions ‘
All Amounts Deferred or Contributed in accordance with Article I1I shall be paid by the
applicable Employer or payroll center as promptly as possible to the Administrator. Thereafter,
Amounts Deferred or Contributed shall be invested by the Administrator, in accordance with the
investment instructions, as soon as administratively practicable.

4.2 Allocation of Deferrals and Contributions.

A Participant who has enrolled in the Plan pursuant to Article II shall, by filing a direction with
the Administrator in writing or in such other manner as the Committee may authorize, specify
the percentages (in multiples of one percent) of his or her Amounts Deferred or Contributed
that shall be allocated to each Investment Option made available by the Committee. A
Participant’s investment allocation elections shall be applied in the same manner to both Before-
Tax Deferrals and Roth Contributions. All such deferrals and contributions shall be invested by
the Administrator in the Investment Options in accordance with such direction(s) as soon as
administratively practicable,

Page 14 of 33




4.3 Continuation of Deferral and Contribution_Allocation.

Any deferral and contribution allocation direction given by a Participant shall be deemed to be a
continuing direction until changed by the Participant. A Participant may change his or her
deferral or contribution allocation direction with respect to future Amounts Deferred or
Contributed, as of any Enroliment Date, by giving notice in writing or in such other manner as
the Committee may authorize to the Administrator prior to the Enroilment Date. Any change to
a Participant’s deferral and contribution allocation direction shall be applied in the same manner
to both Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth Contributions. All such future deferrals and contributions
shall be invested by the Administrator in the Investment Options in accordance with such
changed direction.

4.4 Transfer of Assets among Investment Options.

a) Transfer of Assets. As of any Valuation Date, a Participant may direct the Administrator,
by giving notice in writing or in such other manner as the Committee may authorize, to
liquidate his or her interest in any of the Investment Options and transfer the proceeds
thereof to one or more other Investment Options in proportions directed by such
Participant. Participants may make separate transfer directions for their Before-Tax
Deferrals (and Accounts relating to Rollover Contributions involving before-tax deferrals)
and their Roth Accounts (and Accounts refating to Rollover Contributions involving Roth
contributions), Such direction must be made in accordance with the requirements and
procedures established by the Committee and in effect at the time and in multiple of one

-percent or one dollar increments of the Participant’s interest in the applicable
Investment Option.

b) Committee’s Right to Reduce or Deny Transfer Request. If the Administrator, or the
Committee otherwise determines, that it is not reasonably able to prudently liquidate the
necessary amount and transfer it from one Investment Option to ancther, the amount to
be transferred with respect to each Participant who duly requested such a transfer may
be reduced in proportion to the ratio which the aggregate amount that the Administrator
has advised the Committee may not prudently be" transferred bears to the aggregate
amount that ali Participants have duly requested be so transferred. Regardiess of any
Participant's investment direction, no transfer between Investment Options may be
made in violation of any restriction imposed by the terms of the agreement between the
Committee or Administrator providing any Investment Option or of any applicable law.

4.5 Administrative Actions with Regard to Investment Directions.

The Administrator shall have the right to decline to implement any investment direction upon its
determination that: (i) the person giving the direction is legally incompetent to do so; (ii)
implementation of the investment direction would be contrary to the Plan or applicable law or
governmental ruling or regulation; (fii) implementation of the investment direction would be
contrary to a court order, including a Qualified Domestic Relations Order; (iv) implementation of
the investment direction would be contrary to the rules, regulations or prospectuses of the
Investment Options.

4.6 Participant Responsibility for Deferrals, Contributions and Investment Allocations.

Each Participant is responsible for the allocation of his or her Amounts Deferred or Contributed,
and each Participant is solely responsible for the investment allocation of his or her Account, in
each case, in and among the Investment Options. Each Participant shall assume all risk in
connection with the allocation of amounts in and among the Investment Options and for any

Page 15 of 33




losses incurred or deemed to be incurred as a result of the Participant’s allocation or failure to
allocate any amount the Participant’s allocation or failure to allocate any amount to an
Investment Option or any decrease in the value of any Investment Option. Neither the
Committee nor the Administrator is empowered to advise a Participant as to the manner in
which the Participant’s account shall be allocated among the Investment Options. The fact that
a particular Investment Option is available to Participants for investment under the Plan shall
not be construed by any Participant as a recommendation for investment in such Investment
Option. The Committee has elected to make available investment guidance services or
investment advice services to Participants, such services shall be utilized only at the voluntary
election of the Participant and shall not limit the Participant’s responsibility under Article 4.6 for
the allocation of his or her Accounts in and among the Investment Options.

4.7 Investment Allocation of Alternate Payee Accounts.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, during any period when an Alternate Payee
Account is created and segregated on behalf of an Alternate Payee pursuant to a Qualified
Domestic Relations Order from the Accounts of the related Participant, the Alternate Payee shall
be entitled to direct the allocation of investments of such Alternate Payee Account in
accordance with Articles 4.2 and 4.4, as applicable, and shall be subject to the provisions of
Articles 4.5 and 4.6, but only to the extent provided in such order. In the avent that an
Alternate Payee fails to specify an investment direction on the date of creation of the Alternate
Payee Account pursuant to Article 4.9, such Alternate Payee’s Alternate Payee Account shall be
invested in the same manner as the relevant Participant’s corresponding Before-Tax Deferral
Account, Roth Account and Rollover Accounts on such date and, except as otherwise provided
by the Qualified Domestic Relations Order, shall remain invested in accordance with such initial
allocation until the Alternate Payee directs otherwise or until such time as the Alternate Payee
ceases to have an Alternate Payee Account under the Plan by reason of distribution or
otherwise.

4.8 Investment Aflocation of Beneficiary Accounts.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, during any period following the death of a
Participant and prior to distribution of the entire Account(s) of such Participant, such
Participant’s Beneficiary shall be entitled to direct the allocation of investments of such
Account(s) in accordance with Article 4.4, or, as applicable, his or her proportional interest in
such Account(s), in accordance with Article 4.4 and shall be subject to the provisions of Articles
4.5 and 4.6. In the event that a Beneficiary fails to specify an investment direction on the date
of creation of the Beneficiary Account pursuant to Article 4.4, such Beneficiary’s Beneficiary
Account shall be invested in the same manner as the relevant Participant’s corresponding
Before-Tax Deferral Account, Roth Acoount and Rollover Accounts on such date.

4.9 Initial and Ongoing Investment Allocation with Respect to Rollover Contributions and

Section 457 Transfers.

Unless otherwise directed by the Participant, the same deferral and contribution allocation
direction applicable to a Participant pursuant to Article 4.2 or 4.3, as applicable shall apply to all
Section 457 Transfers and Rollover Contributions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in accordance
with procedures established by the Administrator, a Participant may make an alternative initial
allocation election in accordance with the procedures set forth in Artidle 4.4 for any applicable
Section 457 Transfer or Rollover Contribution. Thereafter, such Participant may direct the
Administrator to liquidate his or her interest in any of the Investment Options and transfer the
proceeds thereof to one or more other Investment Options in accordance with Article 4.4 (in

Page 16 of 33




each case subject to the limitations set forth in Articles 4.5 and 4.6). All Rollover Contributions
shall be invested by the Administrator in the Investment Options in accordance with such
directions as soon as administratively practicable.

4.10 Fund Mapping or Similar Activity.

Notwithstanding anything in Article 4 to the contrary, if the Committee eliminates one or more
of the Investment Options or undertakes similar activity on behalf of the Plan, the Committee
shall be authorized to liquidate without a Participant’s consent and without the need for prior
notice to the Participant the portion of each Account invested in such eliminated Investment
Option and direct the proceeds of such liquidation in one or more remaining or replacement
Investment Options in accordance with such liquidation and transfer procedures as the
Committee may determine to be necessary or advisable in connection with such elimination.

4.11 Employer Contributions.
Nothing in this Plan prohibits the Employer from making deposits to a Participant’s Account as

an additional compensation for services rendered, subject to the Participant’s contribution limit.
ARTICLE V - ROLLOVERS AND TRANSFERS

5.1 Transfers from another Governmental 457 Plan.

Compensation previously deferred or contributed by (or contributed on behalf of) a Participant,
a Beneficiary or a spousal Alternate Payee pursuant to another eligible deferred compensation
plan under Section 457 of the Code maintained by another employer described in Section
457(e)(1)(B) of the Code shall be accepted for a plan-to-plan transfer to the Plan by the
Administrator in the form and in the manner prescribed by the Committee. All such Section 457
Transfers shall be credited to the applicable Participant’s corresponding Before-Tax Deferral
Account or Roth Account (or a combination thereof) and shall be invested in accordance with
Article 4.9.

5.2 Acceptance of Assets from an Eligible Retirement Plan.

a) Rollover Contributions in General. Amounts previously deferred or contributed by (or
contributed on behalf of) a Participant, a Beneficiary or a spousal Alternate Payee under
another Eligible Retirement Plan (other than a Roth IRA) that (i) are distributed to the
Participant, the Beneficiary or the spousal Alternate Payee or (ii) are directly rolled over
to the Plan as an eligibie rollover distribution from such Eligible Retirement Plan, may be
accepted as a Rollover Contribution by the Administrator in the form and in the manner
specified by Administrator; provided, that Rollover Contributions of amounts from a
Qualified Roth Contribution Program must be directly rolled over to the Plan.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, other than Rollover Contributions from a Qualified Roth
Contribution Program as described in the preceding sentence, the Administrator shall not
accept any Rollover Contribution, or any portion thereof, that represents deferrals or
contributions under another Eligible Retirement Plan that were made from compensation
that was included in the Participant, Beneficiary or spousal Alternate Payee's gross
income in the year the amounts were deferred or contributed.

b) Written Request; Acceptance of Assets. The Administrator, in accordance with the Code
and procedures established by the Committee, shall, as soon as practicable following its
receipt of the written request of a Participant, a Beneficiary who is a Participant’s
Surviving Spouse or spousal Alternate Payee, determine whether the Rollover

Page 17 of 33




Contribution shall be accepted by the Plan. Any written request filed by a Participant, a
Benefidary who is a Participant’s Surviving Spouse or a spousal Alternate Payee
pursuant to Article 5.2(a) shall set forth the fair market value of such Rollover
Contribution and a statement in a form satisfactory to the Administrator that the amount
to be transferred constitutes a Rollover Contribution.

c) Rollover Account. The Rollover Contribution shail be maintained in a separate, fully
vested Rollover Account for the benefit of the contributing Participant or the Beneficiary
and, in the case of a spousal Alternate Payee, the Alternate Payee Account, and shall be
invested in accordance with the investment direction of the applicable Participant
pursuant to Article 4.9. All amounts so transferred shall be credited to the Participant’s
Rollover Account or Alternate Payee Account and shall be available for distribution at
any time during the Plan Year. No other contributions shall be allocated to the Rollover
Account. Any Rollover Contributions of amounts from a Qualified Roth Contribution
Program shall be segregated and held in a separately designated and maintained
Rollover Account from those amounts not from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program.
At the election of the Participant, Beneficiary who is a Participant’s Surviving Spouse or
spousal Alternate Payee, any Rollover Contributions or 457 Transfers from an eligibie
deferred compensation plan under Section 457(b) of the Code may be held in separately
designated and maintained Rollover Accounts for 457(b) Rollover Contributions;
provided that any such amounts from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program and any
such amounts not from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program shall be segregated and
held in separately designated and maintained 457(b) Rollover Accounts.

5.3 Rollover of Assets to Purchase Retirement Service Credit,

With respect to trustee-to-trustee transfers, a Participant or Beneficiary may elect, in
accordance with procedures established by the Committee, to have all or any portion of the
value of his or her Account transferred to the trustee of a defined benefit governmental plan as .
described in Section 414(d) of the Code; provided, however, that such transfer is for the
purchase of permissive service credit (as defined in Section 415(n)(3)(A) of the Code) under
such plan or a repayment of contributions and earnings with respect to a forfeiture of service
under such plan.

ARTICLE VI - ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS OF THE PLAN

6.1 Participant Accounts.

a) InGeneral. The Administrator shall establish and maintain one or more Accounts for
each Participant, including a Before-Tax Deferral Account, a Roth Account (to the extent
applicable) and, as necessary, one or more Rollover Accounts (induding a segregated
Rollover Account relating to contributions from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program)
with respect to each Participant. Each Account shall record the value of the portion
allocable to that Account, the value of the portion of the Account, if any, that is invested
in each Investment Option (both in the aggregate and by Account) and other relevant
data pertaining thereto. With respect to each Participant, all Amounts Deferred or
Contributed, all Section 457 Transfers and all Rollover Contributions shall be credited to
his or her Before-Tax Deferral Account, Roth Account or Rollover Account, as applicable.

b) Written Statement. Each Participant shall be furnished with a written statement of his or
her Accounts (including the value of the interest he or she has, if any, in each

Page 18 0f 33




Investment Option and the amount of and explanation for each allocation to or
deduction from his or her Accounts) at least quarterly, which statement shall be
delivered in a manner prescribed by the Committee.

6.2 Beneficiary Accounts.

The Administrator shall establish and maintain one or more Beneficiary Accounts, including, as
applicable, separate Before-Tax Deferral Accounts, Roth Accounts, and Rollover Accounts with
respect to each Beneficiary of a deceased Participant. Each such Account shali record the value
of the portion of the deceased Participant’s Account allocable to each of the Beneficiary’s
Accounts, the value of the portion of the Account, if any, that is invested in each Investment
Option (both in the aggregate and by Account) and other relevant data pertaining thereto. Each
Beneficiary shall be furnished with a written statement of his or her Accounts in the same
manner set forth in Article 6.1(b).

6.3 Alternate Payee Accounts.

The Administrator shall establish and maintain one or more Alternate Payee Accounts, including,
as applicable, separate Before-Tax Deferral Accounts, Roth Accounts, and Rollover Accounts
with respect to each Alternate Payee. The Alternate Payee Account shall separately account for
alt amounts received (j) from the Participant’s Rollover Account and (ii) from all amounts rolled
into the Plan by a spousal Alternate Payee, pursuant to Article 5.1 or 5.2. Each such Account
shall record the value of the portion of the Participant’s Account allocable to the Alternate
Payee’s Account, the value of the portion of the Account, if any, that is invested in each
Investment Option (both in the aggregate and by Account) and other relevant data pertaining
thereto. Each Alternate Payee shall be furnished with a written statement of his or her Alternate
Payee Accounts in the same manner set forth in Article 6.1(b). :

6.4 Investment Options and Investment Funds.

.The Trust Fund shall be invested at the direction of Participants, in accordance with Article 4, in
and among the Investment Options made available through the Plan from time to time by the
Committee, Investment Options may include a brokerage account or similar investment window
through which Participants may direct the investment of their Accounts into Mutual Funds (as
defined below) or other available investment products that the Committee designates as
available for investment through such window and any other investment alternative that the
Committee may make available through the Plan. Investment Funds may consist of open-end
investment companies registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended
("Mutual Funds"), separately managed accounts, unregistered commingled funds, group or
commingled trusts, or any combination thereof as approved from time to time by the
Committee for the investment of the assets of the Trust Fund.

ARTICLE VII - WITHDRAWALS FOR UNFORESEEN EMERGENCIES;
WITHDRAWALS OF SMALL AMOUNTS

7.1 Distribution for an Unforeseeable Emergency.

a) Amount of Distribution for an Unforeseeable Emergency. Upon a showing by a
Participant of an Unforeseeable Emergency, the Administrator may permit a payment to
be made to the Participant in an amount which does ot exceed the lesser of (i) the
amount reasenably needed to meet the finandial need created by such Unforeseeable
Emergency, including estimated income taxes and (i) an amount which, together with
any prior distribution or withdrawal, does not exceed the value of the Participant’s

Page 19 of 33




Account determined as of the most recent Valuation Date. Any such payment shall be
made by the Administrator and shall be withdrawn pro rata from the Investment Options
in which the Participant has an interest, unless the Participant specifies in the request
for such a payment the portion of the total amount to be withdrawn by the
Administrator from each Investment Option. Such payment shall be charged first to the
Before-Tax Deferral Account and Roth Account, and second to the Rollover Account(s).
The Participant shall designate the amount of the distribution that will come from his or
her Before-Tax Deferral Account and from his or her Roth Account, and to the extent a
distribution comes from a Rollover Account, the Participant shall designate the amount
of the distribution that will come from each Rolfover Account, in accordance with
procadures established by the Administrator.

b) Evidence of Other Relief. A Participant must provide evidence that the amount requested
for an unforeseeable emergency may not be fully relieved (i) through reimbursement or
compensation by insurance or otherwise, (i) by liquidation of Participant’s other non-
Plan assets, to the extent the liquidation of such assets would not itself cause severe
financial hardship, or (iii) by cessation of deferrals and contributions under the Plan.

7.2 Distribution from a Small Inactive Account.
A Participant with an Account, not including the amount in the Participant’s Rollover Accounts,
of $5,000 or less (or such greater amount as may be permitted by Section 401(a)(11) of the
Code) may elect at any time to receive a lump sum distribution, not to exceed $5,000, of his or
her Account and Rollover Account, which distribution will be made in accordance with
procedures established by the Administrator, provided that both of the following conditions
have been met: (a) there has been no Amount Deferred or Contributed by such Participant
during the two-year period ending on the date of distribution; and (b) there has been no prior
distribution made to such Participant pursuant to this Section 7.2.
a) If a Participant’s Account : .

i. Does not exceed $1,000; and

ii.  Participant has separated from service but not elected a distribution, and

iii.  There has been no Amount Deferred or Contributed by such Participant.

The Participant may be automatically cashed out.

Article VIII - DISTRIBUTION FROM THE PLAN AND OTHER ELIGIBLE
RETIREMENT PLANS

8.1 Distribution to Participants.
a) Eligibility for Distribution. A Participant will become eligible to receive a distribution of his

Account upon the occurrence of any of the following events: (i) the Participant’s
Severance from Employment with the Employer; (if) the Participant’s attainment of age
70%2; or (iii) the Participant’s absence from employment for qualifying military service as
described in the HEART Act. Except as otherwise provided in Article VII, a Participant
may not receive distribution of his or her Account at any time prior to the occurrence of
one of the foregoing events.

b) Distributions to Participants. Upon a Participant’s efigibility for a distribution pursuant to

Article 8.1(a), the Participant shall be entitled to receive his or her Account, which shall
be paid in cash by Administrator in accordance with one of the methods described in

Page 20 of 33




Article 8.1(c) and as of the commencement date elected by the Participant in
accordance with the procedures prescribed Article 8.1(e).

¢) Distribution Options. Subject to Article 8.6, any payment made under this section shall

fii.

be made in one of the following methods, as the Participant (or, in the case of the death
of a Participant, his or her Beneficiary) may elect any of the following:

A total or partial lump sum payment.

Periodic monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual installment payments; provided,
however, that a Participant (or, in the case of the death of a Participant, his or he
Beneficiary) may elect to receive (A) an initial installment payment in a specified
amount and (B) the balance of his or her Account in periodic monthiy, quartertly,
semi-annual or annual installment payments. Installment payments may consist of
(A) fixed amounts paid on each payment date as designated by the Participant {orin
the case of the death of a Participant, his or her Beneficiary), or (B) formulaic
amounts determined by the Administrator, based on a fixed period designated by the
Participant (or in the case of the death of a Participant, his or her Beneficiary),
calculated by dividing the Account on the date of the payment by the number of
payments remaining during the fixed period.

A Participant who elects to receive instaliment payments or who is currently
receiving installment payments pursuant to Article 8.1(c)(ii) may elect, subject to
any limitations set forth by the Committee and in accordance with procedures
estabiished by the Administrator, to receive a portion of his or her Account
distributed in a lump sum; Such lump sum payments shalfl not result in a
discontinuation of subsequent installment payments; provided, hHowever, that such
subsequent payments may be redetermined in accordance with methods and
procedures established by the Administrator.

A Participant who is an eligible retired public safety officer, as defined in Section
402() of the Code, may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the
Administrator, to have up to $3,000 per year (or such greater amount as may be
permitted under applicable guidance issued by the Internal Revenue Service) of
amounts from his or her Before-Tax Deferral Account distributable under the Plan
used to pay qualified health insurance premiums for an accident or heaith plan or
fong-term care insurance contract covering the Participant and his or her spouse and
dependents. Such amounts are excludible from the Participant’s gross income to the
extent the qualified health insurance premiums are paid directly to the provider of
the accident or heaith plan or long-term care insurance contract (determined in
accordance with Section 402() of the Code) by deduction from a distribution to the
Plan.

For each distribution election under Article 8.1(c), a Participant shall designate the
percentage of each distribution that will come from his or her Before-Tax Deferral
Account and the percentage that will come from his or her Roth Account. For the
avoidance of doubt, for purposes of the limitations and restrictions described in this
Article 8.1(c), each distribution election made by a Participant and each payment
made in accordance thereto shall be deemed to be one election and one payment,

Page 21 of 33




even if payment is made both from the Participant’s Before-Tax Deferral Account
and from his or her Roth Account.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant may not elect an installment period extending
beyond the longest of (A) his or her life expectancy, (B) if his or her designated Beneficiary is
his or her Spouse, the life expectancy of the Participant and his or her Spouse and (C) if his
designated Beneficiary is not his or her Spouse, the life expectancy determined using the
applicable table contained in the applicable Treasury Regulation.

d) Distribution Election. In the case of the Participant's Severance from Employment with
the Employer, a distribution election made by the Participant shall specify the form of
payment as provided in Article 8.1(c) and the date on which payments shall commence,
following the Participant’s Severance from Employment; provided, further that the
timing of any distribution must be in compliance with Article 8.6. Subject to Article 8.6, a
Participant who is receiving distributions under the Plan may change both the timing and
the method of payment elected subject to any limitations set forth by the Committee
and in accordance with procedures established by the Administrator.

e) Rollover Accounts, Notwithstanding any other provision of Article 8.1, a
Participant who has one or more Rollover Accounts shall be permitted to withdraw all or
any portion of such Rollover Accounts at any time during a Plan Year; provided that
such withdrawal shall be paid pursuant to a method of payment elected by the
Participant in accordance with Article 8.1(c) and the value of such Rollover Accounts
shall be determined in accordance with Article 8.1(d).

8.2 Distributions to Beneficiaries.

If a Participant dies before distribution of his or her Account has commenced, a distribution
election made by the Beneficiary shall specify the form of payment as provided in Article 8.1(c)
and the date on which payments shall commence. If a Participant dies at any time before his or
her entire Account has been distributed, then the Participant’s Beneficiary may make
subsequent distribution elections as provided in Article 8.1(c). Notwithstanding the foregoing,
any distribution to a Beneficiary shall be made in accordance with the provisions of Section
401(a)(9) of the Code and subject to Sections 8.6(d) and (e)- '

8.3 ‘Distributions to Alternate Payees.

A distribution to an Alternate Payee may be paid in a single lump sum as soon as practicable
following the qualification of the Qualified Domestic Relations Order and the dose of all appeals
to the Qualified Domestic Relations Order if the Alternate Payee consents to such lump sum
distribution. In the event that the Alternate Payee does not consent to receive his or her
distribution in a single lump sum as soon as practicable following the qualification of the
Qualified Domestic Relations Order, the Alternate Payee may make an election to receive a
distribution any time after the Earliest Retirement Date, subject to any requirements of Section
401(a)(9) of the Code and Article 8.6, by filing a distribution election specifying the form of
payment as provided in Article 8.1(c) and the date on which payments shall commence.

8.4 Eligible Rollover Distributions.
a) Participant Roliover Distributions. In connection with a Participant’s Severance from

Employment, the Distributee may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the
Administrator, to have all or any portion of the Participant’s Accounts that qualifies as an

Page 22 of 33




Eligible Rollover Distribution paid directly to the trustee of an Eligible Retirement Plan;
provided that such other plan provides for the acceptance of such amounts by the
trustee. The Plan shall provide written information to Distributees regarding Eligible
Rollover Distributions to the extent required by Section 402(f) of the Code.

b) Beneficiary Rollover Distributions. Upon a Participant’s death, a Beneficiary may elect, at
the time and in the manner prescribed by the Administrator, to have ail or any portion of
the Participant’s Accounts that qualifies as an Eligible Rollover Distribution paid directly
to the trustee of an individual retirement arrangement (a defined in Section 7701(a)(37)
of the Code) that is established for the purpose of receiving the distribution on behalf of
such Beneficiary.

c) Roth IRA Rollover Distribution. In connection with a Participant’s Severance from
Employment or upon a Participant’s death, as the case may be, a Participant or a
Beneficiary may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the Administrator, to
have all or any portion of the Participant's Accounts that qualifies as an Eligible Rollover
Distribution rolled over to a Roth individual retirement arrangement (as defined in
Section 7701(a)(37) of the Code, and designated as a Roth arrangement at the time of
its establishment). Such amounts will be included in gross income as if the distribution
had been made to such Participant or Beneficiary.

'd) In-Plan Rollover to Roth Account. Upon any distribution event pursuant to which a
Participant, a Beneficiary who is a Participant’s Surviving Spouse or a spousal Alternate
Payee would be permitted to have all or any portion of the Participant’s Account that
qualifies as an Efigible Rollover Distribution rolled over into another Eligible Retirement
Plan, such Participant, Beneficiary who is a Participant’s Surviving Spouse or spousal
Alternate Payee may elect to have the portion of such Eligible Rollover Distribution that
is not attributable to Roth Contributions directly rolled over into a separately maintained
Account within his or her Roth Account. Any such amounts will be included in gross
income as if the distribution had been made to such Participant, Beneficiary who is a
Participant’s Surviving Spouse or spousal Alternate Payee. After a Participant, Beneficiary
who is a Participant’s Surviving Spouse or spousal Alternate Payee has made an in-Plan
roliover into a Roth Account, such Participant, Beneficiary who is a Participant’s
Surviving Spouse or spousal Alternate Payee may elect to take distributions from such
-Account in accordance with any of the distribution options set forth in Article 8.1(c). The
provisions in Article 8.4(d) shall be administered in accordance with procedures
established by the Administrator and shall be interpreted and administered in
accordance with and subject to Section 402A(c)(4) of the Code and any rules,
regulations or other guidance issued by the Internal Revenue Service in relation thereto.

8.5 457 Transfers,
The Participant may transfer his or her Account to another Section 457 maintained by another
employer, if:

a} The Participant has severed employment with the Employer and become an employee of

the other employer;
b) The other employer’s plan provides that such transfer will be accepted; and

Page 23 of 33




c)

The Participant and the employer have signed such agreements as are necessary to
assure that the Employer’s liability to pay benefits to the Participant has been discharged
and assumed by the other employer.

A transfer from an eligible governmental to another eligible governmental plan is permitted if
the following conditions are met:

a)

b)

d)

The transfer is from an eligible govemmental plan to another eligible governmentat plan
of the same employer; for this purpose, the employer is not treated as the same
employer if the participant’s compensation is paid by a different entity;

The transferor plan provides for transfers;

The receiving plan provides for receipt of transfers;

The participant or beneficiary whose amounts deferred are being transferred will have
an amount deferred immediately after the transfer at least equal to the amount deferred
with respect to that participant or beneficiary immediately before the transfer; and

The participant or beneficiary whose deferred amounts are being transferred is not

eligible for additional annual deferrals in the receiving plan unless the participant or
beneficiary is performing services for the entity maintaining the receiving plan.

8.6 Withholding.
The Administrator shall withhold or cause to be withheld from any amounts withdrawn or

distributed all federal, state, city or other taxes as shall be required pursuant to any law or
governmental ruling or regulation, including Treasury Regulations.

- 8.7 Required Minimum Distributions.

a)

b)

In General. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan to the contrary (except
Article 8.7(b)), all distributions under the Plan shall be in accordance with the minimum
distribution and timing requirements of Section 401(a)(9) of the Code (including the
incidental death benefit requirements of Section 401(a)(9)(G) of the Code) and the final
Treasury regu!atlons under Sections 1. 401(a)(9)-2 through 1.401(a)(9)-9, which are
incorporated herem by reference. Such provisions shall override any distribution options
in the Plan that may be inconsistent with Section 401(a)(9) of the Code. Any
distributions made pursuant to this Article 8.7 in order to comply with Section 401(a)(9)
of the Code shall be charged against the Account or Accounts of the Participant in such
manner as designated by the Participant in accordance with procedures established by
the Administrator; provided, however, that if no such designation is made, such
distributions shall be charged first against the Before-Tax Deferral Account, second
against the Roth Account, third against the Rollover Account or Roliover Accounts not
relating to Rollover Contributions of amounts from a Qualified Roth Contribution
Program, and fourth against the Rollover Account or Rollover Accounts relating to
Rollover Contributions of amounts from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program

2009 Waiver. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Article 8.7, an Participant who
would have been required to receive required minimum distributions for 2009 but for the
enactment of Section 401(a)(9)(H) of the Code (“2009 RMDs"), and who would have
satisfied that requirement by receiving distributions that are (i) equal to the 2009 RMDs

Page 24 of 33




or (i) one or more payments in a series of substantially equal distributions (that include
the 2009 RMDs) made at least annually and expected to last for the life (or life
expectancy) of the Participant, the joint fives (or joint life expectancy) of the Participant
and the Participant’s Beneficiary, or for a period of at least 10 years, will not receive
those distributions for 2009 unless the Participant or Beneficiary chooses to receive such
distributions. Participants and Beneficiaries described in the preceding sentence will be
given the opportunity to elect to receive the distributions described in the preceding
sentence.

Distributions During Participant’s Life, The Account of a Participant shall be distributed
(or commence to be distributed) to such Participant as soon as practicable after the

Required Beginning Date. If the Participant has not made an election pursuant to Article
8.1(c) prior to such Required Beginning Date, then the Account shall be distributed in
the form of instaliment payments commencing on the Required Beginning Date.

d) Death of a Participant Before the Required Beginning Date.

i Ifa Participant dies before his Required Beginning Date, his Beneficiary (or if the
Participant has no Beneficiary, his or her Surviving Spouse or estate, as determined
under Article 9.2) shall receive a distribution of the Account over the life of the
Beneficiary or over a period not exceeding the life expectancy of the Beneficiary;
provided that the distribution commences no later than December 31 of the calendar
year immediately following the calendar year in which the Participant dies, except as
set forth in Articles 8.7(d)(i}(1) or (2) as follows:

1. If a Participant dies before his Required Beginning Date, the Beneficiary may
elect to receive the remaining portion (if any) of such Participant’s Account no
later than December 31 of the calendar year containing the fifth anniversary of
the Participant’s death (determined without regard to 2009); or

2. If the sole Beneficiary is the Participant’s Surviving Spouse, such Surviving
Spouse may elect to receive a distribution of the Account over a period not
exceeding the life expectancy of the Surviving Spouse (determined as of the date
such payments commence); provided that the distribution commences on or
before the later of December 31 of the calendar year immediately foflowing the
calendar year in which the Participant dies or December 31 of the calendar year
in which the Participant would have attained age 70%2; provided, further, that if
the Surviving Spouse dies after the Participant but before distributions to the
Surviving Spouse commence, Article 8.7(d) (with the exception of Artide
8.7(d)(i)(B)) shall apply as if the Surviving Spouse were the Participant. (ii) The
Beneficiary may elect to receive payment of the Account as a flump sum or in
annual, monthly or quarterly instaliment payments.

il The Beneficiary may elect to receive payment of the Account as a lump sum or in
annual, monthly or quarterly installment payments.

Page 25 of 33




€) Death After Required Beginning Date and After Commencement of Distributions.

If a Participant dies on or after the Required Beginning Date, but before his or her entire
Account is distributed to him or her, the unpaid portion of his or her Plan Account shall
be distributed as follows:

i.  If the Participant has a designated Beneficiary, the longer of the remaining life
expectancy of the Participant’s Beneficiary and the remaining life expectancy of the
Participant determined in accordance with Section 1.409(2)(9)-5 of the Treasury
Regulations; or

ii.  If the Participant does not have a designated Beneficiary, the remaining life
expectancy of the Participant determined in accordance with Section 1.409(a)(9)-5 of
the Treasury Regulations; provided, however, that if a Beneficiary so elects, the
Participant’s remaining Account may be paid to the Beneficiary at any time in a lump
sum so fong as the entire Account is paid at least as rapidly as it would be paid under
Section 8.7{e)(i).

f) Alternate Payee Accounts. In the case of any Alternate Payee Account, payments to the
Alternate Payee must be made in accordance with the Plan and Section 401(a)(9) of the
Code.

ARTICLE IX - DESIGNATION OF BENEFICIARIES

9.1 Designation of Beneficiaries.

Each Participant shall file with the Administrator a designation of one or more persons as the
Beneficiary who shall be entitled to receive the Account, if any, payable under the Plan upon his
or her death. A Participant may from time to time revoke or change his or her Beneficiary
designation without the consent of any prior Beneficiary by filing a new designation or change
or revocation thereof shall be effective unless received by the Administrator in good order prior
to the Participant’s death, and in no event shall it be effective as of a date prior to such receipt.
For purposes of Section 9, a Beneficiary designation shall be deemed to be received in good
order only if the Administrator can reasonable identify the Beneficiary or Beneficiaries named in.
" the designation.

9.2 No Beneficiaries Designated.

a) If no such Beneficiary designation is in effect at the time of a Participant’s death, or if no
designated Beneficiary survives the Participant, or if no designated Beneficiary can be
located with reasonable diligence by the Administrator, the payment of the Account, if
any, payable under the Plan upon the Participant’s death shall be made by the
Administrator to the Participant’s Surviving Spouse, if any, or if the Participant has no
Surviving Spouse, or the Surviving Spouse cannot be located with reasonable diligence
by the Administrator, then to the deceased estate.

b) If the Beneficiary so designated by the Participant dies after the death of the Participant
but prior to receiving a complete distribution of the amount that would have been paid
to such Beneficiary had such Beneficiary’s death not then occurred, then, for purposes
of the Plan, the distribution that would otherwise have been received by such
Beneficiary shall be paid to the Beneficiary’s estate.

Page 26 of 33




ARTICLE X - QUALIFIED DOMESTIC RELATIONS ORDERS

10.1 Qualified Domestic Relations Order.

Payments with respect to a Participant's Account may be made by the Administrator to one or
more Alternate Payees pursuant to the terms of a Qualified Domestic Relations Order. Upon
segregation of the assets payable to the Alternate Payee, any such amounts paid or segregated
shall no longer constitute part of the Participant’s Account, No liability whatsoever shall be
incurred by the Committee, Staff, the Employer, or the Administrator solely by reason of any act
or omission undertaken in accordance with this section to comply with the terms of a Qualified
Domestic Relations Qrder.

ARTICLE XI - ADMINISTRATION

11.1 Plan Administration.

Except as otherwise provided therein, the operation and administration of the Plan shall be the
responsibility of the Committee and the Committee shall have all of the broad, general authority
necessary or advisable to operate and administer the Plan. The Committee shalf have the power
and the duty to take all action and to make alt decisions necessary or proper to carry out its
responsibilities under the Plan. All determinations of the Committee as to any question involving
its responsibilities under the Plan, including interpretation of the Plan or as to any discretionary
actions to be taken under the Plan, shall be solely in the Committee’s discretion and shall be
final, conclusive and binding on all parties.

11.2 Committee Powers and Duties.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Committee shall have the foliowing powers
and duties:
a) To require any person to furnish such information as it may request for the purpose of
the proper administration of the Plan as a condition to receiving any benefit under the
Plan.

b) To make and enforce such rules and regulations and prescribe the use of such forms as
it shall dgem necessary for the effident a_dministration of the Plan;

¢) To interpret the Plan and to resolve ambiguities, inconsistencies and omissions in the
‘terms of the Plan or any document related to the Plan;

d) To decide all questions concerning the Plan and the eligibility of any Employer or other
individual to participate in the Plan;

€) To enlarge or diminish any applicable time period set forth in the Plan, subject to
applicable law; and

f) To determine the methods and procedures for the implementation and use of any
automated telephone, computer, internet, intranet or other electronic or automated
system adopted by the Committee for purposes of Plan administration.

11.3 Limitation of Liability.

Except as may be prohibited by applicable law, neither the Committee, any member thereof,
nor any Staff member, shall be liable for (a) anything done or omitted to be done by it or by

Page 27 of 33




them unless the act or omission claimed to be the basis for liability amounted to a failure to act
in good faith or was due to gross negligence or willful misconduct; (b) the payment of any
amount under the Plan; or () any judgment or reasonabie mistake of fact made by it or on its
behaif by a member of the Committee or Staff. No member of the Committee or any Staff
member shall be personally liable under any contract, agreement, or other instrument made or
executed by him or her or on his or her behaif in connection with the Plan or Trust fund.

11.4 Trustee,

The Trustee shall have responsibility for the custody and safekeeping of the assets of the Plan
in accordance with the terms of the Trust Agreement and the Administrator shall be responsible
for implementing the aggregated investment decisions of Participants and beneficiaries by
allocating the Plan assets to the various Investment Options.

11.5 Investment Options.
The Committee shall have the power to add or remove one or more investment options. The

Committee shall periodically review the performance and methods of such Investment Options.
The Committee has the right to (i) replace any Investment Option with a successor organization
or option, (if) to select any additional investment option or (jii) remove any investment option.

11.6 Delegation.
The Committee may delegate its general authority as it deems appropriate in accordance with

the terms of the Plan and all applicable Code sections; provided; however, that such delegation
shall be subject to revocation at any time at the discretion of the Committee. Notwithstanding
any other provision of the Plan, the Committee’s general authority shall indude the right to
review, revise, modify, revoke, or vacate any decision made or action taken by any party under
the Plan to whom authority of the Committee has been delegated or to whom authority with
respect to the administration of the Plan or the custody and investment of assets of the Trust
Fund has been delegated or assigned under the terms of the Plan,.by the Committee or
otherwise. The rights of the Committee under Article 11.6 include the right to review, revise,
modify, revoke, or vacate any decision of the Administrator or the Review Committee.

11.7 Plan Expenses. . )

a) Assessment Against the Trust Fund. Subject to 11.7(b), the expenses of administering
the Plan, including (i) the fees and expenses of the Investment Options and
Administrators for the performance of their duties under the Plan, including any fees and
expenses associated with a change, termination or addition of an Investment Option, (i)
the fees, if any, of any member of the Committee and any Trustee and the expenses
incurred by the Committee or any of its members or Staff in the performance of their
duties under the Plan (including reasonable compensation for any legal counsel, certified
public accountants, consultants, and employees of the Committee and cost of services
rendered in respect of the Plan and the Trust Agreement (as provided therein), and (jii)
all other proper charges and disbursements of the Investment Options, Administrator,
the Committee or its members (including settlements of claims or legal actions approved
by counsel to the Plan).

b) Investment Expenses. Unless the Committee determines otherwise, brokerage fees,
transfer taxes and any other expenses incident to the purchase or sale of securities for
any Investment Option shall be deemed to be part of the cost of such securities, or
deducted in computing the proceeds there from, as the case may be. The Administrator

Page 28 of 33




shall appropriately deduct any taxes assessed in respect of any assets heid, income
received, or transactions effected under the Investment Options proportionately against
any Accounts that are invested in such Investment Option.

11.8 Review of Claims
a) Initial Claim of Rights or Benefits and Review. Any claims to rights or benefits under the
Plan, including any purported Qualified Domestic Relations Order, or request for an
Unforeseeable Emergency Withdrawal must be filed in writing with the Administrator.
Notice of denial of any claim in whole or part in part by the Administrator, or by such
other entity designed by the Administrator, shall include the specific reasons for denial
and nctice of the rights granted by Article 11.8.

b} Review of Decision. Any claimant or Participant Account who has received notice of
denial or grant, in whole or in part, of a claim made in accordance with the foregoing
Section Article 11.8(a) may file a written request within thirty days of receipt of such
denial for review of the decision by the Committee. Within 60 days after receipt of such
request for review, the Committee shall notify the claimant and, as applicable, the
Participant, that the claim has been granted or denied, in whole or in part. Notice of
denial of any claim in whole or in part by the Committee shall include the spedific
reasons for denial and shall be final, binding and conclusive on all interested person for
all purposes.

11.9 Advisers.

The Committee shall arrange for the engagement of legal counsel and certified public accounts,
who may be counsel or accountants for the Employer, and other consultants, including an
investment adviser, and make use of agents and clerical or other personnel, for the purposes of
this Plan. The Committee and Staff may rely upon the written opinions of the State Attorney
General and of such counsel, accountants and consultants, and upon any information supplied
by the Trustee or Administrator appointed in accordance with the Regulations.

11.10 Limitation on Committee Power.
No member of the Committee shall be entitled to act on or decide any matters relating solely to
such member or any of his or her rights or benefit under the Plan.

11.11 Public Meetings.

All actions of the Committee shall be taken at a public meeting in accordance with the Nevada
Open Meeting Law. The Committee shall establish its own procedures and the time and place
for its meetings and provide for the keeping of minutes of all meetings.

11.12 Defense of Claims.
In the event of a claim or legal action, the Committee shall be entitled to defense by the State
Attorney General.

ARTICLE XII - ADOPTION BY AND WITHDRAWALS OF PARTICIPATING
EMPLOYERS

12.1 Adoption by a Participating Employer.

Effective Date of Adoption. Upon a Public Employer’s adoption of the Plan, such Public Employer
shall file with Committee Staff a copy of each resolution or other legal action, consent or

Page 29 of 33




approval through which the Public Employer adopted the Plan. Such Public Employer’s adoption
of the Plan shall be effective upon receiving an acknowledgement of receipt of such submission
from Committee Staff and a Committee motion ratifying the Public Employer’s adoption of the

Plan.

12.2 Withdrawal of Participating Employer.

a)

b)

d)

Withdrawal by the Participating Employer. Any Participating Employer may terminate its
adoption of the Plan by filing with the Committee Staff a copy of the resolution or other
legal action, adopted in the same manner as the resolution or other legal action adopted
pursuant to Section 12.1, specifying a termination date which shall be no early than the
last Business day of the month at least 30 days subsequent to the date such notice is
received the Committee Staff.

Termination of Public Employer’s Participation by the Committee.

i.  The Committee may terminate any Participating Employer’s adoption of the Plan,
as of any termination date specified by the Committee, for the failure of the
Participating Employer to comply with any provision of the Plan or the
Regulations.

ii.  The Committee may terminate a Participating Employer’s adoption of the Plan
upon complete and final discontinuance of deferrals and contributions.

Treatment of Participants after Withdrawal. Upon termination of adoption of the Plan by
any Public Employer that was formerly a Participating Employer, such Public Employer

- shall not permit any further deferrals or contributions of Compensation under the Plan

and all Participants who are or were Employees of such Public Employer or if no
successor plan is established, payable to or in respect of such Participants as provided in
the Plan. Any distributions, transfers or other dispositions of such Participants as
provided in the Plan shall constitute a complete discharge of alt liabilities under the Plan
with respect to such Public Employer previous adoption of the Plan and any Participant
who is or was an Employee of such Public Employer. The rights of such Participant
under the Plan shall be unaffected by the termination of the adoption of the Plan by
such Public Empiloyer with respect to deferrals and contnbutlons made and Accounts in
existence as of the effective date of the termination.

Continued Obligations of Public Fmployers. Notwithstanding any other provision in
Section 12.2 to the contrary, any Public Employer who was previously a Participating

Employer and whose adoption of the Plan has been terminated pursuant to Section
12.2(a) or 12.2(b) shall cooperate with the Committee and Administrator to provide any
information or notifications needed for the continued administration of the Plan to
Participants who had Accounts in existence as of the effective date of the termination,
until such time as total the value of the Accounts attributable to any Participant who are
current or former employees (or who are Beneficiaries or Alternate Payees of any
current or former Employees) of such Public Employer, has been distributed or
transferred to another eligible deferred compensation plan under Section 457 of the
Code, as provided under the Plan.

Page 30 of 33




ARTICLE XIII - AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

13.1 Power to Amend or Terminate.

Subject to any requirements of State or federal law, the Committee reserves the right at any
time and with or without prior notice to any person to amended, suspend or terminate the Plan,
to eliminate future deferrals and contributions for existing Participants, or to limit participation
to existing Participants, in whole or in part and for any reason and without the consent of any
Participating Employer, Employee, Participant, Beneficiary or other person. No amendment,
suspension or termination of any provisions of the Plan or any deferrals or contributions there
under, the Trust Agreement or any Investment Option may be made retroactively, unless such
retroactively is allowed under State law, the Code and any other applicable law.

13.2 Termination of the Plan.

Upon any action by the Committee to initiate a Plan termination, no Participating Employer may
permit any further deferrals or contributions of Compensation under the Plan, and the Plan
termination shall become effective upon the distribution of all Accounts. After taking an action
to initiate a Plan termination, the Committee may distribute all Accounts. Any distributions,
transfers or other dispositions of Accounts as provided in the Plan shall constitute a complete
discharge of all liabilities under the Plan. The Committee and the Trustee(s) shall remain in
existence and the Trust Agreement and all of the provisions of the Plan that the Committee
determines are necessary or advisable for the administration and distribution, transfer or other
disposition of interests in the Trust Fund shall remain in force.

13.3 Notice to Participating Employers.

“The Committee shall give notice on a reasonably timely basis of any amendment, suspension or
termination of the Plan to all Participating Employers.

ARTICLE XIV - GENERAL LIMITATIONS AND PROVISIONS

14.1 Plan Binding on Accounts.

The plan, as duly amended from time to time, shall be binding on each Participant and his or
her Surviving Spouse, Registered Domestic Partner, heirs, administrators, trustees, successors,
assigns, and Beneficiaries and all other interested persons.

14.2 No Right to Employment.
Nothing contained shall give any individual the right to be retained in the employment of the

'Employer or affect the right of the Employer to terminate any individual’s employment. The
adoption and maintenance of the Plan shall not constitute a contract between the Employer and
any individual or consideration for, or an inducement to or condition of, the employment of any
individual.

14.3 No Alienation of Accounts.

Except insofar as may otherwise be required by a Qualified Domestic Refations Order or
applicable law, no amount payable at any time under the Plan shall be subject in any manner to
alienation by anticipation, sale, transfer, assignment, bankruptcy, pledge, attachment,
garnishment, charge or encumbrance of any king, and any attempt to so alienate such amount,
whether presently or thereafter payable, shall be void.

Page 31 0of 33




14.4 Notices to Participants.

All notices, statements, reports and other communications from a Public Employer, the Trustee
or the Committee to any Participant shall be deemed to have been duly given when delivered
to, or when mailed by electronic delivery or other form of delivery approved by the Committee
or by first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed to such Employee, Participant,
Beneficiary, Surviving Spouse or other person at his or her address last appearing on the
records of the Administrator, the Committee or the Public Employer.

14.5 Netices to the Committee.

Alf elections, designations, requests, notices, instructions, and other communications from a
Public Employer, an Employee, a Participant or any other person to the Committee,
Administrator or the Employer required or permitted under the Plan shall be in such form as is
prescribed by the Committee, shali be mailed by first class mail or delivered electronically in
such a form and to such location as shall be prescribed by the Committee from time to time,
and shall be deemed to have been given and delivered only upon actual receipt thereof at such
location. Copies of all elections, designations, requests, notices, instructions and other
communications from an Employee, a Participant, a Beneficiary, a Surviving Spouse or any
other person to the Employer shall be promptly filed with the Administrator or Committee Staff.

14,6 Notices to Participants.
All notices, statements, reports, and other communications from a Public Employer, the Trustee

or the Committee to any Participant shall be deemed to have been duly given when delivered
to, or when mailed by electronic delivery or other form of delivery approved by the Committee
or by first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed to such Employee, Participant, Beneficiary,
Surviving Spouse or other person at his or her address last appearing on the records of the
Administrator, the Committee or the Public Employer.

14.7 Trust Sole Source of Accounts. . .

The Trust Fund shail be the sole source of benefits under the Plan and, except as otherwise
required by applicable law, neither the Committee, Staff, the Employer nor any officer or
employee of an Employer assume any liability or responsibility for payment of such benefits,
and each Participant, his or her spouse or Beneficiary, or other person who shall client the right
to any payment under the Plan shall be entitled to look only to the Trust Fund for such payment
and shall not have any right, claim, or demand therefore against the Committee or any member

thereof, Staff, the Employer or officer or employee of an Employer. Nothing in Article 14.7 shall

relieve an Employer of its obligation to defer or contribute Amounts Deferred or Contributed to
the Trust Fund within two Business Days after the applicable payroll date, in the manner
contemplated by Article 4.1.

14.8 Account Assets and Account Vesting.
a) Account Assets Held in Trust Fund. The entire value of each Account for each Participant

shall be held in the Trust Fund pursuant to the Trust Agreement for the exclusive benefit
of the applicable Participant and for paying reasonable expenses of the Plan and of the
Trust Fund pursuant to Article 11.7, and no part of the Trust Fund shall revert to any
Employer; provided, however, that the setting-aside of any amounts to be held in the
Trust Fund is expressly conditioned upon the following: If an amount is set aside to be
held in the Trust Fund by an Employer in a manner which is inconsistent with any of the
requirements of Section 457(b) of the Code.

Page 32 of 33




b) Vesting, Each Participant shall be 100 percent vested at all times in his or her Account.

14.9 Several Liability.

The duties and responsibilities allocated to each person under the Pian and the Trust
Agreement shall be the several and not joint responsibility of each and no such person shall be
liable for the act or omission of any other person.

14,10 Interpretation.
(i) The term “induding” means by way of example and not by way of limitation, and (ii) the

heading preceding the sections hereof have been inserted solely as a matter of convenience
and in no way define or limit the scope or intent of any provisions hereof.

14.11 Construction.

The Plan and all rights there under shall be governed by the construed in accordance with the
Code and the laws of the State.

Page 33 of 33







NRS 287.250 Definitions. As used in NRS 287.250 to 287.370, inclusive, unless the context
otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in NRS 287.260 to 287.310, inclusive, have the

meanings ascribed to them in those sections.
(Added to NRS by 1977, 893; A 1995, 1868; 1999. 33)

NRS 287.260 “Committee” defined. “Committee” means the Committee established to

administer the Program.
{Added to NRS by 1977, 834)

NRS 287.270 “Deferred compensation” defined. “Deferred compensation” means income
which a state employee or employee of the Nevada System of Higher Education may legally set aside
under the Program, which may consist of one or more plans authorized by 26 U.S.C. § 401({a), 401(k),
403(b), 457 or 3121, including, without limitation, a FICA alternative pian, or any other plan authorized
by any federal law to reduce taxable compensation or other forms of compensation, and which income,
while invested under the Program, is exempt from federal income taxes on the employee’s
contributions and interest, dividends and capital gains.

(Added to NRS by 1977, 894; A 1979, 797; 1985, 1122; 1987, 1823; 1993, 386; 2001, 1004; 2003. 1408)

NRS 287.300 “Investment” defined. “Investment” means a savings account, certificate of
deposit, fixed or variable annuity contract, life insurance contract, mutual fund or other investment
which the Committee has approved for the Program.

(Added to NRS by 1977, 894)

NRS 287.310 “Program” defined. “Program” means the Public Employees’ Deferred
Compensation Program authorized by NRS 287.250 to 287.370, inclusive.
(Added to NRS by 1977, 894)

NRS 287.320 Employer may agree with employee to defer compensation; investment of
withheld money; deferred compensation and related property, rights and income held in trust.

- 1. The State may agree with any of its employees, and the Board of Regents of the University of
Nevada may agree with any of its employees, to defer the compensation due to them in accordance
with a program approved by the Committee which may consist of one or more plans authorized by 26
U.S.C. § 401(a), 401(k), 403(b), 457 or 3121, including, without limitation, a FICA alternative plan, or any
other plan authorized by any federal law to reduce _taxable compensation or -other forms of
compensation. The Board of Regents may agree with any of its employees to defer the compensation
due to them as authorized by 26 U.S.C. § 403(b} without submitting the program to the Committee for
its approval. An employee may defer compensation under one or more plans in the Program.

2. The employer shall withhold the amount of compensation which an employee has, by such an
agreement, directed the employer to defer.

3. The employer may invest the withheld money in any investment approved by the Commiittee or,
in the case of deferred compensation under 26 U.S.C. § 403(b) for employees of the Nevada System of
Higher Education by the Board of Regents of the University of Nevada.

4. The investments must be underwritten and offered in compliance with all applicabie federal and
state laws and regulations, and may be offered only by persons who are authorized and licensed under
all applicable state and federal regufations.

5. All amounts of compensation deferred pursuant to the Program, all property and all rights
purchased with those amounts and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights must, in
accordance with 26 U.S.C. § 401{a), 401K, 403(b), 457(g) or 3121, including, without limitation, a FICA
alternative plan, or any other federal law authorizing a plan to reduce taxable compensation or other




forms of compensation, as app[icabl'e, be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants in the
Program and their beneficiaries,

(Added to NRS by 1977, 894; A 1979, 797; 1985, 1122: 1987, 1823: 1993, 386; 1999, 32: 2001, 1004; 2003,
1408}

NRS 287.325 Committee to administer Program: Appointnient, terms and compensation of
members; vacancies.

1. The Governor shall appoint a Committee to administer the Program. The Committee must
consist of:

{a) Three members who are employed by state agencies whose payrolls are administered by the
Division of Human Resource Management of the Department of Administration;

(b} One member who is employed by a state agency whose payrol! is administered by an entity
other than the Division of Human Resource Management of the Department of Administration; and

(c} One member who has retired from employment by the State of Nevada or the Nevada System of
Higher Education.
= Each member of the Committee must be a participant in the Program, have participated in the
Program for not less than 2 years and have been nominated for membership by five or more persons
who have each participated in the Program for not less than 6 months.

2. After their initial terms, members of the Committee serve terms of 4 years or until their
successors have been appointed and have qualified.

3. A vacancy on the Committee occurs when a member dies, resigns or becomes ineligible for
membership on the Committee. A person becomes ineligible for membership on the Committee when:

{a) The person ceases to be a participant in the Program; or

{b) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, the person ceases to have the qualifications for
membership required by the paragraph of subsection 1 under which the person was appointed. A
member of the Committee who ceases to have those qualifications may serve the remainder of the
member’s term if that period does not exceed 24 months,

4. The member appointed pursuant to paragraph (c) of subsection 1 must be compensated $80 per
day from money appropriated from the Program pursuant to NRS 287.365 for attending a meeting of
the Committee and for acting at the direction of or on behalf of the Committee.

5. For the purposes of this section, “participant in the Program” means a person who is:

(a} Deferring compensation pursuant to the Program;

(b} Maintaining deferred compensation in the Program; or

{c) Receiving payments of deferred compensation pursuant to the Program.

{Added to NRS by 1995, 1867; A 1997, 25)

NRS 287.330 Committee to administer Program: Duties; powers; exemption from liability for
certain decisions relating to investments.

1. The Committee shall: _

{a) At its first meeting each year, designate one of its members to serve as Chair of the Committee
for a term of 1 year or until the Chair’s successor has been designated.

(b} Act in such a manner as to promote the collective best interests of the participants in the
Program.

2. The Committee may:

(a) Create an appropriate account for administration of money and other assets resulting from
compensation deferred pursuant to the Program.

{b) With the approval of the Governor, delegate to one or more state agencies or institutions of the
Nevada System of Higher Education the responsibility for administering the Program for their respective
employees, including:




{1) Collection of deferred compensation;
(2) Transmittal of money collected to depositories within the State designated by the
Cornrnittee; and
(3) Payment of deferred compensation to participating employees.

(c) Contract with a private person, corporation, institution or other entity, directly or through a state
agency or institution of the Nevada System of Higher Education, for services necessary to the
administration of the plan, including, without fimitation:

(1) Consolidated billing;

(2} The keeping of records for each participating employee and the Program;
{3) The purchase, control and safeguarding of assets;

(4} Programs for communication with employees; and

{5) The administration and coordination of the Program.

3. The Committee and its individual members are not liable for any decision relating to investments
if the Committee has:

(a) Obtained the advice of qualified counsel on investments.

(b) Established proper objectives and policies relating to investments.

{c} Discharged its duties regarding the decision:

(1) Solely in the interest of the participants in the Program; and

(2) with the care, skill, prudence and diligence that, under the circumstances existing at the time
of the decision, a prudent person who is familiar with similar investments would use while acting in a
similar capacity in conducting an enterprise of similar character and purpose.

(d) Selected at least one plan for the use of the participants in the Program, except that if the
Committee has selected two or more plans from which the participants in the Program may choose, the
Committee has selected the plans from separate and distinct providers.

(e) Solicited proposals from qualified providers of plans at least once every 5 years.
(Added to NRS by 1977, 894; A 1979, 797; 1985, 1122; 1991, 1759: 1993, 387; 1995, 1868; 1997, 278; 2007,

1236}

NRS 287.335 Interest and income earned on money in deferred compensation account. The
interest and income earned on the money in the deferred compensation account created pursuant to
subsection 2 of NRS 287.330 in the State General Fund, after deducting any applicable charges, must be
credited to the account.

(Added to NRS by 1999, 33)

NRS 287.340 - Deferrals of compensation: Deductions from payroll; limitation on amount
deferred.

1. Deferrals of compensation may be withheld as deductions from the payroll in accordance with
the agreement between the employer and a participating employee.

2. The amount of deferred compensation set aside by the employer to a plan under the Program
during any calendar year may not exceed the amount authorized by 26 U.S.C. § 401(a)}, 401(k), 403(b),
457 or 3121, including, without limitation, a FICA alternative plan, or any other federal law authorizing a
plan to reduce taxable compensation or other forms of compensation, as applicable.

(Added to NRS by 1977, 895; A 1979, 798; 1985, 1123 1987, 1823: 2001, 1005: 2003, 1409}

NRS 287.350 Federal requirements prerequisite for operation of plan; taxation of deferred
income by State or political subdivision.

1. No plan in the Program becomes effective and no deferral may be made until the plan meets the
requirements of 26 U.S.C. § 401(a), 401(k), 403(b}, 457 or 3121, including, without fimitation, a FICA




alternative plan, or any other federal law authorizing a plan to reduce taxable compensation or other
forms of compensation, as applicable, for eligibility.
2. Income deferred during a period in which no income tax is imposed by the State or a political

subdivision may not be taxed when paid to the employee.
(Added to NRS by 1977, 895; A 1979, 798; 1987, 1824: 2001, 1005; 2003, 1409)

NRS 287.360 Program additional to other retirement, pension and benefit systems. The
Program must be established in addition to other retirement, pension and benefit systems established
by the State or the Nevada System of Higher Education, and does not supersede, make inoperative, or
reduce benefits provided by the Public Employees’ Retirement System or by any other retirement,
pension or benefit program established by law.

(Added to NRS by 1977, 895; A 1985, 1123; 1993, 387)

NRS 287.365 Use of money withdrawn or appropriated from Program; deposit of certain
money withdrawn from Program in deferred compensation account.

1. No money may be withdrawn or appropriated from the Program, except:

{a) For payment to a participant or beneficiary of a participant pursuant to the terms of the
Program;

{b) Inthe amount required to pay the necessary expenses of administering the Program;

{c) As specifically authorized by federal faw or regulation or by a special act of the Legislature; or

{d) To compensate the member of the Committee appointed pursuant to paragraph (c) of
subsection 1 of NRS 287.325.

2. All money withdrawn from the Program pursuant to paragraphs (b) and {d) of subsection 1 must
be deposited in the State General Fund for credit to the deferred compensation account created
pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 287.330.

(Added to NRS by 1995, 1867; A 1997, 26: 1999, 33)

NRS 287.370 Use of appropriated money in administration of Program. No appropriated
money of the State may be spent in eonnection with the administration of the Program except as
compensation for employees who participated in the administration as part of their regular duties,
including without limitation:

1. Members and staff of the Committee; and

2. Employees of the state agency or the institution of the Nevada System of Higher Education
selected to administer the Program. : :

(Added to NRS by 1977




NRS 287.381 Definitions. As used in NRS 287.381 to 287.480, inclusive, unless the context
otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in NRS 287.391, 287.401 and 287.411 have the

meanings ascribed to them in those sections.
(Added to NRS by 1979, 799)

NRS 287391 “Committee” defined. “Committee” means the committee established to

administer the program.
(Added to NRS by 1979, 799)

NRS 287.401 “Deferred compensation” defined. “Deferred compensation” means income
which an employee of a political subdivision may legally set aside under the program, which may consist
of one or more plans authorized by 26 U.S.C. § 401(a), 401(k) or 457 and which income, while invested
under the program, is exempt from federal income taxes on the employee’s contributions and interest,

dividends and capital gains.
(Added to NRS by 1979, 799; A 1985, 1124; 2001, 1005)

NRS 287411 “Program” defined. “Program” means the deferred compensation program for
employees of political subdivisions authorized by NRS 287.381 to 287.480, inclusive.
(Added to NRS by 1979, 799)

NRS 287.420 Employer may agree with employee to defer compensation; investment of
withheld money.

1. A political subdivision may agree with any of its employees to defer the compensation due to
them in accordance with a program approved by the committee which may consist of one or more plans
authorized by 26 U.S.C. § 401(a) or 457. An employee may defer compensation under one or more plans
in the program.

2. The political subdivision shall withhold the amount of compensation which an employee has, by
such an agreement, directed the political subdivision to defer.

3. The political subdivision may invest the withheld money in any investment permitted by law and
approved by the committee.

4. The investments must be underwritten and offered in compliance with all applicable federal and
state laws and regulations, and may be offered only by persons who are authorized and licensed under
all applicable state and federal regulations.

(Added to NRS by 1979, 799; A 2001, 1005)

NRS 287.430 Fund for administration of money and other assets; deferred compensation and
related income, property and rights held in trust.

1. The governing body of a political subdivision may create an appropriate fund for administration
of money and other assets resulting from compensation deferred under the program.

2. All amounts of compensation deferred pursuant to the program, all property and rights
purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights must,
in accordance with 26 U.S.C. § 401(a) or 457(g), as applicable, be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of
the participantsin the program and their beneficiaries.

(Added to NRS by 1979, 799; A 1999. 161: 2001, 1005)

NRS 287.440 Governing body may appoint committee to administer program; powers of
committee.
1. The governing body of a political subdivision may appoint a committee to which it may delegate

the responsibility for administering the program for its employees, including:
(a) Collection of deferred compensation;




{(b) Transmittal of maney collected to depositories within the State; and

(c} Payment of deferred compensation to participating employees.

2. The committee may contract with a private person, corporation, institution or other entity,
directly or through an agency of the political subdivision, for services necessary to the administration of
the plan, including without limitation:

{(a) Consolidated billing;

{b) Recordkeeping for each participating employee and the program;

{c} Purchase, control and safeguarding of assets;

(d) Communication with its employees; and

{e} Administration and coordination of the program.

{Added to NRS by 1979, 799}

NRS 287.450 Deferrals of compensation: Deductions from payroll; limitation on amount
deferred.
1. Deferrals of compensation may be withheld as payroll deductions in accordance with the

agreement between the political subdivision and a participating employee.
2. The amount of deferred compensation set aside by the political subdivision to a plan under the
program during any calendar year may not exceed the amount authorized by 26 U.S.C. § 401(a) or 457,

as apptlicable.
(Added to NRS by 1979, 800; A 2001, 1005)

NRS 287.460 Federal requirements prerequisite for operation of plan; taxation of deferred
income by State or political subdivision.

1. No plan in the program becomes effective and no deferral may be made until the plan meets the
requirements of 26 U.5.C. § 401(a) or 457, as applicable, for eligibility.

2. Income deferred during a period in which no income tax is imposed by the State or a politica!
subdivision may not be taxed when paid to the employee.

(Added to NRS by 1979, 800, A 2001, 1006)

NRS 287.470 Program additional to other retirement, pension and benefit systems. The
program is in addition to other retirement, pension and benefit systems available to employees of the
political subdivision and does not supersede, make inoperative or reduce benefits provided by the Public
Employees’. Retirement System or by any other retirement, pension or benefit program established by

law. .
(Added to NRS by 1979, 800)

NRS 287.480 Use of appropriated money in administration of pregram. No appropriated
money of the political subdivision may be spent in connection with the administration of the program
except as compensation for employees who participated in the administration as part of their regular

duties.
(Added to NRS by 1979, 800}




03/30/2015 MOKR 9:29 FAX 7758470924 Sheriff Business QOffice [Aoor/o0a

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/7/15 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Vincent Malifitano (Delta) General / Liquor / Gaming License application
2. Recommended motion Approve as part of consent agenda.
3. Prepared by: Melissa Field

Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Atiorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro
A vl
e
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
f] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

| ey W |
[ DOy

Agenda Item No. 8




03/30/2015 MON 9:30 FAX 7758470924 Sheriff Business Office

STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

March 20, 2015

[dooz/so004

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the April 7, 2015 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

' LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READING:

A. VINCENT MALFITANO LIQUOR/GENERAL/GAMING LICENSE, Delta

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924




03/30/2015 MON 9:30 FAX 7758470924 Sheriff Business Office Zloo3/004a

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/7/15 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regularagenda|] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Robert & Nicole Wilkinson, Gold Hill Hotel General / Liquor License application

2. Recommended motion  Approve as part of consent agenda.

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary:
5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Coniptrolier
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Deparﬁny: Gerald Antinoro
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_—r—
Lo L

Agenda Item No. &}




03/30/2015 MON 9:30 FAX 7758470924 Sheriff Business Office idlooa/o04

STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

March 27, 2015

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the April 7, 2015 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READING:

A. ROBERT & NICOLE WILKINSON LIQUOR/GENERAL EECENSE, Gold Hill
Hotel

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: = 47 {5 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regularagenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: = None

~District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: & /e
_X%x  Department ‘;{- '

County Manager Other agency review:

Department Name: Community Development

9, Board action:
[] Approved
M Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

P —
[R—Y

Agenda Item No. \D




Storey County Community Bebelopment
Buginess .

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 « {775)847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 » buslic@storeycounty.org

Ficenging

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office March 30, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the April 7, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

STEM, LLC dba THE CANVAS CAFE — General / 110 North C Street (restaurant) vC
FLEET TEAM, INC. - General / 1425 Valley Belt Road ~ Cleveland, OH (lease equipment)
MERIDIAN SURVEYING & MAPPING, INC. - 405 Marsh Avenue ~ Reno (land surveyor)

NEXT GENERATION DRYWALL - Contractor / 925 Del Sol Street ~ Sparks (contractor)
ROC-TEK CORPORATION — Generai/ 222 East Sydney (engineering research lab) TRI
ASSOCIATED CRANE -~ Contractor / 235 London Drive (crane service) TRI
SUPERNAP RENQ, LLC — General / 1705 Peru (data ctr temp office) TRI
FLETCHLINE, INC. — Contractor / 5480 Lakeview Road ~ Springfield, TN (rack installation)

T F ROOF SVCS dba AFFORDABLE ROOFING -- Contractor / 1250 Ridgeway Ct ~ Reno

DENT B GONE - Home Business / 21760 Clemens Road (mobile service) VCH
DANIEL J. CARAVALLO dba VC BLING - HB / 130 South Q Street (internet sales) vC
SIERRA COAST ROOFING, INC. — Contractor / 6015 South Virginia St., ~ Sparks

CRSCEQEMEOORR

Inspection Required

ec: Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff's Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept.




STOREY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ OFFICE
Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street
P.O. Box 176 Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Phone (775) 847-0968 Fax (775) 847-0949
commissioners@storevcountv.org

March 30, 20135

Honorable John Ellison — Chainman

Nevada Assembly Government Affairs Committee
401 South Carson Street, Room 4115

Carson City, NV 89701-4747

Re: AB 427 “Comstock Mine Bill”

Dear Chairman Ellison;

We reviewed Assembly Bill 427 proposing changes to local regulation of mining. For the record, Storey County is
adamantly opposed to this bill. AB 427 states that a county or city shall not adopt aniy “ordinance, covenant, condition, or
contract” that “unreasonably restricts or has the effect of prohibiting or unreasonably restricting the owner of a patented
mining claim or [unpatented] claim™.

Storey County demonstrates through its actions strong support for responsible mining. However, the county opposes AB
427 because it lacks definition of what is “unreasonable” and because it is dominated by subjective tanguage that would
make it impossible for a county or city to develop and administer reasonable mining regulations with legal confidence.

Because Storey County relies heavily on the $2 million of revenue it receives anmally from tourism and mining in
Virginia City and Gold Hill, it endeavored to create regulations that promole all industries, including mining, while
preserving cultural resources for visitors, residents, and future penerations.

Adopted in 2012 by the Board with recommendation by the Planning Comimnission, Storey County’s mining ordinance in
its development endured 18-months of public workshops, with active engagement by mining and non-mining interests,
including attorneys, citizens of neighboring Lyon County and Silver City, and various state regulatory agencies.

The ordinance addresses mining rights and its impacts by expressly finding that “mineral and surface property rights
exist and that this [the] chapter serves to protect those rights”, and that “present and future mining. . within the Comstock
[Historic District]” also “contributes to the sense of authenticity of the historic mining area” (SCC 17.92.030).

The presence of Comstock Mining’s active Lucerne Project large-scale open-pit mine, currently operating in the center of
Gold Hill and the Virginia City National Historic Landinark under a special use permit administered under the new local
regulations, is evidence that the ordinance supports mining while meeting its other regulatory purposes.

However, subjective language in AB 427 exposes these balanced regulations and similar controls in jurisdictions across
Nevada to frivolous legal interpretation as “unreasonably” restrictive, and may result in unnecessary and costly litigation
between interested partics on both sides of the mining issue. Moreover, mining and other property rights already clearly
exist and are protected by federal and state law.

For these reasons, Storey County strongly opposes AB 427 and is greatly appreciative of anything you can do to prevent
this bill from proceeding further. Please do not hesitate to contact us anytime with questions or to requests assistance.

Respectfully submitted,

Pat Whitten
Storey County Manager

Cc: Honorable Senator James Settelmeyer
Honorable Assemblyman Jim Wheeler
Storey County Board of Commissioners
Walker & Associates
Greg “Bum” Hess
Lyon County Manager Jeff Page

'Agefda Hem : |3




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ x] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Review and possible approval of policy regarding refund of building permit fees

2. Recommended motion: Motion to approve policy allowing refund of building permit fees

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: (775) 847-0964

4. Staff summary:

Under 1.B.C. §108.6 the Building Official has the authority to establish a policy for making
refunds of building permit fees. The proposed policy implements that authority.

5. Supporting materials:

LB.C. (2012) §109.6 Proposed Policy

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

Keith Loomis, Deputy District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Storey County Water and Sewer System

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action: -
[ Approved f
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No. |4




e et et s s,

Deferral of any submitta! items shall have the prior
approval of the building official. The registered design
professional in responsible charge shall list the
deferred submittals on the construction documents for
review by the building official.

Documents for deferred submittal items shall be
submitted to the registered design professional in
responsible charge who shall review them and forward
them to the building official with a notation indicating
that the deferred submittal documents have been
reviewed and found to be in general conformance to the
design of the building. The deferred submittal items
shall not be installed until the deferred submittal docu-
ments have been approved by the building official.

{A] 107.4 Amended construction documents. Work shall
be installed in accordance with the approved construction
documents, and any changes made during construction that
are not in compliance with the approved construction docu-
ments shall be resubmitted for approval as an amended set of
construction documents.

[A] 107.5 Retention of construction documents. One set of
approved construction documents shall be retained by the
building official for a period of not less than 180 days from
date of completion of the permitted work, or as required by
state or local laws.

SECTION 108
TEMPORARY STRUCTURES AND USES

[A] 108.1 General. The building official is authorized to
issue a permit for temporary structures and temporary uses.
Such permits shall be limited as to time of service, but shall
not be permitted f?r more than 180 days. The building official
is authorized to grant extensions for demonstrated cause.

[A] 108.2 Conformance. Temporary structures and uses
shali conform to the structural strength, fire safety, means of
egress, accessibility, light, ventilation and sanitary require-
ments of this code as necessary to ensure public health, safety
and general welfare,

[A] 108.3 Temporary power. The building official is autho-
rized to give permission to temporarily supply and use power
in part of an electric installation before such instaliation has
been fully completed and the final certificate of completion
has been issued. The part covered by the temporary certificate
shall comply with the requirements specified for temporary
lighting, heat or power in NFPA 70.

[A] 108.4 Termination of approval. The building official is
authorized to terminate such permit for a temporary structure
or use and to order the temporary structure or use to be dis-
continued.

SECTION 109
FEES

[A] 109.1 Payment of fees. A permit shall not be valid until
the fees prescribed by law have been paid, nor shall an
amendment to a permit be released until the additional fee, if
any, has been paid.

2012 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE®

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

{A] 109.2 Schedule of permit fees. On buildings, structures,
electrical, gas, mechanical, and plumbing systems or altera-
tions requiring a permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as
required, in accordance with the scheduie as established by
the applicable governing authority.

[A} 109.3 Building permit valuations. The applicant for a
permit shall provide an estimated permit value at time of
application. Permit valuations shall include total value of
work, including materials and labor, for which the permit is
being issued, such as electrical, gas, mechanical, plumbing
equipment and permanent systems. If, in the opinion of the
building official, the valuation is underestimated on the appli-
cation, the permir shall be denied, unless the applicant can
show detailed estimates to meet the approval of the building
official. Final building permit valuation shall be set by the
building official.

[A] 109.4 Work commencing before permit issuance, Any
person who commences any work on a building, structure,
electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing system before obtain-
ing the necessary permits shall be subject to a fee established
by the building official that shall be in addition to the required
permit fees,

[A] 109.5 Related fees, The payment of the fee for the con-
struction, alreration, removal or demolition for work done in
connection to or concurrently with the work authorized by a
building permit shatl not relieve the applicant or holder of the
permit from the payment of other fees that are prescribed by
law.

[A} 109.6 Refunds. The building official is authorized to
establish a refund policy.

SECTION 110
INSPECTIONS

[A] 110.1 General. Construction or work for which a permit
is required shall be subject to inspection by the building offi-
cial and such construction or workikhall remain accessible
and exposed for inspection purposes until approved.
Approval as a result of an inspection shall not be construed to
be an approval of a violation of the provisions of this code or
of other ordinances of the jurisdiction. Inspections presuming
to give authority to violate or cancel the provisions of this
code or of other ordinances of the jurisdiction shall not be
valid. It shall be the duty of the permit applicant to cause the
work to remain accessible and exposed for inspection pur-
poses. Neither the building official nor the jurisdiction shall
be liable for expense entailed in the removal or replacement
of any material required to allow inspection.

[A] 110.2 Preliminary inspection. Before issuing a permit,
the building official is authorized to examine or cause to be
examined buildings, structures and sites for which an applica-
tion has been filed.

[A] 110.3 Required inspections. The building official, upon
notification, shail make the inspections set forth in Sections
110.3.1 through 110.3.10.

{A] 110.3.1 Footing and foundation inspection. Fooling
and foundation inspections shall be made after excavations
for footings are complete and any required reinforcing

7




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER:

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Refund of Building Fees

I PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is to set forth the circumstances where a refund
of building permit fees may be made as authorized by the 2012 International Building
Code §109.6.

II. POLICY:  If an applicant for or recipient of a building permit is dissatisfied with the
building permit fees assessed against it and has paid the fees under protest, establishes to
the satisfaction of the Building Official, the Comptroller and the County Manager that
there is an error in the way the building permit fees were calculated, the Building
Official is authorized to refund any fees that were paid in error

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The Building Official will review this policy every
five years or sooner as Necessary.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ x] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Selection of David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD as Storey County as auditor for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2015.

2. Recommended motion
Per NRS 354.624 the Storey County Commissioners due hereby select David Pringle,
CPA, LTD as the auditor for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary:
The Current Auditor David Pringle CPA, LTD has done an excellent job of providing audit
compliance, accounting and auditing advice and financial statement presentation to Storey
County. Their work is professionally done and their rate is more than reasonable. In
addition, any questions or meetings that may be needed are accomplished at no additional
charge.

S. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: __ x__ Comptrolier
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

| Sy —

Agenda Item No. [&




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 7,2015 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve first reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding section
3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements of
permitting fees to participants in a qualified project inn Economic Diversification District No. 1 and
providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to introduce for the first reading Ordinance 15-263.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4, Staff summary:

S.B. 1, 28™ Special Sess. (Nev. 2014) allows Storey County to create an economic
diversification district and pledge an amount equal to the proceeds of all the sales and use taxes as
reimbursement payments for the costs incurred by the lead participant. The Board has passed
Ordinance 14-260 creating the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1. Ordinance
14-260 is not effective until Storey County enters an agreement with one or more owners of property
in the district to defray in whole or in part the cost of local government services. Negotiations on the
government services agreement arc ongoing,

Ongoing discussions on this ordinance have resulted in changes so staff is asking that the
board reintroduce the ordinance. The changes are shown in blue italics.

(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-263
6. Fiscal impact: None
7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: .
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9, Board action:
[] Approved [
[1 Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ =]

Agenda Item No. ||




4. Staff summary continued:

S. B. 1, section 18, authorizes the governing body of a county to grant to one or more of the
participants in a qualified project an abatement of all or any percentage of the amount of certain
permitting fees and licensing fees imposed by the county if the board provides by ordinance for a
pilot project for the abatement of the fees.

The board may grant this abatement of certain fees for the purpose of encouraging local
economic development. After discussions, Tesla and county staff have agreed that the partial
abatements contained in Ordinance No. 15-263 will encourage local development. This partial
abatement is for ten years and covers the building official and fire district permitting, plan reviews,
and inspections for the Tesla factory project.




Ordinance No. 15-263

Summary

An ordinance providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements of permitting or
licensing fees that the county is authorized to impose or charge pursuant to chapter 244 of NRS
to participants in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District.

Title

An ordinance adding section 3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for
a pilot project for granting partial abatements of permitting or /icensing fees to
participants in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District and providing for
other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION I:

3.50.200 Title.
This ordinance is known as the “Permitting Fee Abatement Ordinance”.

3.50.210 Determinations of the board.

The board has determined that it intends to encourage local economic development by
granting to any participant in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District an
abatement of all or any percentage of the amount of any permitting fee or licensing fee which the
county is authorized to impose or charge pursuant to chapter 244 of NRS.

3.50.220 Definitions.
The definitions contained in the Economic Diversification Act and the Economic
Diverstfication District are incorporated into and are adopted for use in this chapter.

3.50.230 Creation of the pilot project.

The board, for the purposes of encouraging local economic development, creates this pilot
project for granting partial abatements of permits, plan reviews, and inspection fees. The board
may determine, to the best of its ability, the amount of the abatement based on the anticipated
local economic development that the qualified project would bring to the county.

3.50.240 Abatement of fees.

A, The board finds that Tesla Motors. Inc. (“Tesla™) is a participant in a qualified project
within the county’s Economic Biversity Diversification District No. 1. The board has determined
to grant an abatement of permitting fees it is authorized to impose pursuant to NRS chapter 244
of NRS for a ten year period for building official and fire district permitting, plan reviews, and

Draft 3-30-2015




inspections for the factory project by fixing the following annual fees for each of the following
fiscal years ending June 30

Fiscal Year ending Annual Fee
June 30"

2015 3556268 $374,316
2016 - $587%4419 5606477
2017 - $620315 $640.440
2018 - $655:053 5676,.305
2019 - $230579 3238059
2020 - $24349% $251,391
2021 - $257426 8265,468
2022 - $2HS25 $280.335
2023 - $286.731 $296.033
2024 - $302:788 $312611

B. These fees are bewved-omnthe-conns to be assessed on a fiscal year beginning on July 1,
2014,

C. The fees must be paid in advance on a quarterly basis (July I, October 1, January 1, and
April 1. '

D. These fee payments do not include payments by Tesla for additional plan reviews and
inspections that reguire gre performed by outside contractors.

S ddition e-o£30%, o

@ 2.1 2V 03 u
1 v wygRw . w il

statt: During any vear of the term of this abatement, the county may increase the annual fee
charged to Tesla during such year, with Tesla’s prior consent and approval, upon a showing by
the county to Tesla that the permitting, plan review and inspection activities required by Tesla
during such year have placed an extraordinary burden on county personnel,

F._Any abatement of fees by the County does rnot limit in any manner the discretion of the
County in the permitting approval process, and does nof relieve the participant from the
obligation to obtain all necessary permits, entitlements and approvals for the construction of any

Project.

3.50:260 Annual report,

The board, if it grants an abatement pursuant to this chapter, must submit an annual report to
the governor and to the director of the Legislative Counsel Bureau for transmittal to the
legislature that includes for the immediately preceding fiscal year:

A. The number of qualified projects located within the jurisdiction of the board for which a
cerfificate of eligibility for transferable tax credits was approved.

B. The number and doliar amounts of the abatements granted by the board.

Draft 3-30-2015




C. The number of persons within the jurisdiction of the board that were employed by each
participant in a qualified project and the amount of wages paid those persons.

Proposed on , 2015,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2015.

Vote: Ayes Commissioners

Nays Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on

Draft 3-30-2015 3




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ | Public hearing required [x ]

1. Title: TRI Infrastructure Voucher

2. Recommended motion
I hereby approve the Tahoe Regional Indusirial Park infrastructure voucher FYE 2012-
2013 in the amount of §9,893.50.00 which is payable per the Developer Agreement.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006
4. Staff summary:

Periodically, infrastructure costs provided by the Tahoe Regional Industrial Park are
incurred by our public/private partner, These costs are pre-approved by the Community
Development department as infrastructure costs and reviewed by the ComptroHer as per the
Developer Agreement.

5. Supporting materials: Payment request Invoices

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Yes Fund: __x__ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
3. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

0. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ N -

Agenda Item No. |77




TRI Voucher Request Summary

Time Period 6/30/2012 to 6/30/2013

USA Interchange

Total Dollars Expended{ Non-Reimbursable Voucher Request
2,725.00 $0.00 $2,725.00
USA Parkway South
Total Dollars Expended{ Non-Reimbursable Voucher Request
$7,168.50 $0.00 $7,168.50
$9,893.50 $0.00

$9,893.50




CSCON

4141 Ramsey Circle
Carson City, NV 89706-0550

Bl To

TRY (wirers Associntion
Shery Hoklen

5455 Kietzke Lane
Reno NV 89511

D amann.

invoice
Date involce #
Ti62012 1160

¢

L Proseely Rilleel T Mo v
TR Conten Pins THA (i Bl |

Yl em e Aon, t WRRrdtraa |
Had 4o move Llet LadsS%

So We dould put i USA farkuert- J
$2 vd dge . Thig 14: 1o Mawi'toe aew \pel-Lands
P. 0 Na, Terms Project

l Nel 30

L ltem Description EstAmt | Prior Amt{ Prior 9 l Qty Rats Cur% | Total% | Amount

Hite Visit | Bunk transecty 950.00 1 950.00] 100.00% | 1a0.00% 950.00

Sile Visit | Photo points 950.00 | 250,00  Hon.00us 00| 95080

Site Visit [ Cottonwaud mesurement 825.00 ! 82500F 100.00%| 100.00% 825.00

Report 2612 Monttoring report 6,000.00 0] 600000 0.00% 0.00% {100

IRVIRN

(\Jro‘)\'

fre

a;ﬁ?{) 0 %U‘{f*

06 Ragron e ¥

Tota}

$2.725.00

Payments/Credits

Jo.an

Balance Due

(32,725.00

i

Y- Q;wjr ot WoA

Qafkwr}/




l’\‘

v

Renoe Engineering Corporation
8725 Technology Way
Suite C1
Reno, NV 8952

Invoice Date:

T92012
L
Jab No. 564 TRI CENTER
MILLENIUM ACCOMMODATCRS, INC InV01ce
CINDY GAGLIANO
PO BOX 838
POWAY CA 92074
Invoice #; Terms DueBate; | P.C.Number
564.66 Nedo f wspolz )
\""ﬁ—-_-—-/
ltem Deseription Hours/Qty | Rate Amount
010 Vineant Griftith President 0 11806 0.00
012 Johis Maedanald Senior Designer 0 70.00 0.00
GL7 Jim Bailey, Land Surveyor 0 85.00 0.00
[ 0.00 0.0 . ’j
564 Mapping & Survey Suppart 1508-02-70 3 85.00{ 7,095.00 ot
564 Sales Lxhibit Maps 1554-02-02 45 118.00 3.310.00 ’?/
: £554-02-02 Gl 70.00 4,270.00 g}"
Job Number Negded - Sierra Pacific Settlement 12 118.00 1,416.00
Caleulations SO )~ 222 1Y .
>G4 XXX'TRI CENTER TASKS ... | Job Number Needed - Union Dispute Support X051 750027 118,00 826.00
564 Walcer Rights Engincering 1520-04-08 14 118.00 1,652.00 _,
{[55FUSA Sydney Saurh 1508-02-62 USA PII 2 TT306] . 94400 j?——
e b T =R
Mot pre AWroUM ]ﬂar“} of WSA peq 4“"’4}
‘Thank you for your business, Total
Payments/Credits

Balance Due

Page 1

i3




Reno Engineering Corporation
8725 Technology Way
Suite C1
Reno. NV 89521

PO BOX 818
POWAY CA 92074

Job Nu. 564 TRI CENTER
MILLENIUM ACCOMMODATORS. INC
CINDY GAGLIANO

invoice Date:

70202

Invoice

Caleulations

{Ua'lL ]ON

Aﬁomueﬂe b“'k

of USHA

Invaice # Ferms {Jue Date: P.Q. Number
T
564,67 Nedd 8202002 2
ltem Deseription Hours/(Qty Raie Ampunt
19 Viswent Gefltith President { [18.00 0.0h
DE2 Jobn Micdenaki Senjor Designer 9 7000 (.00
B3 Shu Nomu Senior Designer [y] 70.00 0.04
N7 Jim Bailey. Land Surveyor 85.00 85.0([
e+ ot e ) 0.00 .00
64 Sabes Fahibil ags 1354-02-02 54 11800} 6.962.00
15 Sades Bxhibin Maga 13510202 &1 70.00 6,370.00
364 Mapping & Survey Supprrn 1308-02-70 81 85.00 5!835.@"‘
00T SA Sndey Souh T308-07-6T CXY Pl 3§ L1500 Oebd 0 A -
0 Water Rights Engincering 1820-14-08 I3 138.00 1,770.00
Sl XXXIRICEFNTER TASKS .. {Job Numbar Needed - Union Dispute Support 4 1 18.400) 472100
SGETRIINFIDS 0 Jab Number Needed - Sivera Pacific Scitlenent ! 118.400 1,293.00

e

Thastk yau for your bustness.

Total

$24 7#88.00

Payments/Credits

$0.00

Balance Due

yd
$2ﬂé.oo

f{-}@kb)ﬁﬁ/

U




Reno Engineering Corperation
8723 Technology Way
Suite C1
Reno, NV 893521

CINDY GAGLEANO
PO BOXN 838
POWAY CA 92074

Jub No, 564 TRICENTER
MILLENIUN ACCOMMODATORS, INC

Invaice Date;

8312012

Invoice

Nt Tre

- ﬁﬁ’rao@k %J Pﬁ%ﬂr

5 ysh ek

Invoice #: Terms Due Dage: | £.0. Number
564.68 N30 93020127
N
ltern Besceription Hours/Qty Rate Amount
1110 Yincent Ciriflith President ) F18.00 0.00
1112 John Macdonald Senior Desigher 0 F04H) .08
4915 Shu Nomura Semior Designer 1] 70.00 0.00
D17 Jim 13siles, Land Surveyor 1] 35.00 (Y .00
e e e e - R 0.00 0,00
b Migmping & Sunes Suppant 1508-02-70 9 83.00 765.00
Steb Sales Fxitidit Maps 1554-02-02 79 70.00 3.530.00
Sted Sufes Fxhibil Maps 15540202 9 118.00 578200
64 TRIOSFRIS =) Job Number Needed - Siersa Pugific Setthenent 17 | 18,0 3,006.00
_ Saufeulions— . ey
{301 8 Syeney Soml 1508-02-62 LiSA i 7 15,00 826,00,
560 Water Rights | ngincering 1520-0d4-08 1% 118.00 [.848.00

Qﬂg/’

Thank you for your business.

Page 1

Total

Payments/Credits

Balance Due

15




Reno Enginecring Corporation
80 West First Street
Subie A
Reno, NV 89301

luvoice Date:
10412012

Jab No. 364 TRI CENTER InVOiC e

MILLENIUM ACCOMMODATORS. INC
CINDY GAGELIANG

PO BOX 838

POWAY CA 0207

Invoics # Terms Dug Date?™y P.O. Number
364,70 Net 30 /0312012
==
ltem Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount
(10 Vincen Cirifish President 0 113.00 .00 /17
012 John Macdonald Senjar Designer 1] FO.00 L) LY
13 Shi Nomtua Senior Designer 0 7000 [} n/“
017 Jim Baikey. Land Surveyor 1] 35,010 0.00
e e o et e et e e e o m otm e 2o 0.40 .06 QO})
364 Warer Rights I nginvering [320-04-08 E] TE8.00 2.4824.00 7
564 Sales Fxlibit Maps 1554-02-02 64 18.00]  7.552.00 [ A
S6d Sules Fahibil Mups IS51-02-02 77 70.00 3,390.00 |
36k TRLINIFDS =) Job Number Needed - Sierea Pacitic Settlement 5 tgoo| 30000 J
- Culculations i U(D
361 1USA Sydnay Souh 1508-02-62 USA Pl 3 itgoe] _ s90.00
361 Mapaing & Survey sapporl 13G8-02-70 10.3 83.00 892.50

Mot ?rquﬁ)mw«ﬂ buf} FM‘{; o uéﬁmkw?/

Thank vou for your business. Total $T7 358 50
Payments/Credits 30@
Balance Due $17,1488.50




Rens Engincering Corporation
80 West First Street
Suite A
Reno, NV 89301

[tob Xa, 364 TRI CENTER
MILLENIUM ACCOMMODATORS, INC

CINDY GAGLIAND

PO BON 818
POWAY (A 92074

Invoice Bite:

1222012

Invoice

Invoice #: Terms | ~DueBate | P.O. Number
6471 Netdo  [Naz2aniy)/
S
[ter Beseription Hours/Qty Rate Amount

(G Viseent Giritlith Prosident i} 118.00 0.00
112 Jeshn Macdonalid Sgsior Designer } 70.00 0.00;
D3 Sha Nannur Semior Designer 0 70.00 0.00
017 Jiny Bailes. Land Surveyvor 4] $5.00 0.00
e e 0.00 000
S5 Mapping & Survey Support 0.3 §5.00 L792.350
Fv Sales Fxhibiy Maps 62 HIE.00 731660
304 Kales 1xhibit Maps 1554-02-02 164 70.001  £1,480.00
34 Sales Fhibit Maps 155-1-02-02 2 70.00 140,00
Sa0 Weaer Righls Fngincerinyg 1520-04-08 18 1E8.00 2,124.00
36 Water Rights fHngineering 15320-04-08 | T0.0G 70001y

1508-02.02 USA P G 11800 1.062.00 )

56 USA Sydney South

Not f re-Ag

M

frooze@ et ﬂ:a.rq- o A Parkr-uﬁ‘;

Thank ¥ou for your business.

Page 1

Total

Payments/Credits

Balaace Due




~
0

Reno Engincering Corporation
30 West First Street
Suile A
Reno. NV 89501

Job Na, 564 TR CENTER

MILLENIUM ACCOMMODATORS, ANC
CINDY GAGLIANO

PO BOX 828

POWAY CA 92074

I

nvoice Dhile;

12432012

invoice

Invoice #; Terms BueDater~ | P.O. Number
564,72 Netd0 [ 2200
e
e e
iten Description Hours/Qty Raie Amaount

010 Vineert Gritiids Prosideni 0 118.00 0.06
U2 Joln Mavchrnbd Serior Pesigner 0 70.00 0.0g
1117 Him Hailes. Ltk Suprveyor 0 85,00 0.06
e o i 06.00 0.00
363 Mupping & Survey Suppert fsgmer i 83.00 935.00
560 Water Righls Bngineering 1520-04-08 B HE.00 165200
5trl Sales hxhibit Maps 1534-02-02 Gl 11800 7.198.00
50-) Saden 1xhubit Maps 1534-02.02 [{R] 70.00 G,.550.60
So-HUSA Sudnes South 1508-02-62 U'SA PIIT 35 TEA0 ] 649.00)

s Fr{~A€%prw&/{ Bt part ot

Yo |fark)

)

’e

Thunk vou for your business,

Page 1

Taotal

Payments/Credits

Balance Due

S

<\

o0




Reno Engincering Corporation
B0 West First Street

Suie A
Reno. NV 89501 -
favoice Dafe:
142013
Job No, 564 TRECENTER In VOice
. INTE
MILLENIUM ACCOMMODATORS, INC
CINDY GAGLEIANG
PO BOX 838
POWAY CA 92074
involce #: Terms fie Dates F,0. Number
564.73 Netso /] w013,
"—-—ﬂ""‘"‘"
ltem Beseription Tlowrs/Qty Rate Anount
(1D Vincem Grillith President 0 1£8,00 0,00
042 Tk Maedonakd Senior Desipner Q 70.00 0.00
017 Jim Baoiley. Land Surveyor 0 85,00 0.00
56 Water Rights Enginering [520-04-08 e 7.25 11800 855.50
364 Sales Exbibit Mups 1534-02-02 51.5 118.00 6,077.00
304 Sales Exhibi Maps 155400202 an 70,00 2.314.00 o
C3BTURA Syt Soath SLE308-02-62 USA pIiL . 12.25 ils.00] ¢ 143,50
Sl Kapping & Sy Spmorl 1508-02-70 - 7z 83,00 870,00
564 Development Agrecment 1510-02.00 13.5 85.00 1,t47.50

{\J/ﬁ/ Pre - G{

‘)POOZ«Q Pt 19M+

- fhe loo et

Thank you for your business!

'Page 1

Total

Payments/Credits

Balance Due

2




Reno Engineering Corporation
80 West First Strect
Suite A
Rene, NV 89501

CINDY GAGLIANO
PO BOX §38
POWAY CA 92074

Job No. 364 TRI CENTER
MILLENIUM ACCOMMODATORS, INC

Invoice Dute:

22013

Invoice

Invoice #:

Terms ¢ Dnie?

P.Q. Numher

£

{U0+ ‘?F{’ ,ﬂr!pffwa Bt fact o—C USSR Paqk@,ﬂ?,

Thank you For your business,

Page 1

Total

Payments/Credity

Balance Due

S64.71 Net1o  f ¥62013 )
— M
N
ltam Deseription Hours/Qty Rufe Amount 1‘3
010 Vineent ¢iefttith rosident 0 T18.00 0.00
012 Jolio Macdonihd Senior Designer ] 70.00 0.00 @Ef)
17 Jim Bailey. Lend Surveyor n 83.00 0,00 ff/
36 Sales Uxhibiy Maps 1854.02.03 7 T 47 HIB.00 559600 6{‘
| 504 Sales Lxhibit Maps 1854-02.02 _ 55 70.00 '__;,ﬁmj/
5064 LISA Sydiey Sowh %“WUSA Py A —Mﬁ_m /. 708.00
N6 Walter Righis Fngiegting T5I00408 i s TY 1T8.00]"2,38070
36k Mapping & Swrvey Suppor 1508-02-70 7 85,00 595.00

o4




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 7, 2015 Estimate of time required: 4-6 hours

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X'] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of the 2015-2016 Tentative Budget
2. Recommended motion Approve
3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain, Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: County Manager & Comptroller Telephone:

4. Staff summary: Annual approval of all Funds and Departments Budget Requests
3. Supporting materials: Budget Package — Requested Revenue and Expense Reports

6. Fiscal impact: yes

Funds Available: Fund: ALL Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
(1] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

(e | S—]

Agenda Item No \8—- Z(O




2015 — 2016

BUDGET




GENERAL FUND
REVENUE/EXPENSE
SUMMARY




panczddy

9T10E

T

abeg

00°T6L LES'T

00°000'00€
00°'000°05¥
007000005
00°000 ‘09

00°000 '0€T
00" 005'S

00'000'9T

0026202
00°000°02
00'000'9€

0070566021

00°000'0T

007000089
00' 000 ‘59
00 059

00" 000 'SAT
90000 gL
00°005°T
00°008°%

00°000 002

00 gEE’‘EER‘E

00" TIB'8PE°T
007000tz

00°858°'%LL'T

00°699'9LT°S

DATIRIUSL
9702

00" £85°605°T

00 194 “E0E
00" 000'05%
00" BST LLy
00°5T9°'ZL
00° 000 '0ET
00 ¥ET 'S
COTETS'PT

60 Z6Z'0E

00°000°9%

00 066 “602°'T

00°000'0T

00000089
00°000'59
00°0%9
007000 ‘SLT
GO 000 'S4
cereos'T
og-oeg'z

0G 000 00T

00'000°€TT 'S

a0'Q0000L't
00°000°¢€Z

00000 'Q0E’Z

oo ooo'ooe's

‘witaid
9102

00 000 sEE’T

000007592
00000 0SSy
00°000'0F%E
49000 0s
00°000°0ST
00°000'S
007000897

0000002

oo coo ot

00°00£°089

007000052
007000 ‘59
00°00€

00" 000 09T
00°000'SL
00°000'S
00 000'S

00000 '0ET

00°995°62Z2°8

00°'%56'929°'Y
00'4%8'08

00" 880 '6LE‘T

00 LTL ZTOT'S

pPatewTIsy

S10Z

¥V ZET 'LBY

8L T¥T OST
P2 EES T PEL
0L 688°EYE
ST'S0%'ER
LEM AT AL
6¥ TLL'Z
PET 086 L

o0‘gep’atT

6T ' ¥¥E'SEL

0S'06T'ET
T2'LeT €18
T8 EPPET
00°1628'1¢
00°00€
0E"TE0'68
00°009'0%
007054
00°0SE'T
00°086'8T
00" FLS'TE

£9 LTS 'TES ¥

01-2z5°Ze9
T TIB'TY
T9'808'TT
19°'SLB'CE

L8 PEO'ST
EE°SLE'TT

2T 286 'L9T
£8°T6F ' PT
TL°2L5'5680°%
EC €99 LTE'T

a3®a oL
s10zZ

00000 9TE’T

0¢°o00’59¢2
0C° 000’05k
00°000'0FE
00-000‘0S

00°000'0ST
00" 000’s

00000791

00°000°0T

00'C00'0E

0C C0E‘069

00'000 05T
00°'000'S%
00°00¢
00°000°09T
00°000°GL
00°000°g
00°000°S

00000 0L

00°89%'6zZ '8

00" %56°929'T
00" L¥8 02

00 8F0'6LF'T

00" LTL Z0T’S

Jabpng
S10%

¥T/ZT 130 HINOW HHL ¥OJ IJOJEY FNNAAZY
ONILNOGODY ILADANE DITdNd

ALNNOD ZFYOLS

LT STS'8ZF‘T

BL 0BB'6LT
06 995 05%
0¥ TSE'E0F
¥r BOL'ES
9L' 089 LET
0T €SS
vy LOT'OT

SPrZZE'E

00°Z6Z ‘0T

00" Z0%'LE

16 L¥5'940°T

00°Z5E°4

9EFLE "TI8S
PY ETIS 9L
99 ' TLE'6S

£%°0T9 74T

05°T99°€q
25599 €6

80 28T 068 'L

CE'80E STL’T
¥9'¥68 702

82 602 %1
95° 00292
6L'960 752
LE'BS6'0E
£9°LaT'gCL
£5°LP5 885
TLvTIR'ese’'e
LT 86E'E86'T

Ten3oy
rioe

LL PEBLEZE'T

TP ETS 19T
L1 863 '65F
62'589°LTE
TS ZHO’SS
€2 ¥OL'SET
SE'TET’S
8T 89T LT

€L769L'g
POETE’E

00°6L9'02
T8 S0Z'E
F0 T9T 'SE

€T ELL'679

00" 00%'¥
00" SS¥ L
£9'T6E 6T
€9 ZEB'SS
96 "BZT 29

T%'9Z% 96T
00 6ET'TL
00°S6€'T
00°06T
SL°L9T'SE
SLT9EE'0L

08 995'€96 'L

£P'SBZLEL’T
SC°960°'1Z

15" ¥LE 65
S6°TTL 22

Ce YLy 9F

TT T66°TLY
66'2R9 7595
20'0EY LLI‘E
0% DET V9T e

TenIoy
€102

SEOIAMES 404 STOUYHED PE

ANNAARY TYHEQEd / HLYIS
F¥xsxs TELOL £t

X¥l ZDITIATEG HAA HOIOW Q00-60SEE
LEIDE  000-LOSEE

Ld3D DISYE 000-S0SEF
FLYLS-NOYEAYA OT°T LIdd Q00-SOSEE
HLYLS - FSNEDIT ONIWYD 000-%0S€E
XVI ¥On0IT Ce0-£0S€E

VL JILLARYDID 000-T0sEE
LNEWIDYNYW NSTH  LLT-00%EE

810 &ST-00FERC

LNYHD dO0LS EST-00FEE

AdVAATT G¥T-00BEE

INIWIDYNYIA ADNIDHAWT Z¥T-00%€E
SINYYD TYHEAEd 000-00%E€EE

SXL Z0 NEIT NT SIWAd 034 00C-0OEEE

ANNAAFY TVHEAIA / FIVIS €
SLTWHAG /SASNIDIT
xxxxxx "THIOL [y

TYTALSNONI ONEd HOHWL 005-50%Z¢
AYA/ESN DFAS L4Ed HATE  000-90ZZE
TYTELSNANT ONEY FOHWL 00S-S0ZZ€
SLIW¥Ed 9OTE 000-S0TTE

AYL ISTHONYHEI 000-BOTZE
SASNIDIT LHEVEYD 000-90TE€

534 SAILITILO Q00-S0TEE
SASNIOIT NOILALILEOHd 0C00-POTZE
02 - SESNIDIT ONIWYD CO00-£0TEE
SESNADIT YONDIT 000-Z0TZE
TYIULSNANT ONSH FOHWL 00S-TOTZE
SHSNADTT ASIONYHOMAW 000-TOTZE
SIIWNAd/SESNIDIT (4

WHHOTVYA a¥
xxx4vx TNICL 1€

JESSESSY ATTYALNID-EI¥IS 000~80TTE
SEOTA¥ES HINOA 000-LOTTE
TYTELSNANT ONEd ZOHYL 00S-S0TTIC
S¥WAA ¥OI¥d INENONITEZA (00-S0TIE
INTHULSNAONI ONZY d0HYL (0S-€0TTE
¥YIX LSY¥I4 INANONITIO Q0C-€E0TIE
INIULSNAONTI ONFY JOHYL (0S-TOTTIE
HOSSEESY-WIACIVA O¥ 000-TOTTE
TYIYLSNANTI ONJ¥E FIOHWL 005-Q0TTE
HYEL LNIHHEND WAIQTYA OF 000-00TTE
GGC-TO0TE

WANOTYA O 1€

uct3dTIosaq
AUOCODY § JUNoDoY
TYHENED T00 aMna

ST/0E/€0 = @3RQ UM
15008783 0N 3Iodau



paaoaddy

210z

4

abeg

0pooo's

00°000'0F
007000 ‘0S

00°005°69

00°000'9
00'000'09
£0° 00§

00°000°'T
90°000°%

00°005°908

00 000 '89%
00’000 ’'%

G0 000 "PT
00° 00§

00°000 ‘0%

00" 000°‘S
00°000'9T

00000 '0Z

00°000'e
00°'000 06T
G0 000 °S¢
oo oo0'e

BATIBIUSL
9102

Q0°000°S

00°000'0%
00700008

00 005’6

Q0° 0009
Q0 o0s

00°000°'T
00" 000’2

00 o0s'9zL

0G-oc0’8SYF
00°000°%

00°000°%T
007008

cotooo'ow

00°000°Ss
00000791

40°000°02

Go o009
00" 000 01T

CC° 000 'SE
00700078

‘WITaId
910%

007000

00°000'TE
007000 °0¢€

00° 00584

00°000°9
007000704
00 pos

00°000°T
00°000'T

00005 'Z89

00" 000 S9¢E
00°000°%
00'000°2T
Q07008

Q0°000°T
007000 0%
CC 000 'T
007 000"T
00 Go0 L
00°000°¢€T

G0‘000°TE

0070009
00 000 ‘S9T

0c-oeo ot
0C° 000’9

PIJEUTIER
STOE

CTTOLY

L& PED

86" 70T

6L 68T LT
¥LTLLE'ET

00°09%'TE

oo ovL'e
0C°S¥6'9E
00582
00 ge9
00" 259

687996 '48¢

FLIGETOSE
LSTBFR’T

€6°40L°8
007001
LETLTL'T
00"S6T

T 80002
L¥ 655

BB Z9T'¥
0S S¥L 0T

Te'es0’ZT
00’00y

00" 00F '€
T8 %T0‘2S
00 G565 'T
BT 0E2'9T
TP BE0'¥

I3eq oL
STOE

007000'S

007000 °T§
00‘000’'0€E

00°005°8L

06°000'9
0000004
G0 00g

007000°T
00 000'tT

00°005°268

00000 ‘59¢E
0co00’E

00°000°2T
00° 008

007000 T
007000 ‘C¥
00°000°T
00" 000'T
000004
GO 000°ET

00°000°1€

00°000°9
0070007591

00 000’ 0E
00°000'9

sebpng
stoz

PT/ZT 40 HINOW BHL 0L Li04HN FONIATY
SNIINOQIIY 1ESand JITdang
ALNOGD AEHOLS

SSTLTE'T
00°528
$5'0%9'1E

007 00T
92 LEE

28°81
66°00¥‘0E
55'.L90°2%

IT'6L8'89

00'S¥6'S

0G'05¥
00 ¥0€E'T
T1°08T'T

987 0L6'20L

78 LEE'0BE
9L'669'e

0¥ S99°5T
00°008
68 LS T

SLTE9Z'T
00" 079

05 0ES'E
00" 0¥L'PT

DE LBE ¥T
SETTT9

00'0%s°T

00'080's
BZ 0TL'96T
00°80F'Z
€57 LOL 8T
9@ 98L'Y

Ten)DY
¥10¢

B¥ 8LE

087042 70T
PROLLE'T

0070502

SLTSTP'IE
T9°69L79€E

SL'0TS'E2

SZT°906°'6

00" PE9’L

[ofsly-4: 72
00" 06L"T
0S°86£°2

6T €9F LOL

00°696'2ZL¢
EETET '€

00" LO¥'¥T
00'00T

ey LLBE

G0 SET'T

05'2TE €L

00" E04°T
00" 0Z€
09°LI8'6
00'TL8'ST

?9 0S¥ 'S8
00 Pa0°E
06°508°Z

007 0%% "¢
L2°6TZ'98T
00°089E'T
ESTZ8T'TE
¥ETTT8’s

Tenjoy
€102

INEHAYZEIAD

INAWEDYNYW STENI vagn
¥HHLO - DSIW

02 HIHON #HINID HOINES
AN(ld TYHINY QIEONT
HYYDEAM 0S50S

H1A¥d SNOTIMNOO/EILINOD
SONIQTINA ALNOOD - SINZY
ONIZVHEE HOTAYL
SELLTYAQH - SINZH
SONINYYI LSZTHIINT
ANRIATYE SNOENYTIZISIN

SIITIU0S ANV SANIL
*¥xx¥¥ THLOL

SLIIAN0A

THEANES ALYLS ¥Y-dor
ALTTIIONS 1¥0CD FDILISNC
SENIZ THNCD IV

ENId LOIHISIA

SINWSSY /SENIZ ITINIAND
TOIE/DISNTEOL/ TYNY WIHD
SLIEI¥0d ONY SHENTA

SHIIANIS d04 SIOUVHED
*xxx¥xxx TELOL

SHEL FOYNNOL INCAWI
SNOISSHINOD - T0CE WIMS
SHOSSET T0Cd WIMS
OHLINIY/SESSYd T00d HIMS
484 SEILTTIOVE ¥¥vd
SHAS INTWHSINEYD JATUEHS
TTOYINOD DOQ

5384 5. dTEAKS

SEEd TIVC
YAONIAFA " ENd -10 FOIISOC
SHES ANAC 1D ISINISIA
SEEL 1¥NCD EDIISOC

SEEL IANCD IOIHISTd

AMHS WHWOD EWIZY IOYHINOD
HWIZY LOYHINOD-ONITIIE
sTII STH

SINZAE TYIDEIS

AL HNITII FIYAIANYD
HIHIO - Iia09 'TNED

SA%4 143d ONIAIING
HOISSIWWOD/STdd HOSSIASSY
IYTELSNANT ONIH HOHYL
SHEd ¥IQIODEH

5334 WHATD

noradrIageq

000-5059¢
¥ST-0099E
Qo0-00S9¢E
000-60%9E
0Co-80FOE
SLT-00%9¢E
000-00%eE
J00-£0ESE
000-TOZ9E
000-00z9F
000-00T9E

13

g€

aQo0-0025¢
00G-FTTSE
000-TTTISE
000-60TS¢
000-LOTSE
000-E0TSE
000-1T015¢

SE

143

000-2Z08%E
000-609%C
000-808¥E
000-209%E
GOO-TOI%E
000-60E¥E
000-v0EPE
QCO-Z0EPRE
000-TOCPE
000-s¥zZrE
000-8TZ%E
000-%#0Z¥E
000-00Z%€E
000-0ZT¥E
000-6TT%E
000-LTIT¥E
000-ETTHE
GOC-0TTPE
000-80T%¢
006-20T¥E
000-¥0TFE
00§-Z0Tve
000-20T¥E
{00-TOoT%E
000-000%¢

JUOQDOY # JUNOD0Y

TYEEINED

ST/DE/EQ
L300824dd

00 aNndg

s32g unyg

tON 3I0day



peao1ddy

aTozg

abea

00°0BO‘ZHS‘ET 00°998 " ¥L0'TT 00998 FLO'TY

DO ETS'ELL'ET €0°'805°TEL’S

c0"000'S8 00°000°S6 00°co0C ‘88 B6°9LL°20F 00°000'89

06 0%%"LET

t6° 969

0grooo'e 00598
S8 S6T'LE
TLUBLE L
LT TEE’8

00 000°T

angyejual ‘WTTaZd pAjeWTISA 23eq oL J=bpng
8102 9108 sT0¢ 5108 sT0E

FT/2T 40 HINOW EHL ¥Od LHOdEN ANNIATH
DNTINQODDY 132and JITdnd
ALNNGD AZHOLS

SC TZO'OET'IT

6% 8L9'C1T

6P 8L 'ZTT

£% €76 ‘60

TS ¥ST'T
00°00T

SZ2°999
90°05T'S

09°T00 ‘4

€LT0LOOE
0% ' S6¥'8T
20'LEE'ES

Ten)oy
¥ice

TH'BLT'PSE‘OT

00'16€ ‘52

00 162

00700052

8L BLL'LET

96°£TS L

00°6T

05" SLE
[A: -

06" PES

S9°ETPOF
08 05682
€ETLI'$E

Ten3oy
£102

THRIENTD
xxxxryrrx TYIOL  TOO QNN

HAASNYAL ONNAYILNT
Fr®¥ ey TULOL LE

INERIANT WOHS HEANVAL 0Q00-80ZLE
TYHENAD WO¥d HAASNYHEL 000-E0ZLE
HIISNYHL QHOAYEILNI  009-00ZL€
YTASNYAEL ONOIHILNY LE

ANNAATY SNCANTITIDS TR
*rxnan TYLOL %

SENEWIEY WIYID EDNWINSNL 000-00SSF
LNIWIOYNYW H4ITATIM  000-59S59E
LOOY BNTOIOH SETYS dOd8d  000-S%59¢F
HOINIS DA - LMIYW BITE L0T-0%S9€
SETYES INIWAINOd 000-0%S9E

SONNAAY QQO0-0ES8E

ASN/aNYHd /HOTHD  060-LTSIE
SILITYNAd DIT SNd 000-9TS9€

S¥X MOTHA-ALIYNAd YA a¥ 000-BTS9E
OTE0 WAT-ALTYNEd TYA QY 000-ETS9E
dYEA INA¥AND ALTYNId  000-0TSGE

uotradiaosag
JUOODDY # UNODDY
TYHENTD TO0 aNnd

ST/0E/€0 ¢ 23eq unyg
LSoogzdd soN 3xodsy



GENERAL FUND
REVENUE and EXPENDITURE

SUMMARY
3/27/2015
General Accounts 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 .
Actual ~_ Final ~_ TENTATIVE
Audit
Revenues 7 _
 Taxes (Secured + Unsecured) » 6,153,384 6,581,765 6,951,527
Centrally Asssessed 1,716,208 1,626,954 1,848,811]
Youth Services 20,805 20,847 23,000
License & Permits . 1,076,548 690,300 1,209,950
Intergovernmental ) 1,428,514 1,326,000 1,637,792
Charges for Services _ 708,916 682,500 806,500
Fines 2,934 78,500 69,500
Interest & Misc _ 42,068 30,000 95,000
Misc 167,877 38,000 0
Prior year adj
 Total Revenues ) 11,317,344 11,074,866 12,542,080
[EXPENDITURES
Clerk/Treasurer 7 ‘ ‘
Salaries/Wages 170,034 177,917 186,898
Benefits __ 89,165 88,682 104,061
Service & Supplies 74,990 69,200 87,750
|Capital Qutlay ] 9,243 1,500 1,500
i 7 343,432 337,299 380,209
District Court IS , |
Salaries/Wages 0
Benefits 0
Service & Supplies 115,967 126,100 147,845
Capital Outlay 30,359
115,967 126,100 178,204
Recorder )
Salaries/Wages 127,534 136,231 160,692
Benefits ) 65,867 67,909 75,305
Service & Supplies 57.474 55,900 56,900
Capital Outlay B 0 3,500 2,500
250,875 263,540 295,397
|Assessor _
Salaries/Wages 198,145 222,243 262,266
Benefits 91,575 101,526 141,384
Service & Supplies B 31,957 39,800 40,850
Capital Outlay L 0| |
321,677 363,569 444,500
Bldg & Grounds '
Salaries/Wages ) 122,935 127,978 132,605
Benefits 74,533 62,857 75,946
Service & Supplies “ 196,770 118,600 136,500
Capital Outlay 0 82,000 91,000
394,238 391,435 436,051

2011-16 Budget Summary 3-23




GENERAL FUND

REVENUE and EXPENDITURE

SUMMARY
General Accounts 2013-14 2014-15 '2015-16
Actual Final TENTATIVE
' :Audit
Swimming/Parks 7
Salaries/Wages 50,311 57,287 57,567
Benefits 14,659 13,036 13,627
Service & Supplies 36,894 53,900 47,800
Capital Outlay 0 8,000 45,000
| 101,864 132,223 163,894
Service Dept
Salaries/Wages 134,317 147,476 152 447
Benefits 63,217 67,172 71,346
Service & Supplies 47,182 50,550 52,550
Capital Outlay 0 7,400 3,000
244,716 272,598 279,343
Community Development ]
Salaries/Wages 253,445 288,718 341,656
Benefits N 118,130 126,414 170,470
Service & Supplies 36,585 51,150 78,100,
Capital Outlay 0 27,100, 0
B 408,160 493,382 590,226
DA 3
Salaries/Wages 232,297 288,077 290,344
Benefits 95,974 116,420 116,274
Service & Supplies 69,108 85,650 176,175
Capital Outlay 6,366 6,000 _ 0
Debt Service 5,350 4,834 4,834
409,095 500,981 587,627
JOP
Salaries/Wages 155,738 160,673 163,573
Benefits 95,698 95,825 100,325
Service & Supplies 24,060 24,300 23,800
Capital Outlay 0 0
_ . 275,496 280,798 287,698
Communications | |
Salaries/Wages 417,554 439,442 468,284
Benefits 226,964 231,053 228,219
Service & Supplies 78,387 44,325 55,800
|Capital Outlay 5,923 29,400 36,000
728,828 744,220 788,303
IT Dept ’
Salaries/Wages 190,598 204,296 209,355
Benefits 98,402 107,720 113,807
Service & Supplies 89,503 77,700 111,220
Capital Qutlay 56,095 53,400 106,050
434,598 443,116 540,432

2011-16 Budget Summary 3-23




GENERAL FUND
REVENUE and EXPENDITURE

_ SUMMARY
|General Accounts 12013-14 2014-15 2015-16 ]
|Actual Final TENTATIVE
| Audit
Comptroller : ] 7
Salaries/Wages 214,646 168,671 222,946
Benefits o 77,912 - 80,060 106,106
Service & Supplies 55,793 ~ 66,600 73,300
Capital Outlay 0 3,000, 4,000
348,351 318,331 406,352
[Emg Management
Salaries/Wages 82,356 21,678 21,678|
Benefits 39,585 18,112 18,599
Service & Supplies 12,681 14,800 18,900
Capital Outlay
ﬂ 134,622 54,590 69,177
Community Service 7
Salaries/Wages 88,394 84,493 86,729
Benefits 41,933 30,439 32,536
Service & Supplies 357,260 516,100 626,000
Capital Outlay 0 0
~ 487,587 631,032 745,265
Sheriff/Jail ;
Salaries/Wages 1,273,937 1,659,766 1,846,071
Benefits 784,220 1,031,122 1,118,554
Service & Supplies 234,463 248,300 262,500
Capital Qutlay 0 277,000 290,000
Debt Service 10,700 0,666 12,000
________ 2,303,320 3,225,854 3,529,125
Commissioners ) '1 :
Salaries/Wages 322,410 327,060 320,876
Benefits 179,201 187,859 187,871
Service & Supplies 49,852 49,300 64,100
Capital Outlay
551,463 564,219 581,847
Administrative ‘
Salaries/Wages 64,924 105,870 109,661
Benefits 39,308 184,251 184,426
Service & Supplies 683,853 714,800 793,000
CapitalOuttay i 0 11,000 14,000
) 788,085 1,015,921 1,101,087
Health & Human Services | |
Salaries/Wages 5,566 5,761
Benefits B ‘ 2,494 2,678
Service & Supplies 30,100 65,600 128,910
30,100 73,660 137,349

2011-16 Budget Summary 3-23




GENERAL FUND
REVENUE and EXPENDITURE

| SUMMARY
|General Accounts 12013-14 201415 2015-16

Actual Final TENTATIVE |

Audit
Planning
Salaries/Wages 123,703 114,562 164,017
Benefits | 38,951 36,066 56,768
Service & Supplies 23,722 27,300 76,800
Capital Outlay
186,376 177,928 297,585

Contingency (no<3% of Expense) 0 312,324 354,890
Transfer In 112,678
Transfer Out
Roads 200,000 300,000 300,000
Jail 56,000 0
TRI-Payback(incl jail) 407,000 425,000 715,000
Fire | 12,000
Prior Period adj 57,446
Notes Payable ( SO/DA) 35,500
To Capital Projects 110,820 2,500,000 0
 Total Transfer 843,266 3,260,500 1,015,000,
 Total Expense 9,702,116/  13,983,620] 13,199,561
Revenue vs Expense 1,615,228 -2,908,754 -657,481
Beginning Fund Bal . 7,545,820 19,161,048 6,252,294

9,161,048 6,252,294 5,594,813

Ending Fund Bal

2011-16 Budget Summary 3-23




MISC. PAYROLL




Executive Staif

Retirement Board ar
o 23 RETy T
\J\ﬂ\- R,:-%\
Mark R Vipcent ,5\1 ey, Tina M. Laiss
« laurman gf" S fixecutive Officer
Ul Colling = S
o € Tt g o )
Vieg € hasrman f 7 Cheryl Price
- ; ! ° Operations { Wheer
A vhrtiteez § ERS
Rusty MeAllister 5 Steve Edmundson
Amdrey Nuriega 2y 45 Investinenr { Hfiver
Davetd Olsen 737} &
Katherme Ung '(‘0',. _(_‘q.“'y
? Pigsy we ®
Memorandum
Teo: Public Employers
. , ; . . / R -*'l UL
From: Cheryl Price, Operations Officer 1 "4\
? ot
Date: November 24, 2014
Re:

At its November 19, 2014 meeting, the Retirement Board approved the June 30, 2014,
actuartal valuation report subrmitted by the System’s actuary. The report reflects the actuarially
determined contribution rates needed to fund the System on an actuarial reserve basis for both
Employer-pay (EPC) and Employee/Employer contribution plans.

Contribution rates for Riegiilar members contributing under the Employee/Emplover and
EPC plans are scheduled to increase. There will also be an increase in the rate for Volunteer Fire
members. All rate changes are effective with the first monthly retirement reporting period
beginning on or after ‘Each employer will receive a detailed letter explaining the

specific date and contribution report to begin the rates for each employee group.

tribution rates tor Regular members under the EPC plan will increase from

% and the contribution rate for Regular members under the t
Employee/Employer plan will increase from 13.25% to 14.50%. The contribution rates for
Police/Fire members under the-ER@-amdsthe-Ermiployes/Briplaver plansswillsemain the sames
The guidelines listed on the following page should be used to implement the contribution rate
changes and for the adjustment to your EPC compensation schedules. A certification form will
be sent to each public employer to document the method in which their EPC compensation
schedules are adjusted.

8.3
[
oL

Th

7455 W. Washington Avenue, Suite 150

3820 S. Eastern Avenue, Suite 220
Las Yegas, NV §9119
(702) 486-3900
Fax: (702} 678-6934

Toll Free: 1-866-473-7768

693 W. Nve Lane
Carson City. NV 89703
(775) 687-4200
Fax; (775)1687-3131

Website: www.nvpers.org

Las Vegas, NV 89128
{702) 486-3900
Fax: (702) 304-0697




November 24, 2014
Page 2

Contribution Rate Changes ~ Employee/Emplover Centribution Plan

Regular Members ~ [ncrease contribution rate to 14.50%

Contribution Rate Changes —- Emplover-Pav Contribution (EPC) Plan

Regular. Members — [ncrease contribution rate to 28.00%
Volunteer Fire Members — Increase contribution rate to 29.00%

EPC Compensation Scheduie Adjustments

[f on the effeciive date of the contribution rate increase:

I. Regular members are not receiving a pay increase, your current EPC compensation schedule
should be reduced by 1.125%. The member in this zase is paying his portion of the rate
increase by salary reduction.

2. Regular members are scheduled to receive a pay increase of 1.125%, this will offset the
increase in the contribution rate. The member in this case is paying his portion of the rate

increase in lieu of an equivalent pay increase.

Regular members are receiving a pay increase greater than 1.125%.

(a) First, raise your current EPC compensation schedule by the percentage or dollar amount

of the pay increase, and then,
(b) Reduce the schedule by 1.125%.

The mermber in this case is paying his portion of the rate increase by salary reduction.

Please direct any questions you may have regarding the changes to the rates of
contributions or adjustments to your EPC compensation schedule to Sonya Hellwinkel, Director
ot Employer & Production Services at (775) 687-4200 extension 269 or Chary! Lacombe,
Manager of Employer Services at (775) 687-4200 extension 228.







00 602'08E 00 66z LEE SE ZET’ R S WIII..;\iIIl IUH.HHHH%HMHHH
......................................................... tiree _J0-ebeiite BeTTEvEE SLTE0E‘SBE YTANSYIEL ¥HFTH  TwioL
............ 20T Idaag
0o 005’z 00°'00s'g 0070051 §°5TIp’ . ! .
T 0’9 007 008"t 80 Z%L 0T SS'EvR'T LNAWNITACD TYHENES 'Tyioq S
00700S"T 007005t 0" : . .
..................................... LS Jetoos’t o moteebT S5 6P NOLLYNISINIWGY INTWAINDE TYIOL Tee
0 / . i . : R . . P a\Juuu..w .....
00°00s't 0oToos'T 0070051 00°00S'T 80°66F'T SG EbR’T LNEWAIN0E H3L0dWOD C0D-09T%g
00" 000°T 00°000'T 16 5T0’9 00 E%E'6 AYTLOO TYLIAVS  TYLIOL 0%S
- 0o'000°T 0O 000°T T6°ST0'9 00 E%¥Z76 AYTLNG TWLIAYD 00D-010%5
INEWNEIADS TYHANIS ¥g
D0 0GL'98 00'05L°98 007 002’69 §8°LLESE 00T D0Z ‘69 S8 06% EL ZZ'OT%' 0L SHSNEdXE TYNOILVEEdO MWICL €5
00°59¢'z SINVED THNEAHd  TYLOL YES
............... 00598’z dO0 ¥ MYATD SAYD 6S1-TOvES
00°0SL'98 00°0GL 58 00°002'69 §89°LLESE 00" 00269 S8 06% ‘gL ZT' S0’ BE SHIT4ANE ¥ SHITAWAS TYIOL 0€S
00°05%'1TT 00 0SSP 1T 000066 00°S6%'Z 0orone’e 00°5QL°ET 00T 00FET SEDIAMES TTYNOISSEICYd 000-0LOES
0o0Toon’'sg 0o og0‘se 00-o000's LE"€69'9 00°000'S TSTI6L'S L6 06E'T LNENIDYNYW QH0D3¥M  000-SEOQES
00°000'0T 00°000'0T 007000'0T ooroon’or BS'698'FT SHOUYHD ANYE D00-TE0ES
00700S'T 00°00S5'T 00°005'1 00°SZS 00'00S°T 00 €T u0-s06 PNINIVIL 000-6Z0€S
00° 005’8 oo 005’8 00°00%". 12°9T5'% 00°00% "¢ Eb°62E'9 B6 BGET"T SHSVYAT ONV SINIE 000-LZ0ES
00" 000'T 00" 000'T 00'000°'T 00°seg 00'000°1 00 FEL 00" SE9 HONYNEINIYW INIWJINUE 000-9T0€S
00°000'ST 00°'000'ST oorooo’oz 82°8%8°'01 00°000°0F 6b°Sze’0T 0S5 "SEE‘ZTT HSNAdXE NOLLDHTE (Q00-STOES
00005 00°' 00§ 00009 00°€€T 00°009 00°z89 00" %09 "dI¥OSENS ¥ SENA  000-¥TLOES
00'00G°T 00°0D0S'T 00°005°T ELTRET'T 00°005'T 28 806G ToCLgE'T TAAYEL 000-ETOES
000091 00°009'T 0n'one't 9T LET'T no-oo9't 18°599°T IV LOS’T HHNOHIATIL 000-ZT0ES
000009 00 o00‘e ootoan’e 0L BTIS'E 00°000'9 ST 666 S SETTIL'Y SEIT44NS FBILI0 000-TTOES
00" ogL'Y noTooL’y 00T 0oL T 0L 96E'% 007 00L'Y L8 99T ZT EDVIS0d  000-0T0ES
SHSNAGXE TYNOLIVIHAO £ES
00°T90' %01 00" T90'%0T 00°'289 784 F3'0TL 65 00°289'gH £1°S3T 68 91 TZB £L SLTI4ANEE FAONINA IVIOL 2§
700 T90 %01 00°190°%071 00°zg9'388 %9 0TL 65 00" ze9'8e £1°59T 68 91 ' TE8'EL SLIJUNEE FONIHA 1YIOL 026§
00" %€EE DO BEE 00" 2ZzZ¢ YEBE uo-zeg E% TET ALI¥NDAS TYIDOS 000-%102%
00°0TL'T 00°0TL"Z 00-08s5'e T6°289°T 00" 085’2 9L 9Ly’ E L8 G8T'%Z HYYDOIJAW 000-€T0ZS
00°Z8E' TV 00" g8z 1% 0078TF 2E 81°660°'5T 00 8I¥ gg 1B SLB'LE 6L°E0T'0E HONVANSNI HITYAH 000-Z1076
‘oo ste’s 00 BIB'Y 00°508's 59°8Z¥'E 00°508°8 T8 EGZ ¥ ZL'1S8'E 1O¥d  000-TTQZS
00 LIE DS DUTLIE'0S 00'LSS'¥¥ 95 59%°0E 00"LSS'¥¥ ST LEE ' TY 8L°6LS'LE S4dd  000-0TQES
SLIJENEE FONINI zs
00°'868'981 00'868° 98T 00 LT6°LLT S6°LBO'OET 00" LI6'LLT €S EE0'OLT T8 ZZZ'0LT ASNESXE IOWHIC XUWIYS TYLOL 1§
~00°8B66'9871 00'B68°98T 00" LT6 LLT S6°L80'02T 00°LTE LLT ESTEEQ QLT T8 EZT'0LT ASNIIAR IDFWIA ANYTIVS TYIOL OIS
voTLLe’B 0DTLLE'S 00T BD9 L 6T TIS’S 00°'809°L E8 ZT6 9 80°TT0'9 ALIAHOMOT 000-0Z0TS
BE SPL'w -ZT°S HNILEAAC COO-TTIOTY
00 120 BLT 00 TZ0'8LT 0060E 0LT BL'0€8°60T 00°60€'0LT 28 SET €91 PLOTTZ %91 SEHOYM ¥ SHINYTIYS 000-0TOTS
HSNEAXHT ILDE¥IA ANYIVS 15
YHARSYEUL WUIATD 20T LdEd
peaczddy SATIEqULL bay 3dg pelewilsy eleq o, 1abpng Tenijoy Tenioy uotjdrIsesg
St10¢ 9102 910z sToz ST02/90 S10¢ ¥roz £I0T AUNCSDY # JUNCOIT
TYET Y T00 QNG
c ¥Od STANLIANTAXH TIIVWILET 9EIGEET I/E0 funyg
€ abeg

ALNNOD AHNOLY .Ledg :adew




March 5, 2015

Board of Commissioners
Chairman McBride
Vice-Chairman Gilman
Commissioner McGuffey

RE: 2016 Budget

Honorable Board,

Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to present the budget request for the
departments that falls under my purview as Clerk and Treasurer for Storey County. I

have broken down each department by individual accounts.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions regarding this

budget request or the functions of my office.

Sincerely,

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer
Storey County, NV

Department 102 Clerk and Treasurer

Salary and Benefits: The Clerk and Treasurer’s office has a staffing structure that
includes me and two full time deputies. The budget request for this year does allow for
-"the continued use of additional administrative assistant at 5 hours per week. This

position is being utilization in the preparation of board minutes.

Postage: The postage for this office includes bi-weekly mailing of accounts payable
checks, payroll checks, annual tax bills, quarterly delinquent notices, monthly fictitious




firm name notices, district court filings, public records request and miscellaneous
correspondence. [ am requesting $4,700 to cover the postage costs of this office; there is

no change from the prior year.

Office Supplies: This line item includes the day to day supplies required for the
department plus the expense of envelopes for the mailings mentioned under postage.
The request for the 2016 year remains the same at $6,000.

Telephone: The office has two main lines and one fax lines. There are no cell phone
costs for this department. The requested expense is for $1,600, no change from the

previous year.

Travel: There is no change in the request for travel from the previous year. The
amount being requested is to allow for the department to attend the annual County
Fiscal Officer's Association (CFOA) conference and Nevada NACO. Additionally the
cost to attend district court and election training as it becomes available is included.

The total amount requested is $1,500.

Dues and Subscriptions: The request includes the annual dues to various
organizations such as NACO, CFOA and the National Association of County Records,
Election Officials and Clerks (NACRC). No change for the 2016 budget cycle.

Election Expenses: The election cycle will begin in March of 2016 with candidate
filings. This line item includes the cost for publications, ballots, supplies, mailings,
election workers and sample ballots. The request has been decreased to $15,000. Please
note there are several bills currently being heard by the Legislature that may impact this
number. [tems being discussed include same day voter registration, electronic poll

books and changes in voter ID requirements.

Equipment Maintenance: Expenses included in the item is maintenance for the two
scanners utilized by this office. There is no change from 2015; total amount requested is

$1,000.

Rents/Leases and Purchases: Expenses from this account cover the maintenance and
lease portion of the copier shared by the second floor of the Courthouse. Additionally
this office will also be responsible for the lease payment for the postage machine. The

total amount requested is $8,500.

Training: Under this line item the office is able to attend various trainings and
conference offered by the origination we are members off. There is no change from the

prior year; total amount requested is $1,500.




Bank Charges: Fees charged by the bank are expensed from this office. Iam requesting

$10,000 to cover expenses for the 2016 cycle.

Record Management: Many of the Clerk and Treasurer’s records are stored at Offsite
Data Depot, LLC in Carson City. This company provides a courier service when
records are requested. The amount of access continues to grow as the number of public
records requests grow. Additionally the Storey County District Court was audited in
2014 regarding the handling and storage of criminal files. The results of this audit had a
major impact on the storage of our files. We are continuing to minimize the storage
space needed and ease of access to files. For the 2016 year I am requesting a records

management budget of $25,000.

Professional Services: Upgrades to the AS400 that are provided by ADS are accounted
for under professional services. Upgrades for the 2016 year include enhancements to
the following programs; secured tax collection, treasurer receipts, voter registration,
jury selection, marriage licenses and miscellaneous index/ fictitious firm name system.

The requested amount is $11,450.

Computer Equipment: This office maintains 4 computer stations with a rotating annual
update or replacement. The budget request for this year is $1,500.




DISTRICT COURT




69°5687289°1 TO PSE'S8L'T 66'SET BEEZ’T 100 :fpung @guadx3 03 asy J3N

00 %0Z'HLT D0 %02 '8LT 00'0DT'9ZT %0 Z¥L’90T 00°00T'927 6ELYE'GTT £8°5%9°L0T IEOCD IOINISIA  IYLOL
......................................................................................................... ZTT Idada
00°00E 00°'00¢€ 00'00E 0D 00E 052 SLIZINOL/SANTI IVIOL &S
00"00g 00" 00€ 00°00E 00 00E 0§'¢g SENTA TYLOL 1SS
00°00E 00°00€ 0D ooE 00°00¢€ 0s'¢g TOTE/DISNIHOL/TYNY WEHD 000-TOTSS
SLIHAYOd /SENT A 55
DOFOT'ZTT 00°P0T'2IT 00°00S'RS YT '00E°T9 00°005'85 ZE'SBO'09 E9'0EZ LS LHEWMNIEAOD TYHENES TYLIOL TS5
00 SPL'TE 00 SYL'TR 00°005'8S Y1 ODE’TLY 00005 '8S ZE'GRO'DY €8T 0ETLS WILSAS LANOD TYLOL ZPS
00'000°g 00°000°S 00'000°S 007091 € 0ot 000°s 00°026°T 00 ooz’ AANNOLLY IDITANOD CO00-LBPEFHS
: 00°'SHPL 6E 00 SHL’6E 00°000'9% S5'6TL EE 00" 00D'9% LY SLE ST 6L LIT'ES AANISAT JOITE0d  000-SF25S
‘ 00°000°0¢% 00'000°0¢€ 00°000'T 6Z°T96'€Z gpronn’t D0 SEF'TT [ RR-T A NOILNELIA FTINIAND 000-%HZES
00°00S 00toos 0Z'6S5% SBT¥ZL ¥9° 889 ONILAO4TE 1dANCD 000-€HZES
00°000'9 00" 000’9 notooo’s 00°000°% -0t 0f S¥OMNC  000-2%2%5
go-Qos 00008 00°00S 00°005 SHELAYIYEINT  000-THZEHS
00 6GE’DE 00 65E'0F A¥TIINO TVLIAYD TYIOL 0%S
00 6SE'NE 00°65E'0¢€ AVIIOO TYIIAYD  000-0TQPS
INANNYHIAOD TWIEANED ®5
00°008°59 no'o0B‘ss 00"00E'LY 06" T¥B' PP 00°0nE LY LD ZEB'SS 0S°ZT9'05 SASNIAXE TYNOLIYHALO 'T¥IOL €5
00°00B'ET 00°'00B'€T DOTO0B'ET 06°926 '€ 007 008'ET »L 60Z'9 0T 506'¢ 5394 EIYLS/AONVANSNI TYIOL ZfS
congcmHH oc”comuﬂ oo.oom“a S9LEL'T 00°'008°T BLOOTE € 0S°659°T SIVDTLSEANI EONTINIS-H¥3 000-60ZES
i no‘ogore 00000 ’e 00°000°Z gotoonn’e NOILVHONd FSYD/WOOY HN 000-80FES
: 007000 00°000°€ 00°000°¢ 00'000'€E NOIIN®LIA HINCA 000-LOZES
oo.ooo.¢ oo.ooc“q 00°000'% 007000 % ILEON FTINIAOC ALINOWWOD 000-90Z¢S
00°000'¢ 00°000°€ 00°000'€ SZ7681°2 00'000°E 00'66L'E 0575k’ z ZOIA¥ES HINOA HT0¥Yd 000-S0ZES
oo0°poon‘ezs 00'o000'2S 00°'00S5°ES 00"STE 0% 00°005'€g £L ZL9'6Y 0% LOL'9% SAITdANS 3 SADIA¥AS 1IYIOL 0ES
00000’ eEs 00°000°25 ocuooonﬂm oo.oomnpm 00'000'TS 86 8BT Lb 0% LOB'T¥ SHDIAMIS TYNCISSHAOMd 0O0-0LOES
00°'005'% 00°STE‘E no-o0s'e SEEBR‘Z 00°00G°T FONYNIINIYH INZHAINDE Q00-9TOES
SHENEAXHE TYNOIIYHIIO €5
JHAOD IDTVISIA 2TT LdEHd
pascxddy SATIBIUIL bay adg PIlBWTIISE aleq ol 32bpng Ten3oy Ten3ny uetadriogeqg
9102 9TDE 210¢g ST102 STAZ/50 ST0E v10Z £102 JUNCOOY # Junoooy
TEET 100 aNnd
. bon e ¥od SHANLIANSAXE AILYWILST S0:LORT /ED tuny

ALNOCD AZUOLS ~zad :adey




. e T AC TS
¢ ULERK-IREASUREFR

DT A -“T.E:.Dim..:!\;i.
NESSA STEPHENS

L

Department 112 District Court

Equipment Maintenance: Annual maintenance, support and upgrades of the JAVS
system used by the court and various county boards is covered out of this account.
The current system has reached the “end of life” phase and is need of an upgrade. The
budget request for 2016 includes this upgrade; total request is for $30,359.

Professional Services: The First Judicial District Court encompasses Carson City and
Storey County and is comprised of two departments. While the judges and their staff
are based in Carson City our office utilizes their services, including two law clerks and a
court administrator. Under an agreement with Carson City, Storey County contributes
$1,250 per month per department, with an annual cost of $30,000. Additionally,
professional services include access to Court View, enhancements to the AS400 District
Court program and an annual payment for juvenile probation services. The total
amount requested for the 2016 budget is $52,000.

Services and Supplies: This section of the budget includes Parole Youth Service,
Community Tuvenile Justice, Youth Detention, MH Room/Case Probation and Pre-
Sentence Investigations. These are expenses that were passed down by the State
Legislator for a variety of court related services provided by state agencies. The total

request is $13,800.

Interpreters: Interpreters are called upon as ordered by the judge. There is no change

in the request from the prior year of $500.




Jurors: This line item is used to cover the cost of jurors related to a trial. Currently we
have any have three trials scheduled for the 2016 fiscal year. The request remains the

same as last year at $6,000.

Juvenile Detention: Funds from this account are used to cover the cost of Storey
County juvenile’s placed in detention. The request has been dramatically increased
from the prior year; the request is for $30,000. Unfortunately the number of juveniles
held in custody has been on the rise. We are working on the possibility of passing on a

portion of these fees to the defendants.

Public Defender: Storey County currently utilizes the public defender’s office based in
Carson City. The county is responsible for the cost of representing defendants in court.
The budget request from the Public Defender is for $39,745.

Conflict Attorney: Conflict attorneys are called upon as ordered by the judges. There
is no change in the request from the prior year of $5,000.







:enetlc Testlng -

3/23/2015

2010 11

201112

2012/13

2013-14 2014-15

Revenues

Actual

Audlt Audlt

fActuaI

Actual

Aud!t

Fines & Fees

:_'§,472f

Total Revenues _

8,472

5820

Actual
Audit

15 201516
_ Tentative Tentatlve

& Flnal

'6303§

7100

6400

8103

603 7100 6400

Expenditures

Service & Supplies

Cap|tal Outlay

L2482

Total Expense

2452

Revenue vs Expense

2170

6020 "

6000

6200

6200

5543j

Beginning Fund Bal

Ending Fund Bal

6.659

12679

12,679

18,222

8103 50

18,222 26
26325

110

_ 200

31422

32522

32522
32722

Genetic Test




Department 180

Genetic Marker Testing: This fee is collected pursuant to NRS 176.0915 at the time of
sentencing and is passed to Washoe County who performs the tests. These tests
provide investigative leads to assist law enforcement agencies in the solution of crimes

and exoneration of the innocent,

District Court Fees/Court Security Fee: This fee is collected pursuant to NRS 19.030 at
the time of a civil action filing. The funds are to be used at the discretion of the District

Court Judges for security enhancements to the Courtroom.

N
W
El
%




00'06E‘S 00 Le0'5 00 €018 081 :pung @suadxy o3 asy 3o
g onE’s 00°'00Z"9 00 o009 00 06E 00°000'9 00°g0zZ’T ONILSHL YIAEYW DILANIS IYLOL
..................................................................................................... 08T L4AQ
00'00Z’1T 00 Q0EZ’T 00°000°'T 00 06E 00 000°T 0079021

SLIFAEOA/SHNIA  IVIOL 56

0o ooz’ 00°'002°1 00" 000'T 00°'06¢E Q0'000°1 0090E’1 SANIA TYLOL 155
0ooo0z'T 00°002°'T 00°000°T 00" 06E 00°'000"T 00°'3%0g’'T qum\UHmmeom\qﬂz< WHH3 000-10T5S
SLIFINOI/SENTIA 59
0070009 00°000°'S 00'000°S o0 000’s INTWNIFAOD TYHINED TYLOL ¥S
00°000'S 0o 000’5 co'Qno’s 00°'000°'Ss WHLSAS IMNOD TYLOL Zbkg
00'000's 00" 000‘s 20" 000°S 007000's SINAWAACIAWI WOOH LANod Q00-81Z®5
LHNIWNEEADD TYUHNTD ¥s
ONILSEL dEAYYW JTLHENED 08T 143Q
poaoxddy JATI®IUIT, bay 3dg P8lPWTIES INeq oL 1abpng Ienjoy Tenjoy uctadrioseqg
9T10¢C 2102 9102 SIne STOZ/90 5102 FIoz tT0Z JUNQDDY # Junosoy
ONILEAL HAMIYVIW JTLHANSS 08T aNN2
9T0Z 404 BHENLIGNAINH dALYWILSH GEITE!ET ST/EZ/E0 funy
T abrg ALNNOD AZ¥OLS 00cLzad :aday
00°00%’Y 00'00T "L 007 00T 2 00°E0T's

90°00%‘s 00°%55'¢ 0" £oE’s DNILSAL HANNYW DTIANZSD
*exxyvrxy TALOL 08T QNOS

00 00% ‘T 00° 00T 0070002 00 0gs 0070002 00°90L°T 00" 08T 1T SLIZIHOd ONY BanId
........................................................................................................ $rexer TYELOL SE
SLIZ4HOd  000-0025%
00°006 60 oCE 00'ooo't 00" 0bs 0070001 00" 0FL 0G 0RT'T BEd ALINNDAR LANOD 000-E1T6€
007005 00°00§ 00670001 00°06€ 00° 000" T 00996 TOIE/JISHTACE /TUNY WAHD 00G-ToTSE
SLIZIN0A aNY SENIa s¢

6070005 0070005 00°00%°5 00'%29°¢ 00°097°g 00" 465" % 00°EZE'D SEDIA¥AS MO SEOUYHD
........................................................................................................ *xxxvyd TYLOL vE
00001 00°0T 007007 00°0T 00°sT UEHLO 5484 IdD IDTHLSIA  000-S0Z%E
G0 000°S 00°000's 0670008 00" ¥ig'e 00°000°s 00'LES "% GO'8UE‘S 284 IHNOD LOTHISIA  DOC-00ZbE
\/..w SEDIAYES W04 SEONYHD v

parcaddy ATIBIUDL ‘WTTa1g PIYRWTISY 29'Q Qg Jabpng Ten3ioy Tenioy uotadrIosag
9Tog 910z 9102 STOE sT62 5T0Z Y02 £T0Z IUNGDOY 4 junoooy

ONTLISAL EINYW DILANTD 08T e(iok:S
5T/21 40 HINOW THI u04 L1048 FONTATY

ENILNNOODY LESANE OITEnd

St/"7'€p * 93eg uny
TINOOD XTE0LE

£LE 1 Ol 310day

¢ sbeg




DRUG COURT




Drug Court

Fines & Fees

Eé@ééﬁ@iﬁll@ﬁffff"_.,

__Capital Outlay

- 3/23/2015

Revenues  Audit

Tofal Revenues

Total Expense
Revenue vs Expense |

Beginning Fund Bal
Ending Fund Bal

201 1112
Actuaf

“Tag0.

,",_5'2012/13 2013 14 201415 201415
Actual Actual  Tentative YTD 3/23/15 Tentatwe
Audit

Audit & Final

059 a70 00

3015.16

4059 370 600

460,

1059 370 8523 8

7008
7464

7464 <8523 8893 EB93
8,523 8893 370, 640 _

2707

600]

600

Drug Court




Departiment 140 Drug Court: This is a pass thru account. The fees are collected at the
time of sentencing and are passed on to Carson City Alternative Sentencing per the
order of the District Court Judges.

AT AT . TP AT G TN N R T
SAT-GUOT P (TR 847002 WWW STOREYDOUNTY.ORG




-00°€TT'8 00'0LE 00'650°T 0¥1T :pung ssuadxg 03 ad¥ 18N
lllllllllllll | . 9 00" €ET'E 00'£Z5°8 0N“€2T'6 14000 HNAT TELOL
.............. mmlmwm--.1-- xmeWW------- e e ittty 01 1434
00009 00°'009 00'€2T’6 00'€zs’8 00°¢eZ1’'6 LNANNEAAOD TYMENID T¥LOL S
00°0o0% 00°009 00" EZT'6E 00"€Z5°8 00" E2T's WALEAS L¥N0D IYLOL Z¥S
) 00" 009 00009 00'EE2T ‘6 0o gzs’'g 00 €216 SHEA ITMOCD DN¥d  000-ETZHS
INIHNHIAOD TYHANED ¥s
LU0 SN¥a 09T L4dHG
vw>oﬂamﬂ aATIRIUSL bay adag pPeleWT]sy 97BQd oL 19b6pna 1enyoy TETVICY uoTidTIcERq
9T0T 910g 27102 SToE 510Z/90 ST0Z v10Z €102 AUNGSDY § Junoosy
IUNOD 20dT  0¥1T aNndg
9T0Z UOJ SHUNLIANIAXT THIYWILSH BO'6E'RT ST/EZ/C0 :uny
T abeg ALNOOD AFMOLS 00szad :adey
00°009 090008 00009 00'65S0"T
90° 003 00 LT 00" 0LE LAN0D Hua
¥ewaxrrry TYLOL 0% (NI
00009 00" 009 00" 009 a0 oeg 05003 00°0LE 0o &S0’ T SEHOIAMAS ¥0& SEDUVHED
......................................................................................................... Frxrry THILOL BE
00° 009 06609 00" 00% 00" 0LE 00009 00 0LE 606501 S3E4 LANCD DNHO  00O-§£TTEE
SEJIA¥EAS ¥0d SADUYED i2
paacxddy 2ATIBRIUA] ‘WITIIg PaieuT)sy aleg oL sebpng TENIOoY Ten3oy uotidrassag
a10g staz 9T0¢ 102 ST0Z 5TOE vI0T £I0T JUNGCODY § Junoooy
LHN0D 218G 0BT aNnJA
PL/TT 40 KEINOW MHL ¥O& L¥04Ed ENNTIAZH
= "OD0Y  LIDANE JIT7Ang 8T 1 23eq uny
vt ebeg N0 ATEOLS 16 4 toN 3zodew



RECORDER




NOIIVILSINIRAY INGWIINDH TYIOL 1S

00°00S°Z 00°005°E 00°000°€ TB6LY 00'000 ¢ ¥6"28€E JNERdTADE ¥ALOGWOD 000-09TFS
LNEHNIIACD TTUENED S

00°00%'95 00 00% 95 00'006’SS TO'S6S°LE 00006 7SS T8 199’95 0% 161 %S SESNEIXE TYNOIIWHALO TIYLOL €5
007 00%'95 00 00% ‘95 DD O0E’SS T0 S6S'LE 00 006°'SS 18" T59'959 joR I - 3 SEITANS § SEDTAMIS 'IVIOL 0€S
o 00T o00’s 0070006 00°'000°6 BO'L0G L 00°000'6 NOILYAYESHIA /NOTIYHOLSTY  000-6L05G
00°000°S 00°000°'S 00" 000°'S 00" 54 00°000'S LI LYE'S TS 69L'S SHOIAMES 'TYNCISSHA0Nd  000-0L0EG
00000t 00" 000°'T 00'000°T 0% 9 00'000"T 9b'ZLL'E B6 T&L'L LNAHADYNYW a¥o3d¥  000-SE0ES
00°005°T 00°005'T 00 000’2 BE 6BG 00°000°2 91°029°1 HIYNIAOS HAINAHOD  000-BE0ES
00°000'S 00°000'S 00°000°'S L5 E89'¢E 00°000°S 9571969 00°580'9 ONINIVEL 000-6E0€S
on'nns’e 00" 005'% 00'00S°Z 69'G65'¢€ 00°005°2 ¥b 06E'E ¥TLEE'E SHSYHA'T OGNY SINHY 000-LEDES
0070004 00°000'2L 00°000°L LE60B'E 007000 L 06°80%'S SETTSLTL WIId 000-510f5
00°002'¢ 00°00Z'€E 00°00L'T BL 65T E 00°00L"°2 CL ZES’'Z £¥ 99¢°2 AD¥H0LE WIId  000-8T0ES
00°005'Z 00'005°¢T 0e'oos’z 00°5%R 00'00s’'¢g 0L BLE'E 02 086°T DHIGIVW 000-L10€ES
oo ooo’zT 00°000°2T 00000’ El 00°SZZ'01 00°' 000781 0S5 E€ET 0T 29 62T/ 0T HONYNHLNIVH INSWAINDE  000-910€S
00°000'T 00°000'T 0oToon’T 00"65T'T 00 0001 00'6LT'T 00'0L9°T "dI¥OBANS ¥ SHNG 000-%TOES
00T 0oo0’sE 00" 000'€E gornose 96°'G50'¢ 00°00S’% TT TRE'® £0TTLE'F TIAYHL  000-£10ES
00° 004 00" 00L poooL LY LEY 00004 PS5 ¥69 BE LSS EINOHJETIL 000-TTI0FS
ooro00'z optopo‘z opronn’e 8L ¥8T'T 00°000°% BE'6SE'€E 96°'08Z'Z SEITddNS IOIAI0 000-TTIOES
00" 000" T 00°000°'T 0oTonD'T ES'TOE 00'000'T 98" LES EDYLS0d  000-0T0ES
SESNEAXE TYNOILVIIAQ £5
00" 50€°5¢, DD SOE’'SL 00°6067L9 YE'BLT'ET 00°606'L9 9T1'998°59 V6 6LETES SLIJENIE FDNI™Yd fI¥LOL TS
00'50€°5L 0D 50E'SA 00'606°L9 TEUBLTEY 00°606"L9 91°998'59 Y6 6LBES SIIJENA" ADNTHA IYIOL 0ES
00°0TO0'E DU'OT0E 00'FE6'T LS ZEZ'T 00" FE6'T §0°8BE'T ELTBGT'T ALTYNOAS TI¥ID0S  0Q0-¥T0ES
00" 0EE’ T 3o Rol 0 4 00'9.6°'T T2 SFE’T 00'9L6"T LG°088°T 8% 9TL'T AYYOIAEN 000-£10ZS
00°'995°8¢ 0033588 00°'595'82 ZSERO BT DDTS95°8E 85'1SE€° 1€ £9°0E€'¥T HONVYMNSNI HITYEH  000-2102%
D0TELT'S D0'ELT 6 00°Z06 'L 60°LE6Y T 0oTZnsL TEFIL'E 0F'Set’s LO%¥d 000-TT0ZS
00°9ET er 00°9zz'ze 00" ZES'LT YETES0°AT D0'ZES'LE T9°T85'Lz 0L ZBE'ZE S¥Ed  000-Q102%
SLIAINEY FONIHA zs

00697091 00°269703T oo'TEZ'9fT £ 668 €6 00 TEZ '9€T FBTEESLZT 9Z'91L'6TT A5NAAXE IDA¥IA AHUYIVS TIVLOL TS
00°Z69°09T 00°Z69'091 00 TEZ'SET EF 668 ES 00" TE2'9€T ¥B EES'LET 92 3TL'6TT ESNEJAE LOENIQ AQVIYS MYIOL 0TS
oo”mpoum Dc”mwohm ) ) , ALTARDNO'T 000-0Z0TS
00'ET9'5571 D0 ETI'5GT 00 TEZ'9ET £ 668°€6 DOTTER'9ET PETEESTLET 92 9T 61T SHOWVM ¥ SHINWYIYS 000-0TOTS
HENHAXA IDEUIC FA9IVS TS

HHTIO0OEY €01 LdEag

panscaddy PATIEITIL Bsy adag DRIBWTISE 2380 OF J19bpng TEN]OY TEN3OY uotidriosag

910z 910¢ 910%Z 5102 S102/90 5T0Z ¥T0CT £102 AUNODOW # JUNODDY
ey . 100 amndg

. « ¥Od STINLIANIAKT TEINVWILSH 9£:6E T ED runy

5 obeg

ALNNOD AZHUOLS wulZad :adey




00 oS’z
pasroaddy PATIRIULL

910z 910e

00" Leg’G6Z 00" 0%S €97
g0 008 00" 009
007005 oo'ong
No°00% 00 00%
gproos‘e 00’000 "%
bay 1dg pairwIlsg
910 ST10%
3begq

09°00%'SLT 00 O¥S EST
00 8% 007005

00 B%E 00 005
00°8%2 00’ 00s

T 6LY notooo’e
23®'Q O J19bpng
STOZ/90 5T0E

E6"E€L8'05T E¥ 910 ‘BEe
BT 6EF 68" 82T

BT GE¥ 6B°BZT

BT 6ED 68°8ZZ

Y6 Z8E

Ten1ny Teniyoy

¥102 £E102

ST02Z ¥O4d SEINLIANEAXR AALVWILSH
ALNQOD AHMOLS

HYHIHODEY

SNCHNYTIZDS I

SROENYITASSIW

SNOANYTIRDSIN
SNOHANYITEDS IH

LNANNYHEADD TYAANTD
uotidrioseq

IUNCOoY

TYHANTD

TELOL
E0T IdHT

T¥LOL 95

TELOL 595

000-00585
8%

TYLOL %S

# aunopoy
T00 aNnd

9E6EIET ST/EZ/E0  :uny
00Lzdad :adey



Storey County Courthouse St@rey &mnty Recorder Phone: (775) 847-0967
P.C. Box 493 Jennifer Chapman Faz: (775) Bgy-100g

Virginia City, Nv 8ga40
March 6, 2015

To:  Storey County Board of Commissioners

Frem: Jen Chapman
Storey County Recorder

Re:  Fiscal year 2016 Budget Request

BY CATEGORY - WAGES & BENEFITS

Requested Total Budget: $238,031.49

This supports the Recorder, one full time employee, one pari-time employee and one intermittent
part-time employee. This setup allows full functioning of the office.

BY CATEGORY - OPERATIONAL EXPENSES ONLY

Requested Total Budget: $59,400.00 (As compared to FY15, exactly the same)

POSTAGE, 53010: This reflects the allocations of the postage machine expenditures. The
funds expended in this area reflect the amount of recorded documents we mail back. We are
budgeting $10c0.00 this year to cover estimated expenses.

OFFICE SUPPLIES, 53011 This line item will remain flat for FYis- $2,000.00.

TELEPHONE, 53012: This upcoming fiscal year FYzos5 this line item will remain flat ar
$700.00,

TRAVEL, 53013: This line item will slightly increase for FY16 to $3000.00. This line item
remains to be an important fund for the Recorder’s office as it allows all members of the
Recorder’s office to be compklant with all federa), state and local laws relating to public records
and historical preservation. It needs to be slightly increased to reflect increasing travel costs,
however, this increase is balanced by reductions in other accounts.

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS, 53014: There will be ne increase in this section: $1,600.00.
Again, this is an important fund for the Recorder’s office as it, too, allows members of the
Recorder’s office to be aware and compliant with all federal, state and local laws relating to public
records,

EQUIPMENT MAINTEMNANCE, 53016: This is a section that is plagued by continual
increases that simply cannot be negotiated. We will keep this section flat: $12,000.00 for FY 2016,
as it was in FY 2015. This section provides funding for the maintenance warranties for the
Microfilip scanners, CANON DR-6030F Scanner, KIP 3002 Copier, TLP 2824 Barcode Printers and
licensing for the Application Extender and Redaction Scftware. As functionality of these devices




Storey County Courthouse ~ Storey County Recorder Phone: (775) 847-0967
P.OC. Box 403 Jennifer Chapman Fax: (775} 8471009

Virginia City, Nv 89440

is imperative for the operation of the Recorder’s office, with many of these devices being used to
fulfill recording requirements by NRS.

MAPPING, 53017: This will remain flat at $2500.00 for FY16 (as it was for FYi5). This fund
is critical for Mapping Services (for mining related documents). Mapping costs will remain the
same as the mining books require statutory updating - and are still in the process.

FILM STORAGE, 53018: This line item will increase slightly for FY16 ($3,200.00). This is
an accurate reflection of ever increasing storage costs. This expenditure ensures that our off-site
records are secure, environmentaily controlled, and quickly accessible to our office upon request,
Please note, however, that in order to save money where we can, we have merged the Clerk’s
office film storage to cur account - therefore saving film storage costs.

FILM, s3010: This item will remain flat for FY16. This budget allowance needs to remain
at this amount as film costs continue to remain high. Part of this expense is spent on creating &
maintaining two files for documents {one redacted and one unredacted) per NRS 239B. We have
been able to seek and receive grants in this area, to keep this item flat despite doubling image
processing this year. The more film we convert, the better the access to records.

LEASE/RENT, 53027: Decreased in FYis, this item will remain flat this year at $2,500.00
These funds will continue to address al} the costly lease and rental fees of equipment, such as
postage and copier lease/usage charges.

TRAINING, 53029: Decreased in FYis5, this item will remain flat for FY16 at $5000.00. This
is critical for the Recorder’s office as it allows members of the Recorder’s office to be compliant
with all federal, state and focal laws relating to public records, as well as providing education for
the necessary preservation and care of our historical documents, of which many are serigusly
compromised.

COMPUTER SOFTWARE, 53034: The funds requested in this account for FY16 will be
reduced to $15c0.00. This fund addresses software needs of the office and can be slightly

decreased.
RECORD MANAGEMENT, s3035: This line item will remain flat for Y16, and addresses

mincr basic office record management costs.
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, 53070: There will be no increase in this section, and the

requested amount will be $5,000.c0 for fiscal 2016, as it was for fiscal zo15. This section represents

P o fr 4 A A Tt I's t + AD LS o AnA ahait
the costs for Advanced Data Systems (ADS) Document and Receipting programs and website

maintenance currently in use for this department. This area is again critical to maintain, as
through this fund we are able to provide online viewing of redacted documents, currently from
1994 to present. Through this fund we have aiso been able to integrate recorded maps into the
database system for release through the County website, and soon we will be able to release
images of historical documents as well.

PRESERVATION/CONSERVATION, 53079: This line item will remain flat for FY16 at
$6,000.00 and will again allow for the continuing restoration of documents, books and maps
located in the vault, which deteriorate yearly. This fund allowed for restoration of the Gold Hiil




Storey County Courthouse ~ StOrey County Recorder Phone: (775) 847-0967
P.O. Box 493 Jennifer Chapman Fax: (775) 847-1009
Virginia City, Nv 8g440

map, among other things, and will continue to aid in the preservation of the County’s historical

resources.

Capital Qutlay:
Computer Equipment 54160

Capital Qutlay-Computer Equipment, 54160: This account will be utilized to address items
that should be accounted to the County’s Capital Outlay account. The funds requested in this
account for FY16 will be reduced by $500.00 to $2,500.00 for FY16, as sorae of the upcoming
expenditures will be offset by the recorder’s technology fund.

Miscellaneous:
Overall 2016 Budget: $500.00

MISCELLANEQUS, 56500: This budget item will again remain the same as the 2015
budget, to account for any small miscellaneous necessities.

Thank you for your time and consideration,

NGk Lheringe—

‘n Chapman, Storé( County Recorder




7 C

R

ESSOR




0000012
00'005
00 00E
00 00E
00°008°'T
00°000°s
00°000'T
oo‘ooo’g
00°00%
00-"00Z'L
00'0GZ'T
00°005°T
0oTons’w

00" ¥BE TFT

00°629°E
00" S¥% '35
00 ZEZ'TT
00 BLO'OL

00°99Z'z9z

C0'L86°TT

no0-gLz’'ose

paaoaddy aATI'IUDL

2102 9107

L

00'0o0’TE
00005
00°00E
00°'00€
00°008°T
00°000'S
00"00Q*T
00"000"Z
00005
00°002'T
00 0SE'T
00°008'T
00 00S'¥

00'%8E THT

00" 629'¢E

G0-Sw¥¥‘9g
00°zZET'TT
00°8LO DL

00" 082 0ST

00'LBETT

00" €E6T 8ET

bay adg

97102

abeg

00 000'1E
00'00%
00002
00" 00t
go'opa't
00" 006 '€
00°000'7T
00°'poo’e
00'o0zs
00'0SZ’T
00 05T'T
00089t
00°005'%

00°'9¢5°'10T

00 LBZ'T
0oEEE’E
00'SS8‘¥E
00°5F6 6
00°908°'Z%5
DO"EPZT'ZZT

Q0'zs0 'L

go"T61's12

pajewtysg

S102

SZ2°860°0€F

00°90¢°ST

00" %EQ ¥
LZ 25T
00" 0BE
LY 65T
00°0F9
89 t5¥
06°1T6
0008’1
00°071Z
FSTDES
¥6°588
I8 PEL T
Eg'1ZT'¢

69°316°19

06 990°s¢

13°ZgL 18

89°TOT'¥
LO'VPLS T
98°959 5%

3j3eg ol

STC0Z/50

z D0" 695 '£9¢ ¥ SEB'ETE
00008 'BE 8% "556'T¢
00°008'6% BY'S556°1¢
00°000"'1Z 00°T8L LT
00°00® 2T EST
no-ooz 005t
00'00€E 66°LE
00" 00B'T S0'S€E6
00°006'¢E 9L°TL9'¢€
0000071 TO v88
0070002 TS ELE'E
00'0ES 0001z
0070621 £6°BT9
00°052'T 95°'BTZ T
00°089'T 2L SLE
00'00S'Y ELT0FTZ
00°925'10T 06 ¥L5 16
B0"985°101 06 ¥LE5'TE
00°LBZ T £0°SET
00°€22'¢ 0Z°86B'7
00°598'%E 92'6¥9°¢¢E
00°5%6'6 05362y
0090z 'es 16'S6b 15

1 togreiEee 9E°5S0€'961

T 00" €%Z‘ZEe 9E"SO0E'96T
00°250°L TG'8S5L'S

T 00" 16T °STe SE 9%S 06T

Jjabpng I=nioy
STOT 102

2102 ¥Od SHUNLIANASXE TALYWILESH
ALNOOD AHMOLS

Z¥9¥9'y
£9°L6976
6L ZBE
6 ¥ST
008

S8 g0E’ T
LE8'LEY'E
TB 198
007 L9L°1
00802
9T %96
LY B92'T
BE ZBS'T

08 €58 '0B

¥9'660°5Y

S¥'S96 "H6T

¥0 ZZ0'68T

Tenzoy

£102

¥OSSESSY  TYLOL
$0T ladg
LNEWNNHAOD TYVHINID 1T¥IOL %
AVTILOO TVLIAYD TYILOL 0%S
AVILOC THLISYD (G00-0T0%5
INAWNIEACD TYIENTD %S
SESNHAXH TYNOILWYA4O 1TY¥LOL ES
SEITIdNS 3 SIDIAMIAS TYLOL 065
TYIYLSNANT ONI¥ HOHYL 00S-0LOES
SHOTAUEAS TYNOISSTIONd (00-0L0ES
TISEIC ¥ SYD  000-0%0€S
SWHOAINN Q00-6€0£S
HONYNALNIYW OIOY  000-0E0ES
DNINIVAL 000-5Z0ES
SESYAT NV SINHY Q00-LZOES
LATMSFTIVHSUYWN HA00H USEY Q00-TZ0ES
ONIINI¥d 000-0Z0ES
"dI¥DSENS ¥ SANA 000-BI0ES
TAAYIL 000-€T0ES
ENOHAITHL 000-2T0ES
SEI'TddNS IDIAI0 000-TTIOES
HDYLS0d  000-010€S
SHSNHAXH TYNOILYHHESD £
SLIMENTE FONI¥d IYL0L 29
SLIZANGH ADNI¥A TWLOL 07§
ALTHNOAS TYIDOS 000-%102S
FAYDIAEW  0C0-ET0DZS
HONYENSNI HIIVAH 000-21025
IO¥d  000-TT0ZS
S¥d3d  000-010ZS
SLIJENIE HONIUL 4
ZSNEGXE LOFYIA ANYIYS IYLOL TS
ISNHEXH LOENI0 AYYTIVS TYLOL 0TS
ALIAFONOT 000-0Z0TS
HWIT¥AAQ 000-TTOIS
SEDYM ¥ SHINYIYS Q00-010TS
ASNENE LOFATIA AYYIVS 19
HOSFASSY %01 Ldda

uoridtioeag

JUnNO2DY # UNoLDy
TYEANAS  T00 aNOd
9ETHEIET © Tg/e0  sunyg
Lzdd :3dey



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
m 26 South B Street
P.O. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775} 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

Assessor Budget 001-104

53010 — Postage With 2015 being the first year we had to budget for postage, [ am leaving my budget
request the same as [ am not sure until we complete a full fiscal year if it needs to be adjusted.

53011 — Off Supply We have been very good at reusing and price shopping for supplies. [ have reduced my
budget in this category to make up for a needed increase in uniforms. From this point on all our forms are
laser print forms, and can be costly if we can’t order in bulk with other Assessor Offices. This year we will
be a heavy order year so [ don’t want to reduce this budget item to much until I know what’s in store price

wise for forms.

53012 — Telephone Telephone and Wi-Fi Hot Spot fees. No change as [ haven’t been notified of an increase
in rates
33013 — Travel This category is for travel related to Assessor conferences and continuing education. It

hasn’t been used as much in the last couple of years due to lack of staffing in the office. However now we
have a new staff member that may need to travel to classes vital to obtaining an Appraiser Certification. 1

decreased this category only slightly.
53014 — Dues Association dues, PO Box Fees, Apex sketch maintenance dues.
53020 - Printing Costs for printing the tax roll, and for required noticed to be printed in the newspaper.
53021 - Marshall&Swift Yearly editions of the Residential and Commercial costing books for appraisal

53027 - Rents/Leases  Copier costs. This category shows and increase as James Deane informed us to budget
for a 30% increase due to a possible buyout.

53029 — Training This category pays for the actual classes necessary for continued education mandated to
keep Appraiser Certifications, and classes to obtain certification for our new hire.

53030 — Auto Maint Keeping this the same as we should have minimal maint. on a new vehicle

53039 — Uniforms Adding $100 to this account taken from Office Supplies to cover for 3 appraisers

53040 — Gas & Diesel  Adding $100 to this account taken from remaining Office Supply decrease and travel
decrease. The new county vehicle is larger and will use a little more fuel than the previous vehicle

53070 —Prof Services  ADS software and programing fees, Outside Industrial Appraiser. Iam leaving this the

same as the anticipated growth in the TRI area will demand more hours from our outside appraiser. [ increased this

account last year but haven’t had a full fiscal year to analyze if this account needs to be adjusted.

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer




TECHNOLOGY FUND




Technology

3/27/2015

2011112

201213 2013-14

2014-15  [2015-16

Actual

Actual ‘Actual

Revenues

“Audit

Audit Audit

_ &Final

Tentative Tentative

Recorder

Clerk

.-

15027

11216,

323

12000

13000

100

Assessor

Interest

0

55,945

59,178,

o359,

740

40,000

61,200

550

Total Revenues

71,736

66,931°

11,129

52,500

Expenditures

0,

0

Recorder

107,715

98,947

Redr - Grant Match

: '1'5,4255 -

0

10,000

Assessor

16,642

o

Lo

70,000

Total Expense

107,715

98,947

32,067

Revenue vs Expense

34,864

35,979

27,818

80,000

~ -27,500

Beginning Fund Bal

126,856

161,720

195,741

97,923

Ending Fund Ba

161,720

125,741,

70,423

Technology




-“PSTE0978T “CI BIB'LE 047846 °SE S9T :pung ogusdxd o3 asy 3eN

00'0SL %L 00" 0SL'68 00'0000E Q€ LIT 8BS 00000 0. £8°9%6 ‘86 COTSTLLOT aNNd A9QTONHDEL rIVIOL
...................................................................................................... §9T Id¥d
GO 000 LE 00000 LY 00°000°0% 9T°%¥89°51 40" Quo oY Z26°PT1E'95 Z0'£98 59 INHWNEZACD TVAENES TYLOL %S
00" 00D’ LY 00000 LY 0o oou’oy 9T ¥B9'9T 007000 0% Z6'F1E 35 Z0°ZBE'S59 ROILVALSTNTHIY INIWITNDE TYLOL ThS
00°000°SE 00°Q00'SE Q0" 000 °0DE BY Z¥S BT 00" D00 Qg 1%'0zZ 05 ££°TO06 LS 1S003Y HDEL HOSSASY  000-90TFS
0800021 00-oo0’zT 00 000 0T 89 T¥1°2 00'000'0T TE'¥60'9 69086 'L LSN0OY HOEL ¥IAYODTd 000-E0THS
LNEINNAEAOD TYHINAD A
00'08L LT 00'0GL CY 007000 ‘0% 0T EEFP TY 00000 0% 6 T€9'2F D0 EEB TR SHSHEANE TYNOILYHAdC TYLol 9%
00°'0SL'LZ 00°0SL 2% 00 000 0% 0Z EER 1% 000000 T6°1¢9'2% 00 EEB T SEITAANS ¥ SEDTAUHE TWIOL 0fS
00°000'G2 00°000°0% 00 000 '0% 00°00070% 0oroon’ow 00'000'0% 00000 0% §I9 OLEZ-0LOES
00'0SL’T g0'osL’z 0Z FER’T ¥E°98G'%Z 00 €EB T 5ID QLZ-LEZODES
LG 'SP S4IT4dNS IDHLIA0  000-TTOES
SESNIEIYI TYNOILYHISO £ES
aNOd ADCTIONHZIEL  $3T ILJdHG
pasoxddy 2ATIBAUIL bsy adqg poiewIyEg 23ed O a126png 1enjoy Tenaoy uetidransag
9T0E 102 3102 ST0Z ST0Z/90 STO0Z ¥10zZ £102 IUNCSOY # IUnesoy
aNAd ADCTONHDEL S9T aNNd
9102 ¥Od SFANLIANAAXE dHIVWILSH S0:0%:FT ST/LZ/€0 :uny
T abeg ALNOCD AEHOLS 00Lz8d :adsy
00 05L° vy, GO pOS‘2s 00°005'2§ [T ¥3
00°00%'ZL €9 95961 TLUET'TL IHNd ADCTEONEDEL
**saxnxxx TULOL  S9T aNOg
00° 055 00°00% 00'00¥ 05°85¢ 00 00% 26 TT¥ 0T 0%L FONTATH SNOENYTTIEISIW
||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| ®xx ey THLOL 9%
a0 05s 00" 00F 00-00% 05 gS8¢E 00" 00% 26 TTH 0T 0%L SONINYVYE LSEMZINI  GG0-00TSE
HNEATE SNOENYTIEISTW 9€
00002 "% 00000’ 2L 00° 00T 25 ET 36261 0000128 6L 9TL 0L 227966 0L SHDINMES ¥Od STDUYHD
............................................................................ e e T *xxexx TYLOL 13
00-goz’Te C6'Ge0 oS 0C"00C' 0% T ETL'ET 000007 0% L LLT'ES T G¥6'ss SHEA EDAL MCSSASSY 0D0-$0THE
00 00T 00°00T 00 tgg 0o ¥z SEFA HOEL MHMETID 000-SOTHE
6o z9g 00" 658 00" LE6 TYINLSNANT OREYW ACHYWL 005-€OTHE
00°000'€T o0t ogoet 607000 2T 00 fzL'y 00°000°'2T 00 LSE 0T 00" 0EC'¥T 5334 HOAL MBA¥CDEE  000-£0THE
SEHOIANAS ¥WOd SIFDUYHD TE
paacxddy anTIRIUAL ‘WITS3d4 pPalewr]sy 23eqg o1 1sbpug Tenyoy Tenjoy uotidraosag
9108 910 9108 5102 StoZ g10z FL0E €TI0 AUNOROY # Juncsoy

aNfd ADOTONHDAL 9T aMna
ER 1 @jeq uny
IS5  .ud ‘ON 3z0day

¥1/ET A0 ALNOW FHI 404 I1d04d¥ ANNTATE
1030¢ 1EDANE 2ITand

T shey SNOCD ATNOLS




Storey County Courthouse SEOI"EY County Recorder Phone: (775) 847-0967
P.O. Box 493 Jennifer Chapman Fax: (775) 847-100¢

Virginia City, Nv 89440

RECORDER'’S OFFICFE

TECHNOLOGY FUND
165-105-34103-000

Technology Fund Balance 2015: $40,551.00
Overall 2015 Budget: $12,000.00
Overall 2016 Budget: $12,000.0

Current FY15 Revenue: $6,541.00

TECHNOLOGY, 54103: This budget item request will remain flat for FY16. The
intention here is to not only avoid over-expenditure of funds but also to allocate
technology-related expenses that have originally been paid from the General Fund, to the
Technology Fund. We are generally above target in the Technology Fund revenue area for
the past fiscal year and would like to absorb some of the expenses from the General Fund.
Also important in the decision to decrease funds this year is te reflect current office status

of being appropriately updated with computer equipment.

Thank you for your time and consideration,

\MUM{’DU/\@‘——-

a“rta“z, Stot e County Recorder
j P 3y Y




STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
S m 26 South B Street
(/777/ P.0. Box 494

Virginia Ci N
STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR frginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775} 847-0304 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

Tech Fund — 165-165

53027 —rents/leases Maintenance and supplies for large format printer
53070 - GIS Assessor’s contributing portion for Map Books and GIS
54106 — Aqust. $25K for 2015 aerial flight, $10K for Assessor ADS upgrades

Assessor ADS upgrades will be done over the next couple of years. I am not sure at this poin.t if
we will be billed as each project is complete or when all is complete. However I am earmarking
a portion of the cost for this budget cycle.

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer




BUILDING AND
GROUNDS




0T1°298 'S¢ ESHLANOD ~dTV¥AdV TYINLTIND  LET-TO¥ES

T0'655°¢€ HOLYW - LNWID 000-T0FES

00°005'9¢€T 00'00S°9ET 00°009°'8TT EL 050 %L 00'009°8TT €8 LED'TTIT 6 H50 €L SEITadNsg ® SEDIANAS TYLOL OES
.................................... ZL 6LZ TT €671 SHOTA¥ES TYNOISSEAQEd 000-0L0ES
00°000'8 00'000'8 00" 0008 BLTOLT'Y 00'oo0’e 0z 820°L LY BLY'Y HONYNEINIWK ONIQIINd 000-LS0ES
00" 00T’ T 00°00T'T 00°00T"T 91°8LY 000077 0Z' 654 ¥I°2TI0°T AHANNYT 00G-E€S0ES
00°00S°T 00'00S'T D0'00S'T B8°0ES 00°005'T . SEUIL  000-THOES
95°99¢€°2 B6'LS6F oz seg'z TYIULINONT ONEY "OHYL 0Q0S-0%0ES

00'co0'8 00°000'8 po"000°'8 BE'TLS'T 0070008 ¥0°8965°2 68°TLY'S TASAIA ¥ SYD 000-DBOES
00005’z 00°005°'2 0ot ops’e TE"EBE 000052 18 TEE % ET H0E°T HONYNALNIVA OINY (00-0Ff0ES
00°00S°T 00°00S5'T 00°000'T z£0'90L 00'000°1 Z0'188 6879458 SASYIT ONY SIN3Y (000-LZ0ES
00°000°S 00'000'S 00°000'S 8% " BHL'E 00°000°S SO0TEIE'S SLHOITLAZULE (0Z1-980ES
00-005'€ 00°005'2 00'00S°¢T 0o'ees‘e BYIVdEN  000-9Z0FS
1518 Z6° 19 0% 830'% TYIALSNANT ORI HOHVL Q0S-¥Z0ES

00°000'9T 00°000'9T 00°000°9T 08°zLy's 00°000°9T 99°959°¢1 05°95%'97 58174405 DNILVHEA0C GC00-%Z0ES
6 L06'T £8°€5 NIVMIL YUYW €05-ZZ0ES

00°00Z'61T 00°00C°6T 00°005°8 S9°6T6'0T 00" 005’8 T6'SSR'ET 6L7957'8 TYIELSNANI ONHN HOHY.L 00S-ZZ0ES
00°005°LZ 00°008'LZ 00°0058'LZ VE ELT'ST Do o05’Le £0°¥95°¢T HSNOHLAN0D BET-ZZOES
00°000°0€ 00000 0E 00 000°0¢% T0 ¥8Z'8I oo o00’0g LARE 44BN T/ SIEDITLEANLE 0ZT-Z20FS
00°009'T 00°008°'T 0E"8EE’T DNIATING WI0H GIT-ZZOEG
00°00% 00° 005 00005 957682 Do 00S 00'8vs LAIYLS wlHa § HOVEVD EZIT-ZZOES
00-00g'e 00°008'E 00'0c00°Z 15°859'¢ o000’z 09-9%€8‘e dOLE LSAY OA TIT-ZZ0ES
00°008'T 007008'T 985211 EE"Z9L HAILNED 1¥Y §)A¥Y¥W LNIVE OTTI-ZZ0ES
LY 26 LT LTIO'T WASNW Z¥I4 - INIVW dTINE 60T-ZZ0ES

-T1576TT 28 L¥S §5°097T°se SIILITILN 000-ZZOES

00°000'¢ 00°000°'¢ 00°000°€ 00°5%6 00 000'Y 90 GST'T D6°B3G'T HONYNIINIVWN INAWAINDE 000-9T0ES
00000 "¢ 00°'000’'€ DO°00S'T SBEERZSTT 00°'Q0S’'T 56 TEL'T FT 929" T ANOHAETHL QU00~ZTIOES
SESNAdXE TYNOILVHUIIO £S5
00" 9%6 'S5 00°9%6'SL 00" L5829 ES'BTIT OV 00°LS58B7EZ9 YLTZES'BL LT 9%E' 55 SLIJENEE FONI¥A T¥IOL ZS§
0D'9%s ' S5L 00°9%6 'S¢, 00,9829 ES"BTT' 0% 00" L58'29 VLTZTES WL LT 9%E 'S SLIJENAY FONIYA rI¥YLOL 025
00" 2ZSY' 0T dHOD LHAWAOTAWENN  000-%T0ZS

002161 00°2I6°T 00'598 "1 b8 85T 00°S5¥8°1 ¥S'EIB T 799791 ZUYOTIdAN 000~ETOEZS
00 T99°0E 00 E99°0¢€ no-"86L'1Z TS'8TT %1 00°B6L'TZ BL OTL'9E 88'6LG %2 HONVUOSNT HLTYEH 000-210ZG
00°6SF°9 00°65%'9 00°85% ‘9 T0'tL0E 0D BSY’9 60°B9T‘F Y8 veR’e LO¥d 000-TT0ZTS
00°'%16'9¢ 00" %16 '9¢ 00"9sL'zZe L17o0Ls’'ze 00T 9sL'EE EE ZBE'ZE TL¥BE 9T S¥Ed 000-0102S
SLIJANTE ZTONTIH4 zs

00°509'ZET 00°S09'ZET DO BLE'LET 0% 6£0'R9 00'8L6°LET SE'SE6'ZTT BE 68Y'TTT HSNHAXE ID@YIC A¥YIVS IVIOL 1§
D0'S09°ZET 00°509°ZET 00°8L46°L7T OV 6E0 88 00 8LE'LZT SE'GE6’ZET BE 68V TTT ASNAIXE 1DAVTIA AVYIVE TYLOL OTS
007509261 00°s09'zeT 00"8L6°LET 0% '6EQ 86 00" 8Le’LET SE'SES'ETT 8E6HETITT SEOYM ¥ SEINYIVS 000-0TOTS
5NHAXT LOFEIAd AYYIVS 131

BONNCYDH ¥ DNIQTIING 90T 149

paacaddy SATIRIUS, bay 1da PIIBWTISY a3eq oL J9bpng TenIoy TETIYOY uotidraosesg

97102 9102 9102 ST0Z 510Z/90 sST10% Y102 £T02 AUNCRDY # JUNodOY
7 7 T00 gmna

B T ¥04 SEANLIONAIXE AMIVWILSH 9EIGEIETL iZ/E0 runyg

zT abeq

ALNOCD ATHOLY Jotzda :3dey




SANQOY¥D ¥ DNIGTING 'IVLIOL

90T ldda
S0 LEL SADEI0S ONIDNYNIA HAHLIC IYIOL LS
S0 LEL SINEWAAYOV L1 AODHALNI TYIOL OLS
.................................................... 50" LPL ALNOGCD) HIMON/SHOTNYIS 0D0-6004LS
SHDHANOS DNIODNYNTJ HAHLO L5
00 sg SNOANYTIEDSIN  TYICL 95
00-se SN0INYTIEDISIW  MTVLOL 595
................................... no-sz SOOFNTTIASSIN  000-00595
SNOANYTIEDIS I 95
00°000°T6 00°000'16 oorone’es EB°950°94 00°000°28 EZ L0G 05 05°S6T %E INIWRIEAOD TVHENED  IYLOL %S
00" 000'TE 00'000°TE 00 00028 E8 950794 0D-0o0n‘eel 6T L0S' 05 0S'967'%E SMYOM D2ITd0d IVICL ¥HS
TLTTE LHAHIS D OF ZLE DATA 02 000-6TFHFS
ALO LYY SAUYW IS DATE 02 000-BT¥HS
¥8°968°CS 0T ¥LZ'E TYIULSNANI ONZY HOHYL 00S-LTB%G
oornon’se 007000752 00°000’ST 0oToDo’st 00°6TT XTIIHOD 00 HIMOM 9a7Td 0D 000-LTEHS
E%'95%'9 ZE'SE1°E HLY YOINAS HIMON 2aTd 0D 000-5TH%S
DOTT9T' ¥ 0%V 665" % HWDEABAW &¥IJ O S ST 000-VIH%S
00 000 TT 007 000" 1T 00 pos'e 007005 JQIYA Ma-SHILITIONA OO 000-60%%S
08 €0T 067 TS S5 TIE’8 ALITIOWI 0D 000-~LOVPS
BE"6ERZ 5 kEE ALD HOINAS OA 2aTd 0D 000-S0%%S
00" 005’2 BB 6Z 00°005°% 3Z°1¢ 06" LLT dOLS LS4 AMH DU7TE 02 000-T0%%S
L5TGEG"T NIVML AAYH E0S-00%%S
00" 000°F HO NOLVAWASHNMA DIH0LSIH BLT-00%S
a0'000°'0z 00" D00'0E 00700008 notoon'ox 8T LET'L SATYMBAIE ET1-00F%S
00°000'0T 00000 0T vo'ooo's 00°000'S ’ LIZALS «€8w § HOVEYD ZIT-00%%S
00700052 00°000'52 00°000°LE TE 920767 007000 'LE SL°BZ2 98 00°00%'2 ASN0H I¥MNOT 9479 OO 000-00%bcC
INTHNUEACS TYUINTD S
DD 005 9T 00 00s'9ET 00°009°8TT £L°090°'%L D0°00978TT T9'STS’'S%L ¥0'LSEOET SHSNAAXHE 'IYNOILYYEAC fI¥IOL £S§
BL LLY'EE 0T Z0% LY SLNVED TYYH0ES TYLOL %ES
9L°B16'62 00" 0BV’ IZ HO NOLVA¥ASTN DIMOLSIH  8LT-T0¥ES

paaoxddy aATIBIUSL bay adg palewtisg ajeg oL 186png Tenjoy TENIOY uotidransag
9102 9T0T 9102 ST0% ST0Z/90 S10E vioZ £102Z AUNCD0Y § Junoooy
TYEANID 100 gNna
s 2102 ¥CI SEMNLIANEIXHE CIIVWILSH PETBEET ST/€r/en  unyg

ET abeqg

ALNNOD AZ¥QLS 00Lz9d :aday




Buildings and Grounds — FY 2016
Highlights of this year's budget request include the following:

1. Telephone — Adjustment to reflect cost associated with Fuel master phone
line expenses.

2. St. Mary’s Art Center Utilities — Cost of providing water for the grounds
maintenance per lease agreement.

3. Rest Stop / Visitor's Area Utilities — Adjustment to reflect actual cost for
seasonal operation.

4. TRI McCarran Facitity Utilities — Adjustment to move facility from moth-ball
status to yearly operations due to various tenants occupying the building.

5. Rents / Lease — Adjustment for increased cost share of printer/copier.

6. B Street Garage — Increase in request to provide funding for west side roof
replacement and front and west exterior wall repairs.

7. TRI McCarran Facility — Continued request for necessary tenant
improvements in the general government common area.




SWIMMING POOL




NOIIVIEOIU/SHEYd  TYLOL LES

G000t GO 000’ 0070009 8Z° %15 0070009 JOOMADOT  »05~00LES
00°000°T 00°000°T 00°000'9 £V BO0¥ 0070009 NTZMEL N¥¥W €05-00LES
00°000"T 00°000°T 00°000'9 6E°COE 000009 SANYTHOTH DA Z0S-00LES
00°000'6 00°000°6 007005'L (NS A 00°00§"L ALID VINIDEIA T0S-COLES
00°000°% O SINVHD TYYHAES TYI0L FES
00'000°'S 00°000°'5 OYHAY "100d DA 08T-10%ES
00°008'0¢ 00°008°62 00°00%'8BZ D6 2RO 9 00°00%'8Z PITOL LT S0°SSE°LT SHITIANS ® SHDIAYAS TYILOL 0ES
00"Q0s’e 00°005°2 00°005’¢e 15829 oo.oom”w SHITddNS MOISSHEDNOD TO0d 000-9405S
G0'00S % 00°005'% 00°005'F 00°005'F SHYNLXII ONY SA0LINYOI  000-ZALOES
00'000’s 00°000°S 00°000°S SLLS 00°000°5 L0°9L8'S DE SEL HONYNAINIVW DONIATIIOE 000-LS0ES
05'0T1 SEOILCN DITEnd 000-8%0ES
a0 008 40" 00S 007005 LZ %S 00°00% 997 66E €8 €LE TASHIO 3 5Y9 000-0F0ES
007 000°T 00 000°T 00'000°T 00°000°T oeTo9t DNINIVEL 000-620%S
00°005'T 00005 SHSYET ANV SLNEZ¥ 000-LZOES
Q0" 008°E 00°008’¢g 00'000°¢E CT'EBE’Z 00°000°¢E 0Z 0L6'% Y6 22T'S SEITAANS DNILYMEAC 000-%Z0cS
40" QQ0’¢t 00°000°€ 00°000°% T %29 00°000°€ ZL €ze'e TOE9R‘E STYOINEHD 000-£Z0ES
00°000°S D0 000°S 00'000’S §L'PEY T 00" 000°'S 06°9S5T'z LE'TLS'E SEILITILA CQ0-ZZOES
007 005’2 00°005°2 00'005'2 [4 a-i4 00°006'% 00°0LS §8°¥9T'Z HONYNALNIWW LNEWAIINOA 000-9T0ES
00°0057T 00°005°T 00°00%'T 0T 598 007 00%'T E5°Z%E’T ogrgoT’T ANOHdITIL 000-ET0ES
SESNAAXE "TYNOIIVHNIC €5
G0 LES'ET 00'BEZS'ET 00°980'€T 12°10%'6 00°9€0'€1 68 BS9'¥T SE'S0T 1T . SLIAENEL EONINI TYIOL 26
00'L25°¢€T 00°82ZS‘€ET 00°9€0'€T T 10V 6 00 9£0°ET 68859 %1 52°90T'TT SLIAENAH EONI¥A fTVIOL 025
68°88Z°¢% 9L BIS'E dWCD LNIFWAQTIWINA 000-ST0ZS
00" ELD'Z 00'EL9°E 00°z89'e LE'6LST 00°Z89'E SOTLER‘E T€°80%'2 ALT¥ODES TYIDOS 000-%10Z5
00" SEB 00" S€E8 00°0£8 6%°825 00°0EB 65° 508 L8 LLL HYYOIqAN  000-£T0ZS
00 L6E'T 0078651 00 L6E’T ST°926 00" LEET 6L SED‘Z 80°%L9'E HONYHNSNT HITYEH 000-2T0Z5
00-€98°¢€ 00" €SB ‘€ 00 8%B'¢ ¥ZTISZ'T 00" B¥8'E €550 °1 0%°989'T LO¥d  000-1T0ES
00°69L'% 00" 69L'F 00 6LE'Y L0 LE8'z 00°6LE'® LI SPT'® 657655'¢ S¥Hd  000-010ZS5
SLTLANEE HPNIHA 45
00" LS LS 00°L95'LS 00" LBZ LS T9'Z5%'9¢ 00'L82°LS 067 0TE'0S v LIS ¥S ASNAIXE LDBYId A¥VIVE TYIOL TS
007495745 00°L95°LS 00°282'L% 1925 '9¢ 00" LBE"LS 06°0TE’ 035 2 LTE b5 ASNAdXE LDHEIA A¥VIVE “IVLOL 0TS
i ee et R gz 9z C, AWIIWEAO  000-TTOTS
00°L35°LG 00°L95°LS 00 LBZ'LS 9€-92%'9¢ 00" LBZ'LS 06'0TE’ DS Z¥ LT6 %S SEOVM ® SETUYIVES  000-0TOTS
ASNAIXH LDFA¥Iq KUYTIVS 15
TO0d DNIWWIMS STT LgH0
vaaozddy BATIBIUDL bay adg PalBWTIsy a3eq oL Jabpng TEnyoy Tenioy uciidraosag
9t10z Itoz 9102 s10Z ST0Z/30 sIoZ Y102 £102 FUNODNE 4 quncooy
Ty . 100 annag
. " ‘ Y04 SEUOLTANIINE JaIVWILSH 9EGEIET :/e0  runy
i z  2beg

AINOCD AH¥OLS u0LZAd *aday




paacaddy

st0¢e

00°000°S
00°000'S
00T o00‘s
00°000"0€E

00 00E LY
aATiEIUAL

910z

4

00°Se8°'z91 00'EET TET
00'000'SY 00 000°8
00000 'S%
00°0D0’S
00" 000'S
00'000's
00 000'0€E
gp-go0‘e
Q0 0090’1
oo oo’ 9% 00°'006'ES
bay 1dg PRIRUTISY
9102 S10Z
abeg

¥3°0®

ZZ'H1L6
278Q OL

ST0Z/90

00" €22 '2ET ZS'E98°T0T Z¥ 6O0E'OFT
00'000'8 65 TET 6L 0L 0€6'9%
66 BZY'TL LT L9E'8T
LL'9986'T TP 8ZL°9
0T 086'T 09°TAS
06°'STT'T LETE0L
SE 80%'S CE'6EZ'H
LB LG6 LT'¥S0'Z
00*000'8 09 ZSL'L £2°€95'8¢€
09°Z9L°L £Z°£95'8¢
00’ 000’8
00 006°ES PUTOL LT G0"SSE‘LT
Jabpng Teni1oy Tenyoy
ST0T PLOE £10%

9102 W02 SEANLIANAAXHT dILVWILSE
ALNOOD ZHFOLS

TOCd ONIWWIMS TY.LOL
STIT Ldaa
INTFWANEEAQD TYHENES TYI0L %S
NOTIVIIDHY /SHAYd  T¥LIOL 9FS
JOONADOT-XUY¥E  000-ST9%S
NIVMIYMYW-¥I9d  Q00-%19%5
SONYTHOIH JA-¥U¥d 00D0-£T9%S
ALID YINIDAUIA-NUY3 000-CT9%S
SEIN4dNE MOISSADNOD 000-~609%S
AVTILOO TYLIAYD TYLOL 0%S
TEIOWIL /UTIYIEA "TO0d -WIMS 000-S30%S
AYTIING TYLIAYD 000-010FS
LINEWNHIAOD "IYEHENID ¥s
SHSNHAXHT TYNOLIVIAA0 fIYIOL E9

uotadtaosag

JUNQDDY # JUNCoDY
TYHIANED 100 aNna
FEIGEIET ST/CE/ED sunyg
00Lzad :3dey



Swimming Pool and Parks - FY 2016

Highlights of this year's budget request include the following:

1. Pool Utilities - Adjustments provided for increases based on prior and current
expenditures.

2. Operating Supplies — Adjustment for slight increase based on prior and
current expenditure trends.

3. Rents/Lease — Adjustment for share of printer/copier expense.

4. Pool Rehabilitation — Requested funds for the repairs of coping tiles that
surround the pool perimeter.

5. Park Utilities - Adjustments provided for increases based on prior and current
expenditures.

6. VC Park — Capital Outlay — Requested funds for the replacement of aged and
worn out playground equipment.







........................ 00'86S’ZLe 9ET9TL ¥hT 6V Z0L'ZET HDIAWAS  TYIOL
.............................................................................. 81T Idua
00°000'¢ 007000 € 00°'00% 'L Zo oLe's 00°00% 'L LNAANYEAOD TYNENAD TYLOL S
00°000°¢€ 00 00% L Z9'0LE '€ 00°00% 'L NOILYALSININAY INSWATNDE TYIOL THs
z9-0LE’E LNHWAINOZE ¥EI04NOD Q00-09TFHS
notoon'e 00T 00% L 00°CO% "L NOTLISINDOY INEWAINOE 00C-0ZThS
007000 ¢ . AVIINO TYLIYD TYIOL 0%
.................... 00" 000 "€ AVIINO TYLIAYD  000-0T0%S
LNIRIEAOD TVIENID L]
00'095°¢S 00°'059'8B% 00°085'0§ TEFE6 ' TE 0Dt 055°0% ZT°Z8T LY BS €BE'ES SUBNEAXE TYNOIIWHAAO TIYLOL £5
00705525 00'059'8% 00°055'0S VETVEE'TE 00°055°06 ZT BT L¥ mm.mmm_mm;“ SHITAdNS ¥ SHEDIA¥NAS TIYLOL 0ES
................................ IT- 05 £E°0ST EE 06T SEDIAMES TYNOISSTIONd 000-040€G
00°005'T 00°005°T 00°005'T £8°0¢ 00°005'1 0E " LEBH HONVNSINIVW ONIQIIOE 000-4S0EG
norooe'z 00-00Z'T 0000tz TELED'T 00°00T°2 pm.mmc“w mm.pmmnﬁ AMAONNY'T 000-£50€S
00°002'1T 00'008°T 00-002'T 00°002°T 00" 002'T YZ'SEN'T SIYIL  00C-THOES
00’000’ ET 00°000'ET 00" 000'ZT 59°49L°5T 00°000°2T LT ¥58'0¢ LE Y0V TT TI5AIA ¥ S¥YD  000-0B0ES
00°000'T 00°000°T 007 000°T SP ALY 00°000°T 92 gL T 852591 HONYNHEINIYW CIOY 000-08Q€S
00° 0051 00°00S'T 00°000'T T1°¥69 00'000°T 0" bS8 687958 SESVET ONV SINAY 000-LZOES
00°'008'€7 007000702 00°006'ET S8 26801 00°006°EZ 59'T06'ST §9°Z¥B LI SHITIANS ONILVEEAO 000-%Z0ES
00°000°'5 00°000°S 00'000°S LT BEL'T 00'000'S 16 TL9 'Y R4 SEILTTIIN 000-ZZOES
00°005'T 00°005°T 00°00S'T 62919 00°00S°T 66°0TL ES P26 HONYNEINIYW LNIWAINDE 000-9T0ES
00'005'T 00°0058'T 00'00T'T 0£°' 596 00°00T'T 6L S0E’T 9% 26 HNOHAETAL 000-ZT0ES
00052 007 0s¢g 00°' 052 LT ET 00052 £E8°56 TV 60T BEIT44NS HIIAZ0 000-TT0DES
SESNEIXT TYNOIIYHEL0 £5
00" 9%€ ' TL 00" LPE'TL 00" ZLT’LY L8 ITO TY 00°ZLT'LY 96 9TZ'¢9 9% 866°LY SLIAHNAE EONIdA 'TY¥LOL 6
00°'9%E’ L 00T LRETL 00°ZLT'L9 L8 ST0 ' 1¥ 00" ZLT' L9 96°91Z'€9 9% " B66 LY SIIIANAE IONINA IYIOL 0ZS
DOUEBY'T 00" EBY T 00 EEF'T 9T " GLL 00'EED'T B85 THT'T ALT¥NDIS IWIDOS 000-PT0ES
T’ ZI0Z DHA WAOLS TIS-ET0ZS
oo0'onE’e 00 00E‘E 00-LET'e 98 96£°1 ogrret’e 50°886'T ZZ BTI6'T HIYOITEWN  000-€T0Z2S
69" %T ZI0Z 2 WIOLS Z19-2T0ZS
00 9%¥5 Ee 00"9%S'EF 00 9wrs’er TL799G5° %1 00°9%5°EZ 8T Z¥L's5g LS 5ERET FONYHNSNI HITYAH 000-21025
00°0€6°¢L 00'TES "L 00" TLB'L S8 ERY'Z 00°TL8 L SLUPTO' b SZ'806°2 IO¥d 000-TTOZS
LS TT 2102 2d3d WMOLS Z19-010%5
00" LBT'9¢E 00" LBT'SE 00°S6T"E¢F Bz vEL'TT 00'S6T'ZE 0€'062°0E ST ETL 6T S¥Ed 000-0T0EZS
SLIJENEALT TONINI 4]
00°L¥Y‘ZST 00 L¥¥'ZST D0 9L LFT 9L 8FE ' LE 00" 9Ly’ LYT BZ L1€"HET SPT0gE'EET ISNEIXE LOEMIA ANYTIVS r¥IOL TS
DO LPY'ZST 00" LEP ZST 00°94%'LPT 9L BY6 L6 00°§LF " LET BZ LIE'¥ET S¥ OZE'ECT A5NI4XE LOEWIA AMYIVS TY1OL 01§
96°L08 0% 00T HNIINIAO 000-TTOTIS
L 8% ZT0Z DHJ WIOLS EZT9-0T0TIS
00°L¥F'2ST 00" L¥F'ZST 00T 9LY T LFT 0B 0%T7LE 00 9L%'rLpT B8 9TZ HET L TLE 28T SHOUM 7 SHI¥YTIYS 000-0T0TS
HENEAXE LDEYIA ANYIVE TS
HOIAYES BTT Ldza
Paaciddy SATYBIUL, bay qdg pajeuTisSy oaeg oL 1abpng TEN3OY ienioy uotadraoseg
9102 9T0Z 210¢ 5102 ST0Z/90 ST0¢Z " ytoz ET0T AUNCODY # Junoaoy
TYETYD  TO0 INNI
°T77 W04 SHNNLIUNAAYE dILVWILSH 9TIEEIET - /B0 runy
1t abeg

ALNDOD XF40L5 ‘tzgad :qdan




Service — FY 2016

Highlights of this year’s budget request include the following:

1. Phone — Adjustment provided for based on prior and current year
expenditures.

2. Rents / Lease — Adjustment for share of printer/copier expense.

3. Equipment Acquisition — Provide for funds to replace shop air compressor.




ROADS




| 32472015 20112 2012/13 _ 12013/14___ 201415 201415 12015-16
Roads 020 ‘Actual | Actual ‘Actual Tentative 'YTD 3/ /15 Tentative
- Audit Audit Audit  ‘&Final |
[Revenues ? L : § 3 o
GAS Tax 159,737 158,842] 189,772 169,500 96,664 200,000
[SCCRT 266,441 282,370, 285,350 283932 142,204 285,000
Import Tonnage 96616, 101,848 109,842 105000, 70,553 115,000
Interest ] 2,118 4,464 6,130 4,000 5,578
Charges for Services 440! 16,866 0 500 R B
Misc 25,429 0 135324 2,000 142,861 6,000
Loan-Bond 0 0, ’ :
Grants B ] 0 i
Tranfer from Town VC  © 30,000 0 :
Transfer from General 300,000 _ 200,000 200,000, 300,000, 150,000 300,000
| Transfer from Equip Acq | 86,896 83,203 79,690  78,000: 39,000 ]
Transfer from Forestry =~ 1 ; |
Total Revenues 967,677 847,683 1,006,117 942,932 646,860 906,000
Expenditures i
Road — - | —
Salaries/Wages 278,837 270,773 260,558 308,498 206,882, 305,654
| Benefits _ 102,847 97618 115827 123,775 78,472. 130,552
Service & Supplies 94,628 104965 131171, 113553, 55646 137500
Capital Outlay 0 107,206 169,772 35200 311,443 60,000
Road Improvement 228,759, 0 0, 520,000 50,256 1,214,000
Interest 12,592 9,036 4,978 3,665/ '
Principle 74,286 74,286 148571 79,286 B
Total Expense 791,949 663,884 830,877, 1,183,977 702,699 1,847,706
Revenue vs Expense 175,728 183,799 175240 -241,045  -55,839 -941,706
|
Beginning Fund Bal 806,527 982,255 1,166,054 1,341,294 1,100,249 1,044,410
Ending Fund Bal 982,255 1,166,054, 1,341,294 1,100,249 1,044.410 102704

Roads




00" 000908

0C 000 '00€

007000 '00€

a0 ooo s

00000 s

00T 000'STT

407000 ‘STT

00000 ‘s8YF

0070007682
007 000'00¢E

00 Q00T

a0 oop ‘T

pasoaddy aaTIvIba]
9T0e 9TdE

T obeg

00°000°506

90°000'00€

00" 000 '00E

GG 000'G

00000’

00°000°STT

00000 '§TT

00 00D '¥8¥

00°900°%8g
00700000z

00'0po'T

oo Qo0 T

‘WrlsIg
910z

00 ZE&'TPe 00 ZEE'E¥6
S6'BS8°S¥S

00°000°8LE 00'goo'e8T Q0 Q00 BLE

007000 8L 907000 '6€ 00000 8L
00°000°00€ 90°600°0ST 007000 ooE
Q0°000°89 TH 655 'L¥T 60" 000'9
o0 o00'E 00°000°2
9T 186 'THT
Co'oee 'y SL79LS'S ao‘o00’'r
66 000°S0T £2°255'0L 00°000'50T
00°000°50T £2° 255704 00" 000 50T
00" TER 'E5F TZ'L98'8EC 90'2EYEST
00" Z£6'T8Z 89 €0Z'THT 00" ZE6'£BET
00- 005’691 £5°€99'96 00 005 65T
00° 00§ 80" 068 00'peog
007005 00" 088 00° 008
P2lBWTISH 37eq oL qab6png
STOR ST0Z STOE

PT/ZT 30 HINOW HHL 404 LHOdEY ANNINTA
o D00¥ LEDaNdg 5ITdnd
100 AH¥OLS

6T LIT'900'T

007 069’648

0006264

00’000 00T

ST L0 0PT

ST ¥E0°TET
LEOTE'Z

LLTBZT'O

S0°EP8'60T

G0°Zp8'601

BS DET'SLv

Z5'95€E 'S8E
9FCLLGBT

eorest't

TeN30Y
¥10Z

B0 €89 'LP8
SaHoH
¥ryyrxyaee TVIOL 070 QN

**NOYIATHOSEA ONISSIHx»x

*xuxxs MYLOL ot
000-0000¢
**NOITATUDSEA ONISSTIHy»x o€

00" ¢6z €8T HAISNYEL ONILANEINT
............. xxxxx¥¥ TYLOL LE
Q0 g6z ’E8 DOY dInda WO¥a ¥EAASNYNLI 000-L0ZLE
2A 3 HO 40 NMOL ¥3JSNWHL 000-TOCLE
00°000'00Z YAISHNWEL ONNINAINTI  000-00TLE
HAISNYAL QHOZAALNT LE

SL'900'9T ANNIATH SNOANYTIEISIW
||||||||||| Frdder TVLOL G¢

SHNEWIZE WIWID HONYENSNI  000-0099¢

00°S0L g SETYS ILNAWAINDZ 000-0%59¢F
z8'LEB’E YEHIO - DSIKW  000-00§5¢
€6 ESF ¥ SONINHYE LSTNILNI  000-00T9f
ENNIAFE SNOINYTIIDSTH 8¢

€€'8F0 0T BEDIA¥AS HOd SEOUWHD
............. wxxxxr TULOL ¥E
EE8Y8° 10T SAHS EOYANOL LHOAWI 000-ZQ@%E
00°00Z'% SLOTd FAWEOH/NOLLYAYDYA 000-8T9%¢E
SH0IAYAS HOd SADHYHD ¥E

08 ' TIZ 'TP% HANIAHY TYHAQES [/ EIMLIS
||||||||||||| Frrxar TELOL £g
¥8°69€'28L L¥DDS  000-L0SEE
96 T8 'BST XYL S¥D 000-TOSEE
SNNIATY TYEIaEd / FLVLS €€

DEAR A SLIWIEd/SESHADINT
||||||||||||| *xxeexy THLOL fAS
O EZT'¥ SIINYAd NOTLYAYIOXE 000-Z0ZZ€
SLIWHIA/SESNAITT 43

*xNOLLATYISHD ONISSTH#xx

*¥xxxx TYLOL oF
000-0000€
*¥NOILATUDSAT ONISSTMrxx Q€
TEN3oyw uoTadrIoseqg
£T0Z JUNooDY # junoooy

Sae0H  0Z0 aNOd

ST, tioeaeQ uny
LEo. 4 0N 1x0dsy



00°000'T
00'000’sz
00°0057%1
00°000"'T¥
noT000's
00" 005'T
00°000°ST
00'00sTL
oo'ons’g

00°000°S
00 00s

00" 000"€E

00'ZS55'0€ET

0o zwe's
00°91%'%
DOTELDEY
00" 0BT'ST

00 5€£0'E9

00" ¥59°50¢

00°696°1T

00°5B9 €T

ranoIddy 3ATIBIUDL

9102 9102

00°000'T
00°'000's2
00'00G'¥T
007000 T
00°000°‘S
00°005'T
00°000'ST
00" 005 'L
000052

00'000'g
007009

00'000'€

00°98L°TET

00'T%Z'S
00 LLY'P
00" 6L 'EF
DO 08T’ ST

00°'60Z°%9

00 8%B'60C

00'696'TT

00 6L8°LET

bay 3dg

atoe

abeg

a0 000"t
007000752
00" €55 ‘%7
00" 000'TH
00°000°%
00'000°T
00°00S°L
00°0D0G L
nDo'oes‘e

00'o00’s
00 008

00°000°¢E

00" SLL'€CT

00T P0T’S
00" ZTE'Y
00°6L9°ZF
00 8T0'ST

00°299°'95

00" 88%'BOE

007000701

00°86%'862

paRNTI By

ST02

1Z2'1Z% 'S
00" Z¥E’Z
ELTFS0 8T
B6 E£95'¢
¥E 0P

LE'T6O0'
TZ'§9¢°1

06" I%T'T

€L 9E6°T
LE'BT

TS TILY "84

96°690°¢
¥S'99%F BT
LT E66° Y

597 9%E'6¢E

80°Z88'30

9L ETT'8
ETLYE’T

60 TTF L6

93e(q oL

5102/%0

z

T

9

00°000°T [4 AN
00°000'sZ 95705602
00 E55'%T ZT'895°S
EP E€9E'T
00°000'TY LE'SLE'SE
00'000°S B¥ 8GL E
00°000°T Z6 058
00008 L 00'6¥T
96'69
00005 "¢ TL 9204
00'005°Z ¥Z'85L'T
9€°€ES
00'000°S SBTELL'Z
00°005 86°TTE
00'000‘¢E L6 L1a'g
P ST
00 GLL'EZT SL'9Z8°STIT
00 SLL'EET GL'9ZB'STT
00" %0T ‘S L6 T90'E
00°ZTIE'¥ 89°'TE9'%
00°6L9'EH 65'G68' 97
DO BTO’ST ¥0 901’9
D0°299'9¢g LY TET LS
00" 86% 80 T4 LS55'08%
D0 BEY'BOE TL LSS '09¢
S¥ TOF‘TT
007000 0T $S'L90°1
00 ' B6V 862 TL BBO'BYEZ
31=sbpng Tenioy
5102 ¥16T

¥O4d STANLIGNIAXE TEIYWILSH
ALNOOD AFHOLS

2% 598

08 E%Y
¥Z 10T
BO'659°9
ELTES

TZ BLL'E
S0'06%'TT
0€£'68E

9L 98E

(A A A AR A
B6 GET

Ly 5v0’et

BZ LT
TLT0T0"8S5¢2

TR oY

E£ET02

SHOIAYMES TYNOISSHAOWd 000-0L0€ES
LHIYH dIN0DE AAYEIH  000-8S0FES
SHOILON DITHNG  000-8%0fS
SE¥IL  000-TP0ES
IYINLSNONT ONTY HOHVI (Q0S-0%0€ES
TEASAIT ® S¥D  000-0%0ES
dONVNEZLNIYA OIOY Q00~0E0ES
SHSYWHT ON¥ SINHY 000-LZ0ES
TOYLNOD JIEM (000-SEO0ES
CI0T D0 WHOLS ZI9-%Z0€ES
TYIALSNANTI ONAY HOHVI 005-%¥Z0ES
SEITAdNS DNIIVHAJO 000-%2Z0€S
STY2IWIHD 000-CZ0ES
SIILITILO 00Q-ZZO0ES
TYIULSNONT ONEY FOHYL 005-9T0ES
HONYNEINTI YW INIWATNDE  000-9T1066G
THAYHL 00Q-€T0ES
TYIVLSNANI ONZY HOHVL 00S-ZT0ES
HNOHAETAL 000-ZTI0QES
SEITANS HDIAA0 000-TTI0ES
SASNIGXH TYNOIIVHZEAO0 £
SLIJENTE FONI¥A 1I¥IOL 2§
SIIJENET FENI¥NE TYLOL 02§
dWOD INEWAOTAWINO 000-5T0ZS
ALTHNDES 'T¥IDCS 000-%T0ZS
102 DA WHOLS ZI9-£T0Z§
HYYOIOEM 000-£10ZG
ZI0Z DEQ WIOLS £19-2102S
ONYHNSNI HITYHEH 000-2T0ZS
2102 DET WHOLS Z19-110Z5§
LI¥d  Qo0-1t0Zs
2102 24Q WMOLS Z19-0T0Z§
5¥Ed  000-0T0E§
SLIJINAY HONINJ 4]
ESNEAXE IOANIA KuVIVS OYLOL 1S
ASNAAXE LOAMIA A¥YIVS IYIOL 0TS
ALIAHONCT 000-020TS
HWIIYIAC 000-TTOTS
2T0Z DEd WYOLS 2I9-0T0TS
SIOYM T SUINYIVS  Q00-0TO0lS
HENHIXE LOEJId REYIYS TS
5OY¥0d 020 ILd3qg

uoradTaoseg

QUNGDDYW 4§ AUNCIDY

=i 020 anna
€0 FTHT /0 rung
~ot.ZHI 3dsy



rascaddy

9T0%Z

00°000°56 00°000'S6
00 000'LT 00°000'LT
00 0BB'AEE 00°088'8E€
00" 095" L6 00" 0%€'LE
00°0B9°LET 00 0B9'LET
00 00B'LE 00°008'LE
oo oon’oe 0otoo0’0z
DO GBE'STE 0o o8Bz fsZeE
gorooptgz 00 000°S5E
ootonn'oT 00'000°0T
00°000°0T 00°000°0T
00'000°T 00°000'T
o0 o000t nDo'o000'T
0o oo0’'g9
0000009
oo ooofoe
00°000°09
00" 005'TZT 00°005'TET
RN & 4 4 00°005°TZT
BATIBIUD, bay 23dg
aTnze 9t02
z abea

00°599'¢

00'599°¢

00°002'S55

00" 00056

00°000°SeH
00700052

007000'0T

00 €55 ETT
00 €SSETT
P3IBWTSSE

S10Z

fL ooz'e

18" LES’E
61°505'9¢2

I9°TS6'%

$9°BZZ'Z
LLoeze'e

TETO%E’E
00" GLB'TFE
25 %9589

Z59°%95°99

0Z LTIZ 9%
DZ°LTEZ'9%
S28BQ O

ST0Z/90

00°5999°¢

005997 ¢

00 00E'5S55

00°000°S6

00 000°52F
00'000°52

goraoo’et

00 €85 '€TT
1a6png

ST0Z

TLLLE'Y

St e%¥0’TEE

96°209' e
Z9ETL 9L

26 0¥L 9%
6T £0L

LO'TTI® BT
LLTEET'E
9€° 62001
B9 EEE'®
B9 S0L'G

19°82Z¥%'€L
TenIay

102

STO0ZT ¥OJ SHANLIANZAXI JELYAILSE
ALNNOD AH¥OLS

HTHILONAET HONWEOSNI  (000-Z0955

5070021 SOCENYITIDSTH TYLOL S9§
507081 °T TYIMLSOONI ONEY JQHYI 00S-00595
TOHLNOD dOL FLIHM 9TT1-00595

00°0S SONOBNYTIIISIN 000-00595
§8°SE0'6 ISNHAXE LSTYALNI 1IVYLOL 195
38°SE0‘6 ISNEIXE LSEIHINI  000-00T9S
SNOINYTIRDS I 95

9.°00L°2TT INIWNYEAOD TVHANID TYiol ©5

9% 908" LOT SLNIWTACHAWNI YO IYLOL L¥§G

HOWNIVHO NOANYD ®TIN XIS S2T-094%S

9€"¥zL'eT HIIW XIS - ZA0HAWI avox 000-09L%S

T0-zge'e TIYIALSNANI ONAY HOUWL 005-05L%5

88'9%9 2 JOOMADOT - FACUAWT O¥od 000-05L%G

SLTEZL'Z HOIH DA - ZAOWAWI OYOH 000-0%L%S

LLELE I¥ML AI9H - TACHAWI awod ooo:omrvm

HP - ZACHdWI avod 000-02L%S

89 16628 DA - FACUAWI TIY0d 000-0TL®G

ANYS ¥ LT¥S YIINTM  000-0QL¥S

08'T07°s SYEOM 2ITHOd  TYIOL vvs

89°€9%'1 TYIHLSNANT ONEY FOHYL 00S-E0F%®S

21 ges’e SHDIS LEEUIS O000-€0BBS
05" 268 ALBIYS OITENd TYLOL £%S
05" Z&¢ STYOISAHd - "IYOIGHW 000-STE®S

HOLIUALSINIWAY LNAWd INDHE T9LOL T%S

LNANA INDA HMIIOAANOD 000-091TF®S

NOTLISINDOW INEWAINDE 000-0Z2THS

AVIIOO TYLIIAYD TVLOL 0%s

AYTLNO TYLISYD 000-0T0%S

LHENNIIACD TYIENID ¥g

¥9°697'86 SHSHIANE TYNOIIVIII0 THLOL  ES
¥2'69¢ ‘BE SEITddNS ¥ SIIIANAS TYILOL 085

Tenioy uotldrangag

£I0Z AUNON0Y # Junoooy
SAY0¥  0Z0 aNna

0 FPZIYT ST/EC/E0 Yy

saday

00Llzdd



00°000'S

00 000’5

paaoaddy 2ATIBIUS]L
9102 ato0eZ

€

00'000'S
bay adag

910z

abeg

00 98Z %L

00°599'8g

0o o000's
PalPwTISE

STOT

8% %09 '1ZT

a3®'d 04,

STOZ/90

PLOPTSLT TS 66L7ERT
00" LLE'EBT'T §5'9L8'0€8 LS EBB'E9S
00 98T '¥L L8 0LS'BYT TL'GS8E' %L
00°98Z'¥%4 L8 0L5 8%T TL S8 'BL
00'98T ¥L LB OLS BYT TL S8BT '¥L
00'ss9’sg 29T €E¥8 0T 06'S€2'0T
00°000'S Q0'000°s
J2bpng TENl0Y Tenjoy
S10zZ Y102 £E1I0C

H04 STANLIANHAXT qII¥WILSH
ALNNOD XHEOLS

020 :pung asuadxyg

5avoy

SHOUNOS SNIDJNYNIA YAHLO

PINIONYNId Wd3l LIOHS

FIdIONIHg
S30UN0S ONIDJNYNIA YAHLO

SOOANYTTIEISIN

H5NEAXE FDNVHNSNT
uoTqdrIosag
Elikatalelol s

S5
E0REIFT

03 Ad¥ 93N

TYLOL
020 Id3a

TYIOL LS

IYLOL 1S

000-T0TLS
LS

TYLOL 95

TELOL 985

¥ Juncooy

0Z0 gNna
/€0 tunm
uZHd :idey



Roads - FY 2016
Highlights of this year's budget request include the following:

1. Weed Control - The adjustments provides for the total funding of the county
noxious weed abatement as a result of prior grant funds being unavailable.

2. Rents / Lease — Adjustment for share of printer/copier expense.

3. County Road Maintenance Accounts — Increase coincide with proposed
maintenance projects broken out by area. (See Attached Project Sheets)

4. Equipment Acquisition — Requested funds ($50,000) for 2 cost of purchasing
a used Vactor truck and funds ($10,000) for the purchase and installation of a
Thumb attachment for the backhoe.

9. Arequest to set aside reserve funds of $95,000 for the FEMA Six Mile
Drainage mitigation project that is scheduled to be funded this next budget
year. Of a total expected project cost of $1,486,716.00, FEMA funds 75%
with the county funding the remaining 25% with in-kind labor of $85,661 and
cash of $286,018.00 over a three year period. The $95K will need to be
reserved through the FY17 budget year.

6. A $5,000 in the Insurance Deductible line item account to cover the county
share of the required deductible for street sweeper fire loss.




e | 0OVEPTEET S T - (SVIUV T1v) V101 uNVED,

00'088'8¢e
I

. |
I A, - il

000000z (soueus)UIRW [ENUUE) SPect pared 1y L Bupsixe jje Buidding-ay

0000001 ¢ {Aluo [euLeWw) Buileeg oei / Buiyored SNOBUR|I90SIN
_PA*bsuad 06"y 153 00'09s'cz  $ 'sPA "bs 087G (2o adeq) nied o) kemiied ysn wol sieditiaq
" pAbs ed 05 v 153 00021085 4 SPA DS 09€'¢9| (129G 8ded) Wwepieisiuy 6) 9Bplg JOATY Sidl L Wodj ReAR WEBA

&
11
I
S
£

[2L3Snpuf ousy soye |

T oo'oog'ze ¢ g8y i SeJOL Ulem] yiep
_ e L Tar e e e @C___ﬂmm v_OWHO.-
I | Nm%mwm % T . sepesddn sbeuieid]

i 7 Tooooe'ze gleas T4 bgggrilel sBuudg olng o) Aliageony wod) suswa|) weg|
[ B [ sa1eIST UlBM] Bl

- T .-.11@., QIW.NM‘-We ‘cw 34 ._u.w 00cs L e s[e1o ] ¥ooy _uﬂ.:_mm

00’000 & ‘pY |eu? o suopiod Lo Bulesg xomﬁM
00007, $ 06 dbs ooz 150 jeb weq Aqieq woly py [eued) jo uolioes
T - 100y pajured

— _ |
o Tlovoge'ss ¢ (g8l M 'bs 8816 SIejo poomyoo

00°000'G1S Py umojesno pue Aepp UoAUES 18 LIeAIND 20815y pue anoway]
o T 00°095°2$ ze SNOLIBA ﬁ Aepp uoAuen) Uo sajo ﬂoM
| eAedey /Jjedoy 00°000°¢$ Aep UoAued e sbpug “py youey ueg - Bunjoeq eBpug
jyusuieBeuepy) o)sep ‘ | 86puq JoAly saxoni |
| _UumIsop peuelis z/L[ 00008208 58z 4 bs 882°1g 03 dwe.-UIo punoq 3529 0g| WOy "Py BURISNIY 4O UoHIGG

poomya0T|

T 00000°2i  §

] . ) S|ejo L olIN XIS

L S - —— Lo
1.00°000°21 o ] . ault Jes) Buidduig-ay

100000

Buteag yoeIn|

uoAuz) sl Xis

| I

.. LSOO WIMEIVW IS3| SowNol T Ty 1 ﬁ INVYN

e I S V1o [/ TV 1 ONIAVH / AYON 438~ Oxid|
[ SYHOM OMENd AINNOD . OIS




5 |b208

_ §

WBIA

S12301 JilH PIoD | ﬁ“_m

L

Tooooo'oz § BUlloS Yoris 7 BuloIEd SNOSUEIBOSTA | [IH BIoS

00°000'0C $ iGEl Bujjeeg yoeun / mcmcoyma msom_cm__mow_E / \_EO eulbaA

o ) 0008Ycc $)18C 14 'bS 0008} {,#ZX,06.) I PUE Uojur) Usemieq 15048 N
N 00002°LL  § 0%l 14 *bs 0826 1S J PUB IS UIBW Usamjaq py |01

T [ o000v'9z  §|oee 14°'bs0zl'1Lz 1S JO pus 0} UOIBUIYSEAA JO LINOS 1S H
00°000% $ |0g 1 bsS i (7 1X,961) "8IS NWWING pue pJemoH usemiaq 1S Jojke |

000000z $ 052 14 °'bg 09761 (,86X,025) 1910H epeLIey Jo JUOJ} Ul IS 3 ULON

T ~ T 00000 § 162 4 °bsS ovL'y (,0£X.85 1) 'SIS v pue g usamjag 1S UosIe)
= __looozrz  §ire 14 °bs 0882 (#2%,021) ‘SIS @ pue J Usamjaq 11§ Uosie)
T ) 00008'7L  $ 68l 14 'bS v¥6°0L (Fex.06y) uoun pue lojke) usemiag 1S 4
0002802 $ |vSe 14 'bg yzeolL (.v2X9/9) 'PH lloL pue uopjays usemieq g 4

S 0000r'OL  $ |GOZ 14 'bs 09621 (,¥SX,0F€) [004yoS Auswalg Jo 1oy ul 1S g

- 0000267  $ |GLO 14 'bs 00z'0r (.0£x .0vE 1) 101 Buplied ejea puyag o) IS JIW 30 YInos 1S g
000229 $ [v8 19bszll's (.92x,22Z) 9ouenus 3d 1sed 0] IS JeA|IS Jo UHoU 1S g

- ~ loo009'lc  $ ol 14 'bS 0or'LL {,DEX.58%) onseD o} J0/Ae | JO YInos 15 g

| o0oor'e  § g0l 14 'bS 9599 __(zex,g0z) uopng Joyinos 1S g

- Tooo0zsl  $loel o bsgov'el] _(9eX,82¥) "815 UOSIED PUE [IIN USBMISG 1S §
. "loo0o8Ts % 099 14°bg ove'zy IS 8 UM UCHOBsIBIU| 0} Ypou Uoling usamieq 1 v
._looov0'Z  ¢lse 4 bs 0v9°g (0£x,881) SIS O pue g usamieq g Joike |

| |

HIH PIOD | AjD equiBaip
| _

) looozs'zs §ieoy | dbswriiz S|2j0L Py uMojesNoT
~ | 00'000°G ¢ BulUdIe] SnosUB|SOSI \ms,_mmm oeI |
) | 00'079%E ¢ [gs 14 °bS vyl 'zz]  (22X.9G1 1) uonoesielul MBIAISATY JO UINOS UMOIesnoT
U ocogs'zr $ (og Buijeas yoeio pue Buiyojed snoaue|Eos|N
o ‘P UMO}eSN0T
n | 00°09L'SyL  $[8LLL 4 'bs vye'sy Is1e30 L"pY Jubumuey
m
) 00°000'S $ Buiyoleq snoeueyi@os)ly / Builees doeld
- 000242 $ [ve 4 'bg 0882 Py 1yBumpeD Y seyoeoldde py BleQ
) 000FY'ZEL  $ (8LZL 14 bg 09L'oLl {,czx,0825) Yoeqe|ppes 0) UuoU o)eb apisy;
I _ PY JyBumes
- spue|ybiH 4319 ejuibaa
B 1S090 TV LYIN
B A3LVWILST] 39YNOL CELN INYN

S1OArodd ONIAVC / AYOY d3S0d0xd

SHHOM 2119Nd ALNNOD ATFHOLS




WATER SYSTEM




JSIEAA

L29/€TL (vZOGeT | [962°461'L 1S09€90°y ¢ Bulpumysen

o ___¥l/gl W o pied ueo| [einy yasgn)|
Zer'oos | m:“:c_mwm ysen

€0077 . |898'J€  IGL'PEL  |€8L't9) | @suadx3sAonueAsy 1£00°60L

. |696°00k

..|ees’evs 829’04y . se0'98€ | esuddx3jelol; /6605 [EEV'80§  |0se‘sey  Liz'Siy

. YOZTVOL  SEZVOL

. _|00ve-  oovZ.
60yl _ 1\6¥8C | LLB'9T
lLzg8e

LA 7 Ol E e v e

v asuadxy *mco o O
mo__ma:m g 20IAIeg
- E_%wmvm_
ém_mw

- ‘sain} v:wnxm

0
000212 00026l |9989L  le6E'€L | _ Aepngjepdeg| T R
0006z |0 | esuadx3euoieiad) o o e
00L/81 iZ6006) 0109 00v/8}  |0SEELl _ 0BEZBL  S96'L/L
Ze7'€9  8Mwl9  ewsls  losses | youed|  |Zev'e9 8lr'l9 11028
Sov'svL _z96°'8EL vSpeyL  i9gl'os Sov'8rl  z96'8€L £€69'6L1
! | sainypusdxy|

..oov'e8s

000'€l9  [00V'/8G  6LU°V09  [0ZZ'66y | senuooy [ejoL|’

aw'vos | senusnsy fejo]

1086 ezl
000, 10002} 0002}
000'0  00F'E 989G
000'G6S  000'Z.S _ 0Z0F9S

. sodeq iauioisny
, uoJ jende)

| {3
; o suoinguuog jgyden
e, SWOMI L 1000'EL 1000 000%ZL . 0002k | T susy
... dsslewl T l000%9 0OWE | 989'S bl B _1sew
Ce OBMMJORlES] l000'G6S 1000245 | |£92'495 964'88F | 'sedihiag oy £ob.

_Jebpna) jebpng|  empy .
- 9kSL0Z, Sbvi0z)  pL-eior o707

mmscm?m.w_

- u_ B
Ewam>m houmg

. - %3< T _.m.m.:cu»mm_.
png  jebpngl  emoy T jemay T
8610z, S1-bL0Z  ¥I-€L0Z]  eb-Zloz ssgm Ema

; G1OCHeIE




poaoaddy
910z

T abeg

00°000°ETY

06 000°BT

60060 T
00°900°9

00'Q00'565

00000759

A0°000°9

00° 000 %25

aaTIejUaL
9102

C0°000 565

00 Q00'S65E

00°000°59

00°Q00'9

00°000 ' pZS

‘utiaig
o9T0ET

00 00F‘LBS 00°00% L85
SL°0TE'SSE
00'00% ST T2 LT 'TT 407 00% ‘ST
GO O00ET 000009 007000 2T
00" 00%‘E T2 L01's 007 00% ‘€
09'000°2LS ¥6'E0T TP 007000 'ELS
00°000°59 qc° 019 ‘82 00000759
LB TI697'T
§L'€29°8
00°000'9 PSS0L7T Co 000’9
0t g9L’'s
007000 'T0S 86" E08 962 Q0000 'TOS
pajrwilsay 238G OL Jabpag
5T0T ST0E 5T0E

FI/ZT 140 HINOW THI ¥0d I¥04Td dNNEATA

DNIINNODOY LADANE JI71End
ALNOOD ATEQLS

£8'6%6 983

TG 289 LT

00°000D'2T
256'983'g

TE'€9Z2°L99

Tz €51'85
LE G8T'S
6% 96Z'9
06'0T6 ¥

¥4 919 'E6Y

TENIOY
¥LO0Z

BEETTV P0G

BE ¥TI2 9T

a0°000°eT
geyIT'Y

00'@geT a8y

¥9°985'4L
SE"08%F 'S
TE'OSL'Y
45°TS¥'e

£S5 IZ6OTY

Ten3oy
£10%

WALSAS ¥2LYM
¥xyxy¥edex MYIOL 060 ONOJ

HONIAEY SOOENYTTIISIK

sxxxvy TYLOL ot

SONIQTING ALNOOD - SLNEd 000-€0Z9€

SONINAYE LSTEEINI  (G0O-0D0T9E

HNNZANY SNOENYTIZISTH 9t
SEOIAMES ¥0d SHOWYHD

wx¥xyy TYLOL j4%

FE34 NOISNALXE dNMOOH Q00-TEP¥E

FOUVHDENS AQILLE HELWM 000-LTPPE

HELYM-SIISOdE] HAWOISND  H00-PIE5E

SEAE LIWYId TYANNY-NIIL¥S 000-$TFPC

SEDYYED IINT HEIYM Q00-ZT¥e¢

SANACOH-ETHINOD N¥1IAYD 000-TT%#PE

SHOUYHD AXLYM 000-0TPPE

SHIIAHAS HOd SEOAVYHD %E
uotadiaosag

AUNSDDY § JUNODDY

WILEAS UALYM 060 QNN

ST/9%/€0 : 33ed unyg

“GEZAd ON 3jxcdoy



00°000°8%
007000 ST

007 00T LBT

00" 005°L
007 00g°T
00 oo 0T
00" 0CE"T
00°000°52
00°009
00°005°T
00°005°'g
00-00Z‘e
007 00S5°T
00°0D0°S
00" 000°ES
00°000°TE
oo-oop’gz
00" 000°'0Z
Doro00'E
ootonzy
noroos

D0 0081

00" E€H €9

00°9%1'%Z
00 EBE'LT
00°0&:'S
00" bLS’LE

D0 S3%"B%1

D0°59% ‘89T

pasoaddy SATIEIUDT,

Easeka 3102

00" 000 8%
00°000°'ST

00°00T 18T

D0TUOS "L
00°00S8'T
00°000°01
00°006°T
00°000°5g
007009
00°005°T
00°00%°S
00 00Z'%Y
00" 005°T
00"000'S
00'000°ZS
00'000'TE
00°000'€2
opDTon0’0g
00°000'€
0o ooz'Y
00° 008
00°'008B"T

00" EZEV ‘€9

00°'S¥%T°2
00° €86 LI
00-06L'S
00" %1IS'LE
00°'59% 871

007 59% "8%T

Bay adg

9102

abeg

00°000°ST

00°0SE'ELT

ag'oons‘e
000051
00°'05Z'8
00'00E"T
00° 00052
00°009%9
00"00S'T
00°005'S
00'00z’'T
00" 006
00°000°'S
00 poo’eEs
00°000°TZ
oo-opoo’oe
og'ogon’oe
00 00s8’e
gorooL’z
00'Q0F
00°Q0S'1

00°8TH'T9

00°L00°%
00'€B6 LT
00" 6BL'S
00 6E9’ 5

00°Z96"8ET

00"Le6 ‘T
00996 °SET

PalBwTISy

S10Z

CETLZTTT

LG EST'OTIT

SIURR=TA A
L9 18T
00°IS6°S
0S5 0%%°T
00°SZTEOT
Za'6s5¢

TV BLS'E
69°'80L"E

0T QTI%’T
T8 656°TT
LO"6EB'T
B9 LEL'%T
£0'0SEZ'LE

B8TLYTL T
ST Z01 ‘%6

238 oL

ST0Z/90

00°000787

00°05£°ELT €T BTT LIT
00 Q%€ ELT £Z°8TT 'LTL
00'005°g 00"ETP’'S
00°005°T T1-58
00°0SE‘8 00°HLe L
00°00E'T DS 0RO T
00°000'S¢E

00"009

00°005°T BE"EZLE'Z
00°005's 6T 085’V
00°002°T 9929
00'006 70" 058

0o 000°S ZSTLYE'T
00" 000°2Z9 DE"ZZV'BE
00 000‘1E LD ZTI9 6T
00°000°0€ SE'L86°6T
00'000° 02 EG°890'L
00°005'¢ 0z LL9’e
00°00L°E OFTPLEE
00°00% 10°67T
00°005'T SPLE0'T
00T BTRTY %' 11025
00°8TH 19 TI%°T110'2S
00°Lo0'Z 80'S€6°T
o0 f£A6 LT 0Z2°66£°9T
00'6BL'S T8 E0S’Z
D0 6E9°5E TE ELT'TE
00°296 ‘8ET S0 €69 °6TT
00296 'BET SO0'E69'61T
00°L66'Z 967L30°T
00°5996'S¢€T 60°5Z9°'8T1

J=2bpng TEN]0Y

STOZ ¥I0Z

T 404 STUNLIONEIXE ATIYHILSE
ALNOOD AE¥OLS

LELED'ZET

[sJsleRed: R4
SLTBET'€
DD ETE’S
0SS 0R0°T
oo-oos

82 C0Z'F
PE S0C'1
09°6L8

LT EZO'LS
T6'z0p '8
6P FE9'BT
66 SE6 BT
E0°EST’E
FE BBE'T
TOTIE0°T

8T L9Z'%E

SLUERTT
9T VLB 2T
BT L9%'T
L0*Z8L BT
3ETZFE’TH

EL A 2 ]

TENS oY

£Toe

20¥90dN) WILSAS 000-9T0%S

AYTILAOC TYLIAYD 000-0TO%S

LINIKWNHIACD TYEANTD ¥S

SHENEdXE IYNOILWMAIO fI¥I0l €5

SEITddNS ¥ SIOIANES TYIOL 0E€S

SI2 O0LZ-0LDES

SHOIAYMES TYNCISSHAOUd 000-0L0ES

SHAA HYT 000-690ES

SLIWYHd 000-890¢FS

HONVNAINIYH WALSAS 000-6B0ES

SEOIICN OITand 000-8B0ES

SEHYIL 000-THOES

TESHIA ® S¥D  000-0B0ES

HONYNILNIYH OLOY  000-0E0ES

SASVHET UNV SLNEA ooorrﬂomm

SEIVddd 000-9z0¢€S

SHITIANS PMILWMAAD 000-%Z0€S

STYDINEHD 000-€EZ0ES

SAILITILN 0Q0-EZ0ES

HONYNEINIVW INIWAINOE  000-STO0ES

TEAYHML 000-£T0ES

HNOHIHATAL 000-ZT0ES

SHITddNS E5IA40 000-TTOES

dD¥LS0d  000-0T0FS

SESNAAXE TYNOIIYHMEAD £S

SIIJANEE FONTHEd TVLIOL ZS

SITAENAH TONINA 1TYIOL OFS

FAYOTAAN  000-€TI0ES

HONYMNSNI HLTYHH 000-2t0ES

Lo¥d  000-TTOES

S¥3ad  000-0102s

SLISEANAE FONIMA [A

ZSNAAKE IDEHIQ RUVIVE I¥IO0L 1§

HSNIAXE LOEAId XAVIYS TYLOL 071§

WIIFEAD (00-TTIOTS

SHOYM ¥ SEIYYIVS 000-0T0TS

H5NEdXE L3HYTA AMYIYS TS

WHLSAS HELYM 060 IJd3a
uocTidrIaosag

Iunoooy 4 JUnoooy

WELSXS - M 060 aNng
LOYEDF D LE/E0 tuny
20.7Ed igdey



paaczddy

3102

00°000°'T
00°005'56
00 005‘gs
00°0058'%
00 000°'8%

00°000'E9

SaTIEIURL

910z

4

00 €EL' VT

00 00T '6ET

00T000'S0T

00 00L'¥%2

Q0001 ®¥E

00°000°F3T

00" 000'T
00005 GE
00" 005" %

00°00%'¥%

00°000"€9

0OTBEDTT

00°E0L"PET

00°'000°0TT

00" E0L'%E

D0°EDL"%E

00000 LET

0oToonT
00°005'L9
00°005'€S
00'005°'S
oo'oon’ey

00°000'ST

poIRwIIsH

SToZ

£E£°L56'8T1

SE'B6D'PT

LT 'SBE'ZT

LT S8E'ZT

B6 TES'69

o1'd O

S10Z/90

00°'860°VT

00 E0L FET

00°000°'0TT

00" EOL YE

00°000'T
Q0" 005° LY
00 005'ES

00°'00S’g
00°000'8%

106png

SIGT

060 pung asuadxy

01 A2¥ I8N

WHLIAS ¥YEI¥M TYIOL
060 L43d
SHDHN0S DNIDNYNIA MEHIO 9YI0L LS
DNIONYNIZ WHHIL IHCHS I¥I0L TLG
HIAIDNIUd ©000-TOTLS
SHOMNCS SNIDNWNIA NIHLO LS
SNOANVITADSIN TWIol 95
SNOENYTTIOSIN  TY1OL 595
NOILV¥IDEMAHd 000-05595
HENHIXH ISATEINT  IVIOL 19§
HSNIGYE ISEYEINI 000-0019S
SNOEANYITADS I 85
LNEWNIIAQD TYVHANID TY1OL TS
SHEOM DITENd  IYLIOL %%S
SONQITY LISOdI0 000-Z10%S
ISYHOUNd dALYM 000-%0FBS
NOLIVYLSININGY INZWIIAOE TYIOL T%g
INHWEINDE HEINAWCD 000-09ThS
86 THY AAMESEY TYILIAYD 000-L0T¥kS
AVILOC TVLIAYD TYLOL O%S

uocridriogag

50°696°00T 6%°T0Z'98
LL'0BE'E8F 68°0TZ'8TH
51 98B°6ZT 6S"SE9'0ET
T6°£02°%071 9L VEZ'BOT
T6 E0Z HOT 9L YET 0T
ST Z89°'5E EB 00% 9%
52°289°'52 €8 00%°9E
TE TLZ'EY BL LTS 6T
Z6ETLE'SY 6L LZS'6F
6 TLZ'S9 6L LTS'6Y

1eniny Teniay

YI0E E10T

9702 ¥O4 SHUNLIANFAXE AZIVWILSE
ALNNCD AHIOLS

AUNCDoY # TGO OY
WHLSAS dHIYM 060 aNQ4
LOFEQ'PT ST/LT/€D0 unyg
0oLEEd :3dey



Water - FY 2016

The revenue projections include the fifth year of the planned five year phased in base
rate increases along with a $0.20 per 1000 gallon increase, resulting from the raw water
rate increase from the Marlette System that will takes effect in July 1, 2015. This
yearly monthly increase amounts to $4.51 for the base residential rate and $6.30 for the
base commercial rate. Also included again is the revenue expected from the sale of
raw water per our agreement with CMI. It is to be noted that any action you may take
on this budget today and in the future is limited in context to the budget only. We will
need to convene the Water and Sewer Board prior to July 15t for official consideration
and action for rate adjustment. The eventually goal is to reach a true breakeven point
and be able to rely on true purpose of depreciation and capital reserves, which is to
maintain and improve the system.

Highlights of this year's budget request include the following:
1. Postage - Increase in postage costs due to rise in rate from USPS.

2. Telephone - Adjustment in telephone expense resulting from past and current
expenditure histories.

3. Travel - Adjustment in travel expense for continuing education annual training
conference.

4. Utilities- Adjustment based upon prior and current expenditure history.

5. Rents / Lease — Adjustment for share of cost for printer/copier.
6. Lab Fees -~ Adjustment for additional requirements for sampling costs.

7. GIS — Adjustment to fund share of GIS costs from Douglas County
agreement.

8. Water Purchase — Adjustment in expense for the purchase of raw water from
the Marlette System based on the raw water rate increase on July 1, 2015.




910z 9sealou J9lem [enuue 210i[0Z 088 27
g - ) 002€9°9) $[ 00988l | 0208 0gg __[siouolsnd am wog
- o ) 0Z'8%Z'92 $188/8L'Z $! 1GP$ S8y  |Siowolsno am say
T ) TBoA Jag US54 | SIEjjoq Ul soseaol] HALYM
T | Yjuoul Jed @)l aseq ay1 o) peppe | 08’9 % [{elolowwior -
B Liuouwl Jod ajed sseq ayj 0) peppe | 1§'p ¢ | enuspisey T
— e e TSV
1J0 esea.oul sles pesodold ay) sjoejjel eInbiy 1e0png meu siy |
00'/16'6£€$ ]
00°005'8VES {omeg |ejo
00°0052/8 0£9°G/ 60VYE vasn 18yio img
00°000'G$ 0009 80FPE I Mg
00°000°22$ 00022 gLve den amg
00°000'51% 000°G| 000'sL SLive Jamag HS
00°000vZ2% L1€°41E 21e'212 20¥Pe lamesg DA
00°000'565$ 19)BM [E30L 000'2.5$ e
100" 0065 i o000 ZIbE /71 M
. 00'000'69$ 00069 LIpre BuDINS M
2 Mg S 9B 2100000 7258 000°e% 000109 0007105 OLPPe ISE
. | einBiq jebpng mapN asealou) 10Bpng jueling fenyoy 19Bpng  [# JUnoooy:
ajey pajosfold
pajoeloid
91.02 5102

9102 AdJ 1OM8S @ JoJep)| - SUOHOS|

O.d 9NUBASY }obpng




VIRGINIA DIVIDE




Jomag

0z _

|essvze

€291

£64°722

_|oze'eol

_|yoziiel

695°L9-

y0z18L
€408V

;‘. mc_c:_mmm:mmo

Bupuz yseg

VLE'LLZ.

212’09z

988'vEY

Aoy’

Z8l6bl

156'8b1

S15°91-

asuadxy jejo)

glz‘00z

080261

8ve‘isZ

o

_ 1090°2€Z

am:wnxm jelo)

000°0¥

__..|oo0‘0Y

286 LY

1296\

10125

1825

0 ziez  |eStT

Z16YE

168242

lyiv'ge

381N

asusdx3 Sjdidlig

~esuadx3 jsaiop|

21z

BSYZ

YIABIA JUBIC)

0 26V

.68l

co_.g..m_mmamo
oSl

0

~yoeaked vasn

|serzst

Aeping [euden

0

88yl

8EE6T
89699

00v'6VE_

_Avr'ove ges'ive

|ee6'es

118'29¢

‘asuadx3 [euopeiedQ

sei/ddng ¥ 808G

05G'8Y

GETYE

'Sy 1080'9L.

asuadx3 )saseu|

Yojel el

__YoegAed vasn

_.|zreee

asuadxg jeuoneladp

salddng @ aoiAleg)

BEE'6C

cre'ee

sijjetiog

ger'LL

£16'99

gze'es

Alejeg

“sainjipusdxa

sa. mipuadx3y

SONUADY [ej0)

00F6YE

e eLL0VE.

_.zar'sie

19ABY |B)0] |

006_

0
~|o0g

gzZr'zeL

—uopnguiuod [enden

osIN|

0059¥PC

LVB'6EE

1988
L6v6Ee

0z0'L

saJdaju|

1698612

006

__...|008

o8

Sa0IAIeg IO} seBIeyD)

00s°'8be

LyB'6EE

1986'6£C

1sesjul
_ $90|AI9G 10} sabiey)|

1ebpng

H_vs,q

gv:(

T sanueasy|

19bpng

jebpng

wpny|

BANEUD L
91§ L0Z

m>_uﬂ:m L
m _..vwow

_m:uo,q

PL-ELOZ|

eroy

el-zLoz

- rysen

2AREjUD |

aAneIUT)

{enoy|

91-61L0Z

SL-v0z;

PLEL0Z|

‘sanuarey

i

SLog/Lele

 woishg 1emag)




00°005'9%€E 00 LEE OVE 00 LEE DVE 65°09%'512
00005 8ve 6Z2°68L'99T SSTELL'OPE EMIS HATAIQ/YINIOHIA
*rexwaxxy TULOL Q€T aONOJ

907005 75158 00008 SLT9ER TE" EBE HONIATE SNOTNYITAIS IW
|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| fxrxrn THLOL at
¢o-00S ¥5°TS8 a0’ 00s 54°6%8 T6 66 SONINYYE LESHIINT  000-00T9E
ANNIATY SOOTNYTTIISIW 9t

00 00S"B¥FE 00'005°8%E 00" L¥6'6EE SLTLEG 59T 00 L¥6 'BEE 08'9€6'6ET 89 59 ‘¥TZ S40TA¥ES ¥Od SIDAVYHD
........................................................................................... srxxar TYLOL e
00000 L2 00°'000'Le Qo 000°LT £6°0%T 2T 007000 LT 51°98T 52 88536 'yE NOTIYZITYIIAYD YAMAS 006-81%%C
00°000°ST LT 0¥E’S 00 000°ST 29785 0T 09°766'6 TITH aI09  000-3T%%E
007005 '2s 007005 44 00°0€E9°SL 887099 °'0¢ 00°0€9"5¢ HEIHLO - YAMES 000-60F%C
00°000'% 00 000 'S5 00°000°5 66°BLE'T 00°000'S TS TET'® L9°088'3 SEOYYHD ALWT WIMIS 000-8OPHE
00°000'ST 00000 'ST 6L'B0EE SAMICOH WAMAS DOO-LOPHE
00 000 ‘328 007000 %22 00°LTE'LTE 66°L88°2ZTT 007 LTE"LTE I8 ¥EL'66T £5°L99'ZLT SHOWYHD YHMES (000-50%bE
SHOIAMAS ¥OI SEOUYHD e

Panoxddy AATIVIUDL ‘WITeIg pelewTasy 37380 OL Jebpng TENIZY Tenioy uotidransag
2102 910z 3102 SToZ ST0Z ST0Z ¥IGE ETI0T JUNODOY § QUNODDY

HEMAS FAIAIQ/YINIDEIA 0FT QNI
FT/ZT A0 HINGK AHL 904 LMOdTH dNNIAZT

e "AC00Y I3DANG DITdnd 87
NNCD AFZOLS

i @geg uny
LS 4 toN jxoday

2z =bea




00 DS5EY

00°000'S
00°005'¥
00005

00°005'T
00°00%

00°000°0T
00°000'T
00° 000’91
00°000°S
00'005°2
00° 062

ogtong’t

00°'SET'VE

00'6TT'T
00'$0L'8
0o0"gos’z
00" £09'1E

00 E€EP " LA

paaoIddy JATIBRUST,

9102 910¢

00 055 'BF

00°000°S
00°005'F
00°' 005
00°005'T
00 00S
00°000'0T
00" 000'T
00'000'9T
00" 000'S
00" 00S ‘e
00 05T
00008’

00°'6TT'T
00°50L'8
00'808°2
0Dt ED9TTZ

00 EEV’LL

00'EEF"LL

bay 13dg

8107

30eg

00 0SL'S¥

00°008"T

00 S 1€

00°ZS0°'T
00"soL’e
00°'808°e
00" 02 8T

00 €98'2ZL

00'ZES’'e
0D TEE'69

pajrWTlSy

5107

61 786’52

00" 00L'E
00 8PI'T
00°0ST
Y0'606'8
LI'OTE 'S
LZ ERO’T
9T LET
S0° 986

L sée’0c

8870917
T0'T00’'TS

23 OL

S10Z/90

00" 0&L'SH 8T 9%9°LL
Py ZTLETE
PV ELEVE
D0 0SL'SY PBTELS'EY
00'00S‘2 00°005°¢e
00" 00S'% 00°S%¥0‘g
00005
DO°00S'T TELIT
00008 91 1S€
000007 DT TH 526 ET
00'000°1 £6°8ST
00'000" 91 0Z°098 " ¢1
00°000°S TL TLZ'9
00°'Q00S ‘2 9L SE2'T
00 0SZ 26001
00° 005’1 PELE0T
00°552'T¢ 1Z'BEE'6Z
00'SSZ'1E TZ BEE‘BT
00°Zso'T TZ 400'T
00°s0L’8 0Z°60Z°6
00'808°2 9€ TEP'T
00°069%781 ¥ 069'LT
007€98'¢gL BO"LT5'99
00" €98'TL BO'LTS 99
00°ZES‘E TT ELZ
00'TEE’69 L6 E¥Z'99
39bpng Ten3oy
S102 ¥10E

U0d SHANLIANAAXH OLIVHILSH
ALNOOD XENOLS

66°HEL 6

S6° 7Ly ‘88
~S6° %LV '88

66 8EL 6V
00" 005’2
007 6SE'¥

0E"00L'0T
6C"LIE

B6 ZOT LY
EL7LE8'0T
IS 88BL'T
LT ZET'T
TO TEQ'T

SE IvR ‘62

00*L8D'T
BS LPP'OT
€8 °FIE'T
FPOEZROLT
LT SEE’EL

LT SeE'EL

TenI0Y

£10¢€

INIHNIIACE TYHENID ¥s

SEGNIAXT TYNOILVEHEIO TIYIOL €6
SINYYD TYUIqEd TYIOL ¥ES5

WHLSAS YALYMALSYM-EDVYSN 9%T-T0PES
SINVHD JI¥I5 TYLOL £ES

WHLSAS ¥ELVMALSYM-EJIYSN 9$PL-00EECS
SINYHD AILVIS 000-00EES

SdITddNE * SHITAUAS TYIOL 0E5
§ID 0LZ-0LOES

5834 9¥1 000-690ES

SLIWYdd Q00-B90ES

"THSHEIO ¥ S¥O 000-0F0ES
EONYNELNIYA OLOY 000-0E0ES
SAITAdNS ONILVIAAO 000-%Z0ES
STYOIWIHD 0D00-EZ0ES

SHILITILN 0Q00-ZE0ES

HONVYNILNIYN INIWAINTE 000-9T0%S
HNOHJATAL 000-EL0OES

SEITIANE dDIJ40 000-TIOES
FOVLSOd 000-0TO0ES

SHENAJXE TENOTIRHEIO £S
SLIJENTE FONINA TIYLOL 2§
SLIAENHEE EHNI¥A  TYIOL 0ZS
HYIYITTAW  ON0-ETOZS

HORVANSNI HLTYIH 000-2T0z25

LJ¥d QQ00-1T0ZS

5¥ad  000-0TO0ES

SLIAENEH FONI™A 4]
HENEAXH IDEUIA AMVIVS IYIOL s
ASNIANE LOANIA A¥YTIYS 'IVIOL el
AII¥FAD 000-TTIOTIG

SHDYM 3 SATUWIVS 000-0TOTS
ASNAAXE LOHYIA Xd¥TIVS 15
YAMES FATAIQ/YINIDYIA OCT Ld3a

uotadiassag

JUNOCODY # Junoosy

WAMAS HATAIA/VINT A Q€T UNnJg
DEIST=HT T/E0  tunyg

Lzed fadey



peacaddy

9102

0orozs’oR

00"0ES"8
00000 8E

00° 000’05

|SATIRIUL,L

9102

YT 09%'RL -SET¥LS 9T
S6°LB6 29T 00'¥L6 LTE 0% 8¥E’LSE
00" %6% ' 18
00" ¥6E%'IR
00 YEER'TH
69 BZT'¥E 00 ZIE'ZY GE 0FPP 05
00" 000°0F 95 T86 L%
00 000'0% 95 T86 LY
69 8Z1'%E o0'grZ'e €6 BSY T
69 'BZT %2
no-ziz'z £6°85%'¢
Ly LTE 0¥ 0oToov Ry YET90%'EE
0P T95'61 00 00% ' 3€ PEC90%'EE
00" 092" v 00°C0%’A D0TO0ER’R
F5°659
0% TOE’ST 00°000'82 0B 9Tt '¥e
L0°95E"12 votooo’e
L0°95¢°1E ootooonTe
29ed OL 19bpng TENaoY
sT0Z/%0 510¢ 7102

Y0 665791

0E"Z%6'TY
25T 88L'E

ZS'88L’T

0T EDB’EE

oorony'e

0T E0F "5

TENIDY

£E10Z

0ET pung sgusdxy 03 A3 JaN
YAaMds ITIATI/YINTIDEIA IWIOL

0ET 1d3d

SHOUNOS DNIONYNIA ddHIO TY¥I0L LS

DNIDNYNIA WEEL L¥OHS IYLOL TLs

STIIONTHE  00C0-TUTLS

SHOUNO0S DNIDNYNIA JIBLO L5

SNOANYTTADSIW  TYIOL 95

SNOERVYTTIADSIN TYIOL §9§

NOIIVIDEYdEd 000-0559%

ASNEAXE LSTUALNIL TYLIOL T9S

NOISNAAXHE LNYId ¥IMAS 0ST-00T95

HENIAXH LSA¥LINI  000-00T795

SOOANYTTIDIS T 95

LNANNIEAQD TYHANTD TYLOL  ©S

SHHOM DITENd  TYIOL ¥%S

TITH dT09 000-9TFbS

SONAAZY LISOdTd 000-ZTHES

SEITAYES ALITILO 94F 000-90%%S

NOIIVELSINIWAY INIWIINOE T¥ILOL T%S

NOTLISINOOY INARATNDE 000-0ZTHS

AVILNC TYLIAYD ‘I¥IOL 0%5

AYIING TIVLIAYD  000-0TO%S

uotijdraossg

AUNODOY # JURODOY
YIMAS FATAIA/YINIOUTA 0ET dNNX

00" BEL'99E 00" %L6°LTE
00" ¥6¥'T8
00 EER TR
00 '¥6%'18
0oTon0oR 00 ZTI2'Eb
00°000'0F 00 000'0F
00'oo0’0w 00000 '0%
00'zIZ'?
00°zTIZ'eT
00°0Z5°98 00°00% ‘%%
00°0Z5°9¢ 00°00F%’9E
00" 025’8 00 00%'e
000008 00'000°BE
00'oonoosg 00°000°8
00 000°08G 00" 000’8
bau 1dg pPOIRNLTISE
9107 5102
sbeg

9T0Z ¥OJd SHINLIANIIXE dEIVWILEE
ALNNOD AZUOLES

OEIST!PT ST/EE/€0
00Le8d

runy
sadeay




Sewer - FY 2016

No anticipated Sewer rate increase is planned for FY16.

Highlights of this year's budget request include the following:
1. Postage - Increase in postage costs due to rise in rate from USPS.
2. GIS — Adjustment to fund share of GIS costs from Douglas County.

3. Equipment Acquisition — Requested funds ($50,000) for ¥ cost of purchasing
a used Vactor truck.




910z 9Se8.IoU] IS)EM

W [ENUUE |B)0}

02 0838 ¢vs

! 00'2£9'9l $]0098eL § 0g'9% 0cg _ isiswasnd im wog

P l..im DN.@.WN.@N % ce/e _..N “w _‘m..vw Get SIBWOLSND M say
e e -- - | TEA oy [juoui jed | SIBfjoq Uj|SeseaioU] A3l
- yiuow jed olei aseq ay) o) pappe | 0£'0 $ jlemwwor ) |: ] 1
Yiuow Jad a1el aseq oy} o) peppe | |Gy $ | [enuepisey ]
_ e - RESTTT SISVYAHONI
1Jo 8seauou| |jed pasodold ay3 sjos|1e) aunby 1ebpng msu SIY L

00'2¥6'6EE$
400:005 8yE: - ASMOE 210,
00°006°22$
nm%

00°000'565% 1ajep jejo ) 000°2.8¢
00°000'9% 0009 AR 2/ M
11 00°00069% 000'69 LivbE bynIng m
125100°000'v26S 000'ct 000°105 000’106 OlL¥ve 181 A
a.nbi4 196png MaN asealdu| Hvasm_ jualng jenjoy awm_u_..m_ # 1UNoooYy
a)ey pajoelold
| _ pejoofoig
9102 5102

9L0C Ad 19mag R Islep) - suopjosl

0ld ®NUaAdY jebpng




USD A




00" pP9 'B9Z

00" %%3'%32

00 09L"SFT

0088 'BTT
paaoaddy SATIRIUIL
9708 ST0Z

T abeg

‘wTTRId
9T0¢

00" %6L PTE L 00 F6L ¥TE L
TZ 28T 99T
£2°282°2
328 4-T-45
Q0" BEL'PTIE L 86 L0 BST 00" 6L FTE"L
00 PGL PTE'L  86'6T0’'PST 00'¥6L ' PTE L
paisutasy 33ed oL 126png
Si0e sT0E 5T0¢

FT/2T 140 HINOW FHL ¥O4 LNOdTE ENNIAFH
- ‘NIOOOY LEDANE 2TTANd
LNAOD ZEMOLS

fE BBS'066 2

00" 0020662

TENIDY
¥102

aNO"E ¥asn
¥rrewerax TELOL  SET QNNA

YAASNYHL ANNJAELINT

wwwwwwwwwwwww sxxxxx TYELOTL LE
oo & ©0R weoad ENIDNE HYId  0€0-LOZLE
NOISNZAXE LNYTA WEMIS OST-Z0ZLE

ATASNYAL ANNIUEINT iE

ANNEATE SOOINYTTADSIN
............. warxxy THLOL at

SONINAYE LESJEINI  000-G0T9¢
FNNIATY SNOINYTTISSIW 9t

HNNEAAY TYHIATL / TIVIS
||||||||||||| *exsdx TELOL £E

SQIID0Ed aNOd  00D-P0PEET

INNTATH TRIIAEL [/ SIVIS €€
TEn3oY uoTadtassag
€102 AUNCDODY § 3unoosoy

dNCH YOS SET aNnd

5" 0 i 2I'g uny
I d :oN jzcdsy




00 " ¥BB'HL
00 09L 0L

00 006 °8BTT

007000 wY
00°00& %L

pancaddy SATIEIUIL

atoz 9102

T

-6L FPSTBLTE LE'EEB'BOE'E 00

00'¥6L 'PTIE’S
00°000'008
o0'ooo‘o0z’T

bay adg PeIRWTISY
ERFA ST0Z
abeg

BE'¥ER'O¥R'Y 00" ¥6L " PTIE L 90°S5SL°18

ET E06'T09 % 00" ¥6L'FTIE’'S

27®'d o1

SZ'1E6"BEE 00 oo0’o08
0groo0’00zT’T
90'9S.°'T8
Jebpng IBEn1oYy Tenioy
STI0E PTO0Z £T02

STOZ/90

"T H0d SHANLIANHdRE qaI¥HWILSH
ALNOGD AHEOQLS

S¢T spung ssuadxy o3 a3y ISR

¥asn

SEOUNCE DNIDNVYNIA ¥HAHLO

ONIDNYNIA WiZl L¥CHS
NOISHNIAXS LNYId MEMES
HNIONH JHIA

SHEDYNCS SNIDNYNIA ¥HHIC

SNCHNYTTIOS I

HASNIdXH LSHEALNT
NOISNIdXd LNYId HEMES
ANIONT ENTI
SNOENYTTIDS I

LNIHWNYEAOD TYHEINIS

AYTILOC TYLIAYD

NOISNAdXE LNYTd dAMES
HONYINGWY

ANTONE d¥Id

AYILOO TYLIAYD
LNEFNNIIACD TYYHNED

wasn

uotadrassag

TYLOL
SET Lddd

AYLOL LS

TELOL TLS
0ST-TOTLS
0£0-T0TLS

LS

TYLOL 95

TYIOL T8S

0ST-0019S
0EQ0-00T8S
2s

TYLOL %S

TYI0L 0FS

0ST-0T0%S
SE€0-0TO0¥S
0EQ-QTO®S
000-0T0¥%S

¥

SET Idud

JUNDS3Y # JUnoosy

aNod vasn

SET gNNdg

BT:E5:RT IT/E0 runy
jeezdad adey




COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT




0D 00D"OT
D0 0SE
0o oon’eT
0ptoon’Y
jsJeRiale):]
00 000"BT

00'0n0’s
00°000°T
007005

00° 005" L
00°000°'T
00°000'¢C
00°00D°S
00°000°S
00°005°T

00'0LY "0OLT

00 LET'T
00" ¥56°%
00" 669°LS
00°BEJ'ST

00°'2%8'06

007959 'T%E

00'L06'9T

00'6FL 'PEE

pasoxddy 2ATIBIUBL

310¢ 210T

T

000000t
0ot 0SE
norooo‘e
00°000'%
00 oo08
00 00081

00°000°S
000001
00° 00§

00°005'L
0070002
00°000€

00" 000°S

000005
00°00S°T

00 0LY'OLT

00 LET’T
00 ¥S6 ' P
00 669'LS
D0 8E8 ST

0028 '06

00°958 "TpE

00" L0891

00°6¥%L 'p2E

bay 23da

910¢

abed

00°005°8
00 0seE
00°005°T
00'000°%
00008
00 0007LT
007000 ¥
007 00T
00° 008
00°000'€E
D0'D0C’S
00°000E
00°000°T

00" PTIV' 92T

00°Z8E'T
00" 98T %
00 BTL'CY
00'8sSE’TT

00°099°'%9

00'8TL°BBE

00"SST'LT

00" €95"TLE

PRABRTISH

5102

63°%50°S
g9 LBT
BZ ZLB'T
LLLLY'T
007608
£5°105°8
0¥ 9E6'¢E
PLG9L
L PEY
007 06% 'L
55°062'T

TT 96L'SY

00" £8L8E%

P8 88T T1
TE"#68°1
98°98T'91

97" G9T ST
£ESTLPT ¥8T

37eg og,

ST0Z/90

00°005'8 90°0L5°9
00°- 052 £9°ZZE
00°00S'T
00°000'% 1Z°205°¢2
00°008 00 06¥%
00°000'LT 86°S¥Z B
00 66L
00°000°F 09-29Z’'¢t
00 0LL
00001
00" 008 00°tLLS
D0 000°€E 6L TEE’T
68 95T
no*000‘s L5 0T9'%
00'000°¢E BL'LBZ'Z
00°000°T 86°L6T
00 ¥PIF 92T 63 6ZT EIT
00 %% '9%T 69°62T'8T11T
00°28%'z
00'98T'% LE"LBL'E
00 8ZL'EY Y6 0TZ' LY
00 8SE'TT T8 ' IEF B
007033 %9 LS 669'E29
00 8TL 88T S¥S¥h'ESE
00'BTL BAT SH SR FGET
00°SST'LT 90°598'5T
S56°058°37
00'E95°TLE ¥ 626 02T
18b6png Ten]oY
5T0¢ FI0E

HOd SHUNLTONAJXE THIVWILGH
ALNOGCD XFHOLS

LB EFT L
RS A
EP EEL'T
nnT oLy
LY EDE L
BE YT
T¥ 6L0°C
YL GLE'T
T6 LTE
g0 €6V 'T
€ '58% T
9L F5T
30 FI9°E
T1° ¥ZT°C
0E"£%

6E 8E9 10T

6Z T0E"E
LE'TTIR OV
BB 'BIO'¥®

ST°99%'£S

L6 369'9¢7

6€°G0T 9T

go-get

B85 S%E'0EE

TeN oY

£T0e

TASEIA ® SYD 000-0F0ES
LNIWIDYNYW THODEY  000-5S£0€S
HYYMLIOS ¥ALOAWCD 000-YEOES

AONYNEINIYHW OLOY 000-0EO0ES
DNINIVHI 000-6Z0tS

SESYIT ANW¥ SINEH Q00-LZOES
SEITAdNG DPNIIVYEJO C00-¥%¥TOES
SHTLITILA 0Q0C-ZTZOES

ONIINI¥d Q00-020ES

IONYNIINIVK INIWIINDE 0D0-9TO0ES
¥ISAL Q0T-¥TOES

TdI¥0SHENS ® 53N 000-%¥T0E€S
TIAYYL 000-tTIQfES

TYIYLEAANI OMER HOHVIL 00S-ZTI0ES
¥15dL 00Z-2T0ES

INCOHAHTHL 000-ZT0ES

WISHL 00Z-TTI0ES

S8IT4dNE #OI44C 000-T10ES
AD¥IS0d Q00-0TOES

SHSENEdXE TIVUNOTILYAHAO €9
SLIJHNEH HDNI¥4 TYLOL TS
SLIAENIH HDNIYA TYIOL 0TS

¥ISAL 00Z-%#T0ES

ALTUNDAS TYIDOE (00C-PBTOES
YISIL 00Z-€ET0ZS

HYYOIadaw 000-€TI0ZS

YISdaL 00Z-2T102S

HONYNOSNI HLIIYEAH Q00~ZTI0ZS
¥ISEL Q0Z-110Z29

LO¥d 000-1TOEZS

¥ISWL 00Z-0T0ZS

S¥dd 000-0T0ZS

SLIZINTH IONIN¥A (4]
dENEdAE LOFUId AYVIVE YLOL TS
dSNEAXH LOFYIC A¥YIVS  IYLOL 01§
ALIAFDNOT 000-0Z0TS

YISHL 00Z-TTIOTS

GWIIEAAO 000-TTIOQTS

2102 530 WAOLS E1%-0TQ1S

YISAL 0D0Z-0TI01S

SHOWM 3 SATHYTIYS 000-0T0TS
HENAdXT LO3YTd Z¥YIVS s
INIWAOTIATIT XLINNWWOD 60T IdEd

uotidraosag

AUNODDY # IUNoIoy

by 9 100 aNndg
TO:BE!LL $T/E0 sunyg
S0LZYEd F3dey




00°000'S
007009
00°'05¢
00°005°T
00" 002'1T

paaciddy SATIBIUII,

9102z $10¢

[

00°009
00°05Z
00°00S°T
00°00E2°T

bay ada

9102

abeg

00°00T'E
00" 000°5¢E
00" 000°52
00" 0S8T'TS

00009

00 008
00 goe

palBWLISy

STOoZ

69°'566 T8I

9€'L62'80% 00°2BE'E
00 SEE'T

00°'S%%°T

00" S%%°T

IS 69%'SY 0o o00T’L
9L TS0'8 00" 00T'%
9L°T50'9 00°00T'Z
SLTLTY LE 00°000°%
SLTLTR'LE 00°000°'S
ZT ERD'E¥ 06'0ST'T
TL EBF 'EF 00°0ST'T
0§ L9T 00009
DE'TET

¥EEE0CT 007008
9T1° £55 007008
ERi-ly R a1=Bpng
S10Z/90 3102

9T0Z HOd SHENL

T0°PSE SBL'T

[4

[

5 08 L85'ZE

0o- 8L
Teniay
F10e

IGNEdXT JHLVWILSH
ALNNCD AFHOLS

66 SET'HEZ T

00 92€L
120y

E102

T00 ipungd aguadxg ©23 AsY I9N

LNHNIOTANTT ALINOWWOD

SNOANYTTIIADSTIW

SOCENYTTIIDSTIN

SANNAFS
SNOANYTTIDSIH

LNIWNYEAOD TYHENTD

NOTLVULSINIWAY INIWIINDI

ININAINDE UHLOGWOD
AYILNO TYLIFYD

AYTILOO TYLIAYD
ININNYEAQR TYHANID

SHSNEAXE TYNOLLYEIdO

SHITAdNS ¥ SAIIATAS

SID

FONYNALNIVH DNIATING
SHOTLON DITand
INZWdOTAAEd JIWONODE
SHYIL

ucTidiansaqg

JUNOD2Y

TYHANTD

TY.LOL
60T IdEd

IYLOL 89S

TYLOL 595

000-0ES9S
95

TYLOL 75

TELOL TPS
000-02T%S
THILOL 0F%S

000-0TO¥%S
A

TYLOL €5

TYICL GES

0LZ-0LDES
000~L50€ES
000-8%0€ES
000~-Z%0€ES
000-1¥0ES

# aunoooy
T00 aNndg

TOTBEILO ST/®Z/E0 :unyg
ootzHEd 3dey




Storey County @ummumtp Bebelopment

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775} 8470966 ~ Fax (775) 8470835
P O Box 528 ~ Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty .org

March 23, 2015
Re: Community Development Budget Summary 2015-16
Dear Storey County Commissioners:

Thank you for the opportunity to submit the Community Development Department Budget. I
believe this is my 29 year that I have had the opportunity to submit a budget in Storey County.

The following budget reflects the duties and responsibilities of our office to support Storey County
in a whole with all the other departments under your leadership. Our department is mainly
responsible for all building and construction within the county along with all business licenses
(excluding liquor, brothels, security, gaming and cabaret). We also, once again, have been assigned
nuisances throughout the county. Gur department handles all FEMA, CRS and Floodplain
Management requirements. We continue to provide project management on County facilities and
assist on all grant administration on facilities and or any other special assignments given. We also
continue to provide assistance with Economic Development in working with prospective
companies who would like to develop in Storey County.

For the upcoming budget, we have added an additional inspector and full-time staff person to help
us stay up with the increased workload we have experienced. This new budget, with the expected
workload, will hopefully enable us to be able to stay up with all the new projects that we are
blessed with in Storey County. We have also tried to look forward on projected projects and
growth for this next budget year and for the next 2 to 3 years. We expect this to be a continuing
construction and growth cycle for the continuing three years.

Thank you for your consideration and please feel free to call me on any questions. Once again
thank you for the new county vehicle that you purchased for our department this year.

Sincerely,

Dean Haymore
Storey County Community Developwment Director




R

‘BIEM3J0S 530D SE ‘palepdn pasu siamnduio]
"8aURURIUEW Bu0W Bulinbal sapw u Yy ale sa|a1yaa Alunon

"HB1S PASEALIU] J0J PISU SAULLIBISP BSBUDUI PROYIC AR
‘DAjIBIEBN

sasuadxy je10}

Aennp |ende] jeyo)

LNIWGINDI YILNdIWNOD 09TFS
NOLLSINDJIY LNINCIND3 0ZTHS
AYILNO 19LIdYD OTOYS

Aupessdo je10)

{Q3YVHS} S21AY3S SID 0/ 0ES

uads ang Yead 1se) 1a3png 3,UpIP--sa2130N 2L gnd SY2§0

“JeA S|yl ' TEQ'TS 1uads Apeauje ‘S310§33 "A2() "UDDF UE SRR mhm 2
"iBSA JMaU $3U1) MaU PV (1M $YINHT OM ], ,.mm

adesn |any 310W -- Jo3dadsu) ppe ol pean |

a.12myjos 21epdn o} pasp 2
SIUBUDIUIBW 340W PIaU SYINI 3P0 %

252340U) 43]d0d Joyg m:__uv_q

saapd |any Jay Ay Bupoadxe aium Pl wm:
(sdew ‘sue)d 4o sjupd ‘saidos) 179946 ads Apeane aaeHl __Hm%
LO'PETS uads Apease aneH{HogE L
b 5
uapduasqns ddy gt ,mw
“suoiieziuedig apo) ul diusiaquaw paau (M s0303dsu) MaN "S5°0%Z'TS puads Apealse arep sﬂmw%
Wawdojaasp JwouoIs ‘Buluely 1oy paloadka .m..._m._...

Mm
123 05 4224 8|41 B 999'ES Juads ApeaJje “Jojaadsu; alow auo ppe 01 pasN %x_w ] w@ .
+00ES JUads Apeadie pus goT TS Buisod Julrepy ar] sq ayy Yum JB3A S|y +Q0% TS puads o 123{oud S LS 3.,.

FINANLNIVIA ONIQTING £SOES
SADLLON 2119Nd BROES
LINIWA0TIAIA JHAIONODT THOES
S3IHIL THOES

135310 '8 S¥Y9 Ov0ES
LNINIOVNYIN QHOOIY SEQES
JYYMLIOS YILNDINGD FEBES
DNYHNIALNIVIN OLNY 0£0%S
ONINIVHL 620€S

S3ISYIT/SLNIY £70ES

S31ddNS ONILYYAdO $T0ES
SAILNLN ZTOES

ONILNIYd 0Z0€S

LNIYI¥ dIND3 9T0ES

V1531 - 'dIM3S8NS 8 $INA  00Z-¥TOES

"dl¥258NS 7 SINA FIOES
TAIAVYL ETOES
ANOHAII3L TTOES

RL-53ddNS 301440 00S-T108S

S3NddNs 301440 TT0ES
19V150d 0T0ES

jlodied jeyo)

‘0jul Adejes u| sBueyd ioy 99ed ajeiedas aagf

dIOJ/dNIND STOZS

SS ¥10ZS

JUVY2IAIAN ETOZS
SNIHLTY3H ¢Eoes

12vd T10TS

SH3d 0T0ES

ALIAJONGT 0T0Ts

10 1T01S

SIOV M 1B STHYTIVS 0TOTS

{3wpIng) wowdeaaag Ayunwusesy 5ot

}83png 9702z




DISTRICT ATTORNEY




00°000'2

00" SLL ®LT

00°000°'0ST
00°005
00°005
0000
ohtonn’E
D0°SL8' P
00" 00D’ €
00°000°9

poroos’e
00'000°2
oo-o000'z
00°00%

00" %LZ'9TT

00°'80T'2

00 01E'%
00°889'9¢
00 ST6°'0T
00'ESE'ZL

00" WkE 062

00°B¥E’ 06T

paaoxddy 3ATIBIUL],

3102 910z

00 0002

00 GLI'6TIT

00000’ se
007005
00005
00°00%
00°000'2
D0°SLE'Y
Do Goo'E
notonn’y
Do oDS'E
DDTO00'E
00" 000’2
00 00%

00" PLT'9TT

00°80T°2

00°0TZ’%
00°999°9¢

00°STE°QT
00 "£SE’ZL

00" ¥PE 062

00" %¥E 062

boy adag

9T0E

abeg

00°000'9

00°059'58

00°000'09
007008

00°000'€
0000072
go'osL’e
00" 000" E
00'0ooTe
0o o0s°e
00 000"2
000002
00 00"

00 0Z%’9TT

00°659°'2

00" LLT W
00 538'%E

00 Z16'01
00 LOB €9

00" LLO'BBT

OO LLD'BRE

PIIeNTISE

ST0E

00°000'9

S6°LBL'TE

00°0S6°'T
BE TTL 6T
Ly EL
£T° 6089
00" 696
SY B09'T
98°LOT'T
05" TEE’E
£9° LLE
TL8RZ’ 1
£€°809
00" €62

967 59L'1L

9% 88% '€
T8 BZI €Y

00" 86L"LET

58°559°T
ST Zv¥T'98T

29BQ O

ST0Z/90

0070009 ¥9°69€'9
00°053%'5® L6'90T 69
00'053°58 L6°90T'69
00008 00°'%L5'S
00 000°09 DE"SO0B'LY
00008 AR AR
¥S Z6E
00°000'¢€ 16 °¥Z0'T
00°000'Z 6E"T66
00'0SL°¢E B 0FF'E
00°000'€E 9T°489'T
00°000°% 09°vL8'Z
0070052 9L 9LT'T
00 o00’e SS'816°T
00°000°€ %0°86€"T
0000y 00°00E
0002V 91T TE'9L6°S6
D0'DEY'OTT TE 9.6 56
LA AET:E]
00'659°¢2 LT LY’
2E' 09T
00" LLT'¥ 0¥’ QZE’E
00" 698" ¥E 96 6BE‘ZE
8E'00%
00ETE’0T L1°6b6"Y
00 LDB'EY LE B65SES
00 LLO'8BE 66 96C ZET
00'LLO'BEBE 66962 '2EC
E0°S50'TT
00°LL0'98% 96" 1vz'12C
1abpng Teniny
ST0Z Y102

04 SHENLIANEAXE JIIVWIILSH
ALN{ICD AJHOLS

BY C£OL'T

09 65SE’LL

00"B¥E'S

05°L89°T
85 €6F'ES
88" 8¢
Z6 ' OFE
00°0LT
DZ TOS'E
ET ¥¥9'1T
B¥'858°T
9% " ZET
50°8YY'2
90°980'2C
P 0BTV

0P 79988

597 0TE 0T
0T Ezo'0EE

Tenyoy

£T0E

LRAWGINOE HALOAWCD 000-09THS
INHIWNEEACD TYHIANZS ¥S
SASNIAXT TYNOILWEEAO IYLOL £S5
SHITIANS ® SIIIAPES TYWIOL 0ES
SHUNLXTA QN¥ HIOLTININS  000-ZTLOES
¥IS3L 00Z-04L0ES

SNOILYILODAN NOING TEI-0LOES
SEOTAYHES TYNOISSHEAQUd 000-0L0ES
FONYNALNIVA ONIATINH O000-LS0ES
INIWADYNYW dAaOHd  000-SE0ES
JUYMIIOS ¥EIONAWOD 000-¥EQES
ONINIWYL 000-6EZ0ES

SAGYH'T ONV SINI¥ 000-LEOES
SEILITILO 00C-ZEZOES

‘dI¥OSHAS 3 SHEAD  000-FTOES
LNYED d0LS ES5T-€T10ES

THAYYL 000-E€T0ES

INOH4HTAL 000-~ZTOES

SEITdANS HJIZA0 000-TLOES
OYLS0d  0Q00-0TQES

SASNIINE TYNOILYYAJO £S5
SLIZHNAH HEDNIYNd "TYLOL S
SLIJANEE IONI¥d ‘IYLOL 0TS

LNYED 4018 E€51-%10ZS

ALTHNDES TYID0S  0Q00-%T0ZS

LNYHD d0L5S  E€9T-£TQ0ZS

HYYOIAdW ©O00-£T0ZG

TONVHNENT HITIYIH 000-2TOES
INYED d0LS  €9T-TT02S

LJ¥d  000-1TpES

S¥3d 000-0T0ES

SLIAANIE EDNIHA 5
ISNEdXE LOWYIC AUVIVS fIYIOL TS
ISNIIXE LOHMEIA AMYIYS TYLOL 0TS
LNWED d0LS  £%T-0TOTS

SHDVM ¥ SHIAYIVS 000-010TS
ESNEdXH LOHYIA AAYIYS s
AANMOLLY IDTHLSTO TIT Lamd

uotidiaosag

AUNODDY # Juncooy

T 7 106 aNad
FSIETILT Z/g0  tuny
.dezad :adey




69'GER'ERI’T TO'#SE°58L°T 66°S6T'BET'T T00 !pung asuadxy ©3 Az 8N

.............. borirerias 00 Lo zon 00" 196 005 16785947608 00" T86 005 16'560°60% LE BOY'TOV ABNHOLLY IDTHISIO  TVIOL
........................................................................................................ ITT 14aa
00" vER’ T DD FER‘YR 00'%E9’p 00°LT%°2 0o wER’Y 00°0SE’'S 00" LBE'9 SNOANYTTIOSIN  IYIOL 9§
00'FER P 00°PES ¥ 00'%ER'Y 00" LTIv'E 00 FEB' ¥ 0D 0GE'S Q0 LBE 9 HSNEAXHE LSHYMINI TYIOL 19%
00 VEB'Y 00 FEBF 00 YER'Y 00T LTIY'E 00" %E8'D 00'05¢€’g 00" 4BE'9 IENAIXE LSTYELNTI  000-00TSS
SNOANYTITIOS T 9g
00°000’g oo ooo'z [sheReloivi-] 00 000’9 00'000°9 P9 536’9 8% €94 T INEANYIACS TYEANITD TYLOL 36
00 000'E 000002 0o‘poo’s 00" 000’9 00'005°9 F3'59¢€ g BF 894 T NOILYHLSININOY IMEWAINOE TYIOL The

paascaddy SATIBIUS], bau adg el in) iRt s3eqg og J9b6png Tenioy Tenjoy uotidransag

9107 9T0¢E 910%Z 5102 ST0Z/90 ST0Z vI0¢ £T0¢E JUNODDY § Juncooy

TRIANED  T00 aNad
PSi6T LT ST/EZ/E0  funy
00tzdd :aday

3102 ¥OZ SHANLIANZEAXE ASIYWILSH

4 abeg ALNOCD ARMOLS




ANNE M. LANGER
STOREY COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
P.O. Box 496 + 201 South C Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

March 6, 2015
NARRATIVE RE 2015/2016 STOREY COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S
OFFICE BUDGET

The Storey County District Attorney (SCDA) office will continue staffing with a full-
time District Attorney, a full-time Deputy District Attorney, a full-time Administrative
Assistant/Paralegal and a part-time Administrative Assistant/Paralegal including a
potential reclassification

« 53027 Rents and Leases

SCDA has increased rents and leases budget line item by 30% to accommodate rate
increases on copier/printer for new fiscal year.

* 53034 Computer Software

SCDA has decreased computer software as present systems are up-to-date other than
potential need for one Administrative Assistant station to be updated.

* 53035 Record Management

SCDA has included a record management budget line itemn in order to continue utilizing
off-site storage and document destruction pursuant to the State’s retention schedule.

* 53070 Professional Services
SCDA has increased the professional services budget line item to appropriately manage
potential criminal investigation and witness fees, and continue sub-contracted fees for

* 53072 Furniture and Fixtures

SCDA has decreased furniture and fixtures budget line item as the office is currently up
to date and efficient.

Telephone (775) 847-0964 « Facsimile (775) 847-1007 « www.storeycounty.org « scda@storeycounty.org




JUSTICE COURT




00°2LE°Z
00 BEL'ED
00" %Z%’g
00°INB'S%

00 ELS’€9T

00 ELS7E5T

pasoaddy BATIBIUDL

S10C 810¢

0oros
007008
00'000’s
00" 0sz
00°00€"T
00°008
0005z
0070085
007052
00°000°'T
00°008'T
00" 00L

00" 5Z€° 00T

00'eELE'z
00°8ZL'EY
00°%ZV'8
00" T08 ST
00 ¥LS'E9T

00 FLS5'EDT

bau ada

RN A

abed

00'00E'6T S6°6%6'ET
00 00E’6T S6'6¥6 ET
00'00S LZ ¥SE
00" 00§ 66 65T
00 000°% 98" 6F¥EF T
-B0°9L
00°'005 £8°9¢€2
00°000'T BT 96¢
007000'S 88°€20°S
00°00S 06°08L'Z
00°000'T Y0 8%8
007009 08" %52
00°00S 00°T0T
00°' 00§ 00°SEY
00°00S -82°89%
00°000°T 127119
00°005°8 LE 992’1
00’ 00L TO"9LE
00°SZ8'S6 TO'EEQ'T9
00°5zZ8'56 YO0 EE0'TY
99 BT
0D DEE’Z TL7ESS'T
0D B69'EY 09°558'8¢
00'%Zv’8 ¥ Ses'e
0D ELE'TLY S9°€£80°62
DU'ELY0ST ST'66Z'60T
00°E€L9°09T 5176627601
00°€L9'05T ST '662°'60T
PalewIlSy 23e( of,
ST0T STNET/ 50

£E0° 569
£0°569
00" 00E"6T 16'2Z€z'0¢2
00°0DE'6T 16°2€Z'02
00°00%
00'005
00°000'% €0 LS L
98" 69
00'o00S
notoDo’T ST 0%5'T
00 000'S TE ZTI9E'S
00" 005 ~S6°¥5%
00°000'T ZLTTZT T
00009 89°959
00’008 PLEST
00 00§ 08°0€E6
00 00S LLTLBT
00°000°T 85 6EL
0e'00s e 05°9L6'T
00°00L TETE8T
00528 'S6 £Z°B69'56
00°5Z8 66 £Z 869756
8°9
00'DEE’EZ 16 12€'2
00 865 €% YE'SE8 LY
00°'%ZY’8 0B°SIT'¥®
00 ELE'TY LE BZYT¥
00'€L9 7091 U6 LEL'SST
007 €L9'091 06'LEL'SST
00" EL9'09T 067 LEL'GST
a19b6png TENI10Y
S10Z 102

Mod SEANLIANHAXT OAIYWILST
ALNNOD AHHOLS

69°LLB'H

66 8AT
Z6°51¢
66787L
00 0%E‘Z
£6°928'T
06812
00°000'S
09 °0TE
0T 00%
S0T6F0T
68 P2
0095

€T EEL'9L

I8'8B¥L 9¢

AR TAREA)

v ¥ZTE9T

Tenioy

[ RvEA

NOILVELSINIWAY INAWJINDE TVIOL TS
LNTHIINDE SHLOAW0OD 000-09TBS
LNIHNYIAOD TYIENHD ES

SHENIAXE TYNCILVIEIC TYLOL €5
SEITIIOE ¥ SIOIAUIS TYLOL 0ES
BELIIIYILNI  0Q0-8LOES

SEYNLXTA ONY HEALINYNS 000-ZTLOES
SEOTAMHAS TYNOISSHACHd 000-CGLOES
EITYHEH TYINIW SE€T°L SdN  QQ00-€¥0ES
THSEIC ? SYD  000-0%0fS

SHWYOJATIMN QQ0-6EQES

LNEWEOYNYN QUOJHY  000-SL0ES
FHYMIAOS JILOJWOD 000-FE0ES
DNINTYEL O000-6Z0€S

SHASYAT (ON¥ SINI¥ 000-LEQES
DNIINT¥d 000-02Q0€S

HONYNALNTYM ILNEHJINDA 000-3T0L8S
"dI¥DSHNS ¥ SEANG 000-%TOES
THAYHEL, 000-€TQES

HNOHJATAL 000-ZTQES

SEITEANS FIIJd0 000-TTIOES
ZOWLS0d  000-0TQES

SESNAJXA TYNOILIVIAAOD £S
SLIJEUNEE FONINA fTYIOL €S
SLISANAD HDNIYA IYLOL 0ZS
ALTYODHES TYIDOS  000-%10ZS
HIYDTOEW 000-FTOES

HONVHOSNT HLTYAH 000-2T0gS

LO¥d 000-T1T10ZS

S¥Ed  000-0TOES

SLIAENIS HEONIRI fAS)
ASNEAXHE LOENIO AZ¥VIVS 1IVIOL TS
ASNAIXE IOE¥IA A¥YIYS “IYIOL 0TS
FHOVM 3 GEINYIVE 000-0TO0TS
HSNEANE IOEUITA KAEYIVE s
IHAN0D HHILSOAL €11 ladg

uotadriosag

JUNOODY # JUnNoDoY

TYaF T00 QNI
TEILELT #€0  suny
LzEd tadey




paaoxddy

g1oe

a0'gog‘z
0o‘opD'zT
BATIRIUD]

9102

Qo ono0'z
00t 000’E
Bay adg

ST0Z

abeg

00°000°S

ao'oos’e
00ons’E
PEIRWUTIYSE

510¢

59°568°'ZR9'T

¥ PEI "9BT 00" 86L'08T
Y8 ¥C

PB8'¥E

¥8'¥%E

9% LZE’T 00'o000‘s
9% ‘6L

9F 64

go'eve’e 00000 ’'sg
0o-oBe’Z oo-o6o0s’'e
-00"569

a0'€9 oo'oo0s’g
®78Q oL 18bpng
ST0Z/80 STDZ

TO PSE'SBLT

SLTEVL
06°506"T

TENIDY

¥I02

910 WO SHUNLIANAGYE UEIVNILSH
ALNOOD XHE0IS

66°561'8E2'T

Ten)sy

£T0E

100 fpung asuadxg 01 Asy 18N
LA00D HDILSOL  IYIOL

£1T 1433

SOOINYTTIADSIA 1IYLOL 95

SNOENYTITHOSIW  1IYLOL 59§

LNEWEDYNYIW BAITATIM 000-59G595

SNOANYTIEDSIN  000-00S9S

SNOENYITAISTIIW 9

LHEMNYEADD TYYANED  TYLOL %5

ALAAYS DITENG  TYLOL E%S

BEITAANS LNIWTDIOANT 000~60ECFES

WALSAS I¥A0D 1I¥IOL Z5S

ATNYOLLY IDITANOD 000-LBELS

YIANFAEA DITANd  000-SHZHS

BNILHOdEY LUAOGD 000-EPZhg

uotadiassag

Junonoy # JunoDoy

TRIENES  T00 QMg

CHFLENLT ST/€Z/%E0 sunyg

noLzEd :idey




Virginia Township ]ustlce Court ~ Storey County, Nevada

775-847-0962 ° Facsimile: 775-847-0015
www.storeycounty.org

26 South B Street, Second Floor
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

March 23, 2015

To: Storey County Board of Commissioners
Re: Budget Request Justification Summary

The Virginia Township fustice Court is part of the First Judicial District in Nevada. Our court oversees
civil actions up to $10,000, smatl claims actions, landlord-tenant issues, misdemeanor cases, protective
orders, and the preliminary phases of gross misdemeanor and felony cases. Our office staff is small and
consists of orie full-time justice of the peace and two full-time court clerks.

The following sets forth FY 2015/16 estimated operational expenditures for the Virginia Township
Justice Court:

53010 Postage
$700.00 No change from previous fiscal year budget.

53011 Office Supplies
$1800.00 $700 reduction from previous fiscal year budget.

53012 Telephone
$1000.00 No change from previous fiscal year budget. This covers office telephones only.

53013 Travel
$250.00 $250.00 reduction from previous fiscal year budget.

53014 Dues & Subscriptions
$500 No change from previous fiscal year budget.

53016 Equipment Maintenance
$250.00 No change from previous fiscal year budget.

53020 Printing
$600.00 No change from previous fiscal year budget. Printing costs are used for items such as

court forms and Legislative Counsel Bureau publications.

53027 Rents/Leases
$1300.00 Reflects our costs for postage machine and main copier in the Clerk’s Office.
IT has notified all departments to anticipate a 30% increase for copier cost.

53029 Training
$250.00 We exceeded our training budget this year by moving a clerk’s training up to spring

instead of Fall 2015.

Page 1 of 3 FY 15/16 Budget Request lustification Summiary




53034 Computer Software
$5000.00 Represents the annual Courtview software user costs for two work stations at $2500.00

per station.

53035 Record Management
$500.00 This is a 5500 decrease from last year's estimate. With proper record retention

practices, our off-site storage needs have decreased.

53039 Uniforms
$50.00 Robe cieaning.

53040 Gas & Diesel
$100.00 Estimated cost for infrequent use of a county vehicle.

53043 NRS 7.135 Mental Health
$4000.00 Per NRS 7.135, trial courts are required to pay for reasonable costs incurred for indigent
defendants. Cases with a mental health component have increased. Although our first

two quarters reflect no expenses, our estimated expenses for Q3 and Q4 will be close to
$4000.00. : ; -

53070 Prefessional Services
$1500.00 Before the current year, the Professional Services Account was used to cover bond

costs, indigent mental health and competency costs, and senior judge services. For FY
2014/15, we separated Interpreter fees from Professional Services. For the upcoming
year, we are assigning a separate account for NRS 7.135 Mental Health expenses. (See

above Account 53043 NRS 7.135 Mental Health)

53072 Furniture and Fixtures
$500.00 Estimate for office furniture.

53078 Interpreters
$750.00 This account was created in FY 14/15. Pursuant to Title VI, the court is required to pay

for interpreter services.

54160 Computer Equipment
$400.00 Estimated cost from IT for printer replacement.

54243 Court Reporting
n 2011 when JAVS was introduced to the

$2000.00 Court reporting costs were drasticaily reduced in 20
courtroom. Numbers have fluctuated over the past few years.

45247 Conflict Attorney
$2000.00 A conflict attorney is required when the public defender’s office is unable to represent a

defendant. The only reason we are over budget this year is due to payment of some
stafe invoices dating back to 2008 from one conflict attorney.

54309 Enfercement Supplies
$250.00 Suppiies for random alcohel/drug testing for bailees through the Sheriff's Office.

Poge 2 of 3 FY 15/16 Budget Request fustification Summary




56565 Wildlife Mangement
$100.00 Only occurs with citations written by Wildlife Management Officers.

Sincerely,

E.F. Herrington
Justice of th